
CABINET

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

DATE Tuesday, 19th February, 2019

TIME 1.00 pm

LOCATION Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, 
LL55 1SH

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn
01286 679490
cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS

Members

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader

Dafydd Meurig Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
the Environment

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure 
and Culture

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member of Highways and 
Municipal

Nia Wyn Jeffreys Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support

Peredur Jenkins Cabinet Member for Finance

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People

W. Gareth Roberts Cabinet Member for Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Education

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development

Complete Agenda



AGENDA

Item Submitted 
by

Officer Page

1  APOLOGIES

2  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST

3  URGENT ITEMS

4  MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY

5  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
15, 22 AND 29 JANUARY

4 - 26

6  REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL PLAN 2018-
23

Cyng / Cllr 
Dyfrig 
Siencyn

Dewi Wyn 
Jones

27 - 
151

7  NORTH WALES CARERS STRATEGY Cyng / Cllr. W 
Gareth 
Roberts and 
Cyng / Cllr. 
Dilwyn 
Morgan

Morwena 
Edwards

152 - 
245

8  2018/19 BUDGET Cyng / Cllr. 
Peredur 
Jenkins

Dafydd L 
Edwards

246 - 
392

9  ASSET PLAN 2019-29 Cyng / Cllr 
Peredur 
Jenkins

Dilwyn 
Williams

393 - 
422

10  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
          The Chairman shall propose that the 

press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the discussion on the 
following item due to the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph Paragraph 14 and 
16 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government act 1972 

14.10.2 Exempt Information – Discretion 
to Exclude Public 
(a) The public may be excluded from 
meetings whenever it is likely in view of 



the nature of the business to be 
transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, that exempt information 
would be disclosed. 

The report refers to commercially 
sensitive matters which are the subject of 
ongoing negotiations with Byw’n Iach Cyf 
and its lawyers. The publication of the 
report and the Cabinets considerations in 
full could undermine the Councils ability 
to secure the best terms for its interests. 
It also relates to legal advice in relation to 
the contract and the terms offered in 
relation to the company and tax matters.

In addition releasing a summary of the 
proposed conditions could allow other 
providers independent of the Council to 
reach conclusions in relation to financial 
performance and that in its terms could 
undermine any future procurement 
exercises which could leave the Council 
open to a financial risk.

11  BYW'N IACH CYF CONTRACT Cyng. Craig 
ab Iago

Sioned 
Williams



THE CABINET TUESDAY, 15 JANUARY 2019

Present -
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Peredur Jenkins, Dilwyn Morgan, W. Gareth Roberts, Ioan Thomas and 
Gareth Thomas. 

Also present-
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Morwena Edwards (Monitoring Officer), Iwan Evans 
(Monitoring Officer), Dewi Morgan (Senior Manager - Revenue and Risk, Finance) and 
Annes Siôn (Member Support Officer)

Others invited: 

Item 6: Roland Evans (Culture and Communities Senior Manager)

1. APOLOGIES

Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.
No apologies were received.

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

There were no declarations of personal interest.

3. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items. 

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny.

5.   THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 DECEMBER

The Chair signed the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 December, as a 
true record.

6. GWYNEDD PLAN 2018-23 - RESOURCES FOR THE 'INCREASING THE 
BENEFITS OF MAJOR EVENTS' SCHEME

The report was submitted by Cllr. Ioan Thomas

RESOLVED
1. To commit £50,000 of the Council's Transformation Fund during the 2019-

20 financial year to realise the 'Increasing the Benefits of Major Events' 
Scheme.

2. To review the progress of the activity and further commitments to support 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



the remainder of the Scheme before the end of 2019.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted and the member noted that major events were 
extremely important not only for Gwynedd's economy, but in order to ensure that 
Gwynedd was a good place to live for the residents of the county. It was added 
that the investment had shrunk during recent years, and that the funds would not 
go towards funding the role of the Events Manager but rather, it would be funding 
available for events. It was noted that event organisers were offered a small 
contribution through the fund. The member elaborated by noting that the 
influence and impacts in light of the Council's investment ensured opportunities 
for local businesses to take advantage of agreements, create opportunities for 
young people and communities to contribute and that there was a central place 
for Gwynedd's language and culture.

It was noted that the Council invested £51,750 last year, adding that the funding 
attracted £217,000 in funding from Welsh Government to events, and the budget 
total was in excess of £4.6m. It was expressed that this demonstrated the value 
in this investment. 

Attention was drawn to the highlights of 2018-19 in terms of events, noting that 
the Barmouth Hurly Burly attracted 1,000 people to participate in an off peak 
event in October. The Red Bull event was mentioned, noting that they had 
agreed to use Plas Tan y Bwlch as accommodation for the Red Bull Hardline. 
The Culture and Communities Senior Manager emphasised the importance of the 
influence the Council had when investing in events, noting that there was an 
influence in terms of language, opportunities to use local companies and to 
ensure the best outcomes for the Council and its residents.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was asked how the Council would monitor and evaluate events, not only 

those that received an investment, but also the events that did not receive 
it. It was expressed that the appendices to the report demonstrated the 
economic success, and there might have been a need to expand on the 
monitoring specifically when looking at language, the number of 
individuals who volunteered, and the cultural impact. The department was 
asked to do this and to report back on these next year.

7. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT

The item was submitted by Cllr. Dafydd Meurig

RESOLVED

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

Page 5



The report was submitted as the Cabinet Member was happy with the 
performance of the Environment department on the whole. He added that the 
time it took to decide on planning applications had been unstable at the 
beginning of this year, and he added that this was due to the impact of the new 
Delegation Scheme beginning to appear, and it would stabilise as it was 
monitored through separate recording as the number of applications that would 
need to be submitted to the committee would reduce.

Attention was drawn to the Public Protection Service, noting that the service was 
still behind with the Food Hygiene and Food Standards inspections. It was added 
that additional officers had now been appointed, and the service had adopted 
more efficient arrangements by holding food hygiene and food standards 
inspections during the same visit, where possible.  

It was expressed that the performance of the average number of days taken to 
determine a taxi licence application had improved compared to the previous 
report. It was noted that the average time it took to process driver's licences had 
also dropped. It was added that when challenging the performance of the service, 
it was noted that licences for taxi companies and vehicles were processed very 
quickly, within two days on average, but that there was an increasing number of 
driver's licences. It was noted that the procedure for carrying out a DBS check 
could be slow, and that the procedure for arranging hearings before the Licensing 
Sub-committee could add a delay to the process. 

It was noted that the percentage of buildings with a complete security system had 
substantially decreased from 91% to 73%. It was explained that a member of 
staff had been on sickness absence, and that no other member of staff had the 
expertise to carry out the work. It was expressed that steps were now in place to 
ensure that the Service could continue to do the work in the absence of a staff 
member. It was noted that savings schemes had been realised and the Council 
Plan priorities had been outlined, noting that these had been developed following 
discussions with Councillors about their wards. It was expressed that steps were 
being taken to complete the priorities.  

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that a concern about a lack of parking in the Bala area, which 

was one of the Council Plan priorities, had now been resolved.
 The Council Plan priority for safety outside schools in Caernarfon was 

discussed, noting that the whole site needed to be looked at as the 
Leisure Centre and the Tennis Centre were on the same site.

 The department's performance measure for transport complaints was 
discussed, noting that many had praised the buses following a change in 
the company. It was noted that this measure looked at complaints, noting 
how the departments had responded to the complaints.

8. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS 
AND MUNICIPAL AND GWYNEDD CONSULTANCY

The item was submitted by Cllr. Gareth Griffith

Page 6



RESOLVED

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that the Street Services had an improved 
performance this year, namely the service that kept the streets of the county 
clean and tidy. It was added that the cleanliness and street appearance measure 
this year to date was 74.1% which showed an improvement on last year's 
performance, which was 71.95%. It was expressed that the percentage of streets 
with standard B, B+ and A had seen an increase from 94.1% in 2017/18 to 
98.5%. Attention was drawn to the change in the performance measure for the 
percentage of illegal tipping cleared within five days. It was noted that the 
performance for this new measure showed that on average, it took 1.7 days for 
the department to clear any illegal tipping and, on the whole, the department 
perceived this as quite a good performance, which would be used as a baseline.

It was expressed that the percentage of urban waste sent to landfill was lower 
this year for the period from April to October, at 17.98% compared to 24.33%. It 
was expressed that this improvement was due to the fact that more waste had 
been treated through the incineration process and, consequently, had not been 
sent to landfill.

The condition of the roads was discussed, noting that class A and B Highways 
were in a relatively good condition, and that there was an improvement in the 
national comparison figures. It was expressed that class C which was in poor 
condition had deteriorated, but it was expressed that the department had 
received funding from the Government and the funding would be used for class C 
roads. It was noted that the department needed to create a measure for 
unclassified roads as these roads were not part of the national measures. It was 
added that as so many of the County's roads were unclassified, the condition of 
these roads were crucial for Gwynedd residents.

Attention was drawn to cuts and a plan to close 50 out of 73 of the county's public 
toilets, noting that a Public Toilets Strategy needed to be drawn up by May 2019, 
and it would be submitted to the Cabinet for discussion. On the whole, it was 
noted that the Cabinet Member was happy with the financial situation and 
savings.  

It was expressed that the Gwynedd Consultancy Department had fulfilled its main 
measure, and that the projection of the latest NET situation showed a profit of 
£23,583. It was noted that the Department had won a National Award for 
Collaboration recently. It was noted that the member was very happy with both 
departments.

Observations arising from the discussion
 Attention was drawn to an LED Lamps scheme, and it was noted that not 

only was it a saving in funds, but that it was a saving in carbon, and it was 
in-keeping with the carbon reduction agenda.

 It was expressed that it was a good idea to set up an unclassified roads 

Page 7



9.

measure as many of these roads were in rural areas across the county 
which would be helpful for the residents.

 It was noted that it was difficult to acquire a measure for dog fouling, but 
there may be a concise report the next time, and it was asked whether 
there was anything the Council could do to be at the forefront in 
encouraging people to pick up and clean up their dog fouling. It was noted 
that this item was being investigated by the Scrutiny Committee.

 It was asked whether urban waste going to landfill would reduce once all 
the waste was incinerated in the regional project. It was confirmed that it 
would, once the site was operational in May

THE CABINET’S FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The item was submitted by Cllr. Dyfrig Siencyn

RESOLVED

To accept the forward programme.

The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 1:40pm

CHAIR

Page 8



THE CABINET TUESDAY, 22 JANUARY 2019

Present -
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia Wyn Jeffreys, 
Peredur Jenkins, Dilwyn Morgan and Gareth Thomas Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, 
Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia Wyn Jeffreys, Peredur Jenkins, Dilwyn Morgan a Gareth 
Thomas

Also present-
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer), Dafydd Edwards 
(Head of Finance Department), Iwan Trefor Jones (Corporate Director), Morwena 
Edwards (Corporate Director) and Annes Sion (Member Support Officer). 

Item 5: Marian Parry Hughes (Head of Children and Supporting Families Department)
Item 6: Alun Lloyd Williams (Learning and Development Officer)
Item 7: Garem Jackson (Head of Education Department)
Items 8-10: Ffion Madog Evans (Senior Finance Manager)
Items 6-11: Geraint Owen (Head of Corporate Support Department)

1. APOLOGIES

Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.
No apologies were received. 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

There were no declarations of personal interest. 

3. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items.

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny.

5. APPLICATION FOR SERVICE TRANSFORMATION RESOURCE FOR THE 
CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES DEPARTMENT

The report was submitted by Cllr. Dilwyn Morgan

DECISION

To assign £34,382 from the Council Plan Fund to finance a transformation officer 

Page 9



post for a period of one year in the Children and Supporting Families Department 
to undertake a specific intervention in order to ensure that the Department's 
services are operating in the most efficient way possible. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted and it was noted that the Children and Supporting 
Families Service was an ambitious department. It was expressed that they were 
eager to undertake a review of the department's work in order to ensure that they 
were working efficiently. It was added that receiving the resource would provide 
evidence in order to challenge not only the department's processes but the 
processes of regional and national partners as well. It was expressed that 
identifying collaboration opportunities across the Council and partners was a key 
part of the work, and that it was in keeping with the wider vision such as 
developing the Supporting Families Strategy. It was added that there would be 
financial benefits for the department following the review, but it was stressed that 
this was not the main objective of the department. Rather, it was to ensure that 
the department was working in the most efficient way possible.

The Head of Children and Supporting Families Department added that 
discussions had been held in order for the department to move towards working 
more efficiently, noting that historically the service had not made the most of the 
opportunities to realise efficiencies. It was added that a key part of the work 
would be to change the culture and to strengthen the Ffordd Gwynedd mindset, 
and in doing so offer the best service to the residents of Gwynedd. It was 
expressed that the department had gone through a full national inspection of its 
services last year, therefore, the department was aware that their processes 
were robust and effective. It was expressed that the request was for a Part Time 
(3 days a week) Officer, for a specific period who would not only undertake the 
review but would be a resource to realise the recommendations.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that a secondment to the post would be a good idea as staff 

understood the Ffordd Gwynedd mindset. It was added that a secondment 
would also offer an opportunity for officers to develop their skills.

 Reviewing processes was discussed, noting that if challenges were faced 
outside the Council's processes, it was important that the department 
challenged them.

 It was noted that the exercise would be valuable and that there would be 
implications beyond the Children field.

6. APPRENTICESHIPS - BID TO THE COUNCIL PLAN FUND

The report was submitted by Cllr. Nia Jeffreys 

RESOLVED

a) Approve the establishment of an apprenticeship scheme.

b) Commit £300,000 from the Council Plan Fund in order to establish the 

Page 10



apprenticeships scheme to employ at least 20 new apprentices in 2019. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted and it was noted that the scheme was simple, but 
innovative and progressive. The staff were thanked for their hard work in 
developing the scheme.  The Cabinet Member elaborated on the political vision 
behind the scheme.

I. Language - it was noted that the scheme would provide more 
opportunities to receive training and develop skills and expertise through 
the medium of Welsh. It was hoped that this would encourage an increase 
in the use of the language.

II. Country - it was noted that the apprenticeship scheme was a national 
objective. In addition, it was expressed that it was an opportunity for 
Gwynedd Council to lead by example and show the scheme's potential to 
other councils and public bodies.

III. People - it was explained that there was a definite link between this 
scheme and improving the lives of the residents of Gwynedd. The member 
elaborated by noting that this was not only for the twenty people receiving 
apprenticeships but the wider community as well. It was added that it 
would evoke a feeling of hope and confidence in the communities of 
Gwynedd.

IV. Children - it was noted that the scheme would be an opportunity to 
challenge social stereotypes. It was noted that this would be a long 
journey but that it would be an opportunity for children to be able to aim for 
their ideal jobs.

It was expressed that departments could be a part of the scheme, and that heads 
would need to contact in order to see what opportunities were available in their 
services.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was expressed that the item was timely, given the situation with Wylfa. It 

was noted that having apprenticeships would certainly offer opportunities 
to young people to remain in the area and to use the Welsh language.

 It was stated that it must be borne in mind that funding was available for 
innovative schemes despite all the talk of savings. The importance of 
keeping young people in the area in order to have sustainable 
communities was highlighted.

 As well as the importance of giving opportunities to young people and 
investing in them.

7. BID FOR COUNCIL PLAN RESOURCES TO TRANSFORM THE SCHOOLS 
SYSTEM

The item was submitted by Cllr. Gareth Thomas 

RESOLVED

Page 11



a) To commit £103,492 from the Council Plan Fund for a two-year period to 
fund a Project Manager post, which would enable the Education 
Department to respond to, and implement individual projects to transform 
the schools system in a timely manner as they arise and in accordance 
with the adopted education principles.

b) To review the situation when the initial two-year period ends, and/or if an
increase is anticipated in the number of further individual projects that will 
need
to be implemented to transform the schools system in light of adopting the
education principles.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that the Education Department had several 
exciting schemes as part of the Council Plan. It was noted that the Department 
was responsible for high level projects which encompassed matters of 
transforming the system, strengthening leadership and modernising education. It 
was added that the department had adopted new Education Principles as the 
basis for fulfilling the department's vision.

It was noted that the department had non-capital schemes which would need to 
be addressed under the leadership of the Area Education Officers. It was added 
that the schemes were in keeping with the principles, namely:

 Setting up a formal federal arrangement between Ysgol Brynaerau and 
Ysgol Talysarn 

 Change the admission ages of Ysgol Dyffryn Ardudwy and Ysgol Llanbedr
 The future of Cwm-y-Glo. 

It was noted that all of the above projects needed to follow a complete statutory 
process, which was heavy on project resource, no matter how small the change 
intended to be implemented was. It was noted that it was a period of significant 
change within the education department and it was possible that other non-
capital opportunities would arise.  In order to allow the Department to respond 
and follow the principles, it was explained that additional resources would need to 
be secured.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that the money would ensure that projects would be 

completed and would ensure that the education system progressed.

8. REVENUE BUDGET 2018/19 - END OF NOVEMBER 2018 REVIEW

The item was submitted by Cllr Peredur Jenkins 

DECISION

 To accept the report on the end of November 2018 review of the Revenue 
Budget and consider the latest financial position in respect of the budgets of 

Page 12



every department/service.

 To ask the Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being, together with 
the Head of Department, to get to the root of the Provider service overspend 
and take steps to reduce the overspend, and to report to the Cabinet on the 
response plan.

 
 Due to an increase in the overspend on a number of budget headings by the 

Children and Supporting Families Department since the last review, to 
consider the situation when receiving the Cabinet Member’s performance 
report (29/01/19 Cabinet) with a view to attempt to reduce the overspend by 
the end of the financial year. 

 Due to the level of overspend on pupils’ transport by the Education 
Department, to consider the situation when receiving the Cabinet Member’s 
report (29/01/19 Cabinet). 

 To allow the Environment Department to allocate (£60k) of the department's 
underspend to conduct a review by commissioning research by the University 
and employing extra officers to collect evidence in the Public Transport field 
following a number of issues over recent years.

 Harvest (£2,984k) of the net underspend on Corporate budgets, 
 with (£700k) associated with the Council Tax premium to be allocated 

to a specific fund to be considered for the Housing Strategy. 
 (£435k) relating to capital costs to be transferred to the capital 

programme’s financing fund. 
 with the remainder of (£1,849k) to be transferred to the Supporting the 

Financial Strategy Fund to assist with inevitable one-off pressures on 
the Council's budgets. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that the department detailed the latest review of 
the revenue budget, along with the projections for the end of the financial year.  It 
was expressed that it was a mixed picture with acceptable financial control in a 
number of the Council's departments.  It was added that significant overspend 
was anticipated in the Education Department, Children and Supporting Families 
Department and Highways and Municipal Department. 

It was reported that five departments, together with the Corporate budgets, would 
underspend, but the other five departments would overspend. It was noted that 
the Adults, Health and Well-being department was overspending as a result of 
overspend in the Provider service and a slippage in the savings schemes. It was 
added that there would be a reduction in the overspend as a result of using grant 
funding.

It was noted that overspend in the Children and Supporting Families Department 
was getting worse. However, a grant received from Welsh Government recently 
had reduced the overspend slightly. It was explained that school taxi and bus 
transport continued to cause an overspend in the Education Department.  In 

Page 13



looking at the Economy Department, it was noted that a slippage in the savings 
scheme in the Leisure field and a reduction in income projections were the 
reasons for the overspend. It was reported that the Highways and Municipal 
Department had started steps to reduce the overspend in the Waste field.

It was noted when looking at the corporate budgets that the projections were 
favourable, and that 2018/19 was the first year of collecting the Council Tax 
Premium. It was added that the projections of harvesting this additional tax were 
higher, but that back-dating the property transfers from the Council Tax list to the 
Business Tax list was reducing the income.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that the budgetary procedures of the Finance Department 

was the reason for the acceptable financial position, on the whole, and the 
Department was thanked for its hard work.  

9. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - END OF NOVEMBER REVIEW

The report was submitted by Cllr. Peredur Jenkins

DECISION

To accept the report on the end of November review (30 November 2018 position) of 
the capital programme, and approve the revised financing as shown in part 4 of the 
report, that is: 

 £9,000 increase in the use of borrowing
  

 £3,502,000 increase in the use of grants and contributions 
 £30,000 increase in the use of capital receipts

  
 £488,000 increase in the use of revenue contributions

  
 £220,000 increase in the use of renewal funds and others 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that its main purpose was to present the 
revised capital programme and to approve the relevant financing sources. It was 
noted that the analysis in the report noted a capital programme worth £51m for 
the next three years. 

It was added that the report detailed the sources, mainly grants that had been 
attracted, to fund the net increase of over £4m since the last review.

It was noted that the Council had definite schemes in place in order to invest 
approximately £28.5 million this year, £6.9 million of which was funded via grants.

Page 14



10. SAVINGS OVERVIEW: PROGRESS REPORT ON REALISING SAVINGS 
SCHEMES  

The report was submitted by Cllr. Peredur Jenkins

DECISION

To accept the report and note the encouraging progress towards realising the 
savings schemes during 2018/19 and previous years. 

DISCUSSION

The report, which outlined the progress on realising the Council's savings 
schemes annually, was submitted. Attention was drawn to the appendix which 
showed that over 95% of the savings for 2015/16 - 2017/18 had been realised.  It 
was added that some slippage had been seen with 15 schemes, seven of which 
were from the Adults, Health and Well-being Department, where the challenge of 
delivering some schemes continued.  It was added that four schemes were in the 
Highways and Municipal Department, where the Cabinet had agreed to postpone 
implementing the 'Recycling Centres' scheme. It was noted that one scheme, 
namely 'End to End' was being slipped by the Children and Supporting Families 
Department.

It was noted that the Council had schemes worth over £2.5 million in savings in 
the 2018/19 Financial Strategy. It was added that 64% of the schemes had been 
realised, with seven on track to be delivered on time, and five slipping. 

It was noted that one of the slippages was the 'End to End' Scheme has and that 
a review of the scheme had been held by the Children and Supporting Families 
Department, with Finance and the Research and Information officers, in which 
the predictions of the original model were revisited.

It was explained that realising nearly £27m in savings since April 2015 had been 
a challenging time for the Council, and staff and all Cabinet Members were 
thanked for their work.

Observations arising from the discussion
 Thanks were expressed for the work, and it was added that it was a good 

thing that the Council was acting efficiently. It was added that the Council 
was facing having to realise more savings, but that the welfare of the 
people of Gwynedd needed to be ensured in making these decisions.

11. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE 
SUPPORT AND LEGAL DEPARTMENT

The item was submitted by Cllr Nia Jeffreys 

DECISION

To accept and note the information in the report.

Page 15



DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that this was the Cabinet Member's second 
performance report. Attention was drawn to the departments' projects, with 
emphasis on some specific projects. When looking at the project of promoting the 
use of the Welsh language within the Council's services, it was noted that she 
took pride in the fact that the Council's internal proceedings were held through 
the medium of Welsh. It was added that the Council ensured that support was 
available in order to provide the best service to the residents of Gwynedd. It was 
noted that there was support for officers and manager also to develop their 
linguistic skills further, as there was a specific Learning and Development Officer 
for the Welsh language.  The Health, Safety and Well-being Service was thanked 
for its hard work in ensuring that the IOSH course materials were now available 
through the medium of Welsh.

It was noted that there had been an increase of 4% in the Council's revenue and 
capital expenditure, and it was stressed that it was important to strike a balance 
between ensuring the best value for money and the benefit of spending with local 
companies. Attention was drawn to the 'Reducing the Pay Gap between Women 
and Men' scheme, which sought to increase the number of women within 
leadership in the Council. It was noted that any element of the work conditions 
within the Council that were a barrier to women applying for leadership posts 
needed to be eliminated.

Attention was drawn to the Self-service development on the Council website 
which gave residents access to information 24 hours a day. It was noted that the 
numbers of self-service accounts continued to increase and 36,197 accounts had 
now been created. It was noted that there had been two 'information breaches' 
between July and the end of October where information had been sent to the 
wrong address or stolen/lost. It was noted that there were reasons for this, and 
that arrangements had since been tightened in order to ensure it would not 
happen again.

It was noted that the Cabinet Member was satisfied with the progress of the 
Legal Service and the Member congratulated the Service for once more 
succeeding in maintaining the LEXCEL standard. This was the recognised 
standard of the Law Society for “Excellence in legal practice management and 
client care”.  

Matters arising from the discussion:
 Attention was drawn to the deficiencies that had been highlighted in the 

programmed inspections of the Highways and Municipal Department, and 
the Cabinet Member for Highways and Municipal noted that he would 
discuss the data with the department. 

 The Gwynedd App was discussed, and a question was asked about the 
numbers using the app. 386 had downloaded it to date, but it was added 
that it had not yet been fully launched.

Page 16



12. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

The item was submitted by Cllr Ioan Thomas 

DECISION

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that it had been written following the 
department's performance challenge meetings which included Scrutiny 
Committee members as part of the panel. The Council Plan projects were 
discussed, and attention was drawn first of all to the Businesses receiving 
support to Prosper scheme. It was noted that some businesses had difficulties 
contacting the Council, it was expressed that Denbighshire County Council now 
had one member of staff to deal with any enquiries regarding economic 
development from businesses. It was noted that the Cabinet Member was eager 
to move ahead to develop a similar scheme in Gwynedd.

The scheme to Create High Value Jobs was discussed, and it was noted that the 
work of developing the Llanbedr site was continuing. It was noted that the 
National Park would make a statement shortly giving an update on the planning 
to build a new road in Llanbedr. The owners of Llanbedr Airfield had expressed 
that an increase had been seen in the number of enquiries from aerospace 
businesses in relation to temporary locations and establishing themselves within 
the development site. It was added that construction work was continuing in order 
to develop the site further.

Attention was drawn to the Arloesi Gwynedd Wledig programme, noting that a 
Drone School had been run with over 25 young people attending activities over 
six weekends which had been successful. It was added that, following a 
successful bid to Welsh Government to establish a public WiFi provision in rural 
communities, arrangements were in place to install the equipment in seven 
communities.

It was noted that the UK Government had now confirmed that the Welsh Slate 
nomination would be the next to be submitted from Britain to the World Heritage 
Committee.

The Maritime and Country Parks Service was discussed, and that the work of 
dredging the Victoria Dock marina basin had been completed successfully. It was 
noted that it was timely to look at the future of Hafan, Pwllheli and a Project 
Board had been set up. The Tourism, Marketing and Events Service was 
continuing with the work of creating a tourism Snowdonia Mountains and Coast 
website.  It was added that a new version of the website was about to be 
released to the sector for its input, with the intention of going live within the next 
few months.

Observations arising from the discussion

Page 17



 Attention was drawn to the lack of business space which continued to be 
an obstacle for companies who were keen to locate themselves in the 
county. It was noted that discussions about the Asset Plan for the next ten 
years were in the pipeline and that it may be possible to provide business 
space. It was added that businesses wanted buildings rather than units.

13. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE

The item was submitted by Cllr Peredur Jenkins 

DECISION

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that it outlined what had happened in the 
Finance Department, and noting that the Cabinet Member was happy with the 
department's performance overall, but that appropriate steps had been taken to 
improve performance where appropriate.  

In looking at the Total value of various debts over six months old, it was noted 
that the Health Board was responsible for a substantial proportion of those debts, 
and following the performance meeting, discussions had been held with relevant 
officers from the Health Board in order to resolve the problem.

It was noted that the Internal Audit Service, as part of adding value and attracting 
additional income, had been offering an audit service to 67 Town and Community 
Councils. It was added that, in a recent national review, the Wales Audit Office 
had shown the Gwynedd report format as 'good practice'.

The Information Technology (IT) Service was discussed, noting that a new IT 
Strategy was under discussion, and would be submitted to the Cabinet in May. It 
was added that work had been done together with the Education Department in 
order to develop a new IT strategy for schools also. It was explained that the 
schools' internet connection had improved and was substantially quicker.

Observations arising from the discussion
 The staff of the Department were thanked for doing their work so 

effectively. 

The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 3.30pm.

CHAIR

Page 18



THE CABINET TUESDAY , 29 JANUARY 2019

Present -
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Peredur Jenkins, Dilwyn Morgan, W Gareth Roberts, Gareth Thomas and 
Ioan Thomas  

Also present-
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer), Dafydd Edwards 
(Head of Finance Department), Iwan Trefor Jones (Corporate Director), Morwena 
Edwards (Corporate Director) and Annes Sion (Member Support Officer). 

Item 5: Vera Jones (Democratic Services Manager)
Item 6: Marian Parry Hughes (Head of Children and Supporting Families Department)

1. APOLOGIES

Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.
No apologies were received. 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

A declaration of interest was received from Cllr Nia Jeffreys as her husband 
worked as a part-time Fire Officer but it was not a prejudicial interest. 

3. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items.

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny.

5. GWYNEDD COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO THE WHITE PAPER: 
CONSULTATION ON REFORM OF THE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITIES 
IN WALES' GOVERNANCE AND FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

The report was submitted by Cllr. Dyfrig Siencyn 

DECISION

Page 19



The Cabinet resolved to permit officers to form a final response to the above 
consultation based on the draft response prepared on behalf of the Council to the 
Consultation on the reform of governance and funding arrangements for the Fire 
and Rescue Authorities in Wales submitted in Appendix A to be adjusted to 
change the reference to "North Wales" to refer to "the North" and to note that if 
the funding arrangements did not change to a precept arrangement following the 
consultation, further consideration would be needed to the membership of the 
Fire and Rescue Authority in order to ensure that the Councils have a direct voice 
in the funding decisions. 

DISCUSSION
The report was submitted noting that it outlined Gwynedd Council's response to 
the consultation on the reform of the Fire and Rescue Authorities in Wales' 
governance and funding arrangements. The current procedure was outlined and 
it was noted that five elected members were members of the Fire Authority. It 
was noted that the Council's response supported continuing to keep the 
individual Authorities as they were and not create one all-Wales Authority. It was 
added that and Authority which was familiar with and operated locally in the North 
was needed.

It was noted that there was a suggestion for the Fire and Rescue Authority to be 
placed under the Police Commissioner. It was explained that the response did 
not agree with this suggestion and that the Council's membership of the Authority 
needed to be secured in order to make sure that Gwynedd Council had a strong 
voice. It was added that it would be possible to have a further discussion on 
possibly reducing the numbers of elected members.

It was noted that the most important element in the consultation was the financial 
element as it was a discussion which raised its head annually. It was noted that 
the public contribution to the Fire and Rescue Authority was outlined under the 
Gwynedd Council contribution on the Council Tax bill. It was explained that it 
would be an idea to charge a precept as the Police did, which ensured the 
Council's accountability as well. It was added that if a precept would be charged, 
there would be a need for clarity and agreement across Wales.

Observations arising from the discussion
 Attention was drawn to linguistic changes, noting that the reference to 

"North Wales" should be changed to "the North".
 A question was asked regarding if money for the Fire and Rescue 

Authority came through the councils why was there not a Joint-Committee 
as happened with other fields such as Education. It was explained that the 
Fire and Rescue Authority was a Public Authority in its own right, and was 
currently funded via money from the Council and as a result elected 
members were a part of the Authority. It was noted that if the current 
financial procedure continued following the consultation, further 
consideration would need to be given to the membership of the Fire and 
Rescue Authority in order to ensure Gwynedd Council had a voice when 
discussing financial elements.

 The importance of the Council selecting the members to be a part of the 
Authority was stressed.

Page 20



6.  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULTS, 
HEALTH AND WELL-BEING

The report was submitted by Cllr. W Gareth Roberts

RESOLVED

To accept and note the information in the report. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that the department had been taking steps in 
order to reintroduce and re-examine the way it offers services to the residents of 
Gwynedd. It was added that the department had been pioneering and active and 
that it was continuing to develop in order to reach the end of the journey. It was 
added that, in future, preventative work would be prioritised in order to fulfil 
people's wishes and to provide early intervention.

It was added that preventative work would address the department's financial 
problems. It was noted that the department had received funding for temporary 
projects from the Government, but often the benefits were long-term and the 
projects were expected to continue after the grant ended through the core 
budget. This was not always possible.

It was stressed that the department's main challenge was people living longer 
and a higher number of people with dementia. It was added that work had been 
done to address the challenges in some areas and specifically on providing high 
standard dementia support. The importance of providing this care in all areas of 
Gwynedd was stressed, in order to ensure that support was available close to 
individuals' homes. It was added that this work was being carried out jointly with 
Health, and that they were working as one service to support the individual's 
needs.

It was noted that the number of individuals unable to be discharged from hospital 
on time because of social reasons had fallen over the past three months. It was 
noted that working together and the development of the community resources 
teams were the reasons for this. As well as developing domiciliary care schemes 
in the Tywyn and Pwllheli area. It was added that Hafod y Gest, namely extra 
care housing in Porthmadog, had now opened its doors. It was noted that the 
'Bridging the Generations' project was progressing well. This was a scheme that 
brought children, young people and older people together. It was added that the 
individuals who had taken part had enjoyed the scheme.

Attention was drawn to one major challenge which was emerging across the 
North, namely the lack of psychiatrists, specifically in Meirionnydd and Arfon. It 
was noted that this had been escalated to the Health Board for further 
discussions.

Observations arising from the discussion

Page 21



 It was asked whether it would be possible to combine two projects - Hafod 
y Gest, Porthmadog and Bridging the Generations, as Ysgol Eifion Wyn 
was so close to the Hafod y Gest building. It was noted that discussions 
were taking place with Grŵp Cynefin on this matter, and it was added that 
the Hafod y Gest location was a Hub available to the entire community. It 
was added that the individuals staying there could also continue to attend 
activities within the community in the library and the leisure centre as the 
building was so central.

 There was a discussion around using teenagers as well for the Bridging 
the Generations scheme, as well as young children.

 Attention was drawn to the Health Board reassessing all its CHC plans 
and there was a possibility that contributions would fall with the cost being 
transferred to local authorities. The current situation was explained, and a 
discussion was underway. It was added that Betsi Cadwaladr University 
Health Board (BCUHB) was paying, on average, a higher rate in Gwynedd 
than any other county. It was noted that it may be a good idea to have a 
mediator as part of the discussions between the CHC and the Council. It 
was added that clear criteria were needed for funding care packages so 
that the rules were entirely clear in relation to who funded which elements.  

7. PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN AND 
SUPPORTING FAMILIES

The item was submitted by Cllr. Dilwyn Morgan

RESOLVED

To accept and note the information in the report but in light of the significant 
overspend reported during the last budgetary review, to ask the Chief Executive, 
the Head of Finance Department and the Corporate Director to meet with the 
Cabinet Member and the Department to see which fields could be prioritised in 
financial terms to avoid wasteful efforts on matters with which nothing can be 
done.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that he would outline the latest about the 
department, and the scrutiny members who had been a part of the performance 
challenge meetings were thanked for their contribution. It was noted that the 
Cabinet Member was happy with the performance of the department on the 
whole but that a few slippages had occurred. However, none of the slippages 
was a cause of concern in terms of safeguarding within the department.

Attention was drawn to the department's priorities, noting that the Supporting 
Families Strategy was developing more integrated services within the Council 
with partners. It was noted that mapping work was currently underway. It was 
added that the work of developing the strategy and the recent announcement 
from Welsh Government regarding merging their preventative grants had given 
the department an opportunity to reflect upon its direction. It was added that it 
was an extremely exciting time. It was further noted that the Council had a Well-

Page 22



being Support Board, which would promote cross-departmental working in the 
interests of the residents of Gwynedd. Also, attention was drawn to the Corporate 
Parenting Strategy, noting that task groups had been set up to try to identify what 
needed to be improved and to identify good practice. This work was very 
ambitious.

Attention was drawn to the 'End to End' review, which was a savings scheme and 
had been joint work between the Children and Supporting Families Department, 
Finance and the Research and Information Manager. It was noted that the review 
noted an increase in the number of looked-after children in each category. It was 
added that there had been a reduction in the number of children with Learning 
Disabilities / Severe Needs but that there had been an increase in the number 
within other categories. It was noted that work was ongoing to look at the 
situation.

It was noted that the information in the review highlighted that it was now difficult 
to anticipate what cases would come up. It was added that it was difficult to give 
a specific budget as care needed to be taken and respond to cases as effectively 
as possible. It was added that work was being done to try to improve the financial 
situation. It was stressed that the department was trying to be responsible and 
contribute to the savings targets. It was noted that the cost of residential 
placements was high and, therefore, the level of overspend was much higher. It 
was noted that discussions were being held regionally to look at the cost.

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that overspend within Children Departments was a national 

problem, but concerns arose as there was no light at the end of the tunnel. 
A question was asked about what the Government was doing about the 
national overspend in the field. The new Minister for Local Government 
wished to have an open dialogue and to improve the relationship between 
the Government and the Local Authorities. It was emphasised that there 
was a need to convey a clear picture of the situation and ensure that it 
was discussed nationally.

 Despite all the analysis, it was stressed that the department remained 
unable to anticipate the cases which would arise within the field, and it 
was added that the department was not only looking within the Council but 
also at the situation outside the county.

 It was noted that the National review highlighted that the service was 
working effectively for children, but the financial problem was one that 
needed to be discussed. It was added that overspend could be seen in all 
services within the department and it was noted that the Chief Executive, 
the Head of Finance Department and the Corporate Director should be 
asked to meet with the Cabinet Member and the Department to see which 
fields could be prioritised in financial terms to avoid wasteful efforts on 
matters with which nothing could be done.

8. PERFORMANCE REPORT CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION

Page 23



The item was submitted by Cllr Gareth Thomas

DECISION

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, drawing attention to some projects in the Strategic 
Plan. It was noted that the Education Principles had now been adopted by the 
Cabinet and would be considered when responding to any opportunities for the 
future. It was added that the department was looking forward to working with 
GwE in order to arrange relevant training in order to strengthen Leadership within 
schools.

In looking at the Twenty First Century Schools Programme it was noted that the 
majority of it could currently be seen in the Bangor catchment area. It was noted 
that construction work had started at Ysgol y Garnedd and arrangements were 
continuing with the plans at Ysgol y Faenol. With the Bala catchment area, it was 
expressed that the Head had now been appointed and that staff appointments 
would now start. It was expressed that the building had been used as a social 
space and that the first evening had been a great success.

It was noted that the work of transforming the Additional Learning Needs and 
Inclusion Provision was underway. It was added that Phase 1 of the transforming 
work had been completed, but there were a number of other aspects that 
required attention in Phase 2 in relation to the new act, and creating new 
arrangements within work processes across our schools. 

It was noted that it was not possible to compare this year's results with previous 
years because of the adaptations to the national policy. It was discussed that 
English GCSE results had dropped this year as a result of a substantial increase 
in the margins between grades. It was noted that though Qualifications Wales 
had published an extremely technical report to justify its processes, officers and 
the Cabinet Member were of the opinion that the justification was insufficient. It 
was explained that discussions were ongoing.

Reference was made to the financial situation and the Transport Overspend 
specifically. The main reasons were noted, which included

 £149,000 as a result of the a new contract following the opening of Ysgol 
Hafod Lon

 £125,000 due to new contracts in the field of transport
 £73,000 due to an increase in the Dolgellau and Cymerau ABC units as 

both units were open four days a week, while the previous provision at 
Ysgol Eifion Wyn had been open five days a week.

 £69,000 due to the impact of re-tendering over the summer.
 £69,000 due to new mainstream contracts.

It was added that no child would be transported without the necessary 
permission. It was noted that the department was working with the Environment 
Department and a further report to the Cabinet would follow.

Page 24



Observations arising from the discussion
  The overspend in the transport service was discussed, noting that there 

were many reasons for the overspend. It was noted that that the process 
needed to be examined and lessons learned before moving on.  

9.  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING, 
CULTURE AND LEISURE

The report was submitted by Cllr. Craig ab Iago

DECISION

To accept and note the information in the report.

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted noting that the department was doing good and 
exciting work. Attention was drawn to the Gwynedd Libraries service, noting that 
2,422 children had participated in the Summer Reading Challenge, and that 
46,851 children's books were read over the challenge period. It was added that 
over 1,000 children had attended Summer Fun for Children activities.

It was expressed that the new structure of the Youth Service was in place and 
that the situation was now much better and positive. It was noted that the results 
were encouraging that 1,107 young people had received support from the 
service, and a range of activities had been held. It was emphasised that the new 
structure worked and was successful, and this had happened as a result of 
collaboration with Community Councils. Attention was drawn to the Dyffryn 
Nantlle area, noting that a good provision had been created under the youth's 
leadership.

It was added that the Gwynedd Young Ambassadors Scheme remained 
successful with 255 Ambassadors giving up hours of their time to volunteer with 
the plan. It was noted that eight of the ambassadors had been to the National 
Conference in Cardiff, and the staff member, Hannah Hughes, won the Young 
Ambassador Officer of the Year award.

It was noted that work was being done on the Council's Housing Strategy, which 
would show the way for the service for the five years. It was added that the 
strategy was pioneering. It was reported that there was an increase in the 
demand for the homelessness service, but that work was being done to reduce it. 
It was added that a Rehabilitation Officer had been appointed, who would be a 
contact point providing a service for individuals who needed support.

It was expressed that in future the field would use the scrutiny process more 
effectively.

Page 25



Observations arising from the discussion
 It was noted that there had been many opportunities for youths following 

the restructuring of the Youth Service, and it was noted that evidence 
shows that there were opportunities for young people and that it was a 
flexible service.

 As the customer satisfaction proportions were high, it was noted that the 
number of calendar days it took to provide a disabled facilities grant was 
still high. It was noted that this was because a wide range of solutions 
were required. It was expressed that in some cases, a planning 
application was required to modify houses, and others were only 
modifications inside the house. It was noted that there was certainly a 
need to work with the planning department and reduce the number of 
days. It was explained that the individuals who received modifications 
understood why there was a delay and a clear explanation was proposed 
along the way. 

The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 3.30pm. 

CADEIRYDD

Page 26



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet

Date of meeting: 19 February 2019
Cabinet Member: Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn
Contact Officer: Dewi W Jones 
Contact Telephone 
Number:

01286 679233

Title of Item: Review of the Council Plan 2018-23

1. THE DECISION SOUGHT
1.1. The Cabinet's approval of the 2018-23 Council Plan (2019/20 Review) to be  

submitted to the Council on 7 March 2019. 

2. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION
2.1. To ensure agreement on the content of the Plan and that it continues to be up-to-

date and that it reflects the priorities that have been identified before submitting it to 
the Council.

3. INTRODUCTION
3.1. The original Council Plan was adopted for 2018-23 by the Full Council at its meeting 

on 7 March 2019.  

3.2. The purpose of reviewing the Plan was to look at where we have reached following 
a year of implementing the Plan, as well as making sure that we are continuing to 
do the right things.  

3.3. To review the plan properly, we needed to consider what had changed since last 
year, and examine the social, economic, environmental and policy issues which 
influence the Council, and which are likely to influence the well-being of the people 
of Gwynedd in the future.  

3.4. As the current version, the Council Plan 2018-23 (2019/20 Review) includes a 
Concise Plan and also on Individual Department plans. A copy of the Plan can 
be found in Appendix 1.  

3.5. The Concise Plan includes the Council's vision along with well-being objectives 
and improvement priorities for the period in question. Under each improvement 
priority, a summary is included of the work intended to be carried out.

3.6. A description of each Departments' daily work has been included in the Department 
Plans. In addition, a more detailed description of what it intended to be carried out 
in response to the improvement priorities is given.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



3.7. It should be noted that some further work needs to be carried out on the Plan's 
layout and this will be done by the time the document is submitted to the Full Council 
on 7 March.

4. RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS
The matters for the Cabinet members to consider before approving the Plan are 
noted below:

4.1. The following projects have either been completed or transferred to become part of 
the da- to-day work of the relevant Departments during 2018/19:

 Transforming the schools system -  Education Department
 Corporate Parenting -  Children and Supporting Families Department
 Realising Savings - Finance Department

4.2. The following projects have been added: 
Improvement Priority 1
 Promoting Town Centres -  Economy and Community Department
 Apprenticeships Plan -  Corporate Support Department

Improvement Priority 2
 Post-16 provision -  Education Department
 Treferthyr Catchment-area -  Education Department

4.3. In addition, the following projects have changed:
Improvement Priority 3
 Tackling Poverty -  the emphasis will change to focus on the preventative 

field and the support offered with the title changing to Supporting People's 
Well-being  -  Children and Supporting Families Department

 Reducing the Pay Gap between Women and Men -  title changed to 
Women in Leadership -  Corporate Support Department

Improvement Priority 4
 Suitable and Affordable Housing and Identifying and Promoting 

Housing Schemes and Initiatives -  work is continuing as part of the 
Housing Strategy for the People of Gwynedd project - Adults, Health and 
Well-being Department

4.4. Resources
Additional resources are required in order to achieve the projects noted under a 
number of the improvement priorities within the plan. Without the resources, it may 
not be possible for us to achieve what is noted in every case. 
Currently, it is proposed that all projects are approved as part of the plan, subject 
to the Cabinet's agreement to fund specific projects after they consider each 
business case individually. Decisions to fund have already been made, partly or in 
full for some projects, and this is expected to continue as projects mature.

Page 28



4.5. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (2015)
The Act places a duty on public bodies in Wales to improve economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being.  As part of this duty, public bodies need to 
publish the well-being objectives that outline how they will improve well-being.

We have consulted with the Elected Members and the public regarding the matters 
that affect their well-being as part of the process of developing the current plan 
whilst also analysing the findings of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services 
Well-being Assessment. 

As the evidence used to form the well-being objectives for 2018/19 continues to be 
relevant it is suggested that those objectives continue for 2019/20. The well-being 
objectives are listed in the Well-being Statement at the end of the Plan. 

4.6. Equality Act 2010
There is a statutory requirement to prepare and consider the findings of an equality 
impact assessment when preparing the plan in accordance with the requirements 
of the Equality Act 2010 as is implemented in Wales. The assessment is appended 
in Appendix 2.   

The assessment on the Plan as a whole did not discover any impacts that would 
justify deviating from the recommendation and it is anticipated that there are 
elements which would have a positive impact. A full Equality impact assessment will 
be carried out on each individual plan that would derive from the improvement 
priorities.

5. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE
5.1. By approving the plan, it is intended to submit it to be adopted in the next full meeting 

of the Council on 7 March 2019.

Views of the Statutory Officers: 
i. Monitoring Officer: 

Within the Council Plan there are statutory aspects which are addressed, 
specifically in relation to Improvement Objectives under the Local Government( 
Wales) Measure 2009 and the Wellbeing Objectives established under the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations ( Wales) Act 2015. By reviewing the Plan the 
Council addresses the annual requirements to review or set which relates to 
these. I support the recommendation from a propriety perspective.

ii. Head of Finance Department: 
The Council Plan is a key document, which sets out what Gwynedd Council aims 
to do over the next four years.

The Council Plan Fund remains in place in order to finance the Plan’s priorities, 
but a proportion of this fund has already been committed.  There is a likelihood 
that resource requirements for all the improvement priorities in the Plan is greater 
than the money available to them, whilst financial propriety means that it must be 
ensured that a funding source has been identified for any commitment to spend.

Page 29



Therefore, as a part 4.4 of the report states, the Cabinet will have to consider 
each business case individually before agreeing to fund it.  I will update the 
Cabinet on the latest situation of the Fund on these occasions.

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2018-23 (2019-20 Review)
Appendix 2 - Equality Assessment

Page 30



Page 31



2 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Contents

Page

The Council Leader’s Foreword 3

Summary Plan 4

Appendix 1 – Departmental Plans 21

Education 23

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 31

Highways and Municipal 41

Children and Supporting Families 48

Environment 56

Economy and Community 66

Ymgynghoriaeth Gwynedd Consultancy 78

Corporate Support 83

Finance (and Information Technology) 95

Legal Services 101

Financial Information 103

Appendix 2 – Gwynedd Council Well-being Statement 105

If you would like to receive this document in a different language or format please

phone 01766 771000 or e-mail equality@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

If you would like further information about this Plan please contact the Council

Business Support Team on 01766 771000

Or visit the website - www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Or e-mail – councilplan@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Graphics “designed by Freepik”

Page 32



3 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

FORWARD TO THE GWYNEDD COUNCIL PLAN 2018-2023 – 2019/20 REVISION

It is my pleasure to introduce the Gwynedd Council Plan for 2018 – 2023,
which has been revised and amended to reflect the achievements of the past
year. Some new projects that are in the pipeline have also been included.

Its format is clear and easy to read, and it will form the basis of our work
and our desire to improve the lives of this county’s citizens.

In Gwynedd, our ambition is to be innovative and effective in succeeding to
deliver essential services to the people of Gwynedd. A central part of this
is our determination to transform our working methods, and to collaborate
with partners on a number of levels. We will do this despite the financial

squeeze imposed by the UK Government and an extremely disappointing financial settlement from
the Welsh Government, which shows a lack of understanding and a lack of respect towards the work
of local government. Once again, we have been forced to seek substantial savings, and we have made
all possible efforts, and have succeeded in protecting those services that are important to the people
of Gwynedd.

This Plan has been prepared following consultations with our councillors and the public, but I
welcome any comments or suggestions to improve its content.

The first part, the Summary Plan, is a statement of the Council’s main priorities. It identifies the areas
where change is needed and notes our specific action steps. Again, I emphasise that this is a Plan that
sets out a direction for taking action, rather than a list of aspirations. Nevertheless, a word of warning
is needed: financial pressures could restrict our ability to deliver some of our plans.

The second part details the services provided by all the Council’s departments in their Departmental
Plans. When reading these, it is worth reflecting on the wide range of areas in which the Council
provides services, and the importance of these services to our society.

Our commitment to lead, and to be at the forefront of promoting the use of the Welsh language
everywhere and on all occasions continues to be one of our main priorities. This is in keeping with
our commitment to the principles of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. We will collaborate
with our partners through the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board to implement our well-
being plans.

Our ambition for the people of Gwynedd is clear and robust. However, there is great uncertainty
facing us over the next year due to the current disarray in Westminster and the potential severe
impacts that could affect our citizens here.

Nevertheless, we will continue to implement our Plan and to protect the interests of our people and
communities here in Gwynedd.

Page 33



4 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

REVIEWING THE PLAN

The Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023 was adopted by the Council in March 2018. The purpose of
the Plan is to share the Council's ambition of seeing every community in Gwynedd thriving, by stating
what work we will prioritise in order to realise that ambition.

We have described the projects we wish to focus on in order to make a difference to the
communities of Gwynedd in the first part of the Plan. These are our Improvement Priorities. The
second part of the Plan, namely the Departmental Plans, provides more details about the
Improvement Priorities as well as describing how the rest of our day to day work contributes to
realising the ambition.

We have reviewed the content of the Plan over the past months in order to ensure that we are
continuing to do the things that are important to the people of Gwynedd and to examine the social,
economic, environmental and policy issues which influence the Council, and which are likely to
influence the people of Gwynedd in the future.

As a Council, we regularly review our work in order to ensure that we are on the right tracks. This
Plan's Improvement Priorities, together with the day to day work of the Council have been addressed
in the Cabinet Members' Performance Challenge Reports which are discussed at regular meetings of
the Cabinet. If more, or less, needs to be done or if any project needs to be changed, we will do so.

This version of the Plan, the 2019/20 Revision, will supersede the original version and the following
is a list of the main amendments made to the Plan following the review:

The following projects have either been completed or transferred to become part of the day to day
work during 2018/19:

• Transforming the schools system

• Corporate Parenting

The following projects have been added:

• Post-16 provision

• Treferthyr Catchment-area

• Promoting Town Centres

• Apprenticeships Plan

In addition, the following projects have changed:

• Suitable and Affordable Housing and Identifying and Promoting Housing Schemes
and Initiatives - work is continuing as part of the project Housing Strategy for the
People of Gwynedd

• Tackling Poverty - the emphasis will change to focus on the preventative field and the
support offered with the title changing to Supporting People's Well-being

• Reducing the Pay Gap between Women and Men - title changed to Women in
Leadership

Page 34



5 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

As noted above, the fragile financial situation in Wales and Britain poses a significant challenge to us
as a Council as we plan our services for the future. Cuts to our budgets mean that continuing to
provide a number of services is extremely difficult. Therefore, we must be creative and consider
every possible way of providing the services that the people of Gwynedd deserve. However, we have
clearly stated that any changes would be based on one form of measurement - the need to see every
community in Gwynedd thriving and to improve the well-being of our residents for the future.

Since the original Plan was adopted, the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board adopted its
Well-being Plan in spring 2018. The well-being goals and the priorities highlighted within the Well-
being Plan are consistent with the ones in the Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023, with one exception,
namely the effect of climate change.

The Council Plan focuses on the day to day services and the matters that the Council has prioritised
while the Well-being Plan will focus on the fields where it is felt that public organisations could make
more of a difference to the well-being of the people of the area by working together.

Page 35



Our vision is for every community in Gwynedd to prosper, and for us as people to...

We will achieve this by pioneering innovative ways of working, whilst focusing 
on…

…which will be supported by the day to day work of the Council’s Departments.

Creating a viable and prosperous economy

Reducing inequality within the county

Ensuring access to suitable housing

Assisting people to live their lives through the medium of Welsh

Assisting people who need help to live their lives as they wish

Putting the people of Gwynedd at the centre of everything we do

Every pupil having the opportunity to reach his or her potential

Enjoy happy, healthy and safe lives

Receive education of the highest quality which will enable us to do what we want to do

Earn a sufficient salary to be able to support ourselves and our families

Live in quality homes within our communities

Live in a natural Welsh society

Live with dignity and independently for as long as possible

Take advantage of the beauty of the County’s natural environment

Page 36



7 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Ensuring that there are appropriate jobs available in the county that pay salaries which enables residents

to support themselves and their families is a foundation to allowing the people of Gwynedd to thrive.

The things we want to do better:

Improvement Priority
1

Create a viable and prosperous economy.

How will we achieve this?

1. Growth Vision for North Wales

Economy and
Community
Department

At the end of 2017 a partnership of the six North Wales Councils, business partners, colleges and
universities formally launched the North Wales Growth Bid. The aim of the bid is to attract business
investment in North Wales, helping local companies to take advantage of supply chain opportunities,
and encourage work-related skills in the region. Over 5,000 jobs could be created, together with
new businesses and housing (including affordable housing).

As a Council, we are an active member of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board which leads
on the Growth Vision for North Wales. In future, we will continue with our work with the
Board in order to ensure that Gwynedd benefits fairly from investment in the North Wales region,
and that we work together with our partners in order to maximise that investment.

2. Keeping the Benefit Local
Corporate Support

Department

The Council is responsible for buying a number of goods and services and is eager to try to ensure
that local businesses can compete and win these contracts in order to ensure that as much of the
Council's expenditure as possible remains local. In 2017/2018, we succeeded to increase the
percentage of local expenditure to 62% compared with 58% the previous year. In future, we will
continue with that work to raise awareness and understanding among businesses of the Council's
procurement procedures and find other ways of supporting them further to deliver the services we
need.

Page 37



8 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

3. Create High Value Jobs

(£26,500 + salary)

Economy and
Community
Department

Low salaries are an obvious feature of Gwynedd, with the weekly pay of Gwynedd residents (£478)
amongst the lowest in Wales, and the low pay at its worst in our rural communities (£418), namely
the second lowest in the UK.

In order to address this, one of the Council's main priorities is working with partners within the public
and private sectors to create more high value jobs. In future, we will continue to seek to create
conditions to attract investment in strategic sites such as the Trawsfynydd Power Station, Llanbedr
Airfield and Parc Bryn Cegin/ Parc Menai. We are targeting sectors that pay well by creating an
environment which supports new businesses and grows existing businesses and ensures that the local
workforce is able to take advantage of the opportunities.

4. Arloesi Gwynedd Wledig
Economy and

Community
Department

The nature of our rural economy means that 78% of Gwynedd businesses do not employ more than
one person and there are too many jobs within sectors which don't pay well. This leads to threats in
terms of the sustainability of our rural communities.

Ensuring digital connectivity for our rural communities, and that the workforce and rural businesses
have the skills to take advantage of them are matters which require attention if we are to have
prosperous communities.

We have already attracted £4million from the Wales Rural Development Programme to develop
innovative working approaches and to trial a number of new and exciting ideas. We can now move
on to develop our projects which will encourage innovation in the traditional sectors (such as
agriculture and tourism) and improve digital infrastructure in our rural communities.

We will continue to collaborate with Grŵp Llandrillo Menai and the private sector to establish a rural
innovation hub in Glynllifon to lead on the work. We will also continue to work with the counties of
Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire to learn how to develop the rural economy and also
sustain the Welsh language. We also influence and lobby regionally and nationally on behalf of the
needs of rural Gwynedd.

5. Increase the Benefits from Major Events
Economy and

Community
Department

Public events offer a commercial opportunity for local businesses to provide or deliver services. By
staging major events, it is possible to raise the profile of Gwynedd and market the area to tourists
as an exciting and vibrant place to live, to visit and an ideal location for businesses to invest.

Page 38



9 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

In future, we will continue to work to ensure that local businesses benefit from high-profile events,
which brought in an investment of £5.3m to Gwynedd in 2017/18. This will lead to an increase in
the number of opportunities to promote the County, an increase in the number of visitors to the
County and increase in the number of opportunities for local companies to work at or offer services
to the events.

6. Promoting Town Centres
Economy and

Community
Department

Lively town centres are able to make substantial contributions to the economic and social success
of local areas.

The "high streets" of a number of Gwynedd towns need support to ensure that they thrive by
maintaining and creating work and providing a range of goods and services that residents and visitors
need. We will, therefore, continue to work as a Council to look at how we could support and
facilitate town centre regeneration to maintain a range of services for local residents and visitors
within a lively environment with a Welsh atmosphere.

7. Implementing the Gwynedd Slate Heritage
Economy and

Community
Department

A number of Gwynedd's most needy communities are rich in heritage and are home to existing or
proposed World Heritage Sites, such as the former traditional slate areas.

During 2018/19 the slate areas were selected by the Westminster Government as the UK's next
nomination to UNESCO for a World Heritage Site designation. Also, more than £60,000 in lottery
funding was secured to support communities to benefit from the designation.

In future, we will continue to work to secure the World Heritage Site status for the slate industry
in Gwynedd. This work will include programme of regeneration activities in these areas which will
lead to an increase in residents' ownership of their heritage, an improvement in the form and
appearance of communities and in the quality of tourists' experience.

8. Benefiting from Tourism
Economy and

Community
Department

Tourism is one of the main economic sectors in Gwynedd, nevertheless visitors put a significant
added pressure on the infrastructure of the county's destinations, a cost which is mainly shouldered
by Gwynedd residents.

Page 39



10 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

In future, we will collaborate with the industry to consider the possibility of getting visitors to
contribute financially to maintaining and enhancing Gwynedd destinations and raising the standards
of the tourism sector. In doing so, we will improve the provision of the county's destinations and
increase the standard of industry provision for visitors.

9. Businesses Receiving Support to Prosper
Economy and

Community
Department

The county's businesses work with many Council Departments and they receive a service from them,
including rates, planning, trading standards, building control and procurement. By adopting an
operational approach which places the needs of businesses at the centre, and makes it easier for
businesses to contact and collaborate with the Council, businesses can be supported and encouraged
to establish and grow in the county. Following research we have identified examples of good practice
including the "Better Business for All" programme by Denbighshire County Council.

In future, we will continue with the work of reviewing how Council services are provided to businesses
to consider whether there is room for improvement and will implement any lessons which become
apparent to ensure that businesses are assisted to prosper. We will also support the development of
the North Wales Business Network collaborating with partners in the public and private sector across
the region.

10. Apprenticeships Plan
Corporate Support

Department

Welsh Government has outlined its national vision to address the need to develop vital skills in Wales

and the broader economy to identify the priority fields and how apprenticeships will be an integral

part of fulfilling this.

The Council has already identified appropriate fields for establishing apprenticeships and has allocated

funding to realise these schemes for the next two years. We will establish an Apprenticeships Scheme

that will employ at least 20 new apprentices during 2019/20.

Page 40



11 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

If we are to take advantage of any opportunities that may arise, it is crucial that Gwynedd has a

sustainable quality education system in place, which gives our residents the skills to take advantage of

those opportunities.

Improvement Priority
2

Every pupil is given the opportunity to achieve their potential.

How will we achieve this?

1. Bangor catchment area, Berwyn
catchment area, Treferthyr catchment
area, Post-16 provision

Education
Department

In order for Gwynedd's children and young people to be educated in the best possible learning
environment we are planning and realising innovative projects to adapt or build new schools.

We will continue, or start work to improve the learning provision and its standards in the Bangor
catchment area, Berwyn catchment area, Treferthyr catchment area. We will also
consider the merits of the current Post-16 Provision across the county in order to see how it can
face the opportunities and challenges of the future.

2. Strengthening Leadership
Education

Department

We need to Strengthen Leadership in our schools in order to create the best circumstances for
our learners to have the best possible learning experience. We will develop clear directions and
plans for each tier of leadership needed in our education system in Gwynedd now and in future and
encourage and promote leaders' professional learning on every level within our schools. We will
also identify and target future leaders, ensuring that they follow an appropriate programme of
professional teaching.

3. Transforming the Provision of Additional
Learning Needs and Inclusion

Education
Department

We have identified that we need to Transform the Provision of Additional Learning Needs
and Inclusion, in order to ensure that children and young people who need support have access
to the most suitable support to enable them to fulfil their potential. We will continue to develop

Page 41



12 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

the support in the classroom and how it is organised, pre-school provision, post-18 provision and
Special Schools.

It must also be recognised, that currently, not everyone in our society has the opportunities to fulfil their

potential. Certainly, as in every county in Wales, inequality exists within the county at different levels,

with inequality created by poverty high in terms of the damage which is caused.

It is obvious that poverty can also have a significant devastating effect on well-being, and in particular on

children's possible futures. Whilst we have services which endeavour to mitigate the effects of poverty,

it is our responsibility to consider if there is more we should be doing.

We also have a responsibility to maintain a good standard of services to look after those children who

find themselves in situations where there is a need for the Council to take responsibility for them. But

ultimately none of them wants to be in such a situation.

Improvement Priority
3

Reduce inequality within the county

How will we achieve this?

1. Gwynedd Residents to play a full part in
the World of Work

Economy and
Community
Department

We will assist more Gwynedd Residents to play a full part in the World of Work which
could lead to benefits to health, life opportunities for children and a pride in communities, as well as
increasing their earnings. Being outside the world of work and unemployment is higher in Arfon
than the county average, but we will continue to focus on a series of activities in order to get more
Gwynedd residents into employment.

2. Supporting People's Well-being
Children and

Supporting Families
Department

The purpose of this project is to ensure that support is available for people to address their own
well-being needs in an easy, co-ordinated way that is available locally.

We will help with various issues such as: difficulties with parenting and raising a family, having and
maintaining a home, maintaining healthy relationships, dealing with substance misuse, alcohol,
violence, crime and the effects they have, living healthy and active lives, insufficient income and lack

Page 42



13 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

of work, inability to stay in education, lack of qualifications and basic skills, care, ageing, loneliness
and lack of social contacts.

3. Supporting Families Strategy
Children and

Supporting Families
Department

Offering support to some families before matters escalate will be essential to help children and
families prosper and to reduce the need for more intensive services. We have already mapped the
provision and support available to families, and in future we will continue to develop the
Supporting Families Strategy together with our key partners, such as the Health Board, third
sector services and the communities of Gwynedd.

4. Women in Leadership
Corporate Support

Department

We will review the working conditions and environment in order to ensure that we take the lead
in encouraging Women in Leadership and identifying and seeking to remove any barriers which
could be preventing women from reaching leadership and management posts within the Council.

Page 43



14 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The Housing field has a vital role in helping the Council to deliver its ambition. We know that a

suitable, good quality home leads to better health, more resilient communities and a population which

can contribute fully to society. It is important that we develop our various, innovative and green

housing offers, providing housing in which people can live throughout their lives as well as offer early

support to those who need it. As a Local Authority, we will intervene to encourage a range of support

and accommodation options in response to the needs of the population today, and for future

generations.

Alongside this, we must ensure that the steps taken respect the culture of the county's communities.

Improvement Priority
4

Access to a suitable home.

How will we achieve this?

1. Housing Strategy for the People of
Gwynedd 2019-24

Adults, Health and
Well-being

Department

We will implement the Housing Strategy for the People of Gwynedd 2019-24 by taking action to
ensure that the people of Gwynedd are able to find a suitable home, that nobody is homeless, and
that health and well-being needs are addressed. We will also ensure that these homes are
environmentally-friendly and that we offer seamless preventative services at a local level.

Page 44



15 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

One of the unique features Gwynedd has as a county is its Welshness. Gwynedd Council itself is

dedicated to working through the medium of Welsh, but that in itself is not sufficient if we are to keep

the unique nature of the county alive.

Improvement Priority
5

Living lives through the medium of Welsh.

How will we achieve this?

1. The Welsh Language in Public Services
Corporate

Support
Department

We will collaborate with other public services, through the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services
Board, to ensure that we innovate in the provision of The Welsh Language in Public Services
in the county. We will also encourage the people of Gwynedd to use the Welsh language when
coming into contact with those organisations.

2. Gwynedd Businesses to use the Welsh
Language

Corporate
Support

Department

We will encourage Gwynedd Businesses to use the Welsh Language, and to discover the
benefit of communicating bilingually when providing services. We will need to consider how the
Council will be able to promote this and how we and other organisations can influence the use made
by businesses and their customers of the Welsh language most effectively.

3. Promote the use of the Welsh language
within the Council's services

Corporate
Support

Department

Gwynedd Council has been prominent in terms of ensuring that services for residents are available
through the medium of Welsh as we operate through the medium of Welsh internally. It is continual
work to Promote the use of the Welsh language within the Council's Services, and the
emphasis over the next phase will be on working with front-line services to develop the skills of new
and existing staff to ensure that we continue to offer a fully bilingual provision for all aspects of our
services.

Page 45



16 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

4. Secondary Sector Language Strategy
Education

Department

We will develop the pioneering work of the Language Charter for primary schools by extending the
support to the Secondary Sector Language Strategy. The aim of the strategy is to promote
and increase the use of the Welsh language among young people within the curriculum and socially.
Every secondary school will have an individual and unique action plan which will reflect the linguistic
context of the school and the surrounding community.

Page 46



17 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Another feature of Gwynedd is the fact that we have a high percentage of older people residing here

compared with other counties in Wales. Whilst the Council has been very good in providing support to

people of every age who need care, the increase in the total of older people, the financial constraints

and problems discovering a workforce to continue to provide these services mean that we have to think

of different solutions.

The truth is that a high number of older people want to continue to live their lives as they wish which

often means something different to different people. We must change our services to be more tailored

to the true needs of those who need help from us.

Our vision is that our community services are transformed to facilitate early support and assistance for

people to be provided in their own homes and within their own communities. With this approach, we

will see better results for individuals, and the demand for hospital admissions and care provision will

reduce over time. The Welsh Government plan, 'A Healthier Wales' sets out a long-term vision for the

entire health and social care system in the future, focusing on health and well-being and preventing ill-

health. In order to fulfil this vision, we must continue to transform care services.

Improvement Priority
6

Helping people who need support to live their lives as they wish.

How will we achieve this?

1. Re-design our Care Services
Adults, Health and

Well-being
Department

We will Re-design our Care Services jointly with the Health Board to ensure that adults living
in Gwynedd have easy and direct access to the services that are important to them.

Five Areal Teams have been established across the county bringing together workers and providers
of care and health services in order to work together to respond to the needs of the local population.
So far this collaboration has been very encouraging and therefore we will continue with work to
transform community services to enable more early and preventative responses at a local level in
the future.

In future, we will continue to experiment with new ways of providing home care packages and look
at collaboration and joint-planning in the field of learning disabilities. We will want to see that our
arrangements for leaving hospital are effective and fit with what is important to the individual.

We will also continue with work to invest in our residential homes and ensure suitable care for
individuals in crisis in the mental health field.

Page 47



18 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

2. Community Resilience
Adults, Health and

Well-being
Department

We will work with communities to help people live independently in their communities for as long
as possible.

Work is underway to increase the care options for people within their communities linking those
needing help with services, building on individuals ' strengths, identifying gaps that exist and thereby
promoting community activity.

In future, we will continue with this work and seek to improve our understanding of the needs of
our population at a local level and how best to respond.

3. The Workforce and Recruitment within
the Care Field

Adults, Health and
Well-being

Department

Recruiting to the Care field is challenging for various reasons. We have an effective and committed
workforce, but we must ensure that we have enough workers with the necessary skills in order to
cope with the increasing need which is likely to arise in future.

Work is currently under way to try to understand what the problem is in Gwynedd in terms of
recruiting in the field. After publishing the findings, we will consider whether anything different or
additional needs to be done. The initial findings of the investigation show that we are on the right
track in terms of our efforts to re-design the Domiciliary Care business model.

We will also work to raise the profile and status of care workers by promoting career paths in the
field and reviewing our apprenticeship scheme within the Council,

Page 48



19 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Improvement Priority
7

Placing the people of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do.

How will we achieve this?

1. Empowering Units to Implement "Ffordd
Gwynedd"

Corporate
Support

Department

As a Council, it is our responsibility to ensure that it is the needs of the people of Gwynedd that
steer how offer the services that we provide. In doing so, we should avoid any unnecessary working
arrangements.

We will review our existing work arrangements, to challenge whether or not they place the people
of Gwynedd centrally, and to consider whether or not there is room for improvement. Work is
already underway to train heads, senior managers and managers in principles of Ffordd Gwynedd,
and a number of service reviews have been undertaken, or are underway within the Council.

In future, we will continue to offer training to new managers and support services to hold reviews
in order to ensure that they place the people of Gwynedd at the centre of their activities.

2. Developing Leadership
Corporate

Support
Department

We will Develop Leadership by being progressive in empowering and honing the skills of leaders
across the Council in order to reach the aim of placing the people of Gwynedd at the centre of
everything. All Cabinet Members have developed their leadership skills as individuals and jointly
during the last year, whilst the majority of Council managers have completed the development
programme that concentrates on leaders' behaviours.

We will continue to offer development opportunities for Members and managers with a focus on
leading people rather than merely managing people. The Managers Network has also been
established and this will give managers across the Council the opportunity to share good practice
and receive training.

As previously noted, the Council already provides a wide range of activities which seek to ensure that

we achieve our vision. However, there is always room for improvement. We recognise that there are

examples where we do not always look at things through our residents' eyes, and we need to ensure

that this happens everywhere within the Council.

Page 49



20 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Of course, this does not mean doing everything for everyone, as our resources do not permit us to do

that. However, it means that we prioritise those things which are of most importance to our

communities, and ensure that the limited resources available contribute to doing what is most important

to the people of Gwynedd (whilst accepting that prioritisation could mean not achieving everyone's

aspirations).

This consideration will also have to take place at a time when the funding available for services is

significantly reduced. In that respect, there will be a need to ensure that the funding available is used to

deliver the most important things.

The Council's Financial Strategy and the budget will be discussed by the Council at its meeting on 7

March 2019. These will be our foundation to be able to deliver the aforementioned Improvement

Priorities, while also trying to cope with the continued increase in the demand for our services.

The financial pressures on the Council are continuing, with a further reduction in the grant that we

receive from Welsh Government in 2019/20. At the same time, the additional demands for services and

inflation increase our costs by £13m. If we are to continue to be able to address the matters which are

important to the people of Gwynedd, we will need to add to the £51m savings that we have already

been forced to make over the last eight years, with the delivery of a further £5.5m in savings. Even so,

the Council Tax will also have to be increased further.

The Financial Strategy will, unavoidably, be dependent on the priorities noted above.

The full Strategy will be available on the Council website after its adoption by the Council.

Page 50



21 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Departmental Plans

The first section of the Plan, the Summary Plan, has focused on the Council’s vision along with the
Improvement Priorities for the 5 years from 2018 to 2023.

This next section includes the Plans for the Council Departments, and gives further details about the
Improvement Priorities which have been highlighted with a frame. The Plans also describe the ‘day to
day’ work of the departments, much of which is a statutory responsibility such as safeguarding
children and adults or providing education.

In addition to the Improvement Priorities and the ‘day to day’ work, Local Priorities have also been
recognised by Elected Members as the issues that are of the highest importance to their constituents.
These were discussed as part of the process of preparing the Council Plan, and we will need to give
further consideration to how we respond to them. The Local Priorities have been highlighted within
a frame with a background colour.

The Council follows general principles and practices and works on themes that cross several
departments, such as equality, the Welsh language, working against poverty and so on. It is each and
every department’s responsibility to act upon them, but the details can be found in the Plan of the
Department which leads on the work.

Below is a list of all the Departments along with information about their main responsibilities. Financial
information about departmental budgets can be found together at the end.

If you wish to contact the Department or the Head of Department you can phone 01766 771000 or
follow the links below to our website.

Head of Department Page

1. Education Department
Garem Jackson
Contact Details

23

 Support the daily running of Gwynedd Schools
 Support, maintain and improve educational standards within modern facilities
 Provide support and a service for Additional Learning Needs
 Lead the implementation of the Siarter Iaith within Gwynedd and across Wales

2. Adults, Health and Wellbeing Department Aled Davies
Contact Details

31

 Enabling the adults of Gwynedd to “Live my life as I wish”
 Provide care services through partnerships and collaboration
 Provide home care, day care and residential care
 Support homeless families and identify priorities for social housing and affordable homes

3. Highways and Municipal Department Steffan Jones
Contact Details

41

 Collect the recycling, food and residual waste of Gwynedd residents
 Highways and street maintenance
 Grass cutting and play and leisure grounds maintenance

Page 51



22 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

4. Children and Supporting Families
Department

Marian Parry Hughes
Contact Details

48

 Safeguarding children and Young people from harm
 Working to provide stability to families, children and young people

5. Environment Department Dafydd Wyn Williams
Contact Details

56

 Licensing and Planning Services
 Food hygiene and trading standards inspections
 Council property inspections
 Parking management service and pest control
 Protect and promote access to the countryside

6. Economy and Community
Department

Sioned E Williams
Contact Details

66

 Develop Gwynedd’s economy by supporting businesses, tourism, marketing and
regenerating communities

 Libraries, Museums and Archives
 Youth Services
 Leisure Centres

7. Ymgynghoriaeth Gwynedd Consultancy Huw Williams
Contact Details

78

 Commercial consultative service which provides planning and management of infrastructure
projects

 Building management service
 Local flood lead Authority

8. Corporate Support Department
Geraint Owen
Contact Details

83

 Galw Gwynedd contact centre and Siopau Gwynedd
 Human Resources, Communication and Training support
 Administrative and Support services

9. Finance (and Information Technology)
Department

Dafydd L Edwards
Contact Details

95

 Financial support to all the Council’s services
 Council Tax and Gwynedd Pension Fund
 Support and develop the Council’s information technology provision

10. Legal Services
Iwan Evans
Contact Details

102

 Legal support for all the Council’s services
 Administration of Gwynedd elections
 Support the work of the Coroner for north west Wales

11. Financial Information 103

Page 52



Page 53



24 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Education Department

The purpose of the Education Department is to ensure that Gwynedd's children and young

people receive the best education in our schools to enable them to reach the highest

standards and to nurture the qualifications and the skills that enable them to live and

prosper.

SCHOOLS IMPROVEMENT SERVICE

The responsibility of the Education Department and GwE in partnership with our schools is to educate

our children and our schools' results are consistently good. GwE is a schools improvement service that

works on behalf of the six authorities in north Wales, to lead, organise and coordinate improvements in

schools' performance.

The partnership between the Education Department and GwE provides our schools with support and

challenges them to improve the quality of classroom learning and teaching and supports leaders to

improve the quality of the leadership in our schools - this all to further improve results for our children

and young people.

In Gwynedd, there are 83 primary schools, 13 secondary schools, 2 special schools and 1 lifelong school.

Summer Performance - Secondary

The schools provide inclusive education

for children and young people up to 16

years old, and 43.8% of the pupils eligible

for free school meals (FSM) in 2018 gained

5 A*-C GCSE grades, including Welsh

(language) or English (language), and

Mathematics or Mathematics (numeracy)

(TL2+). In Gwynedd, post-16 education is

provided in partnership with the colleges

and the secondary schools in Arfon, by

Coleg Meirion-Dwyfor (Grŵp Llandrillo

Menai) in Dwyfor and Meirionnydd and

Ysgol y Berwyn, in the Bala area.

Percentage of Key Stage 3 (14 years old) who
reach the expected level in Welsh or English,

Mathematics and Science

Summer
2016
92.0%

Summer
2017
92.8%

Summer 2018
92.8%

Page 54



25 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Summer 2017 Performance -

Primary

Transforming the schools system

Following consultation on the sustainability of the education system in Gwynedd, along with general

concerns that the current schools system is not sustainable, the Council Cabinet adopted the following

principles of a fit for purpose education system that will form the basis for realising the Education

Department's vision and develop the system to ensure education of the highest quality for the children

and young people of Gwynedd, namely:

 A system of viable secondary schools

 No more than two age ranges within the same class in the primary sector

 Approximately 80% of non-contact time for the Headteacher to concentrate on leadership issues

in the primary sector.

In light of adopting the principles, this field will transfer to the Department's day-to-day work, as it is

anticipated that there is no swift process that would enable the implementation of the principles across

the system during the period of this Council, but rather, a cautious action, within context, and in a way

that will enable the system to respond to the enormous changes on the horizon, such as changes to the

schools inspection procedure (Estyn), along with very significant changes to the curriculum and the

organisation of our schools in light of the recommendations of Professor Donaldson.

Strengthening Leadership Improvement Priority 2

The importance of leadership, in order to ensure the best outcomes for learners, is acknowledged as
a priority, and in Gwynedd we ensure that our plans to develop leadership support and enable the
intention to transform the education system in Gwynedd in future based on these principles, and to
also consider the local, regional, national and international context.

Percentage of Key Stage 2 (11 years old) who reach
the expected level in Welsh or English, Mathematics
and Science.

Summer
2016
89.8%

Summer
2017
92.1%

Summer 2018
91.2%

Page 55



26 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We will develop clear directions and plans for each tier of leadership needed in our education system
in Gwynedd now and in future and encourage and promote leaders' professional learning on every
level within our schools. We will also continue to develop and assist the system to ensure the best
conditions for educational leadership to thrive. We will also identify and target future leaders, ensuring
that they follow an appropriate programme of professional teaching.

EDUCATION MODERNISATION TEAM

Some of our school buildings are old and unsuitable to meet the learning and teaching needs of our

children in future. The purpose of this service is to plan and realise innovative projects to adapt or build

new schools for Gwynedd's children and young people to be educated in the best possible learning

environment to enable them to prosper.

During 2012-2021, the Council will have invested £69 million to improve the condition and learning

environment of schools in the interests of the County's children.

The Education Modernisation Team is developing viable education provision models that seek to:

 ensure a first class learning environment for children and

staff in Gwynedd schools

 improve the conditions and circumstances for

headteachers to enable them to lead and manage schools

effectively and efficiently

 ensure the most effective and best use of the Education

Department's budget.

Post-16 provision Improvement Priority 2

Post-16 education provision varies across the county. Post-16 education is provided in partnership
ŵith the secondary schools and the colleges in Arfon, by Coleg Meirion-Dŵyfor (Grŵ p Llandrillo 
Menai) in Dwyfor and Meirionnydd and Ysgol y Berwyn, in the Bala area.

We will consider the merits of the various provisions currently operational, along with future
opportunities and challenges. This will include research and a report on the current provision across
the county that will form a basis for considering whether or not there is a case to change the provision
in future.

Page 56



27 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Bangor Catchment Area Improvement Priority 2

A number of primary schools in the Bangor catchment area (and in particular the Penrhosgarnedd
area) are full to bursting. We have managed to attract funding from Welsh Government to invest in
education provision in the catchment area, with the Council also providing half the money and
contributions made in conjunction with planning permission to develop new housing in the area.

We have reviewed the primary education provision in Bangor, and the Cabinet has approved a plan
worth £12.7m. As part of the scheme, a new school will be built for Ysgol y Garnedd for 420 learners
and will be completed by September 2020. We will also commence the work of adapting the existing
site and building of Ysgol y Faenol for 315 learners that will also include a communal space and will be
completed by January 2021.

Y Berwyn Catchment Area Improvement Priority 2

The Council has already decided to reorganise education in the Berwyn catchment area in order to
rationalise the schools system and improve the education provision and standards.

The construction work has now ended, and we have opened a Library, Theatre, Sports Hall and an
all-weather football pitch which is a resource for all schools in the catchment area as well as the wider
community.

We will complete the work of establishing Ysgol Godre'r Berwyn, a provision for 3-19 year olds on
the Ysgol y Berwyn site, Bala that will also offer services for the local community, by September 2019.
This involves completing the process of establishing the governing body, and assisting with
arrangements for opening the new Learning Campus.

Treferthyr Catchment-area Improvement Priority 2

The Council has decided to build a new school in the Treferthyr catchment-area, in Cricieth, in light
of the poor condition of the existing building.

We will complete the work of planning and building the new building by September 2021. The school
will include facilities for the early years along with space for the Cylch Meithrin.

Page 57



28 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS SERVICE (ALN)

The service supports children and young people with Additional Learning Needs - which includes
specific areas of learning needs, communication and interaction, vision impairment, hearing impairment
and medical/physical.
The service provides early intervention and support that is tailored for every individual pupil through
a team of specialist teachers and assistants. The service offers support to schools through the
Psychology Service. Every pupil has full access to Gwynedd schools therefore ensuring that every child
reaches his or her full potential.

Transforming the Additional Learning
Needs and Inclusion provision Improvement Priority 2

Work has already been completed on transforming the additional learning needs and inclusion service,
to ensure that children and young people who need it have access to the most suitable support to
enable them to fulfil their potential. The work of further developing the service is continuing.

We will continue to develop the support in the classroom and how it is organised, pre-school
provision, post-16 provision and Special Schools. We will also build on the existing partnership work
between our Special Schools and with the authority's mainstream schools in order to improve the
learning experiences of children with severe and complex needs. The crux of this work will be to
ensure that our systems coincide with the requirements of the new Wales Additional Learning Needs
legislation.

WELFARE AND INCLUSION SERVICE

The welfare and inclusion service supports schools to promote attendance, positive behaviour and

support for children and young people who experience behavioural, emotional and/or social

development difficulties. This support is delivered by a team of specialist teachers, welfare officers, school

counsellors and specialist assistants.

We ensure that pupils with emotional and behavioural

needs are included in full in Gwynedd schools through

training, support in the classroom and providing

behaviour support service outside mainstream schools.

The welfare service promotes attendance by working

with pupils, schools and families. The attendance at

Gwynedd Schools over the last three years has been

consistently good.

Page 58



29 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Attendance is high and the rate of permanent exclusions is low,

however the challenge of maintaining and promoting welfare

and inclusion is intensifying with an increasing number of pupils

displaying challenging behaviour. The service will ensure that

our schools are correctly trained and supported to meet the

challenge.

As a basis for all of this, the service provides specialist guidance

in the safeguarding field. Specialist training and advice is

provided to schools across the authority.

THE WELSH LANGUAGE

The Welsh language permeates through all of the Education

Department's work and services. The statutory document, Strategic

Plan - Welsh in Education sets out clear expectation for the Department

and our schools for Welsh as a subject and as a teaching medium.

Gwynedd has led the pioneering work of influencing children's social use

of the Welsh language in primary schools through the Welsh Language

Charter. The purpose of the Charter is to encourage children to speak

Welsh outside the classroom, and to ensure participation from all

members of the school community to achieve the aim. The Department

also leads and supports Welsh Government to roll out the Language

Charter as a national plan.

Secondary Sector Language Strategy Improvement Priority 5

As a result of the success of the Charter, there have been increasing calls to ensure a successor for it
in secondary schools. Evidence from research commissioned by the Education Department proves the
need for a plan and a strategy to promote the curricular and social use of the Welsh language in our
secondary schools.

We will continue to employ a Secondary Sector Language Strategy Co-ordinator who will provide the
appropriate challenge and support to our secondary schools. Every secondary school will have an
individual and unique action plan which will reflect the linguistic context of the school and the
surrounding community. The young people themselves will also develop a programme of informal and
exciting activities for their peers, in order to raise the status and increase the informal opportunities
for young people to use the Welsh language socially.

Number of permanent

exclusions in schools

Primary – 5.2%

Secondary – 5.3%

Page 59



30 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The Department also maintains Language Centres that provide intensive Welsh language courses for

incomers to enable them to learn Welsh and contribute to Gwynedd's educational and social life. These

Centres are essential to help our primary and secondary schools implement the Welsh Language Policy.

THE SERVICE OF THE AREA OFFICES

Area Education Offices

For some time now, there has been considerable concern among head teachers regarding their working
conditions, as they have to fulfil a number of different roles; as leaders, managers, teachers and
administrators. Without exception, Estyn inspections show that effective leadership, together with
adequate resources and time, results in a good education and high standards.

We will continue to develop the Area Education Offices in order to develop support and backing for

our schools, as well as rationalise and share the management requirements. This will be done by

developing the role of the Business and Services Officers to co-ordinate and facilitate partnership work

between the schools themselves and between Council departments, in order to reduce the management

and administrative workload of head teachers and teachers.

RESOURCES SERVICE

The purpose of this service is to provide the necessary statutory support for Gwynedd schools to
operate on a daily basis. The service includes access to schools, staff salaries and contracts, cleaning,
catering and healthy eating schemes and school transport. It also provides financial, human resources,
health and safety and information technology and communications support for schools. The service also
provides support to Governors.

Page 60



Page 61



32 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Adults, Health and Well-being Department

The Adults, Health and Well-being Department provides a variety of social care
services for residents aged 18 years old or over who require advice, information,
support or care due to specific needs.

The Department's main principles are:

• Ensuring the well-being of those who require care and support.
• Our services will focus on people, and give them a strong voice in the decisions

made on the support they will receive.
• Services will be provided by means of partnerships and by collaborating
• Services will attempt to prevent the escalation of people's needs, and

endeavour to ensure that the right support is available at the right time.

The four principles above interweave in order to achieve the Department's

objective, namely to enable Gwynedd adults to: “Live my life as I wish”

Housing

As a Housing Service, we operate in order to prevent homelessness but also
provide support for families or individuals who find themselves to be
homeless. We support people to maintain and protect their tenancy, and
ensure that houses in multiple occupation are safe and meet safety standards.

The Service also identifies priorities to develop new social housing and
schemes for affordable housing. In future, we will aim to increase numbers by making the best use
of grants from the Welsh Government in partnership with housing associations. We also
administrate the Common Housing Register in partnership with housing associations and prioritise
applications for social housing. We will aim to increase the number of homes by targeting empty
properties across Gwynedd in order to bring them back into suitable use. We will also inspect
rented housing to ensure that they reach acceptable standards.

Another example of work we do is assessing and providing adaptations for the homes of disabled
people and children in order to help individuals to be able to continue living independently and to
reduce dependency and demand on other services.

Housing Strategy for the People of
Gwynedd 2019-24

Improvement Priority
4

One of the largest challenges for Gwynedd is to ensure sufficient suitable and high quality homes

to meet the needs of a changing population. During 2018/19 we concentrated on implementing

two projects to improve access to suitable housing for the people of Gwynedd. Both projects,

namely 'Suitable and Affordable Housing' and 'Identifying and Promoting Housing

Schemes and Initiatives' assessed the current situation and in looking at the results of the

assessments it became apparent that we need to re-plan our provision for the future.

Page 62



33 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The current demand for social and affordable housing in Gwynedd is greater than the available

supply, and an increasing number of people are homeless or at risk of being homeless in

Gwynedd. Our response so far does not meet the existing need of the local population, or their

future needs. Using this information, we have created a Housing Strategy that aims to make the

best of our housing supply in Gwynedd, improve their standard and improve access to housing

by strengthening the support that is available for people to enable them to independently in their

own community. This will include supporting individuals who suffer from Domestic Violence,

mental health or substance misuse problems along with those who demonstrate

threatening/antisocial behaviour and are at risk of losing their tenancy.

From 2019/20 onwards we will take action to deliver the priorities of the Housing Strategy

(2019-24) to:

• Ensure that the people of Gwynedd are able to find a suitable home

• Ensure that no one is homeless in Gwynedd

• Address the health and well-being needs of the people of Gwynedd

• Ensure that homes are environmentally friendly

• Offer preventative and seamless services on a local level.

Well-being

The Well-being Unit has been established to promote the principles of the
Social Services and Well-being Act (2014), namely the need to work on a
preventative basis and to collaborate with individuals and communities to
find the best solutions to improve our residents' well-being.

We promote preventative services within communities and promote well-being elements in Care

and Support Plans. In terms of the Department's duty to provide "information, advice and support"

under The Act, we will develop resources such as Dewis Wales and establish local information

hubs, by developing a "community co-ordinator" role, and collaborate closely with third sector

organisations, social enterprises, community groups and with residents themselves.

We work with partners to support informal carers and raise their profile amongst the workforce

to increase the understanding and support available to carers. We collaborate closely with other

Local Priority
There is concern that there is a high number of houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) in
Bangor, which negatively affect the appearance of the city. There is also concern that the
situation leads to a higher than usual number of empty homes, with the side-effect of this
reducing the housing market for local residents.

These matters are addressed within the Housing Strategy for the People of Gwynedd 2019-
2024

Page 63



34 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

services within the Council by establishing the Gwynedd Mental Health Learning Partnership and

working with Libraries, Healthy Living Programmes, the Arts Unit and the Area Regeneration

Team. We also work with external partners who provide emotional and social well-being services

to Gwynedd residents. Through the Gwynedd Ageing Well Plan 2017-18 a Bridging the

Generations project was developed which brought young and old people together and which has

proven success in different areas of Gwynedd. The project is now being evaluated by the Bangor

University Ageing and Dementia Research Centre. It will be important to collaborate with

Gwynedd communities to promote dementia friendly communities that build on the success of the

Dementia Go project. We will continue to promote community resilience that will build on the

strengths of Gwynedd communities to prevent demand for Care and Support services.

Re-designing Care Services Improvement Priority 6

We have been collaborating with the Health Board to ensure that adults living in Gwynedd have

easy and direct access to the services that are important to them. To this end, jointly with the

Health Board, we have established five Local Area Teams that provide a seamless service. These

teams build on the strengths of the individual and the community and ensure that our

arrangements for leaving hospital are effective and are in keeping with what matters to the

individual.

We have been working with our care services providers and experimenting with new ways of

commissioning home care packages. The results of this experiment have been very positive and

we will proceed to recommission using this new method.

The Learning Disabilities Transformation Board is evolving and advancing. There has been good

collaboration and joint planning across the field during the last year, and we are confident that

opportunities to work more with our local providers will become apparent in the coming year.

The preventative intervention offer is driving the field with a focus on developing community

services.

We will continue with the work of transforming community services to enable more early and

preventative responses on a local level and jointly with our key partners, such as health, the

third sector and carers. Our Area Teams will be co-located in a wider cluster of providers and

primary and community services, as the image below demonstrates. This will include developing

health and care hubs in the areas of Bangor and Dyffryn Nantlle. Our population and well-being

assessments will enable us to ensure that the services within the clusters coincide with the needs

of the local population, are provided by different providers and are coordinated seamlessly

around the needs of the individual.

Page 64



35 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We are moving to an approach that places a greater emphasis on health and well-being and

preventative work. With this approach, we will see better outcomes for individuals, enabling

people to live independently within their communities for as long as possible and there will be

less need for intensive care. We will invest in our buildings across our services, we have already

invested in our Residential Homes in Tywyn, Nefyn, Llan Ffestiniog and Bangor. In the coming

year, we will continue with the work programme in terms of improving our intensive care

provision, this will mean developing Dementia Units in the homes of Cefn Rodyn, Hafod

Mawddach and Plas Hedd.

We will continue with our Domiciliary Care project which has been trialling new and innovative

ways of providing health and care services that focus on what matters to people who receive

health and care services. It also responds to problems such as the lack of care and health service

in some areas of the County, which could lead to people having to remain in hospital for a longer

period than they should. Our work programme is about changing culture and the early findings

of the project are very promising and will influence how we will commission domiciliary care in

future.

The Mental Health Service works with the Health Board and other partners to implement the

Mental Health Strategy. The initial priority is to ensure that suitable care is available when

individuals are in an emergency. As part of this work, we are looking at developing a service that

responds to the needs of individuals on a 7 days a week, 9am to 7pm basis. The intention is to

ensure that individuals have timely access to suitable services.

In addition, we will collaborate with the Health Board in order to strengthen mental health

services locally and will look at innovative ways of improving learning disability services.

Page 65



36 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Community Resilience Improvement Priority 6

A whole-system approach of providing health and well-being as described in 'Re-designing Care

Services' above will go beyond providing domiciliary care or residential care services.

Community activities and having regular contact with friends and family will assist people to

maintain contacts, reduce loneliness and maintain their mental and physical health. Working

within a 'Clusters' arrangement will enable all community assets to work together seamlessly all

in the interests of the individual.

We have been encouraging and supporting Gwynedd communities to be more resilient.

This work has led to preventative solutions which have increased the care options for local

people. The Community Connectors Scheme started in September 2017 and individuals from

the third sector work within our Area Teams. They map services and groups within communities

and link individuals requiring assistance with those services. They also identify gaps in the service

and promote community enterprises. We will expand this scheme in order to ensure that it is

an integral part of our services' day-to-day work. This is crucial to assess the needs of our

population on a local level in a continuous way.

Our intention over the coming years is to continue to look at opportunities to build on the
strengths within our communities and try to co-produce a full range of preventative support in
order to make it easier for people to continue to live independently in their communities. This
will include working closely with carers to try to reach the right solutions in the interests of
those who need care. On a regional level we have developed and co-produced an 'offer' for carers,
which includes the service standards that we are committing to deliver. In coming months, we ensure
that we commit in full to the standards.

A key part of community resilience is how different generations co-habit and socialise and an
innovative project, 'Bridging the Generations' commenced in May 2018. Its purpose is to prevent
loneliness between children, young people and older people by bringing them together for fun
and interesting activities.

We will continue to develop preventative services which are aimed at supporting residents,
linking people with support within their communities focusing on the five Areas.

The Learning Partnership has been established within the Mental Health Service to look at
preventative work and the well-being of individuals based on the 'Five ways to well-being'. The
Partnership is developing a booklet that notes what support is available within different areas in
the County. Our intention is to develop groups that will support this work.

Adults

As an Adults service, we work in partnership with adults over 18 years
of age, adults with a physical disability and older people to identify what
matters to them; and support them to find solutions to achieve their
personal aims. The service will assess in accordance with the principles of
the Social Services and Well-being Act (2014) and in a manner that builds
on individuals' strengths. The service provides an information, advice and
support service.

Page 66



37 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

In future, we will build on the effective working
relationship between us as a Council and the Betsi
Cadwaladr University Health Board, statutory agencies
and the third sector, in order to meet adults' personal
aims.

Learning Disabilities

As a Learning Disabilities service, we provide active support
based on the principles of Active Support and Positive
Behaviour Support in a 'person centred' approach which
focuses on positive well-being outputs for the individual. We
assess in accordance with the principles of the Social Services
and Well-being Act (2014) and in a manner that builds on

individuals' strengths. The service promotes integrated services and continues to develop the
positive relationship with partners and other agencies, including health, statutory agencies and the
third sector, in order to address the wide range of needs of people with learning disabilities.

Our vision focuses on developing preventative services across the county which will include
focusing on the needs of adults on the autistic spectrum. In addition, we want to concentrate on a
provision that focuses on developing opportunities for people with learning disabilities to develop
relationships. As a way forward to address this objective, we will continue the work of developing
community hubs around the county.

We will aim to develop a Respite care framework during 2019. Also, we are aiming to develop a
Respite care provision in the Pwllheli area.

The work of the Active Support and Positive Behaviour Support team over the last year has led to
positive developments for the county's residents. The main focus of this team’s work over the
coming years will be to concentrate specifically on preventative work.

Another core objective of the service is continuing to develop daily opportunities for people with
intensive and complex needs. We are aiming to plan services for the future in order to ensure that
local opportunities are available for these adults, so that they can live, receive support and attend
daily opportunities in their area. As part of this work, we will work to develop the opportunities
that are available as part of the Arfon Community Scheme. It is essentially important that we
collaborate with all local providers and continue to develop the work of the Transforming Learning
Disabilities Group.

Page 67



38 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Mental Health

As a Mental Health Service, we collaborate with the Health Board by
working on a multi-disciplinary basis. We act in accordance with the
Mental Health Measure (Wales) 2010, to support individuals with
mental health problems within the primary services and to support
individuals with more intensive or complex needs. The service works
with individuals in order to facilitate recovery and to support them to
live independently. We also offer assessment and support for mental
health carers.

The measure focuses on the needs of individuals rather than a 'diagnosis' and it is led by the
following main principles:

• Include patients and their carers in the planning, development and implementation of the care
and treatment plan;

• Equality, dignity and diversity - need to ensure that professionals give consideration to race,
gender, religion, gender identity, age and any disability when planning and providing a service;

• There is a need to ensure that patients and their carers are included in the planning, therefore,
clear communication is required by being aware of the patient's language and culture;

• The care and treatment plan needs to be holistic and person-centred;
• The care and treatment plan needs to be proportionate to the need and risk. This recognises

that not everyone has intensive needs and that simple assistance can improve the quality of
life and it should be ensured that care and treatment are integrated. Professionals need to
recognise that there is a range of services that can assist individuals whether that be on a
statutory or voluntary basis.

Safeguarding Unit

The Safeguarding Unit provides support for the Department's staff to
adhere to the safeguarding procedure. We are collaborating closely
with the Regional Safeguarding Board in order to create regional
procedures.

There is regular communication with providers,
health and the Care and Social Services
Inspectorate for Wales in order to share
concerns and good practice. The Unit is
responsible for monitoring internal and external
providers to ensure that the services and care
provided and commissioned are of high standard.
The Unit also undertakes investigations of service
users' experiences in order to learn about bad
experiences and good practice. We set
consistency in terms of what is deemed to be a
safeguarding case or not, lead on cases of
escalating concerns, Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards arrangements (a procedure that supports and protects adults who are unable to make
decisions themselves or unable to grant permission for their care) and respond to complaints and
concerns on a timely basis.

Page 68



39 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Provider

In the Provider Service, we provide residential care, community care and
day care for adults with intensive, complex needs.

The Service is responsible for the fields below:

• Residential Care Provision (11 Council-owned residential homes, with 2 being Homes with
Dementia units and 1 specialising in pure Dementia care).

• Home Care Provision
• Enablement and Intermediate Care (temporary care)
• Support Care (long term care)
• Day Care Provision (4 across the county, 1 offering specialist care for people living with

Dementia)

The Workforce and Recruitment
within the Care Field

Improvement Priority 6

Our success in realising Improvement Priority 6 in its entirety, namely to 'Ensure that we have
care services which help people to live their lives as they wish' is dependent on securing a
workforce for the Care field. Recruiting to the Care field is challenging for various reasons and
while we have an effective and committed workforce, we must ensure that we have enough
workers with the necessary skills to meet the increasing need.

Before being able to establish an action plan to resolve the problem, we need to ensure that we

really understand the problem, and we have commissioned an independent investigation into

the current situation in Gwynedd, the pressure on our workforce and on the Council.

During 2019/20 we will consider the findings of the investigation and any recommendations

made by a scrutiny review, and determine what should be done differently or in addition to what

is currently operational. The initial findings of the investigation have highlights many key factors

that confirm we are on the right track in terms of our efforts to re-design the Domiciliary Care

business model.

We also acknowledge, in addition to having the right skills mix, there will be a need to change

cultures and behaviours and to promote taking positive risks; and we will work with partners

and academic institutions to develop and deliver this.

Local Priority

There is potential to develop appropriate care provision in the Dolgellau area and we will
examine the possibilities of collaborating with other partners in order to fund such a scheme.
There is similar demand for purpose built units for Llŷn residents, and we can measure the
exact provision required and how best to fund it by collaborating with others.
This priority will be addressed within the 'Re-designing Care' improvement programme

Page 69



40 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We will also work on raising the profile and status of care workers by reviewing existing career

paths, so that a career in social care work is a positive career choice and we will promote the

care field as a career by disseminating appropriate information to local organisations. We will

also review our Apprenticeship scheme within the Council to seek to influence the number of

apprentices within the care field.

Business Service

The Business Service provides support to the front line teams of the
Adults, Health and Well-being Department and the Children and
Supporting Families Department, in order to enable them to achieve
their purpose for the benefit of Gwynedd residents. In order to
facilitate efficient work arrangements specifically, management and
support in terms of information technology systems, along with

administrative support, is provided for the Teams in question. A variety of training opportunities
are also offered to employees across the care field in order to ensure that we have the most
suitable workforce to care for the County's residents for the future.

The Service also helps people to achieve what matters to them by ensuring that anyone receiving
care will receive appropriate financial advice and support, and subsequently that they are fully
aware of any financial implications that are associated with their care choices. When required,
there is also a provision in place to manage the money of vulnerable residents who do not have
anyone to help them. The Service provides business support for services that promote
independence such as Direct Payments and assistive Technology.

The Business Service is responsible for gathering, analysing and interpreting data in order to
procure and commission services effectively, in a field where demand is increasing and resources
are becoming scarce. Additionally, the Service is responsible for managing and driving change in
order to enable the Adults, Health and Well-being Department to deliver projects that will
transform our services for the people of Gwynedd in future.

Page 70



Page 71



42 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Highways and Municipal Department

This Department is responsible for assets and providing important services to ensure

a clean and safe environment for Gwynedd residents.

Highway Maintenance

It is important that Gwynedd businesses and residents can move with ease and

safely within the county and, in order to ensure this, the Council maintains

2,697km of county roads along with 199km of Trunk Roads (namely

highways of national importance, on behalf of Welsh Government). At present,

our highways in Gwynedd, namely Class A and B roads, are in a good condition

with less than 4% defective and in need of attention.

With a reduction in the relevant budget, the deterioration in the condition of our Class C and

unclassified roads continues. As a result of the financial pressures on the Council, it is inevitable that

there will be further pressures on road maintenance, and it will be challenging to prevent

deterioration in the quality of our roads, in particular lower priority roads namely Class C and

unclassified roads.

There is now a new national

Code of Practice in force which

emphasises risk management.

By now, work is afoot across

Wales to develop consistent

action plans when inspecting

the condition of roads. As part

of this work, we are in the

process of reviewing and

updating our Highways Assets

Maintenance Plan.

In future, we will seek to

prevent a sudden decline

in the quality of our

roads.

201
3/14

201
4/15

201
5/16

201
6/17

201
7/18

Class A 4.40% 3.50% 3.10% 3.50% 3.30%

Class B 4.70% 3.70% 3.40% 3.90% 3.80%

Class C 14.70%14.20%15.80%15.20%14.50%

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge

Percentage of Defective Highways

Class A

Class B

Class C

97.2% 97.0%
97.8% 98.0% 98.0%

95%

100%

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Percentage of incidents of
dangerous damage to roads and
pavements which were repaired
or made safe within 24 hours of

the time that they were…

Page 72



43 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Gwynedd Council is responsible for leading a

partnership of seven Councils in north and

mid Wales to manage and maintain 1100km of

Trunk Roads (Welsh Government nationally

important highways).

Our Highways Works Service is responsible for the maintenance work along with dealing with

accidents and incidents because of severe weather.

Street Lighting

We maintain 18,705 street lights and 6,067

illuminated signs in order to make our roads safer and

for residents to be able to use our streets safely after

dark. The lights use electrical power, which has a

detrimental impact on the environment in terms of

carbon emissions and light pollution.

Over the last three years we have been changing street
lights and signs to LED (light emitting diode) technology
with the majority of them dimming or switching off when
appropriate. This is for the purpose of reducing energy
costs, carbon emissions and preventing light pollution
today and for the future.

In terms of the local environment, it is extremely important
that our streets are clean and safe; streets must therefore be cleaned regularly. The appearance
of streets and public spaces is important to the residents of Gwynedd, and there is a small team of
officers responsible for dealing with environmental crimes such as fly-tipping, graffiti and dog fouling.
On average, we take 1.76 days to clear items of fly tipping after receiving notice of them. The
Cleanliness Index is used to assess the cleanliness and appearance of streets.

Street Cleaning

Keep Wales Tidy carries-out a survey

to asses how many 'defects' such as

rubbish, weeds, dog fouling, chewing

gum and cigarette stumps can be found

on our streets. According to the

independent survey, the cleanliness and

appearance quality of Gwynedd streets

continues to be good, and it appears

that a recent change in behaviour for

the better is likely to prevent mess.

Page 73



44 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Waste Collection and Recycling

It is vital to deal with waste in a correct way
in order to protect our environment and
avoid creating problems for our children and
our children's children. Burying waste in the
ground causes pollution to the land, water and
the air. It is necessary to increase recycling,
reusing and composting waste to avoid this.

The changes to refuse collection arrangements every three weeks and collecting food waste and
recycling materials weekly, has led to an increase in recycling. Changes to garden waste collection
arrangements and to collection vehicles which are less harmful to the environment have also been
implemented.

We have completed over a million waste collection from Gwynedd
houses within a period of three months. From these collections, some
are missed, and although the figure is low (less than 1%) we recognise
that this failure is important to the resident. The Department now
collects information to understand why this happens and to ensure
new arrangements for improving performance and responding to
problems relevant to waste collection. Welsh Government has set
ambitious targets for the purpose of reducing landfill and increasing
recycling. The Council would incur significant fines if the targets are
not reached.

We will seek to build on the

increase in recycling by residents

and businesses in order to improve

our recycling performance again

this year.

Percentage of graffiti

and posters which hide

traffic signs and couse

hazards which are

cleaned/cleared within

24 hours of the time that

they are reported

100%

Percentage of highways

and associated land

inspected which have

high or acceptable

standards of cleanliness

98.5%

35.5%
41.4% 40.5%

44.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Percentageof commercial recycling /
composting levels

Page 74



45 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Municipal Assets

We manage Bangor Crematorium and 16 of the County's biggest and busiest
cemeteries.

The bereavement service is crucial to residents, and it is our aim to
ensure a bereavement service which is appropriate and respectful.

CCTV

In order to safeguard the community, we maintain a network of CCTV in the
populated areas of the County, namely Bangor, Caernarfon and Pwllheli. The
service attracts income from others, but it is not sufficient to meet the costs of
provision.

Last year, approximately 3000 criminal and anti-social incidents were monitored.

It is our aim to continue with the work of safeguarding the community

The Department is responsible for maintaining and cleaning
the County's public toilets along with managing a scheme to
provide other toilets (community toilets) which are open
to the public by businesses and groups in the community.
The Council does not have to provide public toilets, and
residents did not prioritise the provision during the
Gwynedd Challenge exercise. As there
is a limited budget, other ways of
providing the toilets must be identified
through partnerships with the
County's Town and Community
Councils.

In response to complaints about mess and rubbish falling from/being left by waste and recycling

collection vehicles, a number of steps have been put in place to try to improve the situation.

This includes using Romaquip vehicles rather than Kerbside vehicles, which means that there is

no tipping above the height of the vehicles and they are therefore safer for the workforce. Using

these new vehicles also means a reduction in the number of materials falling from the vehicles

as materials are not stored freely when moving from property to property which leads to better

arrangements when serving the cartgylchu. We will continue to respond to our residents'

concerns and ensure an improvement in the situation by focusing on the smaller vehicles.

We also continue to work on the Bangor Image project which is progressing well. This is a

partnership with representatives from the City Council, BID Bangor, Bangor University and

several other organisations. The group's main focus is to improve the City's image. We will

learn from this work in Bangor and will then introduce it in other areas. We also work with a

group in Dyffryn Nantlle to improve the area's appearance. We will learn from our experiences

of working with Bangor project as we continue with this work.

Public Toilets Community

Toilets

Page 75



46 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

By creating partnerships, we will seek to keep public toilets open throughout the

county.

The Department is responsible for maintaining roadside and open

spaces in order to improve the environmental quality of our towns and

villages and to make it safer for residents. Although grass is cut less often,

public safety must be ensured. The Department cuts grass for other

Council Departments, and for other establishments e.g. schools, leisure

centres, residential homes and Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd.

We will promote wildlife whilst keeping our towns and villages tidy and safe.

Every child, parent and child minder appreciates

playgrounds, and we maintain 131 of them across the

County. Playing equipment is very expensive, and

money for buying new equipment is very scarce.

We also maintain playgrounds so that they are safe for children and young people to
be able to enjoy them.

The Department is responsible for

holding events to educate and raise

the awareness of children regarding

recycling waste and preventing litter,

graffiti, fly-tipping and dog fouling

problems. We also organise local environmental

improvement campaigns with schools and community

groups. This is important work to change behaviour in order

to promote a clean and safe environment today and in the

future.

It is our aim to continue with this programme
of events and campaigns throughout the
County

2017/18 Events Programme

16 Litter / fly-tipping cleaning

campaigns with the

community

11 Clean environment road

shows in schools

8 Dog fouling prevention

projects in the community

or in schools

22 Visits to promote recycling

in schools

Playgrounds with Playgrounds which

equipment for have equipment

young children older children

Page 76



Page 77



49 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Children and Supporting Families Department

Our purpose is to ensure that children and young people are protected from harm;

experience stability in their lives and have the best opportunities in terms of their health

and well-being.

There are several teams within our service and we work within three tiers of need:

1. Early Intervention

2. Care and support, safeguarding, and care needs

3. Specialist Teams

In Gwynedd, we believe that every child and young person should be given the opportunity to fulfil

his/her full potential. We recognise that children develop best when they are supported to grow and

succeed within their families and communities. We also recognise that providing early intervention is

critical in helping children and their families to thrive and to reduce the need for more intensive services.

In order to better meet the needs of children and their families, we need to work in an integrated way.

We, therefore, want to develop the way in which we offer and provide services for families by adopting

the Supporting Families Strategy.

The Supporting Families Strategy Improvement Priority 3

The purpose of the Supporting Families Strategy is to develop much more integrated services within
the Council and with our partners, focusing our interventions on the early identification of needs,
targeting families correctly, and providing services that reduce the need for more serious
interventions.

Further work has taken place to identify the demand for support for families across the Council's
departments, in addition to mapping out the provisions that are already available to support families
across Gwynedd, and the way people gain access to these services. This work will improve our
understanding of the current situation and will guide the way we plan our response to the needs,
jointly with our partners.

We will review our existing arrangements in this field in order to do more of what works to meet the
needs of children and their families. Offering support to some families before matters escalate will be
essential to help children and families prosper and to reduce the need for more intensive services.

We will ensure a clear vision with key partners such as the Health Board, together with our
communities and the Third Sector, to provide the best outcomes for those children, young people,
and families who need our help.

Page 78



50 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Supporting People's Well-being Improvement Priority 3

In the Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-2023 published in March 2018 we planned for the 'Tackling
Poverty' project in order to support the people of Gwynedd to cope with changes to welfare and
benefits (in particular Universal Credit) and to give opportunities to people who are not part of the
labour market. This project succeeded to increase the income levels of a number of families and
campaigns such as 'Look after the Pennies' helped to alleviate some of the impact of moving to new
benefit payment arrangements.

The Universal Credit has now been operational in Gwynedd since December 2018, therefore there is
no need to place as much focus on our response to that change. There is so much work that needs
to be done in the field of tackling poverty to try to alleviate the impact of poverty on the people of
Gwynedd, therefore from 2019 onwards we will be throwing the net wider and concentrating on the
preventative field and the support that all Council services offer to the county's residents in order to
address some of the obstacles they face.

Some residents need more support, and the Council invests in, provides and plans many services and
interventions that tackle various issues such as: difficulties with parenting and raising a family, obtaining
and maintaining a home, maintaining healthy relationships, dealing with substance misuse and alcohol,
violence, crime and the effects they have, living healthy and active lives, insufficient income and lack of
work, inability to stay in education, lack of qualifications and basic skills, care, ageing, loneliness and
lack of social contacts; and supports people to deal with them.

During the next period of the Council Plan, we will reach an agreement on the direction, scope and a
work programme. 'Supporting People's Well-being' to ensure that the best use is made of the
available resources to meet needs without delay, jointly plan services and appropriate interventions,
and consider the efficiency of our current provision arrangements.

Early Intervention

Gwynedd has established services and a track record of success and we have already developed a number

of effective preventive projects. The Council commissions two large, grant-funded, anti-poverty

programmes: Flying Start and Families First, which support children and their families.

Page 79



51 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Team Around the Family

Our purpose is to intervene early as soon as problems emerge

within families, but this takes place on a voluntary basis with

the family's permission. We will help by responding to needs

and by providing appropriate services.

We received 649 referrals to the Team Around the Family in

2017/18 and a high percentage of families noted a positive

difference in their lives following the intervention.

'Children First' Areas

We are trialling 'Children First' areas in the Maesgeirchen area

of Bangor, to help create more integrated services and to reduce the amount of harmful experiences in

childhood and to foster strength of character in our children and young people. This work is in its early

stages, but the Children First plan is a priority for the Department.

Youth services

The opportunity to socialise, take part in activities and continue to learn and develop new skills outside

school is very important to the County's young people. However, due to pressure on Council resources

and the need to modernise to coincide with the aspirations of the County's young people, we have

changed how the Council provides their youth service. Therefore in 2017/18 we have established a new

youth service across Gwynedd.

Our aim is to continue to support young people to learn and develop skills for personal, emotional,

social and educational purposes.

Flying Start

Our purpose is to make a positive difference to the life

opportunities of children under four years of age in

specific areas of Gwynedd, through providing parenting,

book-keeping, cookery, play, day care, and nursery group

provision packs.

During the 2017-18 year, the Flying Start referral panel

dealt with 437 service referrals. This compares to 350

complaints during 2016/17. A number of the intervention

packs were delivered to the multi-agency teams to be

implemented, including health, child care, supporting

families, or early language development staff.

Flying Start Areas

in Gwynedd

Page 80



52 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Care and support, safeguarding, and care needs

Most children and young people in Gwynedd live happy, safe lives and enjoy opportunities to learn and

play. However, some children and families need more formal advice and support at times.

The Council is responsible for leading, investigating and managing the county's safeguarding children

interventions. We work closely with schools, the police, the health board, doctors, and health visitors

etc. to fulfil this statutory responsibility. The responsibility for safeguarding is one of the Council's most

important responsibilities.

The Information, Advice and Support Service maintains high standards when responding on time to

referrals that may relate to safeguarding, and referrals for care and support. In order to safeguard

children and young people we respond to referrals without delay. When those referrals include concerns

about allegations of abuse, we need to investigate those allegations in accordance with the Child

Protection Guidances. We will decide each case within twenty four hours in order to determine the

best way to proceed.

The Social Work Teams offer intensive support and intervention to children and families. Social workers

regularly see children and their families and keep in touch with them, remaining alert to issues of risk

and reducing risk for children and young people. We ensure that resources are available to support them

and that their needs are clear to us. Plans are then in place to respond to their needs. At times, we refer

them to teams that provide more specialist intervention.

We are very keen to develop our interventions with

families, and the Supporting Families Strategy and the

intention to work in a more integrated way will help

us provide earlier intervention for families to ensure

we meet their needs before problems escalate. We

also carry out child protection inspections; and,

sometimes, some families need highly intensive

support and we need to bring children who are in

danger into the Council's care.

Page 81



53 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Children usually come into our care under highly challenging

circumstances, and we are as ambitious for these children as

anyone would be for his/her own child. To ensure that children

and young people experience stability, we support children to

live at home with support where this is possible. Emphasis is also

placed on trying to place a child with members of his/her

extended family or friends of the family. Where this is not

possible, the child will be placed with registered foster carers or,

at times, some children and young people will need specialist

residential units to meet specific needs.

The Fostering Team's role is to ensure that we have enough foster parents to meet the needs of children

who are not able to live at home. We assess and support foster carers so that they can provide children

who come into our care with the necessary support, and this is a high priority for the Department. We

are aware that children who are not in stable situations need the best opportunity to test those

boundaries that are crucial for good development. This lays the foundation for achieving the best results

for them.

While a child is under the Council's care, it is our responsibility to provide a clear care plan for him/her

that is reviewed regularly in order to ensure that the right decisions are made for the benefit of the child

and that there are no delays to the plan.

The Post-16 team supports young people who either need

to be safeguarded or who need care and support and this

includes young people who have left care up to 25 years old.

The workers see the young people regularly and encourage

them to keep good contact with their families and develop

their skills to live independently. The 'When I'm Ready' Plan

gives young people who are not ready to leave their foster

placement on their 18th birthday the choice to stay on until

they are ready to do so.

Page 82



54 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The Specialist Teams

The purpose of the Edge of Care Team is to reduce needs by

offering intensive intervention and support to children who

are about to enter care, or who have just entered care, or to

return children home from care safely. By working with the

children and their families, the physical and mental health

needs and the emotional well-being needs of the children and

their families are met.

The Derwen Team provides a service for sick and disabled children young people and their families. We

provide support for young, disabled people to help their inclusion in community activities and life, and

to increase their skills so they become more independent. We provide periods of respite care for a great

number of families through a support service. It is a multidisciplinary team that works in partnership with

the Health Board. We have social workers, nurses and psychologists working in the team and, because

of the wide range of complex needs, our workers need to possess expert skills to respond to the needs

of the children and their families.

The Integrated Family Support Service (IFSS) offers specialise intervention for families where the misuse

of alcohol and drugs by parent and carers is a risk factor for children. Because of the intensive nature of

the intervention, the service has prioritised it for families where the risk to children is high.

The purpose of the Youth Justice Service is to work intensively with

children and young people who have offended and to prevent them from

being repeat offenders. We offer a wide range of specialist interventions

and work with the whole family to find solutions to help the children and

young people from re-offending. We also work preventively with children

and young people to prevent them from offending in the first place. This

is done in partnership with schools and within the individuals'

communities. We are a multi-agency team and we work in partnership

with the Police, the Health Board, Careers Wales, North Wales Housing

and others.

Page 83



55 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

How we ensure the quality of Safeguarding

In order assure the Council that our safeguarding arrangements are robust, we have a

Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Unit that focuses on different aspects of this

important field. The Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Unit concentrates

on different aspects in this important field. We implement the statutory duties

to review cases of Looked After Children, and provide guidance on child protection, and chair Case

Conferences and Strategic Meetings where allegations have been made about professionals.

We hold child protection conferences in partnership with the

families and other workers. Intervening with a family to safeguard

the child can be very difficult for them. Often, they do not

welcome this support and often cooperation is often through

enforcement. Our aim is to ensure that the child's voice is more

prominent in these discussions and that families take a more

effective part in their safeguarding plan.

Independent Reviewing Officers monitor every looked after child

and young person's care plan. They ensure that the care plans

have given appropriate consideration and weight to the wishes

and feelings of the child, and that the child fully understands

his/her situation bearing in mind the child's age and

comprehension. Independent Reviewing Officers (IRO) assure

the Council that the interests of the child are safeguarded

throughout their time in care. They listen to children, make sure

they are happy with their plans, ensure their opinion is heard and

that their plans are followed, and that they are sufficiently

empowered to take action if the plans are not followed.

Page 84



Page 85



57 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Environment Department

The Department manages a broad range of fields within the three specific Services, namely:

• Planning and Public Protection
• Property
• Transportation and the Countryside

Planning Service

The purpose of the Planning Service is to facilitate and manage sustainable developments for
the benefit of our communities, the economy and the environment within the Gwynedd
planning authority area (which does not include the National Park area).

In order to reach this aim, there are many aspects to the work:

Since adopting the Joint Local Development Plan (Gwynedd and Anglesey), the work of preparing 8 (of
a series of 17) Supplementary Planning Guidance documents is ongoing. The guidance will add details to
the planning policies, and strengthen the Plan's ability to provide firm grounds to make decisions on
planning applications in the future. The arrangements for monitoring the Plan every year are also
prepared to assess whether or not the Plan's strategy and policies are working.

We also provide guidance on planning policy matters to the Gwynedd Planning Authority, the Isle of
Anglesey County Council Planning Authority and to external organisations and
the public.

During 2017-18, over 2,300 general planning enquiries / pre-application enquiries
were received.

We make decisions on planning permissions to develop land and deal with
approximately 1,100 planning applications annually and, on average, over 85% of
applications are granted permission.

On average, it takes 64 days to make a decision on applications, with a decision
made on approximately 82% within the required timeframe.

Major developments have recently been approved including new schools, an electricity sub-station and
poultry units. A very large number of applications for developments providing existing businesses with
opportunities to expand and for new businesses to be established have also been approved, especially in
the field of tourism attractions and associated businesses. The Planning Service is also a key part of the
Wylfa Newydd Development Consent Order applications process and the National Grid's North Wales
Connection Scheme, along with advising on a number of other large National Grid projects within the
county.

Page 86



58 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We take enforcement steps against developments that have not received planning permission and we
deal with approximately 400 cases every year. We investigated 75% of the enforcement cases within 84 days
and a number of enforcement notices have been issued.

The Department is responsible for monitoring the expenditure of Planning financial contributions [106
agreements] within the LPA which can be significant amounts.

The Department also undertakes and annual programme of proactive work in accordance with the
objectives of the Enforcement Strategy, which includes proactive monitoring, in addition to
administrating, maintaining, updating and reviewing the Council’s register of Tree Preservation Orders

Public Protection

The purpose of the Public Protection Service is to protect the public in relation to a range

of environmental and health matters - such as air quality, noise, the food chain and alcohol

as well as fake businesses and traders that unintentionally or intentionally breach the

acceptable standards noted in legislation.

In order to reach this aim, there are many aspects to the work:

Pollution Control

We ensure that businesses or individuals do not

pollute the air, the land, or seas with undesirable

substances or noise by investigating and responding

to complaints of pollution and statutory nuisance.

We also assess the safety of private drinking water

supplies and the quality of bathing water and

enforce improvements as required - 730 drinking

water samples and 35 bathing water samples were

taken over the past year.

We investigate and monitor industrial processes on 47 sites and regulate industrial

airborne emissions (oil waste burners, mobile crushers, cement machinery).

We also carry out burials in cases where there are no family members - we had 5 cases

during the past year.

Odours, 79

Abandone
d vehicles,

358

Waste and
litter, 200

Smoke and
air, 95

Noise, 469

Responses to requests for service -
number of enquiries

Page 87



59 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Licensing

We license the following fields in order to protect the
users, businesses and communities of Gwynedd from any
detrimental impacts.

• Alcohol and entertainment Licensing (including
events) and gambling.

• Animal permits including pet shops, riding
establishments and dog breeding establishments.

• Taxi vehicles, drivers and operators.

• Caravan sites and Scrap Metal dealer licences.

• Business sectors that could be dangerous.

Enforcing Licences

1,000 Alcohol
Premises

80 Gambling
Premises

35 Animal Permits

400 Taxi Vehicles

400 Caravan Sites

570 Taxi Drivers

20 Scrap Metal
Dealers

Welfare

We ensure that businesses in Gwynedd meet
requirements in relation to food hygiene, food standards
and health and safety in the workplace by responding to
complaints, undertaking regular inspections and holding
educational campaigns.

Monitoring

More than 2,000 food business
We protect residents and visitors to Gwynedd against
infectious diseases and harmful chemicals.

95% of food businesses with a score of 4 or 5

We also investigate accidents and cases of infectious
diseases promptly so that any further risks to individuals
are removed.

333 Food samples 82 Accidents
Requests for Service

1,040
Food safety

205
Health and Safety

226
Infectious
Diseases

Over 90 Educational
Visits

Visit 2,000+
businesses annually

Page 88



60 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Trading Standards

We ensure that businesses and traders in Gwynedd meet
product safety requirements (including age-restricted goods),
fair trading, consumer protection, animal health and welfare and
animal feed.

Monitoring

Over 8,000 traders

We do this through a combination of responding to
complaints, undertaking regular inspections, holding
educational campaigns and targeting problematic traders.

More than 2,000 farmsRequests for Service

1,410
Complaints about

traders

105 requests for
advice from
businesses

460
Animal Health
Applications

30 Businesses to
store fireworks

40 Business to
store petroleum

Property Service

The purpose of the Property Service is to ensure that we have property that is suitable to
Council services and to manage those property assets.

In order to reach this aim, there are many aspects to the work:-

Property Safety and Maintenance

We ensure that our buildings are safe and in good
condition to be used to provide services for the residents
of Gwynedd by ensuring that we comply with the range of
statutory responsibilities and ensure that we have an effective
maintenance programme.

Property
Development

The purpose of the Unit is
to develop new buildings or adapt and renovate existing buildings to
improve the service provided for the residents of Gwynedd.

During 2017-18, 97% of our customers were happy with the work
provided by the Property Development Team.

The New Ysgol Bro
Llifon

Page 89



61 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Estates and Facilities

Our purpose is to ensure that the Council
receives the best value when managing its
property assets and ensure that only those assets
that we genuinely need are kept.

Office Service

The Offices Team provides office space for approximately 1,500 staff in seven
substantial buildings including all relevant services that this covers such as
caretaking and cleaning and safety arrangements for the buildings
and their users.

We also provide a cleaning service for other buildings used to carry out the Council's
front line services. We are also a provider to external companies such as Cartrefi
Cymunedol Gwynedd and Snowdonia National Park.

Energy Conservation Unit

After adopting our Carbon Management Plan, the Energy
Team is implementing a number of projects to reduce
carbon emissions.

The team's work to reduce our use has created annual
revenue savings of over £900,000 for the Council.

A programme to raise awareness
among school children has been
an important part of this work
and we have used characters such
as Sbarci and Fflic to do so.

Parking Management and Enforcement

The parking team is responsible for managing over 100 car parks across the County and is
responsible for parking enforcement on our streets and in our car parks. The team's aim is to use
enforcement powers in a reasonable and fair way in order to ensure safe parking and traffic flow for
the public.

Page 90



62 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Pest Control

We offer a service to control and destroy all types of pests by
means of contracts and by responding to daily calls from the public
for assistance to control pests in their homes or businesses. We
also carry out the statutory service of caring for stray dogs.

Transportation and Countryside Service

There are four fields of work within the Service:

• Traffic, Projects and Street Works

• Integrated Transport

• Road Safety

• The Countryside

Traffic, Projects and Street Works

Our purpose is to enable the public to use Gwynedd roads in a safe and unobstructed way.

We do this by assessing sites on the highways network
in order to identify any potential hazards and implement
solutions if needed. The solutions can be in the form of
creating traffic orders (speed or parking restrictions) or
undertaking road signing or marking plans to raise the
public's awareness of hazardous situations.

We are also responsible for ensuring that proposed
works from developers that could affect the highways
network are carried out safely and in accordance with
the correct standards. This involves providing advice to
developers and submitting observations on planning
applications received by the Council.

There is concern in the Caernarfon and Ogwen Valley area about the lack of public car parking for
local people. The residents of the Penllyn area had concerns about the lack of parking spaces for
workers on Bala Industrial Estate, which have now been resolved. We did not succeed in responding
to these concerns in the Caernarfon and Dyffryn Ogwen areas in 2018, and we will investigate and
consider options to address the problem.

Page 91



63 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Road Safety

We attempt to reduce injuries and accidents on our roads by undertaking appropriate initiatives
(local, regional and national), including engineering measures, educational programmes, training, publicity
and enforcement.

Street Works

We are also responsible for coordinating and
monitoring the activities carried out on the public
highway network by statutory contractors (e.g. Welsh
Water, BT) or their contractors. This involves
processing applications for e.g. drilling roads to fix
equipment and closing roads to facilitate the
undertaking of maintenance work.

We also license the siting of skips and scaffolding
on our roads as well as enforce property owners to fell
trees, move obstructions off the road and so on.

Integrated Transport

Our purpose is to provide safe and quality transport which is cost effective as well as raising
awareness and educating specific groups on how to cope with road hazards.

We also manage various road improvement
projects across the County.

We are always looking for opportunities to fund
our transport and safety plans from external
sources and we often succeed to attract grant

funding from various sources for these purposes.

N
u

m
b

e
r

p
ro

c
e
ss

e
d

Concerns were raised regarding road safety outside primary and secondary schools in Penygroes

which serve the Dyffryn Nantlle area. In the same manner, concerns were raised regarding road

safety outside some of the schools in Caernarfon. We have already visited the schools to discuss

their concerns with them and we are currently assessing the sites in order to try to find different

options to help to reduce risks for users.

Page 92



64 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We do this by securing a network of public transport.

Public Transport

Over half the bus routes in Gwynedd receive financial assistance to run them because they are not
commercially viable. To facilitate this, we prepare public transport contracts as well as prepare and
create service timetables for the various routes.

We are also responsible for arranging education transport contracts (including a seat purchasing
scheme) in order to provide free transport for eligible pupils.

In areas where a conventional transport provision is not available, or for our residents who are unable
to, or find it difficult to, use conventional public transport, we also consider opportunities for
community transport.

The Countryside

We facilitate and maintain public access rights to the countryside and coast, protect biodiversity
and habitats on land and sea and we safeguard the quality of the landscape of the Pen Llŷn Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Biodiversity
We ensure that we comply with the Council's duties to protect our Biodiversity in
Gwynedd. We provide specialist advice on planning applications and developments
and have held 976 consultations over the 2017/18 year.

The Department is responsible for coordinating the work of managing a designated
European site for marine habitats and species of European importance in the Pen Llŷn
a'r Sarnau Special Area of Conservation, and manages and implements environmental
projects such as the Marine Ecosystems Project.

The Department also holds activities with local groups and the public to raise
awareness of the importance of our biodiversity.

In future we will consult with our communities

to understand how we can use the resources we

have to better serve our residents. We will also

seek to innovate to meet with the requirement

in the most cost effective way possible while

ensuring quality and reliable services.

35%

63%

1% 1%

Percentage of services across
the whole network

Tender

Commercial

Community
Transport
On demand

Page 93



65 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Access to the Countryside

The Gwynedd public footpath network is 3,800km long and we have given
priority to maintaining those paths that have been identified by communities as the
ones that are important to them.

We also develop and maintain the national coast path which is stretches
approximately 300km in Gwynedd.

We deal with applications to divert and create paths and maintain and update the
definitive map which shows the county's rights of way network.

We have also prepared a Rights of Way Improvement Plan
which sets a framework for improving the network and
manages lands that include six Nature Reserves and other
lands.

The Department protects and seeks to manage the quality of the Llŷn Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) in accordance with protocol. The
AONB Management Plan is implemented by the Council and other
organisations.

In future, our intention is to ensure that our cycling network is fit for purpose, and in that,

solve aspects that prevent their full use. We will also take advantage of grant

opportunities to expand the "Active Travel" network that offers health and environment

benefits.

A scheme has already been realised near Ty Moelwyn in Porthmadog which assists in improving the

Coastal Path provision in the town. We will look at opportunities to improve the condition of other

paths in the area in due course. There has been demand locally to complete the cycle path between

Tywyn and Aberdyfi and it is already one of the Council's priorities. There has been progress on

this scheme and we will be submitting a bid to the Welsh Government's Active Travel Fund in order

to develop the scheme further. Calls are also being made to build a multi-use path between Pwllheli

and Llanbedrog that would enable users to have easy access along Pen Llŷn’s southern coast. We

will also submit a bid to Welsh Government to further develop the plan

Page 94



Page 95



67 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Economy and Community Department

The Economy and Community Department comprises a range of services
that aim to improve the economic, social and cultural well-being of
Gwynedd communities.

Developing Gwynedd’s Economy

We collaborate with partners to create the conditions for businesses and enterprises to establish
themselves, to be competitive and develop in Gwynedd creating high quality jobs across the County.

The economy's performance has an impact on the quality of life of
Gwynedd residents influencing household living costs and income.

Gwynedd's economy is performing fairly well at a Wales level but not in comparison with other
regions of Britain and Europe. Wage levels in Gwynedd are much lower than in other parts of
Wales and the productivity value of Gwynedd businesses is low compared to other areas. It is
therefore important that Gwynedd Council takes proactive measures to create the conditions that
enable businesses to grow and stimulate growth in the economy and this during a time of economic
uncertainty as Britain leaves the European Union

This is a brief outline of the Department’s work in 2019/20:

Business Support

There are 15,100 businesses, enterprises and
community companies in Gwynedd. The
Department provides information, advice and
practical support to assist them to establish
and develop in order to support and create
jobs. The Service places a particular focus on
supporting Gwynedd businesses to succeed
when tendering for work and to keep the
benefits of public and private sector contracts local by collaborating with Gwynedd Council's
Procurement Team and the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. The Department also provides
87 work units throughout the county to enable businesses to be competitive and in the coming year
we will include new management arrangements for these units. During the next year we will seek
to ascertain the impact of Brexit on Gwynedd businesses and raise awareness of business support
sources to enable businesses to cope with change.

394
of businesses have
received support in

2017/18

Page 96



68 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Our improvement priority in 2019/20 will be:

Businesses Receiving Support to
Prosper

Improvement Priority 1

The county's businesses work with many Council Departments and they receive a service from
them, including rates, planning, trading standards, building control and procurement.

By adopting an operational approach which places the needs of businesses at the centre, and
makes it easier for businesses to contact and collaborate with the Council, businesses can be
supported and encouraged to establish and grow in the county. Following research we have
identified examples of good practice including the "Better Business for All" programme.

In future, we will continue with the work of reviewing how Council services are provided to
businesses to consider whether there is room for improvement and will implement any lessons
which become apparent to ensure that businesses are assisted to prosper. We will also support
the development of the North Wales Business Network collaborating with partners in the public
and private sector across the region.

Economic Development Programmes

In addition to directly supporting
businesses, the Department
works with partners across the
North Wales region to target
resources to invest in a package
of infrastructure projects and
skills for businesses to prosper in
the future.

Our improvement priorities in 2019/20 will be:

Growth Vision for North Wales Improvement Priority 1

The North Wales Economic Ambition Board is leading on the growth vision. The growth deal
is based on seven programmes namely the Low Carbon Energy Programme; Advanced
Manufacturing Programme; Land Industries and Tourism; Land and Property Programme; Skills
and Employment Programme; Digital Programme; Strategic Transport Programme.

Over the coming year we will contribute towards the work of the North Wales Ambition Board
to ensure that Gwynedd benefits from the investments associated with the Growth Vision.

of investment by projects in

the economy since 2000£ 320 million

Page 97



69 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Create High Value Jobs
(£26,500 + salary)

Improvement Priority 1

Low salaries are an obvious feature of Gwynedd, with the weekly pay of Gwynedd residents
(£478) amongst the lowest in Wales, and the low pay is at its worst in our rural communities
(£418), namely the second lowest in the UK.

In order to address this, one of the Council's main priorities is working with partners within the
public and private sectors to create more, better-paid jobs.

Among the highlights of 2018/29 was securing £7.5m in European funding to develop the
infrastructure of the Llanbedr Airspace Centre to attract businesses to the site, and the
Trawsfynydd Power-station site's profile received a significant boost when the British
Government's nuclear sector deal was launched there.

We will continue to target sectors that pay well by creating an environment which supports new
businesses and grows existing businesses and ensures that the local workforce is able to take
advantage of the opportunities. We will also continue to seek to create conditions to attract
investment in strategic sites such as the Trawsfynydd Power Station, Llanbedr Airfield and Parc
Bryn Cegin/ Parc Menai.

Arloesi Gwynedd Wledig project Improvement Priority 1

The nature of our rural economy means that 78% of Gwynedd businesses do not employ more
than one person and there are too many jobs within sectors which don't pay well. This leads to
undermining the sustainability of our rural communities.

Ensuring digital connectivity for our rural communities, and that the workforce and rural
businesses have the skills to take advantage of them are matters which require attention if we
are to have prosperous communities.

We have already attracted £4million from the Wales Rural Development Programme to develop
innovative working approaches and a range of exciting developments in order to target the rural
communities in Gwynedd.

During 2018/19 we secured money to support 10 rural towns and villages in the county to
develop a WiFi service for the public. A range of ideas was trialled through Arloesi Gwynedd
Wledig, including launching the digital playground in Glynllifon, that offers exiting opportunities
to experiment with the Internet to respond to the challenges of rural areas.

We will build on the work which has already been done to transform the rural economy by
introducing innovation within traditional sectors (such as agriculture and tourism) and support
investment in the digital infrastructure of our rural communities through Digital Gwynedd giving
particular attention to the Dŵyfor and Meirionnydd areas. We collaborate ŵith Grŵ p Llandrillo 
Menai and the private sector to establish a rural innovation hub in Glynllifon to lead on the work.

We will also continue to work with the counties of Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire
to learn how to develop the rural economy and also sustain the Welsh language. We also influence
and lobby regionally and nationally on behalf of the needs of rural Gwynedd.

Page 98



70 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Implementing the Gwynedd Slate
Heritage

Improvement Priority 1

A number of Gwynedd's most needy communities are rich in heritage and are home to existing
or proposed World Heritage Sites, such as the former traditional slate areas.

There is an opportunity here to use the World Heritage Site designation as a tool to regenerate
our slate communities and to increase the value of the tourist industry.

During 2018-19 the slate areas were selected by the Westminster Government as the UK's next
nomination to UNESCO for a World Heritage Site designation. Also, more than £60,000 in
lottery funding was secured to support communities to benefit from the designation.

We are looking to bring forward a programme of regeneration activities in these areas which will
lead to an increase in residents' ownership of their heritage, the form and appearance of
communities and the quality of tourists' experience, along with continuing to work to secure a
World Heritage Site status for the slate industry in Gwynedd.

Promoting Town Centres Improvement Priority 1

Lively town centres are able to make substantial contributions to the economic and social success
of local authority.

The high streets of a number of Gwynedd towns need support to ensure that they thrive by
maintaining and creating work and providing a range of goods and services that residents and
visitors need.

We will continue to work as a Council to look at how we could support and facilitate town centre
regeneration to maintain a range of services for local residents and visitors within a lively
environment with a Welsh atmosphere.

More Gwynedd residents playing a
full part in the world of work

Improvement Priority 3

A range of residents are unable to fulfil their full potential as they are underemployed or
excluded from employment. Being outside the world of work could lead to reducing residents'
wealth and increasing the demand for public resources and preventing this is a key part of the
anti-poverty agenda. There are direct benefits from being in work in terms of increasing
earnings, but there are also wider benefits in terms of health, children's life opportunities and
pride in communities.

In 2018/19, money from the Communities for Work fund and more was secured for the County,
which will address any gaps in the current provision and offer support to individuals who are
unemployed or underemployed.

We will be continue to focus on a series of activities in order to get more Gwynedd residents
into full-time work thereby reducing inactivity and unemployment.

Tourism, Marketing and Events
Page 99



71 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The tourist industry is a key employer in Gwynedd. With an economic value of nearly £1billion,
over 15,000 people work in this sector. We assist the industry to attract people throughout the
year who are likely to spend more locally, such as visitors who enjoy the outdoors and those who
take an interest in the special history and culture of Gwynedd. To deliver this more efficiently we

are redeveloping our Snowdonia, Mountains
and Coast digital marketing and collaborating
with partners to identify priorities to support
the main tourism destinations of Gwynedd and
the broader sector.

We also support event organisers to create
vibrancy within communities across the county.

Our improvement priorities in 2019/20 will be:

Increase the Benefits from Major
Events

Improvement Priority 1

Public events offer a commercial opportunity for local businesses to provide or deliver
services. By staging events, it is possible to raise the profile of Gwynedd and market the area
to tourists as an exciting and vibrant place to live, to visit and an ideal location for businesses
to invest.

We have already been successful in attracting a number of national and international high-profile
events to the County which brought in an investment of £5.3m in 2017/18.

We are eager to continue with this in 2019/20 and to ensure that local businesses benefit from
the events. This will lead to an increase in the number of opportunities to promote the County,
an increase in the number of visitors to the County and increase in the number of opportunities
for local companies to work at or offer services to the events.

Benefiting from Tourism Improvement Priority 1

Tourism is one of the main economic sectors in Gwynedd, nevertheless visitors put a significant
added pressure on the infrastructure of the county's destinations, a cost which is mainly
shouldered by Gwynedd residents.

We are looking to collaborate with the industry to consider the possibility of getting visitors to
contribute financially to maintaining and enhancing Gwynedd destinations and raising the
standards of the tourism sector. In doing so, we will improve the provision of the county's
destinations and increase the standard of industry provision for visitors.

Maritime and Country Parks

of followers on
Snowdonia, Mountains
and Coast's social
media

37,439

Page 100



72 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

As the Gwynedd landscape and natural environment is
so important for the county's prosperity, the
Department seeks to ensure quality and safe resources
in our country parks, harbours, marinas and on the
beaches of Gwynedd in order to create recreational
attractions for local people and visitors. The
Department manages 301km of the Gwynedd
coastline, concentrating on eight blue flag beaches, four harbours and two marinas, including Hafan
Pwllheli that accommodates 700 boats. The Department also manages the Country Parks in
Glynllifon and Padarn.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Update the Gwynedd Beach Management Scheme

• Implement Strategies to Dredge Pwllheli Harbour and Victoria Dock

• Develop future management options for Hafan and Pwllheli Harbour

• Develop future management options for the Country Parks of Glynllifon and Parc Padarn

Our local priorities will be:

boats annually use our

harbours

2,700

In consultation with local councillors in the Porthmadog, Ffestiniog and Penllyn areas in the
summer of 2017, an aspiration was noted to attract more long-term good salary jobs to
improve the economic situation of local residents. The Create High Value Jobs priority is
developing new opportunities in Trawsfynydd and Llanbedr that will benefit these
communities. In the Porthmadog area, it was also noted that the local councillors were
concerned about the condition of some dormant sites in the area and in response we will be
looking at opportunities to support, improve or reuse the sites.

When we consulted councillors in the Dolgellau area it became evident that the poor
connectivity of mobile phones and broadband hinder residents and the area's businesses. We
are seeking for Welsh Government to prioritise the County for its schemes in relation to this
field by following the principles of Digital Gwynedd.

In the areas of Dyffryn Ogwen and Dyffryn Nantlle, local councillors noted that the promotion
and regeneration of the high street was a local priority and we have made outline applications
for some regeneration activities in the areas.

In consultation with Bangor area councillors, their wish to improve the appearance of the local
area was noted and to respond to empty shops, noting a wish to work with partners such as
local businesses and Town and Community Councils to generate an income to contribute to
the work. This, in turn, would support local businesses and tradespeople. We are considering
the opportunities to build on existing work jointly with the Bangor Business Improvement
District and out partners locally and regionally to plan a response. Additional grant funding to
maximise the benefit of the interest free Loans Scheme has been secured.

There is also a link to the county level priority to Implement the Gwynedd Slate Heritage plan,
as noted above. The regeneration of these areas should improve any negative image that
stems from being post-industrialised areas and release their potential.

Page 101



73 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Support Strong Communities

We ensure access to information, support and facilities to empower communities and to enable
people to achieve their full potential. We also promote access, and protect and celebrate our culture
and heritage.

The Department provides services for the people of Gwynedd which will
help to create resilient communities; support the inclusion of people in
their communities and tackle poverty.

We ensure access to information, support and facilities for residents to develop their skills and
achieve their full potential. In order to create attractive communities, the Department also promotes
access to the arts and protects and celebrates our culture and heritage.

This is a brief outline of the Department’s work in 2019/20:

Supporting Communities

It is important that Voluntary Groups and Local
Enterprises are supported to respond to local
opportunities and needs. The Council has a
network of area regeneration officers and 'CIST'
grants to support community projects.

We will target some communities more than others giving specific attention to planning support for areas with
the most needs.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Relaunch our Community Support service across Gwynedd

• Measure the size and nature of the demand for support from communities and consider options to
provide the service in future

Libraries Service

The Council provides a service in nine main libraries,
four community libraries and three library click and
collect links across the county. It is important for
Gwynedd residents to be able to borrow books, e-
books, audio books or DVDs of their choice.
However, not all Gwynedd residents can reach their
local library and therefore the Council also provides a
mobile library that visits 129 stops in towns and villages as well as the homes of 87 individuals, (home service
for those who are confined to their homes). Gwynedd Libraries are commissioned by the Education
Department to provide the Lori Ni Service, which visits every Primary School, Special School and Language
Centre twice a year to lend reading books for 3-11 year olds. Gwynedd residents borrowed 491,275 books
in 2017/18.

72
of projects that are
developing a new
service /
safeguarding access

to a service

of Gwynedd residents

are Library members

30,283

Page 102



74 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Gwynedd residents use the library for so much more than just to borrow books. They are welcoming places
for people to use for various activities - reading and learning, access to information about matters such as health
and welfare, job seeking, local services as well as 'Gwynedd Ni' which has specific information for families about
services and activities for children. Gwynedd residents can also use one of the 110 computers or Wi-Fi, in the
libraries for free.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Prepare a business case for resources to upgrade the facilities at Pwllheli Library

• Introduce self-service arrangements in every library across the county

• Continue to work with communities and promote access to the new service

• Consider the role of Libraries within communities in future

Museums and Arts Service

The Service runs two museums in Gwynedd and is
responsible for looking after collections and creating
exhibitions in both, namely Storiel and the Lloyd
George Museum.

Much of our work in the field of community arts targets
health, well-being, education and tackling loneliness
projects. The Service is also responsible for allocating
arts grants in order to support arts standards opportunities for all.

The Service support various arts programmes to ensure that arts are alive in our communities and there is
access to the arts in our rural areas.

Our aim will be to continue enrich the lives of Gwynedd residents by promoting anunderstanding of our unique
heritage and culture.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Work with the Friends of the Lloyd George Museum to create a new way to manage the Museum

• Ensure the success of the Storiel scheme and establish a Development Trust for it so that it may in
future work with the arts and heritage sector in Gwynedd.

• Work with the arts sector to realise the aims of our new strategy for the arts.

• Support Ysgol Godre’r Berwyn to establish new community arts facilities

• Develop plans to upgrade facilities at Neuadd Dwyfor and identify future sustainable provision models.

Archives Service

The Council has a statutory responsibility to protect our public records and to ensure that people have access
to them. We will do this through the two record offices we have in Gwynedd - Caernarfon Record Office and
the Meirionnydd Record Office in Dolgellau.

visitors to the Storiel
museum during

2017/18

57,312

Page 103



75 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Gwynedd Record Offices have a wide range of
documents, photographs, maps and newspapers
with the oldest document dating back to 1176.
There is a range of public collections, official and
private that reflect the culture and heritage of
Gwynedd communities. The Record Offices
provide taster sessions and family history courses
and work with Gwynedd Primary Schools.

In 2019/20 we will:

• promote access to the service

• work with the Welsh Government and other records offices across north Wales to identify
opportunities to make the best use of Record Office resources in the region.

Our local priorities will be:

Improving the Health of Gwynedd’s
Residents

We work with partners to inspire, support and enable Gwynedd residents to be active and live
healthy lives.

The health trends of Gwynedd residents are slightly lower than the national average.
However, with the levels of obesity amongst four-year-olds in Gwynedd among the
highest in Wales, it is crucial that Gwynedd Council and partners respond and create
the conditions to promote healthy living.

This is one of the Department's main aims, namely to collaborate with partners locally, regionally
and nationally in order to inspire, support and enable Gwynedd residents to be active and live healthy
lives.

This is a brief outline of the Department’s work:

8,267
people use the archives

During a consultation session in the Ffestiniog area it became evident that local councillors
were concerned about the future of the Community Centre and the services located there,
and the Regeneration Team recently conducted a survey on public buildings across Gwynedd.
This indicated that ineffective use was being made of a number of public buildings in Blaenau
Ffestiniog including the Community Centre. In a time of financial hardship, there is an
opportunity here to share resources better in the future.

Page 104



76 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Healthy Living Programmes

Sports for Life Team

The Department organises and
supports a range of sports activities in
schools, the community and outdoors
to inspire children and young people to
participate and enjoy sport.
The percentage of Gwynedd children
who participate in sport at least three
times a week has increased from 43% in 2013 to 49% in 2018, and we aim to increase this in 2020.
However, due to the national uncertainty regarding the arrangements to fund future sports
programmes it will be a challenge to support some activities. In order to get the best impact with
the available resources, we are looking at different ways to provide programmes to inspire young
people to be active in the future.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Work jointly with partners to develop a new model to provide a service across north Wales.

• Collaborate with Sport Governing Bodies to offer a range of activities that respond to the demand and
opportunities that are available in the County.

Exercise Referral Scheme

The Department supports Gwynedd
residents to improve the condition of
their health via the Exercise Referral
Team. This is a specialist service with a
range of activities to help reduce the
impact of conditions which prevent
Gwynedd residents from exercising

and to improve their health. There has been a significant increase in the number of clients for this
service, especially in the fields of dementia and chronic conditions and there is clear evidence that
shows the impact of this investment on the quality of life and health. However, there is a threat to
the service budget as it is very dependent on grants and it will be necessary to look at different
models to support the service in the future.

In 2019/20 we will:

• Respond appropriately to the reduction in the financial investment in order to try and support a county
service.

• Agreements with the Byw'n Iach company to provide the service on behalf of the Council in future.

Healthy Living Centres

of children
participate in
sports three

times a week

have
improved
their
quality of

life score

49%

67%

Page 105



77 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Gwynedd Council has a network of 12 leisure centres across Gwynedd which attract 1.3 million
visits every year. This provision enables Gwynedd residents of all ages to learn new skills and to
enjoy participating in energetic activities in safe environments.

In a recent satisfaction survey it was shown that 90% of our users are very satisfied with what is on
offer and this feedback has been crucial in enabling the Council to plan future improvements.

Gwynedd Council is committed to
continuing to provide Healthy Living
Centres in future, however, in order to
deliver financial savings, it has established
the Byw'n Iach company to run the
centres on its behalf in future. The
Department will establish a contract with

the Byw'n Iach company to manage the service from 1 April 2019 and the staff of every centre will
be transferred to the Company by that date.

In 2019/20 our priority will be:

• Supporting the Byw'n Iach company to establish and provide the service to Gwynedd residents in
accordance with the agreement.

• Establish arrangements to monitor the performance of the Byw'n Iach company in accordance with
the agreement.

• Establish arrangements to upgrade and invest in the facilities in accordance with the agreement

81%
of 11 year
old children
could swim

in 2017/18

Page 106



Page 107



7 9 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Y m g y n g h o r i a e t h G w y n e d d
C o n s u l t a n c y ( Y G C ) D e p a r t m e n t

The Gwynedd Consultancy Department fulfils the Council's statutory roles in the fields
of Flood Risk and Building Control. The remainder of the Department's work involves
providing a commercial advisory service to internal and external clients, specialising in
engineering or construction projects.

Flood Risk

We achieve our statutory duties as the Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) for Gwynedd, following the principle of long-term planning to
reduce the risk of floods to Gwynedd communities.

In the future we will develop our work further in these 3 critical areas:

Planning for Investment

A duty under the Flood and Water Management Act (FWMA) is to investigate flood events which
are reported to us – since the implementation of the Act in 2010 Gwynedd Council have investigated
on average 42 incidents of internal flooding a year.

We also keep a database of near-misses and any flood related concerns raised by the residents of
Gwynedd, where we aim to assist with solutions. We aim to respond to these in the shortest possible
timeframe.

Collecting this information enables us to build a picture of local flood risk across Gwynedd, which is
the basis of our flood risk management plan. Grant aid applications are subsequently made to Welsh
Government to investigate and manage flood risk in the areas of most concern.

Similarly, we invest in the coastal areas that are most under threat of coastal erosion in order to try
to manage the risks that face them. Current investment includes coastal defence in Borth y Gest,
river defence works in Llanberis, and these schemes will reduce the risk to approximately 150 people.

Asset Maintenance

We are responsible for the upkeep of 129 coastal
structures extending along 19km of defended coastline
and, and also 40 structures which control the risk of
flooding from ordinary watercourses.

The inspection and maintenance of these assets is
essential in protecting hundreds of homes, businesses and critical infrastructure in communities
throughout Gwynedd. We are able to give a snap shot at any one time of the most vulnerable areas
in Gwynedd.

Page 108



8 0 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We also maintain a coastal monitoring programme to identify changes to the coastline as a
consequence of climate change, which could affect our coastal communities in years to come. Each
asset is given a condition score between 1 and 5, and a target condition is set for each asset, our aim
is that every asset in Gwynedd is to meet its target condition score.

Regulation

As LLFA Gwynedd Council have a regulatory role to prevent development and activities that could
contribute to flood risk. These primarily include:

• Approving and adopting sustainable drainage systems for new developments that will control
the risk of surface water from new developments. This is a new statuary duty that will be
developed over the next few years, adopting and approving applications in a timely manner
will assist the applicant and the planning process.

• Ensuring that any work carried out within an ordinary watercourse has the least possible
impact on flood risk and the environment. We respond to 40 construction applications per
year on average, with the statutory response time being 28 days, however we aim to approve
these as soon as possible.

Building Control Unit

We work with the public and partners in order for our communities to
have safe buildings that are in keeping with the latest technical
requirements.

We aim to go beyond the statutory requirements by providing a Building Control service which is
customer-centred, by offering advice, technical support, planning assessments and site inspections for
every type of construction work.

In terms of dangerous buildings, we offer a 24-hour service to ensure that the health and safety of
Gwynedd residents is safeguarded from dangerous buildings and structures.

Customer Satisfaction (score out of 10)

8.7

2014-15

9.1

2015-16

9.3

2016-17

9.6

2017-18

Building work must be
completed in accordance with
the specific requirements of
Building Regulations. This is
important and valuable to the
people of Gwynedd, as it will
ensure that any building work
is safe and is of the required
standard.

Page 109



8 1 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

For Full Planning applications, the Building Control service aims to inspect the plans within 15 working
days, with the decision being released as soon as possible. In order to approve the application (first
decision), the Building Control officers offer to work with builders and architects in order to improve
the standard of the application.

In future, we will develop our work further in these fields:

• Customer satisfaction survey questionnaire.

• Number of days to check full planning applications

• Percentage of full plans approved/conditionally approved (First Decision).

• Dangerous Structures – time taken to make building/site safe to members of the Public.

Consultancy Services

We design and manage projects relating to roads, structures,
buildings, etc. in Gwynedd and throughout Wales, creating and
maintaining quality jobs across the County, and contributing towards
Gwynedd Council costs.

The costs of running the Consultancy Service are earned through client fees
which, in turn, contribute towards the remainder of the costs of Gwynedd
Council, by contributing towards financial overheads and targets.

Consultancy Services Operational Structure

Gwynedd Consultancy deals with each piece of work as an individual project, whichever Unit the
work derives from. This means that individuals from any Unit across the organisation can act as leader
or members of the project team to ensure success.

Highways, Construction and Building Units

Through our Consultancy
Services, we create local
professional jobs that would
not be available in the County
otherwise. The Consultancy
Services have to operate
through innovative and
sustainable methods, in addition
to being competitive in price.

Page 110



8 2 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We carry out project management work which includes designing, and environmental and
geographical needs.

Water and Environment Unit

The Unit works on designing coastal structures and flood prevention plans.

Gwynedd Council can attract funding for this work by gaining significant grants.

Business Unit

We serve and support all units within the Department, and implement the required processes to
sustain the business.

In future, we will develop our work further in these fields:

• Continue to compete for work in 2019/20 in designing roads, bridges and projects in order
to support the Council's financial benefit and maximise the profit by £107k.

• Assist AECOM to deliver the upgraded A5025 from Valley to Wylfa Newydd.

• Employ six new staff members.

Page 111



Page 112



84 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Corporate Support Department

The Department reinforces the Council's ability to provide the best services to Gwynedd's
residents through a combination of support, specialist and front-line services. This provides
an opportunity for the remainder of the Council to focus on the other services that are
provided directly to the public.

Customer Contact

Galw Gwynedd, from its centre in Penrhyndeudraeth, responds
to telephone calls, e-mail messages and on-line service requests
on behalf of Council services. Siop Gwynedd in Dolgellau, Pwllheli
and Caernarfon operate as a combined one-stop shop and
reception for the same purpose, along with operating as a first
point of contact for the Tax and Benefits Services.

Galw Gwynedd receives approximately 200,000 telephone calls annually, and the
Gwynedd Shops receive at least 20,000 visitors each year.

In future, we will:

•provide on-line self-service for an increasing amount of enquiries and service requests. As a
Council, we want Gwynedd's residents to be able to access services or information at times which
are convenient for them

• review Blue Badge and Switchboard arrangements to improve customer services
• introduce alternative contact arrangements e.g. “web-chat”.

Registration

The Council provides a registration service from four locations across the county,
including Ysbyty Gwynedd.

During the past year, 5,600 marriages, civic partnerships, births and deaths were

Answer phone

calls, on

average within

40 seconds

In future, we will:

•undertake detailed assessments on the work of
Registrars to ensure that we comply with the
requirements on all occasions.

• review work arrangements in relation to
Weddings, to develop the service to be available
through self-service

• strengthen our service continuation plans.

Page 113



85 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

registered and more than 3,000 requests for certificates.

Communication and Engagement

The Communication and Engagement Service facilitates a two-way dialogue with the
residents of Gwynedd, staff and councillors.

This communication includes maintaining a proactive relationship with the media,
maintaining the Council's website and social media accounts, publishing Newyddion
Gwynedd and coordinating opportunities for Gwynedd's residents to give their views
on the Council's work.

In future we will:

• further strengthen the internal communication
system and concentrate on establishing a procedure
to identify and communicate a limited number of key
messages and measure the extent to which these
messages permeate through the workforce;

• provide more services that are available 24 hours a
day on the Council’s website;

• complete the work of strengthening the visual
“brand” to ensure that Gwynedd's residents are aware of the services and support provided by
the Council.

Council Business Support

This Service coordinates arrangements for publishing the Council's business
plan, equality plan and performance reports in addition to advising and
supporting project work, service reviews and scrutiny investigations. We will
assist Council services to give fair consideration to the equality and rights of
each individual and assist officers and councillors to challenge plans and working
practices.

In future, we will:

• implement the aims of the current Strategic Equality Plan and develop and publish the new plan
for 2020-24.

• develop and introduce a series of Project Management workshops for Council staff to introduce
them to the key principles of project management.

The Service is also responsible for leading on partnership work between Gwynedd Council and Isle of

Anglesey County Council:

The Council's Social Website's followers

Page 114



86 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board

Gwynedd and Anglesey Councils, with the Health Board,
Natural Resources Wales and the Fire and Rescue Service,
collaborate closely on the form of the Public Services Board
in order to improve the well-being of residents in several
fields.

The Board published its Well-being Plan in June 2018, with the aim of ensuring
that public service providers work together to deliver positive changes in
communities across the two counties.

In future, we will:

• confirm arrangements to deliver and monitor the well-being objectives
and the priority areas within the Well-being Plan.

Community Safety
We will lead on both Council's work along with the Police, the Fire Service, the
Probation Service and the Health Board to tackle and reduce crime and disorder to
improve the safety and welfare of the residents of both counties.

In future, we will:

• develop and implement a new plan to respond to the identified crime and
disorder priorities in both counties.

Promoting the Welsh Language

All the Council's services are available to the public in Welsh and English, but the
Council's administrative language is Welsh and we therefore promote and enable the
use of the Welsh language in all our services. The Council wishes to see a situation
where Gwynedd continues to be a stronghold for the Welsh language, and that it is
an everyday language that is heard and spoken naturally by children, young people and
adults across the county.

In future, we will:

• Implement the initial work programme of the Welsh Language
Promotion Plan for Gwynedd 2018-2023 and develop collaboration
projects across the fields in question.

• Promote and facilitate the use of the Welsh language as a natural social
medium in the County's communities through the work of the
language enterprise, Hunaniaith.

Page 115



87 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Promote the use of the Welsh language
within the Council's services

Improvement Priority 5

Gwynedd Council has been at the forefront in terms of ensuring that services are available through
the medium of Welsh and ensuring that the Council's internal work happens through the medium of
Welsh. Nevertheless, we acknowledge that we are in a challenging period and that we need to work
continually to push the boundaries to make sure that the services utilise every opportunity to promote
the use of the Welsh language and to enable the public to use it in all contexts.

We will continue to work with services - especially front-line services - to develop the skills of new
and existing staff and to take up new opportunities to ensure that we offer a fully bilingual provision
for all aspects of our services

The Welsh Language in Public Services Improvement Priority 5

At present there is inconsistency in the provision of bilingual services by public bodies in Gwynedd
which means that it is not always possible for residents to use the Welsh language naturally when
communicating with public bodies.

Now that a work programme has been signed off, and as part of the Public Services Board's Welsh
Language Sub-group, we will continue to drive forward projects that seek to set the expected and
consistent standard across the public bodies - with the aim of encouraging a greater use of the Welsh
language at first contact with services.

Gwynedd Businesses using the
Welsh language

Improvement Priority 5

Gwynedd businesses have a role to play in promoting and using the Welsh language and our
intention will be to encourage businesses to use the language when offering services.

Agree on and coordinate a tailored work programme.

Page 116



88 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Research and Information

In order for all Council services to work successfully in accordance with the Ffordd
Gwynedd principles, they need to understand the needs of their customers, to be
able to measure whether or not they are delivering what's important to their
customers, and to make decisions based on the evidence of the impact on the people
of Gwynedd. To achieve this, gathering, recording and analysing information is vital.
We are here to support the Council's services to do this.

As so much information is kept to provide Council services, including information about people, we need
to ensure that the arrangements for creating, retaining, sharing and using this information are working
correctly and that they comply with legislation.

In future, we will:

• review how staff and managers across the Council are able to obtain information and evidence,
and improve the form and contents of what is available to them and how easy it is to access it
(e.g. via the intranet)

• contribute to the development of the Council's human resources systems, to specifically improve
the type of information and analyses managers are able to easily access about their workforce.
This will be crucial to the success of developments such as workforce planning and managing
talent within the Council, and will enable us as a Service to focus on more specialist work that
will provide business solutions in the field of human resources information.

• make the most of the potential of the Council's new document and records
management system (iGwynedd) and help services to develop things that
facilitate ways of working and reduce unnecessary steps.

• ensure that new work arrangements and practices that have been
introduced across the Council to comply with new information legislation
(GDPR) by 2018, are embedded and are robust.

• review the arrangements of the Council's Records Centre to see how
arrangements can be improved without affecting the resource available to
the Service's other priorities.

Page 117



89 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Procurement

The Council spends over £97m annually
on procuring, or purchasing, various
goods and services from revenue budgets.
In 2017/18, the Council purchased goods
and services which were worth over £60
million to the local economy.

In future, we will:

• Strengthen and develop the procurement expertise within the Council and review
what we are currently purchasing - we will assess the category management arrangements
to ensure that the arrangements are implemented and that the tools and arrangements are fit for
purpose. We will also ensure that the principles of the Well-being of Future Generations Act
Wales are adopted in their procurement activities by ensuring that environmental, social and
financial aspects receive appropriate consideration.

• Adopt best practice in the field - we will be reviewing our electronic purchasing systems in
order to ensure that our arrangements are effective and efficient. As our ability to manage
contracts is essential to ensure value for money, we will also seek to develop our arrangements
for analysing the Council's expenditure. In doing so, we aim to ensure that our buyers make
informed and smart decisions when procuring.

• Plans to support the market - for every contract, we will identify any deficiencies in the
market that prevent companies from bidding for work and offer them appropriate support to be
able to bid to deliver the services we need in future

Keeping the Benefit Local Improvement Priority 1

The Council is responsible for buying a number of goods and services and is eager to try to ensure
that local businesses can compete and win these contracts in order to ensure that as much of the
Council's expenditure as possible remains local. In 2017/2018, we succeeded to increase the
percentage of local expenditure to 62% compared with 58% the previous year. New arrangements
were introduced to seek to purchase goods and services in more innovative and efficient ways and
steps have been taken in order to facilitate the businesses' ability to compete for contracts.

In 2018/19, we will continue with that work to raise awareness and understanding among businesses
of the Council's procurement procedures and find other ways of supporting them further to deliver
the services we need.

£

Page 118



90 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Democracy and Translation

The Democracy Service
• maintains the committee arrangements and supports councillors in their work.

• provides written and oral Welsh and English translations to staff, members and
residents

Varied support is offered to 75 councillors in their various functions, so that they can
make decisions and act in the interests of the residents of Gwynedd.

In future, we will:

• Develop regional scrutiny arrangements with other
authorities

• Prepare for the draft Local Government measure by
developing web-casting and remote attendance
arrangements

• Implement the conclusions of the review of our
scrutiny arrangements to contribute more to
improve services

Emergency Plans

The Council has a role in preparing plans for dealing with emergencies and to collaborate with the
emergency services, agencies and volunteers when caring for the public's well-being.

The provision of food and rest facilities, temporary accommodation and road safety are prominent
examples of the specific responsibilities that the Council has in responding to emergencies.

Human Resources Advisory Service

The team of human resources advisers and officers are responsible for

advising managers and headteachers on staff employment matters. This

includes working conditions, equal opportunities issues, restructuring or

service cuts, dealing with disciplinary matters and complaints, managing

absences and recruitment and appointments. The Service also leads on the

work of reviewing and developing local working conditions and promoting

good employment practices.

This year, the team has already dealt with 130 individual cases. It is also

currently advising on staffing matters related to projects such as

establishing the Byw'n Iach company and the schools reorganisation

agenda.

Page 119



91 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

In future, we will:

• Establish an understanding of collaboration with every department, as a basis to develop a

business model that supports Council mangers to take ownership of day-to-day human resources

issues.

• Collaborate with every department within the Council to consider and establish their workforce

planning needs, and assist and support them to begin addressing any matters that arise from this

• Review each of the Council's present local working conditions, including developing new ones,

to reflect and support the way in which the Council wants its staff to work

• Implement the 2019/20 pay settlement for local government workers and introduce a new pay

structure that forms part of the national pay agreement.

Women in Leadership Improvement Priority 3

The Council is firm that it adheres to equal pay, however the Council acknowledges that the
number of women who deliver a managerial function within the Council is disproportionate with the
division within the entire workforce i.e. 70% women 30% men

The main purpose of this project therefore is to boost the number of women who apply for and
attain higher positions within the Council by reviewing the conditions and the working environment
to attract more women to undertake the work in future. We will consult widely within the
Council with women and draw on work that has already been carried out by other organisations.

Support Service

The Support Services provide administrative support such as arranging

appointments, ordering goods, printing, bill payments and post distribution for

Council staff.

In 2017/18, the Service focused on rationalising the administrative arrangements,

reducing superfluous paperwork, and enabling staff and managers to access service

and information directly and promptly.

In future, we will:

• introduce on-line access to services to be able to check criminal records

• input recruitment and appointment arrangements, in an effort to reduce internal bureaucracy and
to facilitate the task for individuals when applying for a post in the Council.

• change the procedure of communication and administration from paper to electronic means

Page 120



92 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Health, Safety and Well-being Advisory Service

The Service provides advice and training on health and safety matters, investigates
accidents and incidents and verifies standards in terms of health and safety
arrangements across the Council.

In addition to this, we support staff through periods of absences, provide advice to
managers on the health of their staff and assess suitability to return to work
following an injury or illness, screen the health of
workers and carry out staff medical checks.

A review of the mental well-being support was conducted in 2017/28
and a number of aspects to improve were identified recognising that
this is the main reason for sickness among Council staff

In future, we will:

• Reduce absences, and focus specifically on the priorities of the
mental well-being work programme on how to cope best with
stress

• Continue to promote a new business model for the Service in
order to encourage the services' ownership of day-to-day health and safety matters within the
Council

• Ensure that every cohort of the workforce has been assessed for the need for health checks.

Organisational Learning and Development

The Service provides relevant learning and development support,
consults and responds to the needs of individuals and teams, helps to
develop a beneficial working environment so that everyone gives their
best, helps services to identify opportunities to improve and develops
talent to fill gaps in the future.

This involves providing Learning and Development programmes for staff (on all levels) and Elected
Members, and review them continuously to ensure relevance, We work with teams and officers to 'fill
gaps' in the provision and tailor titles to meet their needs.

We will promote and support individuals to take ownership of their own learning, and offer a range of
learning methods that include the 'traditional' along with innovative methods such as coaching and
mentoring, learning through experience and using technology. Our intention is to develop and extend the
e-learning provision.

We will Develop the Organisation by assisting the Council to establish and develop a working
environment that allows staff to be at their best by putting the people of Gwynedd at the centre of what
they do. This includes developing appropriate behaviours and culture and following the principles of

Page 121



93 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Investors in People, develop alternative working arrangements and ensuring a voice for staff. Alongside this, we
will continue to extend the current benefits that are available to staff.

Another important element is to Improve Service by responding positively to Complaints, facilitating
arrangements for Services to take ownership of, and learn from them.

In future, we will:

• Introduce the MoDS (Staff Development Module) on-line Learning and Development service

• Develop Future Workforce Development plans (including Identifying and Managing Talent)

• Establish a culture of Continuous Appraisal that links directly to the principles of Ffordd Gwynedd

Developing Leadership Improvement Priority 7

Establishing leadership that sets a direction, motivates others and creates an appropriate
environment for prosperity are central in enabling the Council to achieve the aim of placing the
people of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do. The development programme for honing the
leadership skills of Elected Members and officers is moving forward promisingly. All Cabinet
Members have developed their leadership skills as individuals and jointly during the last year, whilst
the majority of Council managers have completed the development programme that concentrates
on leaders' behaviours and on the understanding of the implementation principles that are part of
establishing and maintaining the new culture.

We will continue to maintain development opportunities for Members and managers with a focus on
a culture of leading people rather than merely managing people. We will re-establish the Managers
Network and this will be an opportunity for managers across the Council to share good practice and
receive training.

Empowering Units to Implement
Ffordd Gwynedd

Improvement Priority 7

Establishing a consistent culture will not happen in isolation, and the purpose of this project is o
lead service teams to reflect on their current working arrangements, to challenge whether they are
placing the people of Gwynedd centrally and whether there is room for improvement.

In doing so, we will ensure that every service unit within the Council places the people of Gwynedd
at the centre of everything they do. This will also ensure that we consider alternative methods of
implementation (including collaboration with others) and measure those ideas against a single
yardstick – namely to what extent does it increase the benefit for the people of Gwynedd.

We have already created a development programme based on learning in the workplace and have
held training on the Ffordd Gwynedd principles for Heads of Department, Senior Managers and the

Page 122



94 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

majority of Managers. Additionally, a number of service reviews have been undertaken, or are
underway within the Council.

The original Ffordd Gwynedd Strategy published in October 2015 has now ended. Following
consultation, we will publish a new strategy during 2019/20 whilst continuing to provide training for
new managers and support services with reviews across the Council in order to ensure that we put
the people of Gwynedd at the centre of any activities we undertake.

Apprenticeships Plan Improvement Priority 1

Welsh Government has outlined its national vision to address the need to develop vital skills in

Wales and the broader economy to identify the priority fields and how apprenticeships will be an
integral part of fulfilling this.

The Council has already identified appropriate fields for establishing apprenticeships and has

allocated funding to realise these schemes for the next two years.

We will establish an Apprenticeships Scheme that will employ at least 20 new apprentices during
2019/20.

Page 123



Page 124



96 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Finance Department (and Information Technology)

The Finance Department's intention is to contribute towards achieving the aim of seeking
"the best for the people of Gwynedd during a difficult period" by:

• Ensuring the appropriate support to the Council's business operation and its services
when managing, safeguarding and developing its financial position, in order to establish
a sustainable community in an open, accountable and prominent manner.

• Ensuring professional supportive guidance and technology of a high standard that
promotes the Council's basic values and encourages entrepreneurship.

• Providing front line services (such as collecting revenue and paying benefits) of a suitable
quality to the customer, providing fairness to people and communities, and focusing on
residents.

Benefits Service

We administrate benefit support to approximately 7,500
tenants to pay their rents, and to approximately 10,000
individuals, couples or families to pay their Council Tax
bill, aiming to do this in a timely and accurate manner.

It can be seen from the graph that the number of days it
takes us to pay has reduced up to 2017, and we will
attempt to reduce the time further in future.

During 2019/20 we will continue to help the people of
Gwynedd as required following the introduction of
Universal Credit full service in October and December
2018.

Tax Service

Without Council Tax and Business Rates, it would not be
possible for the Council to provide its services. This
service administrates and collects Council Tax for over
61,500 properties, and Business Rates (Non-domestic
Rates) of approximately 7,500 business properties in the
most timely and efficient manner as possible, including
administrating the various available discounts, exemptions
and release schemes.

The service fully understands that it is not easy for everyone to pay these taxes, and we attempt to be
flexible (e.g. encourage payment arrangements and agreements) and sympathetic to the individuals'
circumstances. We attempt to encourage individuals to ask for advice on personal financing and more
extensive debt advice.

0

5

10

15

20

25

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

D
ay

s

Processing new benefits applications

Processing notice of change in
circumstances

96.7

97.2

97.7

98.2

98.7

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

%

Council Tax collection rate (within
the year)

Non-Domestic Tax collection rate
(within the year)

Page 125



97 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Income Service

The Council receives income (e.g. grants, payments for
service) of all types, and the Income Service processes this
income, collecting the Council's debts in a timely and
efficient manner in order to make the most of the income.
The service considers the needs of the Council's
departments and acts sensitively to debtors' financial
circumstances when carrying out its work.

We have identified the need to improve the
recovering processes of some of the debts of the
Adults, Health and Well-being Department, and we
will collaborate with this Department in order to
make the most of the indebted money that is
collected and available to provide services.

% of invoices paid within 30 days

2017/18
91%

2016/17
91%

2015/16
92%

Payments Service

We are responsible for paying the Council's and
GwE creditors in an accurate and timely
manner. We pay over 105,267 invoices annually,
with 91% of the invoices paid within 30 days on
average, aiming to prioritise paying local
suppliers promptly.

We will be moving to an e-invoices system in
order to improve the service's efficiency.
These arrangements will reduce a delay in
payment and will enable us to have control
over all invoices that reach the Council.

Payroll Service

There are over 7,200 different individuals working for the Council in order to enable it to serve the people
of Gwynedd, and the purpose of the Payroll Service is to ensure that they get paid accurately and in a timely
manner. The service also keeps appropriate accounts in order to pay external bodies such as HMRC.

We will be reviewing what information needs to be included on the payslips, such as highlighting the
employer pension contribution, etc.

£800,000

£850,000

£900,000

£950,000

£1,000,000

Value of varied debt over 6 months old

Page 126



98 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Pensions Service

The Pensions Service is responsible for administrating
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) on
behalf of over 40 employers including Gwynedd
Council, Isle of Anglesey County Council and Conwy
County Borough Council. The fund includes over
16,000 active members, 10,000 deferred members and
9,000 pensioners. The service's daily duties include
establishing a record for new members, making changes
to members' records, calculating deferred benefits,
transferring pension rights in and out of the LGPS, and
paying benefits after the retirement and death of the
scheme's members.

We will be improving documentation clarity in order to ensure that everyone understands it.

Investment and Treasury Management Service

Within this service, we invest the Council's money in order to gain interest to contribute towards funding
services. We also manage the Pension Fund's investments in order to ensure the ability to pay pensions now
and in future. In addition to this, we are responsible for making decisions on long-term loans.

The Unit's aim is to keep money safe, earn interest and ensure that funding is available to pay for daily
expenditure.

During 2017/18, the Council's borrowing activity remained within the constraints originally set. The total
interest received on investments was £211,000 which was higher than the £173,000 in the budget. None of
the banks the Council had used to invest failed to pay.

Local government pension funds in Wales work by pooling investments in order to get the greatest
benefit of joint-investing.

Finance and Accounting Service (including devolved Units)

We provide a finance and accounting service, and we help and support
services to be effective and efficient. The service:

• Regularly monitors and reports on the Council's financial performance.

• Provides financial support with a gross budget of over £405 million

• Is responsible for producing final calculations for the accounts of
Gwynedd Council, two Joint Committees and the Harbour's accounts.

• Is supporting the Departments to realise over £48.5 million in savings
and cuts since 2010/11 which is 96% of the savings target, with a slight
slippage on the rest. The work of supporting the savings arrangement
is ongoing.

Success in staying
within the budget

-0.36%

The Auditor General for Wales has published an unconditional audit report on the 2017/18 financial
statements, namely that the accounts had been appropriately prepared and provide an accurate and fair
picture of the financial situation. We will provide more financial advice to all Council budget holders.
“Business” advice for departments and provide support to assist with the savings.

0

5

10

15

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Average number of working days taken to
send a letter informing the value of

retirement benefits

Estimate Actual Value

Page 127



99 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

The finance the Council receives from the Welsh Government isn’t sufficient to pay for the key
services the Council provides. Therefore, in order to ensure a balanced budget we will also
continue to realise the savings already approved, and we will plan together with the people of
Gwynedd to find and select the savings needed to respond to the financial challenge facing the
Council in the future.

Internal Audit Service

Internal Audit reviews the Council's governance and
administrative arrangements in order to give confidence
to the Authority and the citizen that these arrangements
are robust. We will report independently and objectively
to the Head of Finance Department and the Audit and
Governance Committee.

For 2018/19, a new arrangement was introduced where
Internal Audit reports are placed in one of four categories
of overall assurance. Initial feedback has been very
positive.

The move towards developing "agreed actions", which is
an agreement between us and managers across the
Council on how to improve management and reduce risks,
has been completed.

Risk and Insurance Service

All Council departments need to assess the threats and opportunities they could face when providing their
services, and prioritise their activities based on the assessment. The role of the Risk and Insurance Service
is to advise and support the departments when doing this. We also protect taxpayers' benefits by ensuring
appropriate insurance arrangements and dealing with approximately 250 claims per year.

Information Technology Service

We implement the Council's Information Technology
Strategy in order to help the people of Gwynedd to gain easy
access to the Council's information and services, and for staff
to work efficiently.

The face of the service is the Support Service and the Helpdesk,
which supports 2,350 users and completes approximately 20,000
requests for information, including providing 450 new computers
annually, and 1,780 mobile phones and tablet computers.

The Information Technology Strategy ensures that our
technology services are presented on firm foundations that are
supported by the Infrastructure, Telephone and Network Service,
spreading to 250 buildings, 1,400 wireless access points and 2,370
phone connections, and support all systems in our data centres
on 440 servers and 880TB storage.

% of network availability

2017/18 –
2016/17 –
2015/16 –

99.98%
99.94%
99.95%

% of Public Website availability

2017/18 –
2016/17 –
2015/16 –

99.41%
99.98%
99.62%

74

78

82

86

90

94

98

102

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

%

% of audits that have been completed

Page 128



100 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Despite these firm foundations, we need to introduce improvements to strengthen its durability, and this
work will continue through the first half of 2019/20.

The current Strategy will be succeeded by a new Digital Strategy during 2019/20, which will transform our
services further.

The Development and Geographical Information Service provides approximately 160 systems that have been
developed around the user's appropriate needs, including systems that are used by the department for public
services, direct interfaces for the public and staff self-service.

The Programme and Innovation Management Unit provides support to the departments to meet their IT needs,
including ordering IT materials, implementing and monitoring agreements and analysing needs.

During 2019/20 will be conduct further exercises to strengthen the durability of our provision
and the increasing calls to support services 24/7.

Page 129



Page 130



102 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Legal Services

The department supports the Council's ability to provide the best services to Gwynedd's

residents through a combination of support and front-line services.

LEGAL

The Legal Service provides legal support across all of the

Council's range of work from child protection and

prosecution to the preparation of traffic orders and land and

property proceedings.

As well as being available to deal with daily enquiries, the team on

average deals with approximately 900 cases and proceedings annually.

PROPRIETY

The Legal Service supports the Standards Committee and the Monitoring Officer to

implement their responsibilities for the propriety of the Council's method of action, the

Constitution and complaints as well as the ethical framework for members of the

Council and Town and Community Councils.

We continue to support Gwynedd Council's propriety system along with the ethical system for the

County's Town and Community Councils.

ELECTIONS

The Legal Service also provides support to the Returning Officer and the Electoral

Registration Officer.

The team is responsible for the administration of the electoral register and supports local and national

elections and by-elections, referendums or polls within the county.

Projects

The service is implementing a project to improve the use of time and resources to make the best

use of the capacity that is available to increase registration amongst cohorts where levels are lower

than average, and also to promote is among the secondary sector age.

CORONER

The Legal Service provides support to the Coroner's Service for North West Wales.

We support and administer Coroner arrangements for North West Wales.

Page 131



Page 132



104 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 2019/20

The information will be prepared ready to present at the Council’s meeting on 7 March

2019

Page 133



Page 134



106 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

GWYNEDD COUNCIL WELL-BEING STATEMENT 2019/20

Introduction

As a Council, we are committed to the principles within the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 in order to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being of communities in Gwynedd.

We will ensure that the Council considers the long term by collaborating and considering
people of all ages when resolving and preventing problems. Working in this way will enable
us to meet the present needs of our communities while ensuring that today's decisions are
not harmful to future generations.

We reviewed the original set of well-being objectives (adopted for the Council in its Council
Plan for 2017/18) as part of the process of creating the Council Plan for 2018-23. The evidence
considered includes information from consultation sessions held with Elected Members across
the County, feedback from a consultation session with the Council's Scrutiny Committee
members, response to a public consultation on the proposed priorities for the Council Plan
and the results of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Public Services Board Well-being Assessment.

This information was used to develop the new suite of well-being objectives for 2018/19 and
we also looked to summarise, refine and improve on the original set of objectives adopted. In
reviewing our well-being objectives for 2019/20 it is felt that the above evidence remains
current and therefore our well-being objectives will remain as they were.

The Council's Ambition and Well-being Objectives

Our vision is for every community in Gwynedd to prosper, and for us as people to...
• Enjoy happy, healthy and safe lives

• Live in quality homes within their communities

• Earn a sufficient salary to be able to support themselves and their families

• Receive education of the highest quality which will enable them to do what they
want to do

• Live with dignity and independently for as long as possible

• Live in a natural Welsh society

• Take advantage of the beauty of the County's natural environment.

The Council's day-to-day work and the improvement priorities identified in the Council Plan
2018-23 will contribute to the aforementioned objectives.

Page 135



107 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

National Well-being Goals
A summary of the national well-being goals can be seen below.

A PROSPEROUS WALES
An innovative society which uses
resources efficiently and well-
educated people, which generates
wealth and employment.

A RESILIENT WALES
A nation which maintains and
enhances biodiversity and healthy
ecosystems which supports
resilience and has the capacity to
adapt to change (for example climate
change).

A HEALTHIER WALES
A society in which people’s physical
and mental well-being is maximised
and in which choices and behaviours
that benefit future health are
understood.

A MORE EQUAL WALES
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background or
circumstances (including their socio economic background and circumstances).

A WALES OF COHESIVE COMMUNITIES
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities.

A WALES OF VIBRANT CULTURE AND THRIVING WELSH LANGUAGE
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and which
encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation.

A GLOBALLY RESPONSIBLE WALES
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, environmental and
cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may make a
positive contribution to global well-being.

How do the Council's well-being objectives contribute to the national well-being
goals?

The Council has adopted seven well-being objectives which contribute to achieving the
national well-being goals. The table below outlines the link between our well-being objectives
and the national well-being goals. It is also noted that our day-to-day work contributes to the
national well-being goals.

Page 136



108 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

We will ensure that the residents
of Gwynedd can: P

ro
sp

e
ro

u
s

R
e
si

li
e
n

t

H
e
a
lt

h
ie

r

E
q

u
a
l

C
o

h
e
si

v
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

A
v
ib

ra
n

t
cu

lt
u

re
w

h
e
re

th
e

W
e
ls

h
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

is
th

ri
v
in

g

G
lo

b
a
ll
y

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le

Enjoy happy, healthy and safe lives

Live in quality homes within their
communities

Earn a sufficient salary to be able to support
themselves and their families

Receive education of the highest quality
which will enable them to do what they
want to do

Live with dignity and independently for as
long as possible

Live in a natural Welsh society

Take advantage of the beauty of the
County's natural environment.

How will we work into the future?

When carrying out our work, we will seek to ensure that we work in accordance with the
five sustainable development principles which have been adopted nationally:

• Long term - Balance short term needs with long term ones and plan for the future

• Prevent - Allocate resources to prevent problems from occurring or getting worse.
We will address problems by prevention and early intervention rather than being
responsive.

• Integration - Have a positive effect on people, the economy, the environment and
culture.

• Collaborate - Work with other partners to provide services

• Inclusion (Communication and Engagement) - Include the people of Gwynedd
when seeking to realise our plan and ensure that those people reflect the diversity of
the area.

Our services already operate in a way which follows the sustainable development principle
while adopting a long term and collaborative approach and working in partnership and
including organisations, individuals and communities. In addition, we work in a preventative
way, where possible, when responding to current needs and reducing dependency e.g. in the
field of Additional Learning Needs.

Page 137



109 www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/CouncilPlan

Having said that, the emergence of the Well-being of Future Generations Act and the Social
Services and Well-being Act has offered us as a Council an opportunity to take stock of what
we are already doing to work in a sustainable way and to set ourselves an ambition for the
coming period.

Any financial decisions will consider carefully our ability to deliver what we have outlined in
the Council Plan for 2018-23 and we will continually review what we are doing in order to
ensure that the future well-being of the people of Gwynedd is central to the way that we plan
and deliver our services.

Page 138



                    

1 Details 

1.1 What is the name of the Plan in question? 

Gwynedd Council Plan 2018-23 – 2019/20 Review

      
1.2 What it the purpose of the Plan that is being created or changed?  What 

changes are being considered? 

The purpose of the Gwynedd Council Plan is to identify priorities and key fields to 
implement between 2018 and 2023. The original version of the Plan was adopted by 
the Council in its meeting on 8 March 2018

The Plan is annually reviewed and re-published with any necessary adaptations. 
These are the changes made in the 2019/20 Review –

The following projects either have been completed or have been incorporated into the 
day-to-day work of the respective Departments during 2018/19.

- Transforming the schools system – Education Department
- Corporate Parenting – Children and Supporting Families Department
- Realising Savings – Corporate Support/Finance Department

The following projects have been added:

Improvement Priority 1

- Promoting Town Centres – Economy and Community Department
- Apprenticeships Plan – Corporate Support Department

Improvement Priority 2

- Post-16 Provision – Education Department
- Treferthyr Catchment Area – Education Department

Also, the following projects have changed:

Improvement Priority 3

- Working Together Against Poverty – The emphasis will change to 
concentrate on prevention and the support offered, with the title changing to 
Supporting People’s Well-being – Children and Supporting Families 
Department

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 139



- Reducing the Gender Pay Gap – Title changed to Women in Leadership – 
Corporate Support Department

Improvement Priority 4
- Suitable and Affordable Housing and Identifying and Promoting Housing 

Schemes and Initiatives – Work continues as part of the Housing Strategy 
for the People of Gwynedd 2019-24 – Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
Department project.

This Equality Impact Assessment looks at the Plan in its entirety.   Every individual plan 
is expected to be Assessed separately.  It is the duty of the person who is responsible 
for the individual plan to carry out this Assessment.

         

1.3 Who is responsible for this assessment? 

Dewi Jones, The Council's Business Support Service Manager.

1.4 When did you begin the assessment?   What version is this? 

27 June 2017, version relating to the engagement 
13 December 2017, version 2, full assessment of the Plan.
This is version 3- 4 February 2019.

    
2) Implementation

2.1 Who are the partners that you will have to work with to carry out this 
assessment? 

Members, service users, Gwynedd residents, partners on Gwynedd and Anglesey 
Public Services Board. 

2.2. What steps have you taken to engage with people with equality 
characters?

Page 140



A 6 week consultation during the winter of 2017/18 to present and explain the draft 
priorities to the public, partners and local organisations and raise awareness of the 
opportunity for them to participate in the exercise by completing a short on-line 
questionnaire on www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/consultation. Paper copies were also be 
available in local libraries and Siop Gwynedd.  

We encouraged as many Gwynedd residents as possible to complete and return the 
questionnaire by using the Council's website, the local press, disseminating the 
message through our partners, social media and Rhaeadr, the elected members' e-
newsletter.   

We contacted as many as possible of interested groups and groups representing or 
working with people and/children with equality characteristics to notify them of the 
engagement and to ask them to notify their users of the questionnaire.

2.3 What was the result of the engagement? 

197 questionnaires were received. 

The respondents were asked to answer questions about their equality characteristics 
(optional) and the information gathered was as follows:

1) Completed the questionnaire as....
 Individual - 159
 Organisation or business - 5
 No answer - 33

2) Gender 
 Male - 84
 Female - 65
 Prefer not to say - 9
 No response - 39

3) Age group

 18-29 - 8
 30-39 - 23
 40-49 - 29
 50-59 - 34
 60-69 - 31
 70 or older - 25
 Prefer not to say - 9
 No answer - 38

4) National identity

 Welsh - 77
 English - 22

Page 141

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/consultation


 British - 46
 Other - 9
 I prefer not to say - 8
 No response - 35

5) Ethnic Origin

 White - 141
 Mixed / several ethnic groups - 4
 Black / African / Caribbean - 1
 I prefer not to say - 11
 Other - 3 
 No response - 37

6) Do you consider yourself as a disabled person?

 Yes - 15
 No - 129
 I prefer not to say - 15
 No answer - 38

7) Religion

 Christian (every denomination) - 72
 Hindu - 2
 No religion - 52
 Atheist - 5
 Jehovah’s Witness - 1
 Humanist - 1
 Vasinava – 1
 Wicca - 1
 Other - 7
 I prefer not to say - 17
 No answer - 38

8) Sexual Orientation

 Heterosexual / Straight - 127
 Gay man - 1
 Bisexual - 1
 Other - 8 
 I prefer not to say - 20
 No answer - 40

9) Gender at birth

 Male - 79
 Female - 61
 Intersexual - 1

Page 142



 I prefer not to say - 15
 No response - 41

10)The way you think about yourself

 Male - 77
 Female - 59
 Other - 8 
 I prefer not to say - 13
 No answer - 40

It was not possible to identify a trend in the responses of any of the equality 
characteristics

2.4 What other information informed the way you operate? 

As part of the process of drawing up the Council's Plan for 2018-23, a series of eight 
area meetings were held during July in order to give local members an opportunity to 
highlight any issues requiring attention in those areas. In addition, members of the 
Scrutiny Committees identified matters that they believed should be included within the 
Council Plan in the future.   

Four further workshop sessions were held with members in September in Caernarfon, 
Penrhyndeudraeth, Dolgellau and Pwllheli. The purpose of these workshops was to 
give them an opportunity to identify the county priorities to be included within the 
Council's Plan and make further observations on the priorities identified per area. 

2.5 Are there any gaps in our evidence that need to be gathered? 

No

3) Identifying the Impact 

3.1      What impact will the new Plan have on people with equality 
characteristics?  The Council must give due regard to the impact any 
changes will have on people with equality characteristics.

Characteristics What type 
of impact? 

In what way? What is the evidence?

Page 143



Race (including 
nationality)

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic.  The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

The Welsh 
language

Positive This is a priority field therefore it is expected to have 
a positive impact on the Welsh language.  Each 
individual plan is expected to look at the impact on 
the Welsh language when carrying out a separate 
Equality Impact Assessment.

In relation to the prioritising the Welsh language 
specifically in the consultation, 18 of the comments 
supported the need to prioritise the Welsh language 
and 14 said that no money should be spent on the 
language.

A number of comments were made about the use of 
the Welsh language in the community and outside 
the classroom with many mentioning organisations 
such as the Young Farmers' Club due to the 
proposal to reorganise the Youth Service.

The following needs were also identified - for the 
Council to help the private sector to offer Welsh 
language provision, more bilingual signs and to 
ensure jobs or suitable housing to retain young 
people in the area.  One believed that the Welsh 
language is a skill to attract jobs to the area.  

There was concern that prioritising the Welsh 
language alienated non-Welsh speakers and 
tourists.

There was concern also about costs, with a number 
believing that there was no need for 
correspondence to be bilingual, rather it should be in 
the recipients' chosen language and there is no 
need for simultaneous translation if everyone is able 
to speak English. It was noted that the Council's 
staffing policy could alienate non-Welsh people and 
the Council could lose out on more 
able/experienced staff. It was believed that this was 
most likely in fields such as care. It was suggested 
that there should be an opportunity to learn Welsh 
'on the job' and also the Council should encourage, 
and not force staff to speak the language.

One person called for the correspondence from 

Page 144



schools to be bilingual rather than in Welsh only.

According to the respondents, the most important 
things about Welsh language lessons were their 
cost, their convenience (transport etc.) and their 
suitability. 

A number of comments were received about the 
Welsh language when discussing matters related to 
children, young people and families also. Most of 
those comments were against preferential treatment 
of the Welsh language. There is concern that it 
would affect standards of education and staff 
recruitment and also about the cost. It was said that 
teachers should be allowed to develop language 
skills whilst in post. On the other hand, comments 
were received about the need to develop materials 
e.g. apps, and provide free Welsh language 
lessons.

Although not referring to the Welsh language 
specifically, there are a number of comments 
relating to the need for affordable housing and 
housing for local people.

The need to use clear Welsh when communicating 
with the public was noted, especially education 
reports.  The need for to improve the standard of the 
language in correspondence etc. was also noted 
and the need to check it before sending it. The 
respondents accepted that the errors occurred 
because Welsh was the natural language.  

Disability Positive Care is a priority therefore it is expected to have a 
positive impact.  Each individual plan is expected to 
look at the impact on disability when carrying out a 
separate Equality Impact Assessment.

The responses to the engagement shows great 
support for the care workforce with many wanting 
them to have a pay increase, better working 
conditions, more training and the opportunity to 
move on in their career. There was concern about 
turnover in the workforce. There is also a demand 
for improving standards within care homes and to 
attract more young people into the field. 

Another strong message is the need to carry out 
preventative work to ensure that people do not need 
health care and to learn from good practice in other 

Page 145



areas. There was strong support for facilities such 
as libraries and leisure centres to be used as 
resources for this and that cuts in these fields would 
be a "false economy". The need for transport was 
also emphasised.

Also, the need for the Council to collaborate more, 
internally and with external organisations such as 
health and the third sector, is a strong message 
from those who have responded to the consultation.  
Support should also be given to communities and 
facilities such as health care and additional care 
homes provided in the countryside as well as the big 
towns.

The misuse of parking spaces for disabled people 
was identified. Two people were in favour of 
disabled people paying for parking, one of them a 
disabled person.  One disabled person said that 
cars parked on the pavement were a problem for 
him.  

The need for a variety of housing has been 
identified including accessible ones.

Two people were concerned that they did not reach 
the criteria for care despite being disabled.  

It was noted that disabled people and people with 
health conditions are in greater need of public 
toilets.  

A number from Meirionnydd believed that the quality 
of care was not consistent across the county and 
one person asked for a centre for people with 
Alzheimer's in the region and another noted concern 
about failing to have care through the medium of 
Welsh there. One disabled person noted that it was 
not possible to get cleaners in Meirionnydd. He 
received a list from the Council but there was no 
one on it from his area. He believed that this was 
because of the need to speak Welsh.  He was 
concerned because of its effect on health needs.

Gender Positive There is one specific individual plan in this field 
namely "Consider whether more could be done 
within the Council's employment policy to promote 
the number of women who reach higher posts" 
therefore a positive impact is expected here.  
Nevertheless it is not possible to identify the impact 

Page 146



of the Plan in its entirety without completing impact 
assessments on the other individual plans.

Age Positive Age is prioritised in a number of fields therefore it is 
expected to have a positive impact on the field of 
children, young people and older people.

Each individual plan is expected to look at the 
impact on different ages when carrying out a 
separate Equality Impact Assessment.

The consultation demonstrated support for work in 
the field of Children, Young People and Families, 
especially early support and intervention, 
strengthening education and providing young people 
with training to enable them to get jobs.  There was 
concern that the emphasis on the Welsh language 
affected recruitment and the quality of education 
within the schools. The importance of Additional 
Learning Needs provision was noted. Several 
expressed that they did not wish to see cuts in the 
field of children's care. One person said that it was 
important to support young people after they left 
care.

There is concern that we are losing talented young 
people.  Seasonal tourist jobs do not keep young 
people in the area. The lack of hope and aspiration 
is a problem for young people in Meirionnydd 
according to one person. Young people need work 
to pay for housing.

The Council recognises that there will be a change 
in demography with an ageing population. The 
response to the engagement shows that people are 
concerned about future provision e.g. care homes, 
because of these changes. There is demand for 
people to be able to live independently in their 
communities and to support those communities to 
reduce the need for care. One respondent wants 
apprenticeships for older people not just young 
people and another notes the fact that older people 
need to park in spaces nearer to the town centre.

There is also demand for nurturing a good 
relationship between the generations, with the Hen 
Blant Bach television programme being mentioned.  
One person proposed that lonely older people 
should be paired with homeless young people.

Page 147



It was identified that cars parking on the pavement 
is a problem for older people and families with 
young children in prams.

A cohort of people who do not necessarily receive 
much attention when preparing Equality Impact 
Assessments are working age people, however the 
Equality Act 2010 protects the rights of people of all 
ages.  The comments about jobs etc. apply to this 
age. There was strong support to creating and 
retaining jobs in Gwynedd and improving the 
infrastructure to achieve this. There were also 
messages about improving residents' skills, 
attracting big companies, not being too reliant on 
tourism and supporting developments outside the 
county.  The lack of public transport at the right time 
could also create problems for people who want to 
work.

The need for a greater variety of housing has been 
identified with the needs of young people and older 
people being highlingted.  Nevertheless, we should 
not forget the needs of people of other ages, with 
the demand for affordable housing and housing for 
local people.  There were also comments about 
housing being close to work opportunities and public 
transport links, having less stringent planning 
regulations in the countryside, looking at empty 
housing and the need for social housing.  One 
person felt that the problem was that the homes 
were not available in the right places for young 
families (i.e. in towns close to schools and shops).

A number of people identified the importance of 
libraries and leisure centres for children, young 
people and older people for socialising, health and 
somewhere to go, away from the streets. The need 
for provision for young people was also noted e.g. 
youth clubs, Young Farmers' Club.

Sexual 
orientation

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic. The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

Religion or 
belief (or lack of 
belief) 

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic. The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

Page 148



One person said that there was no room for religion 
within education.

Gender 
reassignment

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic. The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

Pregnancy and 
maternity

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic. The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

Marriage and 
civil partnership

None 
identified

There are no individual plans that involve this 
characteristic. The Equality Impact Assessments on 
the individual plans will need to identify any issues 
to consider.

3.2 Does the Plan answer these General Duties? The Council must give due 
regard to these duties.

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act

Does the 
policy have 
an impact?

In what way?  What is the evidence?

Remove illegal 
discrimination, 
harassment 
and 
victimisation

Yes The priorities and the individual plans should have 
an impact on the duty. The Equality Impact 
Assessments on the individual plans will need to 
identify any matters to consider.

Promoting 
equal 
opportunities

Yes The priorities and the individual plans should have 
an impact on the duty. The Equality Impact 
Assessments on the individual plans will need to 
identify any issues to consider. As one respondent 
noted, it is important to remember the equality 
features of individuals when providing services, 
especially in the care field.

Encouraging 
good 
relationships

Yes The priorities and the individual plans should have 
an impact on the duty.  The Equality Impact 
Assessments on the individual plans will need to 
identify any issues to consider.

Page 149



4) Analysing the results 

4.1 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or the General Duties and what is the 
reason for this? 

It appears that the priorities should have a significant, positive impact on at least some 
of the equality characteristics.  We will only be able to ascertain the full impact once the 
assessments on the individual plans are completed. 

4.2 Is the Plan therefore likely to have a substantial, negative impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or General Duties and what is the reason 
for this? 

No substantial, negative impact have been identified with the Plan as a whole but will 
only we be able to ascertain the full impact once the assessment on the individual 
plans are completed.

4.3 What should be done? 

Select one of the following: 

Continue with the plan as it is robust X

Adapt the plan to remove any barriers 

Suspend and abolish the plan as the detrimental impacts are too large

Continue with the plan as any detrimental impact can be justified 

4.4 What steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts?

There will be a need to undertake an assessment of the individual plans to identify any 
negative impacts and to identify the steps needed to mitigate them.

4.5     If you do not take further action to remove or reduce negative impacts, 
explain why here. 

Page 150



This will be addressed in the Equality Impact Assessments on the individual plans.

5) Monitoring

5.1     What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 
plan (action plan)?

The individual departments will be responsible for implementing the individual plans 
within the Plan. The Gwynedd Council Plan Project Board will support and monitor 
progress in order to ensure compliance that will include looking at the individual 
Equality Impact Assessments.

Page 151



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:

01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

REPORT TO THE CABINET

Date of Meeting: 19.02.19

Cabinet Member: Cllr W Gareth Roberts & Cllr Dilwyn Morgan

Author: Morwena Edwards, Corporate Director

Contact Telephone 
Number:

Ext 32468

Title of Item: North Wales Carers Strategy

1. Background

1.1 The introduction of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 has 
ensured more rights for carers and has simplified and consolidated the legislation, 
giving them equal rights, for the first time, alongside the individual they are caring 
for. 

1.2 The North Wales Regional Partnership Board recognises the key role that carers 
play in the health and social care environment, and that they need to be 
appreciated for the support they provide.

1.3 In response to this, over the past year, the partnership has drawn up a strategy that 
recognises the importance of working in partnership with carers of all ages through 
their contact with services, and that notes the 'offer' that carers should expect.

Page 152

Agenda Item 7

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


2 Why is a Decision needed?

2.1 The strategy has been created regionally, and needs to be adopted locally.

3. What is the Decision sought?

3.1 Members are asked to consider and accept the Carers' Strategy and ensure that 
suitable arrangements are in place to monitor the Council's performance against 
the measures within the strategy.

4. What is the background and relevant considerations?

4.1 The North Wales Regional Partnership Board has prioritised carers to ensure that we 
as a region provide them the requirements that are within the Social Services and 
Well-being Act (Wales) 2014. This involves the services people receive as individual 
carers, along with the services provided to carers by working in partnerships. 

4.2 The Act defines carers as unpaid carers of all ages and backgrounds (including 
young carers) who care for a relative or friend who is sick, weak or disabled, who 
is unable to cope at home without the practical or emotional support of the 
unpaid carer.

4.3 The Strategy emphasises the need for partners to focus on looking through the eyes 
of carers in order to understand what matters to them and what would contribute 
to their welfare and improve their circumstances. When drawing up the strategy, 
partners have talked to carers about what helps them to be carers, to continue to 
be carers and to live life the way they want to live it.

4.4 The Strategy also emphasises the need for partners to work with carers when 
designing sustainable services that will contribute towards keeping carers healthy. 
These services will be an essential part of the infrastructure of health, social care 
and well-being.  

4.5 The vision for carers' services in North Wales is to:

 Think about carers
 Include carers of all ages and communities in decision-making processes and 

planning
 Work in partnership to design and co-produce services around the carer.

4.6 The vision for carers' services in North Wales has led to the development and co-
production of an 'Offer' for carers in North Wales, which includes service standards 
that partners are committing to deliver, namely:

 Promote general awareness of carers and caring to the wider population and to 
the relevant staff in the health and care sector.

 Think about carers when commissioning and assessing needs, with attention to the 
rural nature and those who are the furthest away from services for other reasons

 Include carers of all ages and communities in decision-making processes and 
planning

 Identify carers early on at the first point of contact with services.

5. Matters to be Noted

Page 153



5.1 There is increasing demand to strengthen the role that individuals and the 
community plays, by providing a voice and control in health and care and 
ensuring that people of all ages and from all communities are equally involved and 
are an integral part of one of the Council's improvement schemes, namely 
'Community Resilience'.  The programme endeavours to ensure that individuals 
can remain and continue to live within their communities and continue to live 
independently within their communities. A key part of this is the function of the third 
sector and the huge contribution made by carers.  The strategy is in-keeping with 
our vision that a range of preventative services are available within our 
communities. Committing to the strategy will enable us to better support and care 
for carers and, in doing so, avoid problems in the first instance.

5.2 The strategy responds to the inconsistency that currently exists in the 'offer' that is 
available to carers and is in-keeping with Gwynedd Council's vision for care and 
health services and that carers are an integral part of effective care, and are a full 
partner when planning care for individuals. Implementing the strategy would also 
ensure service consistency across the region which will be clearer for employees 
and all partners including providers and carers.

5.3 Main success measures have been included in the strategy which will offer us an 
opportunity to identify good practice and highlight any concerns and barriers. 
There will be a need to ensure that these measures are addressed within our 
relevant performance challenge meetings and also within the local Carers 
Partnership.

6. Any Consultations Undertaken prior to Recommending the Decision.

6.1. Views of the Statutory Officers:

i. Monitoring Officer:
As explained in the report this important Strategy has been prepared and is 
proposed through the North Wales Regional Partnership Board. I have no 
comments to add in relation to propriety.

ii. Head of Finance Department:
Confirmation was received from the author that the decision sought here would 
not create any additional financial commitment. Consequently, I support 
implementation of the Strategy.

6.2. Views of the Local Member:

6.2.1 Not a local matter.

6.3. Results of Any Consultation:

6.3.1 None to note.

Appendices:

Page 154



Appendix 1 North Wales Carers Strategy

Page 155



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 1 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

North Wales Carers’ Strategy 
- A strategy for carers of all ages 

June 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Wales Regional Partnership Board 
Project leads:  Morwena Edwards 

Bethan Jones Edwards 
Ffion Johnstone 

Page 156



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 2 

 

 

 
 
 

North Wales Carers’ Strategy 
- a strategy for carers of all ages 

June 2018 

Introduction 
The North Wales Regional Partnership Board recognises the key role that carers of all 
ages have in the health and social care environment and that they need to be valued 
for the support they provide. The partnership also recognises that they need to be 
supported in this vital role. This strategy acknowledges the importance of working in 
partnership with carers throughout their contact with services and is based on the 
principles of the Triangle of Care model developed originally as a guide to best practice 
in mental health care in England. 

 
This is also in line with the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA) 
which legislates for enhanced rights for carers of all ages and simplifies and 
consolidates the law, giving them for the first time equivalent rights to the person they 
care for. The act also gives carers the absolute right to choose whether and to what 
extent they are or remain carers. Carers have the right to say no to taking on a carer’s 
role as well as a right not to continue in their role as carer, and to be supported in this. 

 
When referring to carers, we mean unpaid carers of all ages (including young carers 
and young adult carers) and background who look after a relative or friend who is ill, 
frail or is a disabled person, who cannot manage to live at home without the carer’s 
practical or emotional unpaid support. Whilst acknowledging that carers will have 
different responsibilities, such as carers of people with long term conditions, carers of 
people with dementia, carers of individuals with mental health problems or carers of 
substance misusers, it is acknowledged that a carer’s needs are unique to the 
individual and can differ substantially from the needs of the person cared for. 

 
The Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 defines a carer as a person who 
provides or intends to provide care for an adult or child. This definition includes carers 
of all ages. 

 
Young carers are defined as carers who are under the age of 18, and young adult 
carers as being aged 16-25. 

Page 157



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 3 

 

 

Carers often do not see themselves as carers. They will describe themselves as a 
parent, husband, wife, partner, son, daughter, brother, sister, friend or neighbour, but 
not as a carer. 

 
A parent carer is a parent or guardian who has additional duties and responsibilities 
towards his/her child because his/her child has an illness or disability. Parent carers 
will often see themselves as parents rather than carers, but they may require additional 
services in order to meet or continue to meet the needs of their child. 

 
Carers of all ages in North Wales currently benefit from a range of services including 
information, advice and support. These services include one to one support, support 
groups, forums, cafes, emotional support, counselling, training, therapies, benefits 
advice, carer breaks, peer support, activities, advocacy, support for carers of people 
with long term conditions as well as direct payments, support budgets and one off 
grants. Carers are also supported by third sector organisations to access life-long 
learning, employment and volunteering opportunities. Carers services also provide 
carer awareness training for professionals, e.g. student nurses, social work staff and 
GPs and are able to attract sources of external funding to support the work that they 
do. 

 
Whilst there is quantitative data available on services available for carers, this report 
focuses on looking through the eyes of carers to understand what matters to them and 
what will contribute to the well-being and improving their circumstances. Partners 
have talked to carers of all ages about what helps them to be a carer, to continue being 
a carer and to live their life the way they want to. 

 
The scope of this work has included: 

1. Understanding where we are at and what success looks like. 
2. Understanding our priorities should be in terms of getting there. 
3. Being clear on funding and the sustainability of services for the future. 
4. Understanding added value of working together regionally as well as 

collaboratively. 
 

It has not included an evaluation of current services, nor has it undertaken a cost 
benefit analysis or a return on investment assessment of those services that are 
currently delivered. 

 
Carers of all ages have told us that good quality reliable support for the person cared 
for is of paramount importance and contributes to their well-being as carers. They’ve 
also said that they really value the range of support provided by third sector 
organisations. Importantly also, they’ve said that they appreciate being listened to, 
being recognised, respected and heard by people responsible for designing and 
providing services for them and the person they care for. 

 
This has enabled us to work together as partners to produce our vision for carers’ 
services in North Wales which is to: 

o Think carer 

Page 158



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 4 

 

 

o Involve carers of all groups and communities in decision-making and 
planning 

o Work in partnership to design and co-produce services around the carer 
 

Partners’ vision for carers’ services in North Wales has led to the development and 
co-production of the offer for carers in North Wales which incorporates standards of 
service that partners are committed to achieving. 

Page 159



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 5 

 

 

North Wales Carers’ Strategy - Summary 
The offer for carers in North Wales 
Partners’ vision for carers’ services in North Wales has led to the development and 
co-production of the offer for carers in North Wales by the following groups: 

 
• North Wales Carers’ Strategic Group 
• North Wales Carers’ Operational Group 
• North Wales Young Carers’ Operational Group 
• Carers Reference Group 

 
Personal well-being outcomes for carers 
Partners want to achieve the following personal well-being outcomes for all carers in 
North Wales, with the needs of the carer depending on the needs of the person 
cared for: 

 
• That individual carers’ needs, including language needs are met in the best way 
• That carers come to mind as soon as the person cared for 

In doing this, we also want to make sure that: 

• We provide services that are consistent 
• There is added value by working collaboratively 
• Services and funding are not duplicated 
• We adhere to best practice 

To achieve this, partners will commit to: 

• Promote general awareness of carers and caring to the wider population and 
to all relevant staff in the health and care sector 

• Think carer in commissioning and assessing needs, with attention to rurality 
and those furthest from services for other reasons 

• Involve carers of all groups and communities in decision-making and planning 
processes 

• The early identification of carers at first contact with services 
 

Also, as employers, partners will: 
• Identify carers in the organisation 
• Adopt a carer friendly infrastructure 
• Commit to equitable provision for carers 
• Provide opportunities to hear the voice of carers in the workplace 
• Allow flexible working practices, where reasonable and practicable 

 
Standards of service 
The following standards were adopted from the Triangle of Care and are particularly 
relevant to local authorities and BCUHB. Partners agreed these standards provide a 

Page 160



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 6 

 

 

strong base on which to develop services, with and for carer, across the region. 
• Carers’ views and knowledge are sought, shared, used and regularly updated 

as overall care plans and strategies are co-produced 
o Staff are carer aware and trained in carer engagement strategies from 

the outset 
o Staff need to be aware of and welcome the valuable contribution carers 

can make and be mindful of carers’ own needs 
• Staff need knowledge, training and support to become carer aware 

o A carer focused introduction to the service and staff are available, with 
a relevant range of information across the care pathway 

• Carers and the essential role they play are identified at first contact or as soon 
as possible thereafter 

• Policy and practice protocols on confidentiality and sharing information are in 
place 

• Defined post(s) responsible for carers are in place (carers leads) 
• A range of carer support services is available 

 
These standards will have implications for all partners when services for carers are 
commissioned and delivered: 

• Local, sub-regional and regional commissioning: 
o agencies designed to give carers a voice in local decision-making and 

make sure that all services in the area become more carer-aware and 
carer-friendly 

o services with carer expertise able to raise the carer awareness of all 
agencies in an area 

o services designed to find carers and help them to identify their needs 
and entitlements 

o support services for carers with particular support needs and/or 
entitlements 

• Ready access to information and advice (and where appropriate formal 
advocacy) services tailored to the needs of carers in different life stages (e.g. 
young carers, parent carers, carers of adults), circumstances and conditions, 
and stages of the caring journey 

• Access to training on the new skills carers may need when they begin or adapt 
to their new caring role and to peer support when appropriate 

• The right to an assessment (what matters conversation) as a carer in your own 
right: 

o to develop a general care and support plan 
o signpost to appropriate services; and 
o determine eligibility for support to them to care 

• For eligible carers: 
o A support plan centred on personal well-being outcomes they have 

identified themselves. 
o It will set out the support to help them achieve the personal well-being 

outcomes identified. 
o Support plans will be subject to regular reviews by local authorities, and 

re-assessment of needs if their circumstances change. 

Page 161



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 7 

 

 

 

In accordance with the standards agreed, the following headline plan outlines the actions and lead responsibility for implementation. 
 

No Standards Action Regional responsibility 
for action 

Local 
responsibility 

1. Engagement with carers 
and carers voice 

Carers views and knowledge are sought, 
shared, used and regularly updated as 
overall care plans and strategies take 
shape. 

NWCSG All partners 

Agencies designed to give carers a voice in 
local decision making and make sure all 
services in the area become more carer- 
aware and carer-friendly 

NWCSG All partners 

2. Induction and training for 
carers and staff 

A carer focused introduction to the service 
and staff are available, with a relevant 
range of information across the care 
pathway 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

Staff are trained in carer awareness and 
engagement strategies. 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

Carers need access to training on the new 
skills they may need when they begin or 
adapt to their new caring role and to peer 
support when appropriate 

NWCOG/NWYCOG All partners 

3. Assessment and support 
for all carers 

Carers to be part of an assessment (what 
matters) conversation in their own right 

NWCOG/NWYCOG Local authorities 

A support plan centred on personal well- 
being outcomes they have identified 
themselves to achieve the personal well- 
being outcomes identified and subject to 
regular reviews and re-assessment of 
needs if circumstances change 

NWCOG/NWYCOG Local authorities 
working with 
partners 

Ready access to information, advice and 
peer support (and where appropriate formal 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

P
age 162



North Wales Carers Strategy - Summary 8 

 

 

 
No Standards Action Regional responsibility 

for action 
Local 
responsibility 

  advocacy) services tailored to the needs of 
carers in different life stages, circumstances 
and conditions and stages of the caring 
journey 

  

A range of flexible carer breaks is available NWCSG Local authorities 
working with 
partners 

Specialist advocacy, including for 
Continuing Health Care and for young 
carers 

NWCSG Local authorities, 
BCUHB working 
with partners 

4. Policy and practice 
protocols 

Policy and practice protocols on 
confidentiality and sharing information are 
in place. 

NWCSG All partners 

5. Adopt employer standards • Identifying carers in the organisation 
• Adopting a carer friendly infrastructure 
• Committing to equitable provision for 

carers 
• Providing opportunities to hear the voice 

of carers in the workplace 
• Allow flexible working practices, where 

reasonable and practicable 

NWCOG All partners 

6. Carer leads Defined posts responsible for carers are in 
place 

Local authorities, BCUHB  

7. Develop success 
measures and data 
collection arrangements 

Performance measures agreed NWCSG All partners 

Data collection arrangements agreed and 
underway 

NWCOG/NWYCOG All partners 

P
age 163



 

 

Noted below are the proposed headline success measures as agreed by 
partners. These will be collated by the NWCOG and progress monitored by the 
NWCSG to improve services and inform future planning. Two of the measures 
are the same as those in the Welsh Government Outcomes Measures 
Framework, with the others considered to be important to measure the progress 
of our strategy in North Wales. These success measures place a strong focus 
on improving the life circumstances of carers, listening to their views and 
involving them in the design of services. 

 
• Carers of all ages report satisfaction with the assessments and personalised 

support they receive, have access to the services they need and have an 
understanding of their rights under the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) 
Act. 

• Social workers and other care practitioners can evidence that they are applying 
the well-being principle in all their adult social care decisions. 

• The number of assessments in 2018 has increased in line with the Regional 
Partnership’s own estimate. 

• Carers reporting they felt involved in designing the care and support plan for 
the person that they care for (Welsh Government, 2015) 

• Carers reporting they feel supported to continue in their caring role 
• If a carer is facing a crisis, they know how to access a rapid response service 

to assess and respond to their need. 
 

Taken together, the vision, standards and delivery by partners of good quality services 
for carers of all ages in North Wales will contribute to improving their circumstances 
and well-being. 

Page 164



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

North Wales Regional Partnership Board 
Project leads:  Morwena Edwards 

Bethan Jones Edwards 
Ffion Johnstone 

 
 
 
 
 

North Wales Carers’ Strategy 
- A strategy for carers of all ages 

June 2018 

Page 165



1 

 

 

 
 
 

North Wales Carers’ Strategy 
June 2018 

1.0 Context and background 
Carers of all ages have a key role in the health and social care environment; the 
North Wales Regional Partnership Board places great value on this and also 
recognises that it needs to act to ensure that carers are well supported in all 
circumstances. This strategy acknowledges the importance of working in 
partnership with carers throughout their contact with services and is based on 
the principles of the Triangle of Care model developed originally as a guide to 
best practice in mental health care in England. 

 
When referring to carers, we mean unpaid carers of all ages (including young 
carers and young adult carers) and background who look after a relative or friend 
who is ill, frail or is a disabled person, who cannot manage to live at home without 
the carer’s practical or emotional unpaid support. Whilst acknowledging that 
carers will have different responsibilities, such as carers of people with long term 
conditions, carers of people with dementia, carers of individuals with mental 
health problems or carers of substance misusers, it is acknowledged that a 
carer’s needs are unique to the individual and can differ substantially from the 
needs of the person cared for. 

 
2.0 The Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 

The importance of supporting carers is also aligned with the Social Services and 
Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA) which legislates for enhanced rights for 
carers of all ages and simplifies and consolidates the law, giving them for the first 
time equivalent rights to the person they care for. The act also gives carers the 
absolute right to choose whether and to what extent they are or remain carers. 
The Act re-defines the responsibility of individuals and families for maintaining 
their own health and wellbeing, and requires a change in culture that provides a 
greater focus on promoting resilience, independence, self-care and community 
support. The Act recognises that carers have a key role in the preventative 
service approach and local authorities should therefore help ensure that carers 
are able to live their own lives as independently as possible. Carers have the 
right to say no to taking on a carer’s role as well as a right not to continue in their 
role as carer and to be supported in this. These requirements are stated both in 
Part 9 of the Act as well as throughout all other parts of the Act. 

Page 166



2 

 

 

The Act defines a carer as a person who provides or intends to provide care for 
an adult or child. This definition includes carers of all ages. 

 
Young carers are defined as carers who are under the age of 18, and young adult 
carers as being aged 16-25. 

 
Carers often do not see themselves as carers. They will describe themselves as 
a parent, husband, wife, partner, son, daughter, brother, sister, friend or 
neighbour, but not as a carer. 

 
A parent carer is a parent or guardian who has additional duties and 
responsibilities towards his/her child because his/her child has an illness or 
disability. Parent carers will often see themselves as parents rather than carers, 
but they may require additional services in order to meet or continue to meet the 
needs of their child. 

 
The Act: 
• Ensures that carers can access a wider range of appropriate services in a 

more flexible way, including access to comprehensive information in relation 
to all types of support and services that can be accessed without a need for 
formal assessment. 

• Creates a duty for local authorities to carry out carers’ needs assessments 
where a carer appears to have support needs. The assessment of need of 
the individual in their own right is central as well as their capacity to carry on 
caring. 

• Requires assessments to be proportionate to ensure that more energy is 
focused on delivering community-based support, and support from third 
sector organisations. 

• Requires local authorities to provide advocacy support for individuals 
including carers. This provision will include independent professional 
advocacy as well as informal advocacy. 

 
The Act also sets out a new national eligibility framework to determine whether 
assessed carers with greater support needs will meet the criteria for services as 
set out in the new framework. Carers with eligible needs will have a support 
plan centered on personal well-being outcomes they have identified themselves. 
It will also set out the support to help them achieve the personal well-being 
outcomes identified. Support plans will be subject to regular reviews by local 
authorities, and re-assessment of needs if their circumstances change. 

 
3.0 National priorities 

On 24 November 2017, Carers Rights Day, the Minister for Children and Social 
Care announced an allocation of £1m in 2018-19 for health boards and trusts to 
work collaboratively with all partners to enhance the lives of carers in line with 
the national priorities, which are: 

 
• Supporting life alongside caring – all carers must have reasonable breaks from 

Page 167



3 

 

 

their caring role to enable them to maintain their capacity to care, and to have 
a life beyond caring 

• Identifying and recognising carers – fundamental to the success of delivering 
improved personal well-being outcomes for carers is the need to improve 
carers’ recognition of their role and to ensure they can access the necessary 
support 

• Providing information, advice and assistance – it is important that carers receive 
the appropriate information and advice where and when they need it 

 
4.0 About carers in North Wales 

The Population Needs Assessment published on 1 April 2017 states that carers 
provide a crucial role in the provision of care and support and it is estimated that 
they provide between 75% and 95% of care, saving £7.72 billion every year in 
Wales (Yeandle and Buckner, 2015; Welsh Government 2016). 

 
The main findings from the needs assessment were that: 
• The number of carers in North Wales is increasing, particularly in north-west 

Wales 
• People aged 50 to 64 are the most likely to provide unpaid care 
• Half of all carers in North Wales are in employment: for carers in 

employment the support of their employer and colleagues is vital to helping 
them continue in their caring role 

• The increase in need for social care identified in other chapters of the 
population assessment report is likely to lead to greater numbers of people 
providing unpaid are and providing care for longer 

• There are over 1,000 young carers identified across North Wales, which is 
an increase over the past few years 

 
5.0 Priorities for carers in North Wales 

Evidence from the Population Needs Assessment, what carers have told us and 
the resource mapping considered by partners have led us to the following 
priorities. If carers are appropriately supported by society then the vast majority 
of negative consequences can be avoided proactively. Further work on these 
will be reflected in the work programmes of the partnership’s North Wales carers’ 
groups: 

 
5.1 Engagement with carers and carers’ voice 

Listening to carers and hearing their voice provides a valuable insight into their 
lives and circumstances, and demonstrates the importance of engaging with 
them. This section highlights some of the issues carers have raised to 
demonstrate how they need to influence the planning and delivery of services. 

 
The main findings from engagement activities carried out for the population 
needs assessment and from previous consultations carried out by each local 
council and health demonstrated that the needs of the carer could be supported 
by better meeting the needs of the cared for person: 

Page 168



4 

 

 

• Equipment and adaptations and assistive technology can provide valuable 
services, although issues can include training needs and waiting lists 

• Carer breaks (respite), including short-term carer breaks 
• Continuing Health Care (CHC) assessments to include short term breaks for 

carers 
• More activities for people cared-for, particularly individuals with dementia 
• Good quality reliable support for person cared for 
• Support when carer is ill, both in emergency and planned treatment 
• Reliable hospital transport that includes transport for the carer. Carers need 

equal access to transport even when the cared for person is not with them to 
enable them to collect prescriptions for example 

• Health and social care workers – having workers that can help with medication 
as well as personal care 

 
Other aspects of support specifically for carers which are valued are: 
• Accessible information and advice (preferably in one place) 
• Local information surgeries, hubs, single point of access (SPOA), talking 

points and drop-in services 
• Advocacy for the carer 
• One to one support for the carer, such as a listening ear and telephone support 

24 hours a day 
• Socialising and carer groups in local community 
• Access to leisure activities 
• Volunteering opportunities 
• Education, skills and employment 
• Recognition and respect, consultation as partners in care, including when a 

person enters long-term care 
• Better communication between all parties included in providing support for 

carers and the person cared for 
• Third sector support – carers really value the range of support provided by the 

third sector organisations 
• Support for the carer when their caring role comes to an end, including 

employment, benefit and housing issues 
 

Mapping carers journeys has told us that a single point of access to services can 
work well for carers, in enabling some carers to refer themselves to services, 
holding the initial what matters conversation, signposting carers to information 
and carer support services, and understanding the circumstances and unique 
situation of the carer. 

 
Carers’ stories demonstrate that care giving, as well as being a practical function, 
is also an emotive role, with carers reporting feelings of guilt, loneliness, anxiety, 
worry, distress, isolation, fear, frustration, difficulty in dealing with change and 
transition. These will occur at different times within the carer’s timeline of 
experience, and each carer will require bespoke support. 

Page 169



5 

 

 

The main themes arising from carers’ stories and case studies can be 
summarised as follows: 

• The isolation of the caring role 
• Stress experienced by carers of all ages 
• The value carers of all ages place on the support of third sector organisations 

and local authorities 
• The impact of the person cared for’s well-being on the carer’s well-being 
• Carers’ need for breaks 
• Carers’ need for information 
• The need to be employed, or to return to employment 
• Rural issues 

 
The things that matter to young carers are often the same things that would 
matter to any young person. Their situation as a young carer however can at 
times have an effect on the way that they live their lives, and opportunities that 
are taken for granted by young people without caring responsibilities can be 
difficult to access for young carers. Findings from the consultation and 
engagement with young carers as part of the North Wales Population Needs 
Assessment found that areas that young carers found challenging were: 
concentrating, communicating, being confident and making friends. 

 
In addition to this, young carers have told us that the health and well-being of the 
person for whom they are caring is important to them, e.g. not wanting their 
parent to start drinking again. Also important for young carers is acceptance both 
by their peer group and by teachers. Whilst what people think of them can be 
important for many young people, the impact that their caring responsibilities can 
have on their lives mean that this issue is sometimes heightened for young 
carers, e.g. attitudes that people might have towards them because of them not 
being able to join in social activities, or not being able to complete homework. 
One young carer said that whilst other young people messed around in class, 
that he strived to get all his work done at school as he wouldn’t be able to do so 
at home. 

 
“If my mum got better. If I had better memory. If I was faster at doing work. If I 
could see my friends out of school more often.” Young carer, Anglesey. 

 
Young carers’ ability to concentrate amidst other responsibilities and concerns is 
an issue, e.g. whilst the person for whom they are caring is ill. Also, the need to 
talk to others about their problems and feelings, e.g. family, friends, neighbours, 
other young carers as well as professionals in the public and third sector. 

 
Play and recreation facilities have also been voiced by young carers as 
important. In the same way as young people without caring responsibilities, 
young carers enjoy contributing to the development of services, and are looking 
for a positive attitude and an openness to new ideas from community leaders to 
support them to do this. 

Page 170



6 

 

 

Parent carers report that they often have to battle to ensure that their child’s 
condition is acknowledged, and also to receive attention afterwards e.g. from 
schools. This can lead to feelings of frustration and a perception that the system 
is not there to facilitate matters for them. This can also have an impact on sibling 
carers. 

 
“The pressure that is put upon me as a carer to make decisions that I am not 
always comfortable with them and if I object the feeling that I am judged.” Parent 
carer, Gwynedd. 

 
Many carers will say that they do not need support, and that if the person cared 
for’s needs are met, that they also feel that they are supported as carers. This 
highlights the importance of ensuring that the carer’s views are sought as part of 
the person cared for’s needs assessment. 

 
5.2 Induction and training 

If carers’ experiences and stories are listened to, they will provide a sound basis 
from which to deliver day to day services and support for carers. One important 
element to underpin this is staff induction and training. Supporting staff with a 
good introduction to carers’ needs, raising their awareness of carers and their 
role will contribute greatly to influencing the way that carers are treated as part 
of the culture of organisations responsible for services to carers of all ages. Good 
peer support and mentoring from more experienced members of staff and strong 
leadership will also be vital to support a carer aware culture. 

 
Carers themselves need to be supported with training on the new skills they 
may need when they begin or adapt to their new caring role or when that role 
evolves. This may involve training on caring for specific conditions, e.g. 
administering medication (young carers) dementia, moving and handling, 
interpersonal skills, financial issues, delivering personal care, as well as other 
skills to support the person cared for’s well-being. Third sector organisations 
already provide this training which is based on what carers say that they need 
and is highly valued by them. 

5.3 Assessment and support for all carers 
Local Councils have a new duty to offer an assessment to any carer where it 
appears to the local authority that a carer may have needs for support. If the 
local council determines that a carer’s needs meet the eligibility criteria then 
they must consider what could be done to meet those needs. Previously, it was 
the responsibility of the carer to request an assessment. 

 
A carer’s needs meet eligibility criteria for support if: 

a) The need arises as a result of providing care for either an adult or child 
b) The carer cannot meet the need whether 

• Alone 
• With the support of others who are willing to provide that support, or 
• With the assistance of services in the community to which the carer has 

Page 171



7 

 

 

access, and 
c) The carer is unlikely to achieve one or more of their personal well-being 

outcomes which relate to the specified outcomes in part 3 of the act 
 

The local council may now carry out a joint assessment, where an assessment 
of the cared for person and the carer is carried out at the same time if both parties 
are willing and it would be beneficial to do so. This is good practice although 
there are concerns that the assessment of the carer may be compromised by 
focussing on what the carer can and can’t do for the cared for person rather than 
looking at their desired personal well-being outcomes in their own right. 

 
The carer’s element of the assessment needs to focus on ‘what matters’ to the 
carer and the carer’s needs in their own right, for example, their employment, 
education and training needs. 

 
The local council must involve the carer in the assessment and include: 
• The extent to which the carer is willing to provide the care and to continue to 

provide the care 
• The personal well-being outcomes the carer wishes to achieve 

 
An assessment of a carer must also have regard to whether the carer wishes to 
work and whether they are participating or wish to participate in education, 
training or leisure activities. 

 
Carers will need to be very clear about what they can and can’t do and any 
differences between their expectations and that of the person cared for. The 
people carrying out the assessments will need to be skilled in drawing out this 
information. The act says carers need to be asked what they can do, so this will 
need to be monitored to make sure it happens in practice and is included in the 
assessment. It is important that the individual feels that they are an equal partner 
in their relationship with professionals. 

 
With regard to young carers, the Code of Practice relating to the act includes a 
range of examples relating to young carers including: 
• The child is unlikely to achieve development goals 
• The individual is/will be unable to access and engage in work, training, 

education, volunteering or recreational activities 
 

In assessing, the council must have regard to the importance of promoting the 
upbringing of the child by the child’s family, in so far as doing so is consistent 
with promoting the well-being of the child. 

 
Where the carer is a child the council must have regard to his or her 
developmental needs and the extent to which it is appropriate for the child to 
provide the care. This should lead to consideration by the council of whether a 
child carer is actually a child with care and support needs in his or her own right. 

 
Providers of support services for young carers report that short term funding, lack 
of resources for transport, money for trips places constraints on the support and 
breaks that they can offer young carers. Ensuring that young carers are provided 

Page 172



8 

 

 

with support according to their age-related needs is also a challenge. 
 

The act sets out a new national ‘eligibility framework’ to determine whether or not 
a carer who has been assessed and who has support needs will meet the criteria 
for service. Carers with eligible needs will have a support plan centered on 
personal well-being outcomes they have identified themselves. It will also set 
out the support to help them achieve the personal well-being outcomes identified. 
Support plans will be subject to regular reviews by local councils, and re- 
assessment of their needs if circumstances change. 

 
5.4 Information, advice and assistance 

The Population Needs Assessment engagement demonstrated that accessible 
information and advice (preferably in one place) matter to carers as well as local 
information surgeries, hubs, talking points and drop-in services. 

 
Evidence from carers’ stories and ‘what matters’ conversations suggests that 
many carers are unaware of their rights and also unaware of the information and 
support services that are available to them. 

 
“The family never accessed any statutory services and she was never aware of 
any services to support Carers. Her main contact was always with the GP but 
he never informed her of any services available to her, or her right to a Carer 
Assessment.” Case Study, Denbighshire. 

 
Lack of information on financial issues can also lead to carer anxiety: 
“Mr A was not in receipt of any benefits and was not aware that he could claim 
Carers Allowance. He didn’t know of the support available to Carers in 
Denbighshire.” Case Study, Denbighshire. 

 
A parent of a child with Down’s Syndrome told us that she had not received 
sufficient information: 
“When looking back at the early period I did not receive information about 
organisations such as “Down Syndrome Association” or the Carers Outreach 
Service which could have been of assistance for me as a parent.” Parent Carer’s 
Story, Gwynedd. 

 
Young carers also need information, which sometimes needs to come from 
people they know: 
“Would like to be told more about brother’s condition.” 
“Would like support from an autism charity – want a better understanding of the 
condition.” Young carer, Anglesey 

 
Carer breaks have traditionally been referred to as ‘respite’, and it is worth noting 
at the outset that there is no real national definition for ‘respite’. The term has 
also been associated with respite from something that is a burden. For the 
purpose of this strategy, the term ‘carer breaks’ will be used. 

Page 173



9 

 

 

Local authorities and BCUHB invest significantly in carers’ services that provide 
short term breaks in the form of sitting services and/or replacement care. 
Although there are services delivered to the cared for person, they are 
sometimes regarded as carers’ services. Some third sector organisations also 
draw in external funding for these types of services. 

 
The population needs assessment identified insufficient range, availability and 
flexibility of respite and short breaks for carers. 

 
This is supported by the resource mapping which tells us that carer break 
services are provided in the field of older people, learning disability and mental 
health. In older people’s and learning disability services the carer break is 
delivered in the form of a sitting service or replacement care. In mental health 
services, the service offers a mental break, support and skills development for 
the carer. However, following discussions by partners at the workshop, the 
amount invested of £1.25m depicted in the resource mapping is not thought to 
be an accurate reflection of carer breaks. The resource mapping encountered 
challenges as: 

 
• All carer breaks could not be identified, as monies paid to independent 

domiciliary care providers could not be separated out 
• Differentiating between a break for the carer and the person cared for was 

not a simple task 
• Whether the carer break provides the carer with a complete break or not, 

e.g. are they using their time to catch up on household chores 
• Carer breaks in all service areas may not be accurately reflected 

 
The main message that carers are telling us is that the break they need from 
caring is in response to their needs, situation and home environment. They want 
to be listened to, and each carer will have different needs. They do not 
appreciate being told what service can be provided to them, do not necessarily 
need a regular carer break service which sometimes causes overprescribing of 
services, leading to wastage. 

 
In a situation where in-home respite is being provided, carers have told us that it 
is important that the person cared for is familiar with the individual providing the 
care, otherwise it may not be worthwhile. In situations where the individual 
providing the sitting service is on holiday, the person cared for or carer may 
decide to delay the arrangement until the individual who usually provides the 
carer break is available. Consistency and continuity of service is therefore of 
paramount importance to both the carer and person cared for. 

 
Continuing Health Care (CHC) is a sensitive area in terms of carer breaks. 
Carers have told us that when an individual becomes eligible for CHC funding, 
then this can lead to changes in the support that both the carer and person cared 
for can expect to receive. For example, BCUHB will be contracting with different 

Page 174



10 

 

 

providers to those providing care through local authority commissioning 
arrangements, therefore resulting in a change in the care giver. 

 
If the person cared for is CHC funded, the health service recognises that carers 
need a break and places value on the support that the carer offers in meeting the 
person cared for’s needs. The health service recognises its duty to meet all of 
the person cared for’s needs, particularly in the absence of the carer being able 
to care for them. This could involve the care co-ordinator developing an 
application for ‘additional funding’. 

 
It is also important that carer breaks can be provided on a flexible and short 
notice basis in order for the carer to continue to live their lives the way they want 
to, e.g. joining social gatherings at short notice, and not having to make 
arrangements too long before hand. 

 
Voucher schemes are in operation in some areas of North Wales to facilitate 
flexibility for carers. Eligible carers, upon completion of a carer’s needs 
assessment, are provided with a time-limited voucher for flexible short-term 
breaks. Whilst the development of innovative flexible schemes such as this is 
positive, it is important also that regular evaluations are carried out to ensure that 
lessons are learnt. 

 
Young carers would like to spend time apart from the person they care for doing 
the actitivies that they enjoy with their peers, e.g. activities in leisure centres, 
making use of local amenities such as parks, cycle pathways, and participating 
in sports. 

 
Carers living in rural areas wish to receive the same level of service as carers 
living in towns. 

 
Carers report that living in rural areas creates problems for them in terms of: 

• Accessing support or carer breaks 
• Travel time being taken out of the time allocated for direct service 
• Isolation 

 
“There are no learning disability facilities, support group activities for my 
daughter to attend in Llangollen although there appears to be far more in 
Denbigh and some in Ruthin, but she is unable to get transport to these 
places.” Carer, Denbighshire 

 
Some carers want to receive services in Welsh, in the language of their choice. 
Consultation and engagement as part of the Population Needs Assessment 
highlighted the importance of care and support services being available in Welsh. 
Services should ensure Welsh language services are built into service planning 
and delivery and that services are offered in Welsh to Welsh speakers without 
them having to request it. Although information from the service mapping 
exercise suggests that services are available in both Welsh and English for 
carers, it is unclear whether services reach the ‘More than just words’ standards, 

Page 175



11 

 

 

whether they are instantly available or whether arrangements need to be made 
before hand to arrange the services. 

 
5.5 Policy and practice 

Partners need to ensure that standard policy and practice protocols are in place 
with relation to confidentiality and the sharing of information. The piloting of the 
Triangle of Care model in mental health rehabilitation services within BCUHB has 
enabled discussions to take place around consent and confidentiality when 
working with carers. 

 
Staff recognise the importance of carer inclusion but admit that they struggle 
when there is no consent from the cared for or consent fluctuates depending on 
situation or mood. Guiding principles endorsed by the Triangle of Care Lead for 
England, as well as the BCUHB Carers Lead Officer are that staff: 

1. Talk about what they are aware of. 
2. Provide carers with non-sensitive information in a form which helps the carer 

to understand. For example: condition specific information, or information 
around medicines management. 

3. Signpost carers to sources of information and support. 
4. You can receive third part information from carers. 
5. Tell carers information for themselves. 
6. Carers are entitled to confidentiality for themselves. 

 
Staff have welcomed these guiding principles and also welcome bespoke training 
on carers and confidentiality. 

5.6 Employer standards 
All partners involved in the design and delivery of carers services in North Wales 
will want to ensure that their organisations commit to the following: 

 
• Identifying carers in the organisation 
• Adopting a carer friendly infrastructure 
• Committing to equitable provision for carers 
• Providing opportunities to hear the voice of carers in the workplace 
• Allow flexible working practices, where reasonable and practicable 

 
5.7 Carer Leads 

Carer lead posts in the North Wales six local authorities and in BCUHB are of 
significant importance particularly with regard to developing and promoting 
carers services locally, working with community teams to engage with carers and 
understanding what matters locally, collating and analysing data, understanding 
service needs and identifying gaps in services. These officers can also facilitate 
teams to develop and pilot new models of working with carers, as well as 
providing training. They will also support corporate leads to ensure that employer 
standards are met. Carers leads will also be working with their local carers 

Page 176



12 

 

 

partnership to implement the carers offer as well as working regionally to design 
services and contribute to learning and improvement work nationally. 

 
Where the carer lead officer is not also the lead officer for young carers, the 
organisation will need to be clear how the development and promotion of carers 
services happens in children’s services. 

 
These posts can influence and impact the perception of carers within 
organisations and facilitate working towards ‘think carer’ and raising carer 
awareness. 

 
6.0 How services for carers are currently funded 

Funding for carers services have been unstructured, with allocations for carer 
breaks accounted for, for example, in core budgets. The Carers’ Transitional 
Grant received by BCUHB from Welsh Government to manage the transition 
from the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010 (Carers Measure) to the 
SSWBA has been allocated on a short term annual basis. 

 
On 24 November 2017, Carers Rights Day, the Minister for Children and Social 
Care announced an allocation of £1m in 2018-19 for health boards and trusts to 
work collaboratively with all partners to enhance the lives of cares in line with the 
national priorities. A decision was taken by the Regional Partnership Board on 
the expenditure of the grant following consideration to the carers’ work stream 
and the offer for carers in North Wales. 

 
Local authorities have received an allocation for respite (carer breaks) for carers 
of all ages during 2018-19 through their Revenue Support Grant (RSG), and 
Integrated Care Fund (ICF) guidance refers to the national priorities for carers. 

 
The resource mapping demonstrates that funding is received from a variety of 
sources: 
• Local authority 
• Third sector 
• Welsh Government 
• Health Board 
• Chargeable services 

 
The resource mapping also reflects the unsustainability of funding with providers 
not knowing whether funding streams will be available from one year to the next, 
creating uncertainty amongst the workforce and staff turnover, which in turn 
affects the continuity of service to the carers. The mapping also tells us that third 
sector providers have been successful in attracting external sources of funding 
as well as sponsorship. 

 
Providers have reported on the inefficiency of preparing more than one 
performance report for the same commissioner, as well as having to report on 
management data, rather than focusing on the real personal well-being 
outcomes for carers. 

Page 177



13 

 

 

Providers also mentioned the need for security for a skilled and specialist 
workforce in the field. This would then support what is agreed as part of the 
carers offer relating to being carer aware. Providers report that 3+2=5 years 
contracts are valued and provide stability for the service as well as an opportunity 
to plan and develop services for the future. 

 
Whilst Direct Payments provide a personalised form for individuals to access 
services. take up by carers is understood to be low. The effective delivery of 
Direct Payments services is essential to the implementation of the Social 
Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

The explanatory memorandum to the regulations that accompany the Act1 

underlines this: 

“Direct Payments are crucial to achieving the Welsh Government’s aim of 
improving the well-being of people who need care and support to achieve their 
well-being outcomes and carers who need support to achieve their well-being 
outcomes. They provide the mechanism to increase independence, choice and 
control, and are an enabler of co- production in care planning which affords 
individuals the freedom to plan flexible and innovative ways to maximise their 
well-being outcomes.” 

Whilst the main impetus for increasing take-up generally is likely to come through 
the work done with individuals when they are first assessed for services and 
begin discussing care and support plans with the staff doing those assessments, 
therefore, work would need to be undertaken regionally and locally to look at the 
possibility of increasing the take-up of Direct Payments. 

There are positive examples of adult carers taking up Direct Payments to provide 
them with flexibility in their caring role in North Wales. Further discussions on 
the possibility of Direct Payments as an enabler to facilitate flexibility in carer 
services are needed. 

7.0 The offer for carers in North Wales 
The partners’ offer to carers in North Wales has been developed and co- 
produced by the following groups: 

• North Wales Carers’ Strategic Group 
• North Wales Carers’ Operational Group 
• North Wales Young Carers’ Operational Group 
• Carers Reference Group 

Partners want to achieve the following personal well-being outcomes for 
all carers in North Wales: 

• That individual carers’ needs, including language needs are met in the best 
way 

 
1 Explanatory Memorandum to the Care and Support (Direct Payment) (Wales) Regulations 2015 
Welsh Government 2015 

Page 178



14 

 

 

• That carers come to mind as soon as the person cared for 
• Services that are consistent 

 
In doing this, we also want to make sure that: 
• There is added value by working collaboratively 
• Services and funding are not duplicated 
• We adhere to best practice 

Partners will commit to: 

• Promote general awareness of carers and caring to the wider population and 
to all relevant staff in the health and care sector 

• Think carer in commissioning and assessing needs, with attention to rurality 
and those furthest from services for other reasons 

• Involve carers of all groups and communities in decision-making and 
planning processes 

• The early identification of carers at first contact with services 
 

What partners will do as employers 
• Identify carers in the organisation 
• Adopt a carer friendly infrastructure 
• Commit to equitable provision for carers 
• Provide opportunities to hear the voice of carers in the workplace 
• Allow flexible working practices, where reasonable and practicable 

 
8.0 Standards of service 

The following standards were adopted from the Triangle of Care and are 
particularly relevant to local authorities and BCUHB. Partners agreed these 
standards provide a strong base on which to develop services, with and for carer, 
across the region. 

 
• Carers’ views and knowledge are sought, shared, used and regularly updated 

as overall care plans and strategies are co-produced 
o Staff are carer aware and trained in carer engagement strategies from the 

outset 
o Staff need to be aware of and welcome the valuable contribution carers can 

make and be mindful of carers’ own needs 
• Staff need knowledge, training and support to become carer aware 
o A carer focused introduction to the service and staff are available, with a 

relevant range of information across the care pathway 
• Carers and the essential role they play are identified at first contact or as soon 

as possible thereafter and help is available to them in the simplest and 
quickest way possible 

• Policy and practice protocols on confidentiality and sharing information are in 
place 

• Defined post(s) responsible for carers are in place (carers leads) 
• A range of carer support services is available 

Page 179



15 

 

 

These standards will have implications for all partners when services for carers 
are commissioned and delivered: 

• For local, sub-regional and regional commissioning: 
o agencies designed to give carers a voice in local decision-making and 

make sure that all services in the area become more carer-aware and 
carer-friendly 

o services with carer expertise able to raise the carer awareness of all 
agencies in an area 

o services designed to find carers and help them to identify their needs 
and entitlements 

o support services for carers with particular support needs and/or 
entitlements 

o Direct Payments are offered to those who want them 
• Ready access to information and advice (and where appropriate formal or 

independent advocacy) services tailored to the needs of carers in different life 
stages (e.g. young carers, parent carers, carers of adults), circumstances and 
conditions, and stages of the caring journey 

• Access to training on the new skills carers may need when they begin or adapt 
to their new caring role and to peer support when appropriate 

• The right to an assessment (what matters conversation) as a carer in your own 
right: 
o to develop a general care and support plan 
o signpost to appropriate services; and 
o determine eligibility for support to them to care 

• For eligible carers: 
o A support plan centred on personal well-being outcomes they have 

identified themselves. 
o It will set out the support to help them achieve the personal well-being 

outcomes identified. 
o Support plans will be subject to regular reviews by local authorities, and 

re-assessment of needs if their circumstances change 

Page 180



16 

 

 

 

In accordance with the standards agreed, the following headline plan outlines the actions and lead responsibility. 
 

No Standards Action Regional responsibility 
for action 

Local 
responsibility 

1. Engagement with carers 
and carers voice 

Carers views and knowledge are sought, 
shared, used and regularly updated as 
overall care plans and strategies take 
shape. 

NWCSG All partners 

Agencies designed to give carers a voice in 
local decision making and make sure all 
services in the area become more carer- 
aware and carer-friendly 

NWCSG All partners 

2. Induction and training for 
carers and staff 

A carer focused introduction to the service 
and staff are available, with a relevant 
range of information across the care 
pathway 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

Staff are trained in carer awareness and 
engagement strategies. 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

Carers need access to training on the new 
skills they may need when they begin or 
adapt to their new caring role and to peer 
support when appropriate 

NWCOG/NWYCOG All partners 

3. Assessment and support 
for all carers 

Carers to be part of an assessment (what 
matters) conversation in their own right 

NWCOG/NWYCOG Local authorities 

A support plan centred on personal well- 
being outcomes they have identified 
themselves to achieve the personal well- 
being outcomes identified and subject to 
regular reviews and re-assessment of 
needs if circumstances change 

NWCOG/NWYCOG Local authorities 
working with 
partners 

Ready access to information, advice and 
peer support (and where appropriate formal 

NWCOG, in collaboration 
with NWYCOG 

All partners 

P
age 181



17 

 

 

 
No Standards Action Regional responsibility 

for action 
Local 
responsibility 

  advocacy) services tailored to the needs of 
carers in different life stages, circumstances 
and conditions and stages of the caring 
journey 

  

A range of flexible carer breaks is available NWCSG Local authorities 
working with 
partners 

Specialist advocacy, including for 
Continuing Health Care and for young 
carers 

NWCSG Local authorities, 
BCUHB working 
with partners 

4. Policy and practice 
protocols 

Policy and practice protocols on 
confidentiality and sharing information are 
in place. 

NWCSG All partners 

5. Adopt employer standards • Identifying carers in the organisation 
• Adopting a carer friendly infrastructure 
• Committing to equitable provision for 

carers 
• Providing opportunities to hear the voice 

of carers in the workplace 
• Allow flexible working practices, where 

reasonable and practicable 

NWCOG All partners 

6. Carer leads Defined posts responsible for carers are in 
place 

Local authorities, BCUHB  

7. Develop success 
measures and data 
collection arrangements 

Performance measures agreed NWCSG All partners 

Data collection arrangements agreed and 
underway 

NWCOG/NWYCOG All partners 

P
age 182



18 

 

 

9.0 Success measures 
Noted below are the proposed headline success measures as agreed by 
partners. These will be collated by the NWCOG and NWYCOG and progress 
monitored by the NWCSG to inform future planning. Two of the measures are 
the same as those in the Welsh Government Outcomes Measures Framework, 
with the others considered to be important to measure the progress of our 
strategy in North Wales. These success measures place a strong focus on 
improving the life circumstances of carers, listening to their views and involving 
them in the design of services. 
• Carers of all ages report satisfaction with the assessments and 

personalised support they receive, have access to the services they need 
and have an understanding of their rights under the Social Services & 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 

• Social workers and other care practitioners can evidence that they are 
applying the well-being principle in all their adult social care decisions. 

• The number of assessments in 2018 has increased in line with the 
Regional Partnership’s own estimate 

• Carers reporting they felt involved in designing the care and support plan 
for the person that they care for (Welsh Government) 

• Carers reporting they feel supported to continue in their caring role (Welsh 
Government) 

• If a carer is facing a crisis, they know how to access a rapid response 
service to assess and respond to their need 

 
10.0 Conclusion 

Listening to what carers of all ages have to say about their experiences has 
shown that there is a high quality level of provision available for carers in North 
Wales, and that when things go right, that this is greatly appreciated. What 
carers have also told us is that services provided by knowledgeable and informed 
staff can make all the difference to their well-being and circumstances. 

 
Whilst there are numerous good practice examples of support for carers in North 
Wales, those responsible for implementing this strategy and its related action 
plans will work to ensure that those services become more consistent across the 
region and that local provision in all areas will reflect the regional standards which 
have been agreed. 

 
Those firstly coming into contact with carers, possibly in primary health care, 
schools or local authorities need to listen to carers, think carer and encourage 
them to be aware of their role and understand that they can access the 
information and support that’s available for them. 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1: What matters to carers 
Appendix 2: Carer pathways 

Page 183



19 

 

 

Appendix 3: Resource mapping 
Appendix 4: North Wales Carers Strategic Group (NWCSG) Action Plan 
Appendix 5: North Wales Carers Operational Group (NWCOG) Action Plan 
Appendix 6: North Wales Young Carers Operational Group (NWYCOG) Action 

Plan 
Appendix 7: Carers Reference Group (CRG) Action Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184



 

 

Appendix 1 Carers: What matters to carers 
 
 

Carers’strategy: What matters to carers report 
June 2018 

 

Introduction 
Carers’ stories and experiences provide an useful snapshot of what matters to them, 
what helps them to carry on in their caring role and what aspects challenge them. 
The main themes arising from carers stories and case studies can be summarised 
as follows: 

• The isolation of the caring role 
• Stress experienced by carers 
• The value carers place on the support of third sector organisations and local 

authorities 
• The impact of the person cared for’s well-being on the carer’s well-being 
• Carers’ need for breaks 
• Carers’ need for information 
• The need to be employed, or to return to employment 
• Rural issues 

 
The stories and case studies below are only some examples of those which have 
been offered by third sector organisations, BCUHB and local authorities. 

 
Isolation of caring role and stress experienced by carers 

 
“Feeling of isolation at times and would find it less stressful if I had more social time 
for myself” Carer, Anglesey 

 
“Mrs B is unable to return to work since her husband’s operation, and sometimes 
finds it difficult to cope with life. They have a bungalow in rural Wales, 9 miles away 
from the nearest supermarket. Mrs B feels isolated, and misses her old life where 
she was able to socialise and spend time with friends and family. Mrs B told me that 
she feels she is “existing not living” and at times feels so low that life doesn’t seem 
worth living.” Case Study, Conwy 

 
“During a conversation with a parent carer of an adult with learning disabilities, carer 
broke down explaining that she was under tremendous pressure. Her daughter had 
not been able to attend day care for over a month as she had been ill. Carer was not 

Page 185



 

 

getting any sleep because of this and her partner had his own health issues and she 
herself was waiting to have an operation on her knee. 

At the end of the telephone call, carer stated that being able to talk to someone 
about her worries with someone she could trust made her feel that the weight of the 
world had been lifted from her shoulders. Carer explained that she doesn’t get the 
opportunity to talk about her worries as she doesn’t feel comfortable talking to 
others. It was decided that I would phone her on a regular basis during this difficult 
time. Carer feels so much better knowing that she can share all her worries with me. 
Emotional support continuing with carer.” Case study, Carers Outreach 

 
The things that matter to young carers are often the same things that would matter to 
any young person. Their situation as a young carer however can at times have an 
effect on the way that they live their lives, and opportunities that are taken for 
granted by young people without caring responsibilities can be difficult to access for 
young carers. Findings from the consultation and engagement with young carers as 
part of the North Wales Population Needs Assessment found that areas that young 
carers found challenging were: concentrating, communicating, being confident and 
making friends. 

 
Young carers and young adult carers also talk of the pressure that they are under at 
times: 
“Remember everything (e.g. chores, being told to do things like put rubbish out). 
Work fast. 

 
“Mr A is a young adult carer caring for his father with multiple health conditions and 
significant mobility problems. Mr A was having problems with moving and handling. 
Father was a wheelchair user. He had become very isolated because of his caring 
role. He had not pursued any further education since leaving school and had never 
been in employment. 

 
Mr A also had his own health issues and was experiencing acute anxiety attacks. 
He had neglected his own health and had not visited his GP for some considerable 
time” Case study, Denbighshire 

 
Young carers’ ability to concentrate amidst other responsibilities and concerns is an 
issue, e.g. whilst the person for whom they are caring is ill. Also, the need to talk to 
others about their problems and feelings, e.g. family, friends, neighbours, other 
young carers as well as professionals in the public and third sector. 

 
The value carers place on the support of third sector organisations 
and local authorities 
Carers are telling us that they value the support services that they receive, that they 
do not appreciate services that are working well with them being taken from them, 
particularly at short notice. If it hasn’t been communicated to them why the service is 
ceasing, they feel frustrated and do not have an understanding of why it has 
happened. 

Page 186



 

 

“I saw a NEWCIS brochure at the GP surgery and decided to contact them. One of 
the staff came out to meet us both. Over the years we have received lots of support 
and without them I don’t think I could have gone on. They helped us to go to CAB 
for financial help and supported us to gains aids. I now meet other carers at 
NEWCIS carer group and it gets me out of the house and I meet people in similar 
situations.” Case study, NEWCIS 

 
“My learning has all been from accidental apart from Carer’s Outreach and when I 
did need to go and get a carer’s assessment I went to Dinerth Road, she was very 
good the Social Worker there and organised crossroads sitting service for me, which 
was very good. It was the best service ever, brilliant I can’t praise them enough.” 
Carer’s story, Conwy 

 
“Carer is looking after his wife who has dementia; she has deteriorated rapidly in the 
past 6 months. He finds the situation immensely stressful and is struggling to cope 
with her questions etc. He contacted the office to request help with coping strategies 
for managing stress. 

I have been supporting the carer for the last 2 months and he is very appreciative of 
having someone understanding to talk to. I have visited him at his home where we 
discussed different ways of coping and responding to the situation to minimise the 
effects on himself. He said this was very helpful and gave him ideas for different 
things he could try to deal with the situation without getting tense and worked up. I 
also gave him a Dementia Red key fob to show discreetly when out with his wife, so 
that he does not have to explain anything verbally or feel embarrassed or apologetic 
for her behaviour. I subsequently referred him to the Alzheimer society to request a 
dementia support worker to help and advise him. I followed this up with a couple of 
phone calls to encourage him, offer support, and see what else I can help with. 
Increased respite hours are being put in place through SS, and a visiting clinical 
psychologist is offering to help him with anxiety. Recently I sent him information 
regarding the Snowdon train trip organised by Awyr Las for those diagnosed with 
dementia and their carers, and the dementia support day at Alltwen hospital. He is 
immensely grateful for all the support and information and I have offered to keep in 
touch with him for the foreseeable future.” Carer’s story, Carer’s Outreach. 

“Referral received from Specialist Nurse at the hospital. Patient carer requiring 
support as she is the sole carer for her husband who has dementia. He requires 24/7 
care and for several months the carer has been sleeping downstairs next to her 
husband as there in no heating upstairs and her husband is unable to manage the 
stairs due to his poor mobility. 

She has been told that she requires treatment and she is concerned how this is 
possible as she cannot leave her husband alone and will not be physically capable of 
caring for her husband following the operation and chemotherapy treatment. 

Emotional Support- discussed the concerns of Carer 

Page 187



 

 

Contact made with CPN and What Matters conversation completed to review 
care needs and respite services available- for Carer needs support for her 
husband whilst she is having treatment. 

Benefit check completed- No Attendance Allowance (AA) in payment for cared for 
and he is totally reliant on Carer. DWP referral for AA1, Pension Credit ( PC ) ( 
calculations completed with carer) and Council Tax Exemption applicable 
once PC awarded. Once this is awarded referral via Nest Heating scheme 

Funding- Health and Social funding explained re cared for if admitted into a Care 
Home. 

Blue Badge application completed 

At 4 week review following meeting with carer at YG 

-“I would not have known about any of the above without the help of Carers’ 
Support Officer, Ysbyty Gwynedd” Case study, Carers Outreach. 

 
“Mrs D cares for her mum and now her husband, leaving her feeling very isolated 
with no time for anything else – “being a carer is what my whole life now consisted 
of. 

 
Visiting the Centre with my husband is the first time that I have felt my carer role 
being acknowledged. The staff are caring and responsible, if they know that you are 
having any difficulty at all they are keen to help, as they recognise that the health 
and welfare of the carer is just as important.” Carer’s story, Denbighshire 

 
Some carers want to receive services in Welsh, in the language of their choice. 
Consultation and engagement as part of the Population Needs Assessment 
highlighted the importance of care and support services being available in Welsh. 
Services should ensure Welsh language services are built into service planning and 
delivery and that services are offered in Welsh to Welsh speakers without them 
having to request it. Although information from the service mapping exercise 
suggests that services are available in both Welsh and English for carers, it is 
unclear whether services reach the ‘More than just words’ standards, whether they 
are instantly available or whether arrangements need to be made before hand to 
arrange the services. 

 
Carers’ need for information 
Evidence from carers’ stories and What Matters conversations suggests that at times 
carers are unaware of their rights and also unaware of the information and support 
services that are available to them. 

 
“The family never accessed any statutory services and she was never aware of any 
services to support Carers. Her main contact was always with the GP but he never 
informed her of any services available to her, or her right to a Carer Assessment.” 
Case Study, Denbighshire. 

Page 188



 

 

It is also important for carers to be given relevant information at the most appropriate 
time, 

 
“I just think it’s the memory clinic for me would have been the place to give a pack or 
information to me and say go home and when you get a minute do this and once you 
have done this everything will be so much better for you.” Carer, Conwy 

 
Lack of information on financial issues can also lead to carer anxiety: 
“Mr A was not in receipt of any benefits and was not aware that he could claim 
Carers Allowance. He didn’t know of the support available to Carers in 
Denbighshire.” Case Study, Denbighshire. 

 
A parent of a child with Down’s Syndrome told us that she had not received sufficient 
information through the health service: 
“When looking back at the early period I did not receive information about 
organisations such as “Down Syndrome Association” or the Carers Outreach Service 
which could have been of assistance for me as a parent.” Parent Carer’s Story, 
Gwynedd. 

 
The impact of the person cared for’s well-being on the carer’s well- 
being 

 
Carers will often say that they do not need support, and that if the person cared for’s 
needs are met, that they also feel that they are supported as carers. 

 
“Son was taken ill and I cared for him on my own. He received services from the 
Community Mental Health Team. There is far too much talk and not enough action. 
The support worker takes him for regular blood tests. On Tuesdays, he goes on a 
‘walk and talk’, which is only for an hour, but it gives breathing space. I’ve been 
asking for that for years, but there’s far too much talking. Support for the cared for is 
also indirect support for carers… 

 
…I’ve had to cancel a holiday offered by my other son. You worry while you’re 
away, and the cared for would have had to go somewhere else… 

 
…The support worker is the most productive and alleviates the stress for the carer.” 
Carer’s story, Gwynedd 

 
Young carers have told us that the health and well-being of the person for whom 
they are caring is important to them, e.g. not wanting their parent to start drinking 
again, and that their family is important, “because I can talk to them all the time”. 
Also important for young carers is acceptance both by their peer group and by 
teachers. Whilst what people think of them can be important for many young people, 
the impact that their caring responsibilities can have on their lives mean that this 
issue is sometimes heightened for young carers, e.g. attitudes that people might 

Page 189



 

 

have towards them because of them not being able to join in social activities, or not 
being able to complete homework. One young carer said that whilst other young 
people messed around in class, that he strived to get all his work done at school as 
he wouldn’t be able to do so at home. 

 
“If my mum got better. If I had better memory. If I was faster at doing work. If I 
could see my friends out of school more often.” Young carer, Anglesey. 

 
Carers’ need for breaks 
The main message that carers are telling us is that the break they need from caring 
is in response to their needs, situation and home environment. They want to be 
listened to, and each carer will have different needs. They do not appreciate being 
told what service can be provided to them, do not necessarily need a regular carer 
break service and sometimes there is overprescribing of services, leading to 
wastage. 

 
In a situation where in-home replacement care or a sitting service is being provided, 
carers have told us that it is important that the person cared for is familiar with the 
individual providing the care, otherwise it may not be worthwhile. In situations where 
the individual providing the service is on holiday, the person cared for or carer may 
decide to delay the arrangement until the individual who usually provides the service 
is available. 

 
It is also important that carer breaks can be provided on a flexible and short notice 
basis in order for the carer to continue to live their lives the way they want to, e.g. 
joining social gatherings at short notice, and not having to make arrangements too 
long before hand. Another issue also is the need for enough flexibility in the care 
available to allow for care in emergency situations and in out of hours situations. 

 
“There is nowhere that you could phone and get emergency or pre planned care for 
a couple of hours for a young person with dementia where you know that you would 
be leaving them with someone they know and trust if you have no family or friends 
that can help.” Carer, Anglesey 

“It’s just a shame because often there is a choice and things on at the same time as 
well during the week but nothing at the weekend and I understand it’s the weekend 
but that is a big thing for a lot of people.” Carer, Conwy. 

 
Carer breaks also need to be tailored to the needs of the individual, 
“Assessment completed, Carer A has had a discussion with her family over the 
Christmas period about wanting respite from her caring role. This was declined by 
her husband and he stated he is happy for his wife to go to her groups in the 
evenings as he feels capable of managing his own medication. Carer A is now 
attending evening groups and using this as her respite. Carer A has also used this 
time to attend church and seek support through her faith.” Carer, Conwy. 

Page 190



 

 

At times, the carer will want to have the carer break outside the home environment. 
At other times, they will want someone to provide replacement care. Another option 
would be to have a break for the carer and person cared for together. 

“Miss C is a carer for mum who is also supported by another family member..Miss 
C’s mum requested day care in order to regain community connections and increase 
activity and stimulation. 

Both carers attended the day centre to support a period of settlement but the centre 
staff were able to focus on both the carers and Miss C to allow all three individuals to 
have some respite and attend and partake in some meaningful activities… 

..The centre affords both carers to have time away from mum, safe in the knowledge 
that any personal care needs required in their absence will be delivered by well 
trained staff.” Carer’s story, Denbighshire. 

“I cannot believe NEWCIS have given us the opportunity to have a break away with 
other carers and supportive NEWCIS staff. Being away with other carers and their 
loved ones, who are in a similar situation to ourselves enabled us to enjoy 
comfortable surroundings, with good company and feel less isolated. I could relax as 
I knew there was someone there for me and my wife, to support us if we needed 
help”. 

“We have not had a break away from home and I have not had a break from my 
caring role for many years. This is due to our financial situation and because I would 
be frightened to take my wife away without support”. 

“This break has allowed me to rest, clear my head, not think about cooking or 
cleaning and has given us time together to make memories. I love her so much and 
we enjoyed spending quality time together. Thank you”. Carer’s story, NEWCIS. 

Parent carers also have specific needs for a break: 

“What keeps me going?...Family and friends but also what is important to me is time 
away from caring, I sometimes row but opportunities for the “golden time” as I call it 
are very few and far between, nobody to babysit I for example. I would also like to 
spend “golden time” with T (I’s little brother) and as a parent I worry if he is given fair 
play as out days out as a family tend to be around I’s needs.” Parent Carer’s story, 
Gwynedd. 

The need to be employed, or to return to employment 
Carers’ stories about trying to return to work or balancing work with caring 
responsibilities feature often. Carers need to build their confidence in order to do 
this and they benefit from the support that they are given to achieve what is 
important to them in the world of work. 

“One of the concerns the carer has about moving her mother into a residential home 
is whether or not she will have her own identity after she’s lost her caring role. 
During a home visit, we talked about getting back into paid employment. The carer 

Page 191



 

 

shared her worries about not having the confidence or skills to jump back into the 
workplace 

We decided to have a discussion, focusing on what skills she has gained from her 
caring role. The patience, the commitment, the sacrifices. All good personal 
attributes that can be included in her CV and application forms. The carer agreed 
and acknowledged that her skills could be just as valuable, or even more valuable 
than those who have studies and learnt from books.” Carer’s story, Conwy. 

 
“After the initial phone call, a home visit was arranged and a Carers’ Needs 
Assessment (CNA) was conducted. The CNA was to identify the full carers’ situation. 
The CNA identified that the Carer needed support around her rights in the workplace 
and knowing what her options where. The Carers UK Carers Rights booklet was 
passed to the Carer and options was discussed with her about how employers can 
help – flexible working, job share, time off for emergencies etc. The Carer was 
signposted to look at her employers Carers policy and if she wanted to, she could 
discuss her situation with her employer. Her employer already knew she was a 
Carer. 

 
Direct Payments and Penderels Trust was discussed and Carer wanted to know 
more information regarding this. It was discussed that a Social Worker was needed 
for her to access Direct Payments. 

 
Social Services agreed direct payments at panel and the Carer is now looking for a 
care worker through Penderels to entitle her to have regular breaks from her caring 
role.” Case study, Third sector organisation. 

“Someone’s life can change within seconds…from being and industrious person who 
has travelled the world to be a mother with a child with additional needs – I can no 
longer work full time since I have so many medical appointments – Audiology, 
Cardiology, Language Therapy, Paediatrics etc, I have attended so many hospital 
appointments with I that I have lost count, this in turn having a Financial effect on 
me…Working part time can be a struggle…particularly if I is unwell (lack of 
sleep)…but as a parent the “Carer’s Allowance” is far from sufficient and I feel that 
there is no other option but to work. It can also be difficult to find work since I am 
dependent on my employer to have an understanding of my situation as a carer.” 
Parent Carer’s story, Gwynedd. 

Rural issues 

Carers living in rural areas wish to receive the same level of service as carers living 
in towns. 

 
Carers report that living in rural areas creates problems for them in terms of: 

• Accessing support or carer breaks 
• Travel time being taken out of the time allocated for direct service 
• Isolation 

Page 192



 

 

“There are no learning disability facilities, support group activities for my daughter to 
attend in Llangollen although there appears to be far more in Denbigh and some in 
Ruthin, but she is unable to get transport to these places.” Carer, Denbighshire 

 

Carers have noted that travel time when replacement care is arranged is not factored 
in. Replacement care maybe arranged for three hours, but in rural locations it may 
take the carer a large proportion of time to travel to the closest shops/activities etc 
and they then only get a short amount of time to do what they want to do. Problems 
are compounded in rural areas; simple tasks such as picking up prescriptions, 
appointments, travelling can be very difficult for the carer. Carers contributing to this 
work in North Wales discussed the possibility of a rural carers’ assessment 
component and that a premium for rural replacement care is reflected. Contingency 
planning in rural areas can be particularly difficult. 

Conclusion 
Carers’ stories demonstrate that care giving, as well as being a practical function, is 
also an emotive role, with carers reporting feelings of guilt, loneliness, anxiety, worry, 
distress, isolation, fear, frustration, difficulty in dealing with change and transition. 
Some carers may also experience feelings of denial surrounding their cared for 
person’s condition. These feelings will occur at different times within the carer’s 
timeline of experience, and each carer will require bespoke support. 

 
Listening to carers’ stories and experiences provides an insight into their lives, 
demonstrates the importance of support, and emphasises issues involved with the 
caring role. This work has helped partners ensure that services are designed with 
the carer at the centre. 

Work needs to continue to listen to carers and to gather their stories. This will help 
us measure what progress we are making and understand about what works well, 
what is appreciated and what we need to to do change or improve services. 

The contribution of carer stories and case studies is greatly valued and appreciated 
and many thanks are extended to all carers and professionals who have been 
involved. 

Page 193



 

 

Appendix 2 Carers: Mapping carers journeys 
 
 

 

Carers’ strategy: mapping carers journeys 
report 
June 2018 

 
Introduction 
As part of the discussions on the North Wales Regional Partnership’s Carers Work 
stream, it became apparent that in order to understand better what carers’ 
experiences of current services are, that it would be useful to map their journeys. 

 
The purpose of mapping carers’ journeys was to: 
• Establish to what extent the carers’ experiences are different to the process 
• Identify who in the process can support carers 
• Understand what needs to change and improve 

 
Method 
In order to complete this work, we worked with our local authority and health partners 
to look at carers’ cases. This work focused on carer journeys through statutory 
services including how well services worked with the third sector to provide what 
matters to carers. 

 
The time available meant that only a small number of cases could be looked at. 

 
Conwy: 3 cases – carers of older people 

 
Denbighshire: 1 case – carer of individual with learning disability 

Wrexham: 1 case – carer of an older person 

BCUHB – 1 case – mental health rehabilitation patient, Llanfairfechan 
 

In Gwynedd, we looked at the support service for mental health service user in one 
area of the county and understood its impact on a small number of cases. 

 
The journey mapping task had two aspects to it: 

 
1) Mapping the process 
2) Mapping how the individual goes through the process (the carer’s journey) 

Page 194



2 

 

 

Working with relevant professionals in local authorities and health, we understood 
from their experiences and from case files and notes how things are for carers. As 
discussions took place, the process and carer’s involvement was documented on 
paper, leading to a discussion on how things could be improved. An example is 
included below. 

Page 195



3 

 

 

 
 

It is important to emphasise that the case examples taken were not representative of 
the whole carer population across the region. They were however, drawn from 
different service areas across North Wales and provided an opportunity to learn from 
individuals’ experiences. 

Page 196



4 

 

 

What the journey mapping tells us 
The work demonstrates individual carers’ journeys and has been useful to add to the 
qualitative evidence partners have already drawn together in the carers’ stories and 
case studies. 

 
From this work we have been able to understand better how things are for carers 
and learn what’s working well, what could work better, and what needs to change. 
All of this has been considered alongside other things that we have learnt from 
carers. 

 
Although the journey mapping work looked at a small number of carers’ cases 
across the region, it reflected the following: 

 
About the carer: 

 
• That many carers refuse a carers assessment. This may be partly because 

may carers consider themselves a parent, husband, wife, partner, son, 
daughter, brother, sister, friend or neighbour, rather than as a carer. 

• That carers tend to wait until they reach crisis point until they contact social 
services 

• That carers are grateful for the support that they do receive and do not tend to 
ask for more 

• That carers are ready to provide their feedback and opinion on the sufficiency 
of the service that they receive when invited to do so 

• That person centred reviews focusing on what’s going well, and what’s not 
going well are beneficial to the carer 

• That there are examples of carers making self-referrals to the Single Point of 
Access Service (SPOA) 

• That carer involvement may at times lead to carer overwhelm 

• That carers need emotional support 

About local authority and health services: 

• There are examples of SPOA services and GPs working well in identifying 
carers and having ‘what matters’ conversations with them 

• That there is good practice in terms of carer engagement within BCUHB, 
e.g.treating the carer as an equal partner, welcoming the carer, providing 
information, documenting family circumstances, inviting the carer to talk, 
involving the carer in discharge planning, carer viewing of the person cared 
for’s accommodation, involving the carer in the person cared for’s treatment 
planning 

Page 197



5 

 

 

• That it is important in some cases to meet the carer outside of the home 
environment and to ask their preferred method of communication 

• That Direct Payments work well to offer flexibility to carers and in avoiding 
over prescribing of carer breaks (i.e. a set number of hours delivered by a 
contracted provider) 

• That getting the right support for the person with learning disabilities can be 
crucial to the well-being of the carer. In one case the person cared for was 
eligible for an integrated care and support plan. Once that was in place the 
carers’ well-being outcomes were able to be met with some support from the 
third sector and by signposting to other support in the local community. 

• That advocacy is important to make sure the wishes and needs of the carer 
and the person being cared for are fully considered 

• That there are examples of ‘sitting’ services providing additional services for 
the person cared for, e.g. taking them on outings, making the most of the time 
with the person cared for 

• That there is a gap in carer break ‘sitting’ services for mental health service 
users 

• The term ‘sitting service’ may be misleading; whilst a sitting service is not the 
same as replacement care, it does however refer to a service that regularly 
offers more than sitting with the person cared for 

• That group support in mental health services cannot work in areas where the 
population is more dispersed and depends on one to one support services 

• That carers are referred for expert information and assistance to the third 
sector organisations 

About our workforce: 

• That good quality services are provided by carer aware professionals who are 
committed to their work and to thinking creatively to tailor the service around 
the person cared for and carer 

• That committed and dedicated professionals can add value to services and 
think outside ‘process pathways’ in order to create a pathway that suits the 
individual carer and person cared for 

• That there are several points along the person cared for’s journey where 
practitioners need to consider the carer, offer a carers assessment and check 
how the carer is coping or whether anything has changed. We saw good 
examples of this. 

• That auditable formal carer pathways supported by the guiding principle of 
placing the carer at the centre of the service may facilitate culture change 

Page 198



6 

 

 

• Although professionals can work to ensure that the carer pathway is a smooth 
one within their service, the carer may not have had a positive experience 
prior to their encounter with that service, or after their encounter with that 
service 

• That good communication between the professional who is supporting the 
carer and professionals who are supporting the person cared for is crucial 

• That supporting the carer to become more confident, promote their 
independence, maintain their identity and maintain and build resilience is 
important 

• That social services link with third sector support services and other services 
(e.g. OPUS) where it’s been identified that that is useful but that professionals 
need to be reminded and updated of third sector support that is available 

To what extent are the carers’ experiences different to the process? 
Whilst there are clear processes within health and social services to establish what 
matters to carers and to support them, the work undertaken suggests that the most 
important aspect is to be carer aware, to be guided by the needs of the carer and to 
work together with the carer and person cared for, placing them at the centre of the 
service. 

Who in the process can support carers? 
Different areas of service may be providing good quality services for carers, 
however, it is important that the experience of the carer is consistent throughout their 
journey. This may mean looking at the consistency of the carer’s experience within 
one organisation as well as along a journey where the carer will be coming into 
contact with different organisations. 

 
What do we need to do to change and improve? 

• Further work needs to take place to understand the reasons why individuals 
with caring responsibilities refuse carer assessments 

• Look at the possibilities of Direct Payment to enable flexibility in carer break 
services for carers 

• Work in partnership to ensure that the carer journey is a smooth and 
seamless one from their first encounter with services that might be able to 
support them 

• Ensure that carers are supported in their involvement with services, e.g. 
through briefings and de-briefings, and staff prompts where appropriate 

• Consider whether carer champions within organisations would be helpful 
• Consider the possibility of extending the principles of Triangle of Care (which 

have been piloted in BCUHB mental health services) to other service areas 
• Ensuring that professionals are aware of third sector and other support 

services available to carers 

Page 199



7 

 

 

• Consider how well the processes work when people move from one local 
authority to another. 

Page 200



 

 

 
 

Carers’ strategy: resource mapping 
May 2018 

 
Introduction 
This resource mapping was carried out as part of the Regional Partnership Board’s 
carers work stream. The aim was to identify the services available for carers in North 
Wales, the main funders and an estimate of the amount of investment. 

 
The project scope was to include services provided specifically for carers, although 
we know that many of the services that are provided for the person cared for also 
have beneficial personal well-being outcomes for carers. 

 
The mapping gives us a snapshot of the resources available at the time the data was 
collected. 

 
What the mapping can tell us 

• It can provide an overview of the services available for carers in North Wales 
and an estimate of the investment in those services. 

• It can facilitate an understanding of how current investments support what 
carers are telling us that matter to them. 

• It can be used alongside the agreed 'offer for carers in North Wales' to 
highlight gaps where more provision may be needed to provide consistent 
services for carers in North Wales. 

• It can help to identify opportunities to better co-ordinate services supported by 
different organisations. 

• It can highlight areas we need to investigate further. 
 
What the mapping can’t tell us 

• It can’t tell us whether there is enough provision or investment in each area to 
align with what carers are telling us that matter to them. 

• It can’t tell us whether there is duplication between services. It can highlight 
areas to investigate but similar services in the same location may be reaching 
different groups of people or with different preferences or slightly different 
needs. 

Page 201



Appendix 3 Carers: Resource mapping 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 

 
• It doesn’t give us an up-to-the-minute picture of carers’ services. Due to the 

constantly changing nature of services we have provided a snapshot at a 
particular point in time. 

• It can’t give us a full picture of the investment in carers’ services. The way 
some services are funded made it difficult to identify exactly what funding was 
supporting carers directly, so there will be some undercounting. 

• It can’t tell us what should change as a result. This data only forms part of the 
picture and needs to be considered alongside carers' stories, feedback from 
the workshops, commissioners, the population assessment findings and so 
on. The analysis needs to involve all partners to co-produce 
recommendations. 

Methods 
A form was circulated to partners in North Wales during 2017 asking what services 
were available in the area (see Appendix (i)). This information was then collated into 
a spreadsheet and circulated to local authority and health commissioners and 
service providers including third sector organisations for checking. A draft version 
was discussed at the carer’s workshop on 19 March which included members of the 
Carers Strategic Group, Carers Operational Group, Young Carers and young adult 
carers sub group and Carers Reference Group. There was an opportunity to make 
further amendments after the event until 30 March 2018. 

 

Findings 
Appendix (ii) shows an overview of services in North Wales. This shows a wide 
range of information, advice and assistance available across North Wales to support 
carers. It also identified gaps, including the lack of a hospital liaison post at Ysbyty 
Glan Clwyd and that employment support projects for carers are available across 
North Wales apart from in Wrexham. While there are generic services for carers of 
individuals with substance misuse problems, the resource mapping didn’t 
demonstrate that there were specific services for these carers. There were also a 
number of different projects offering information and advice to carers of people living 
with dementia across North Wales, which may mean a risk of duplication. 

 
Analysis of the investment in services found over £5 million of investment into 
services for carers across North Wales as shown in table 1. The funding comes from 
both statutory and third sector organisations (see table 3). This is an underestimate 
of the total funding available due to the difficulty of separating out the funding directly 
supporting carers in some contracts. 

Page 202



Appendix 3 Carers: Resource mapping 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

 
Table 1: Investment in carers services by service type 

Service type Service Cost (£ each year) 
Assistance and support 2,100,000 
Carer breaks 1,400,000 
Young carers 1,000,000 
Carers information and advice 660,000 

 
Total 

 
5,200,000 

Data has been rounded so may not sum 
 

Table 2 shows that around half of the funding identified is available to support all 
carers. Just over £1 million is available to support young carers and £600,000 is 
available to support parent carers. The majority of investment in services based on 
specific conditions is to carers of people with dementia, followed by mental health. 

 
Table 2: Investment in carers services by carer group (needs of the person cared for) 

Carer group Service Cost (£ each year) 
All carers 2,600,000 
Young carers 1,000,000 
Carers of people with a specific condition 930,000 

Dementia 550,000 
Mental health 370,000 
Neurological conditions 12,000 

Parent carers 600,000 
 

Total 
 

5,200,000 
Data has been rounded so may not sum 

 
The majority of funding comes from local authorities as shown in table 3, with a 
significant amount raised by third sector partners through grants and other 
fundraising. Funding from Welsh Government includes funds distributed through 
local authorities and the health board such as Carers Transitional Funding, Families 
First, ICF and Welsh Government. 

 
Table 3: Investment in carers services by type of funder 

Type of funder Total 
Local authority 3,000,000 
Third sector grants and 
fundraising 

 
800,000 

Welsh Government 580,000 
Health Board 520,000 

  Chargeable services  65,000  

Total 5,200,000 
Data has been rounded so may not sum 

 
The data collection included end dates of contracts where known which highlighted 
the insecurity of much of the funding. The full spreadsheet has been made available 
to local authority and health commissioners to support local commissioning. 

Page 203



Carers workstream: resource mapping report 
 

 

 

Appendix i: Resources for carers questionnaire 
 

Gwasanaeth/ Service  

Darparwr/Provider  

Disgrifiad byr o’r gwasanaeth/ 
 
Brief description of the service 

 

Canllawiau mynediad i’r gwasanaeth/ 
 
Eligibility criteria 

 

Sut i gyfeirio i’r gwasanaeth/ How to 
refer to the service 

 

Oriau gwasanaeth/ Hours of service  

Lleoliad y gwasanaeth/ Location of 
service 

 

Iaith/ Language  

Lefelau Staffio/ Staffing Levels  

Cyfyngiadau/ Constraints  

Cost Gwasanaeth/ Service Cost  

Dyddiad diwedd y cytundeb/ Expiry 
date of contract 

 

Incwm a ffynhonnell / Income and 
source 

 

Unrhyw fater arall/ Any other issues  

Darparwyd yr wybodaeth gan/ 
Information provided by 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 8 
Page 204



Carers workstream: resource mapping report 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

 

Appendix ii: Overview of carers’ services in North Wales 
 

Type of 
support 

Services available Summary/gaps Anglesey Gwynedd Conwy Denbighshire Flintshire Wrexham 

Information Local authority: websites, 
leaflets 

Information provided on local authority websites, 
and through leaflets for carers 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carers organisations: 
leaflets, packs, specialist 
information 

General information as well as information on 
specific conditions provided by third sector 
organisations. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Dewis Cymru Information about well-being and local services. Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Specialist organisations: 
information on specific 
conditions 

Information provided by specialist organisations 
on specific conditions, with general information 
available on websites, with some local projects 
providing additional support. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Dementia carer 
information 

National and local information as well as coping 
strategies provided to improve family, friends' and 
carers understanding of dementia. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Hospital liaison posts Hospital liaison posts in Ysbyty Gwynedd and 
Wrexham Maelor. No post at Ysbyty Glan Clwyd. 
Access to the service is determined by which 
hospital people attend rather than where they live 
e.g. someone from Conwy attending Ysbyty 
Gwynedd could still access the service. 

Available Available   Available Available 

GP Liaison and hospital 
discharge: social 
prescribing; local area 
coordination 

Service provided to facilitate the early 
identification of carers, carer support at the point 
of discharge. Also, community based services 
provided for carers to access support and well- 
being services locally. These services may be 
known under different names locally, and also 
have different models of delivery. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Advice Single Points of Access to 
health and social care 

Provided by local authorities/health across North 
Wales together with third sector organisations. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

P
age 205



Carers workstream: resource mapping report 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 

 
 Carers advice and 

information projects 
Provided by third sector organisations as well as 
in-house teams. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Money and benefits 
advice 

Welfare advice for carers provided either through 
local authorities, carer third sector organisations 
or by signposting to other providers of welfare 
rights services. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Assistance 
and 
support 

Advocacy Advocacy provided through specialist advocacy 
services for carers. Third sector organisations 
also provide informal advocacy for carers. 
Advocacy covers a range through from informal to 
formal advocacy, with a service available 
specifically for young carers. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Assessment of carers’ 
needs 

Local authorities, with one local authority 
commissioning a third sector organisation. 
Although third sector organisations may also be 
providing informal assessments of carers' needs, 
which may reduce the demand for formal local 
authority needs assessments, these are not 
included in the needs assessment data. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Direct payments, support 
budgets 

Offered by local authorites. The way they are 
promoted and used varies across counties. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carers’ emergency 
support 

Type of emergency support may vary across 
counties. It is unclear to what extent contingency 
arrangements are in place in various areas when 
carers fall ill or are no longer able to care. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carers grants Provided through third sector organisations 
across the region. Third sector organisations also 
can provide access to other sources of grant 
funding. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carer breaks Provided by third sector organisations and/or 
domiciliary care providers, across North Wales. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carer peer support and 
networking 

Provided by third sector carer organisations and 
condition specific organisations, also providing an 
element of respite. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

P
age 206



Carers workstream: resource mapping report 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

 
 Training Provided by third sector carer organisations and 

condition specific organisations. 
Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Emotional support and 
counselling 

Third sector carer organisations and condition 
specific organisations offer emotional support 
across North Wales. Counselling is offered 
through carer organisations in some areas. 
Counselling is also available for young carers. 

Partly 
available 

Partly 
available 

Partly 
available 

Available Available Available 

Changes and transitions Local authorities, third sector carer organisations 
and condition specific organisations. Type of 
support may vary across counties and could 
involve emotional support and counselling. Peer 
support and networking will also support carers in 
times of transition. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Support to access 
employment 

Provided through an European Funded project in 
some areas, as well as through a third sector 
organisation. Support to access employment is 
unavailable in Wrexham. 

Available Available Available Available Available  

Support to access 
social/leisure activity 

Could include discounted leisure membership, 
support with costs, information about informal 
social/leisure activities. Provided by local 
authorities, third sector carer organisations and 
condition specific organisations. Type of support 
may vary across counties and based on 'what 
matters' conversation. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Health and well-being Whilst carers' well-being will be an integral part of 
their needs assessment, services recognised as 
services to support well-being will vary. One local 
authority area employs an officer to support the 
local authority's duty to focus on the well being of 
carers. The lottery funded project in the North 
East places an emphasis on supporting carers' 
well-being. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Whole family support Local authorities, third sector carer organisations 
and condition specific organisations. Type of 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

P
age 207



Carers workstream: resource mapping report 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 
  support may vary across counties and based on 

'what matters' conversation. 
      

Housing support Not aware of direct housing support but carers' 
organisations will signpost to other organisations. 

      

Support to access / 
maintain attendance at 
school (young carers) 

Provided by third sector organisations working 
with young carers. Pilot project underway with 
some schools in North Wales. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Support for young carers Provided by third sector organisations across 
North Wales. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

Carers 
shaping 
policy and 
services 

Opportunities to be 
involved in shaping policy 
and services 

Regional carers reference group. Local 
opportunities through local partnerships, local 
authorities and health and third sector 
organisations. Type of opportunities vary across 
counties. 

Available Available Available Available Available Available 

P
age 208



Appendix 4 Carers: NWCSG Action Plan 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 

North Wales Carers Strategic Group Action Plan – June 2018 
 

Carers have a key role in the health the health and social care environment in Wales and need to be recognised and valued for the support they 
provide. They themselves also need support in this vital role, and local authorities should therefore help ensure that carers are able to live their 
own lives as independently as possible. This is also in line with the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA) which legislates 
for enhanced rights for carers and simplifies and consolidates the law, giving them for the first time equivalent rights to the person they care for. 

 
The action plan is based on: 

 
The offer for carers in North Wales as agreed at the Workshop on 19 March 2018 – Regional standards, local commissioning 

 
i) The Welsh Government’s national priorities for carers: 

 
• Supporting life alongside caring – all carers must have reasonable breaks from their caring role to enable them to maintain their 

capacity to care, and to have a life beyond caring 
• Identifying and recognising carers – fundamental to the success of delivering improved personal well-being outcomes for carers 

is the need to improve carers’ recognition of their role and to ensure they can access the necessary support 
• Providing information, advice and assistance – it is important that carers receive the appropriate information and advice where 

and when they need it 
ii) The North Wales Population Assessment Regional Plan 2018-2023 

 
The action plan reflects the regional standards, local commissioning approach involved in the offer for carers. The carers offer has been ageed 
as a region, with much of the delivery happening on a local level led by local organisations. This group will have a role in monitoring progress, 
providing support and facilitating joint work where appropriate, with the North Wales Carers Operational Group collaborating to deliver services 
which meet the offer for carers and identifying opportunities to work better together. 

P
age 209



Appendix 4 Carers: NWCSG Action Plan 

2 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

 The offer for carers 

1. Carers views and knowledge 
are sought to co-produce 
plans and strategies 

For carers to be 
involved in the 
design of 
services 

All partners WG survey 
undertaken by local 
authorities 

Patient satisfaction 
survey undertaken by 
BCUHB 

Case studies 
collected as part of 
monitoring services 

Information from 
case studies and 
surveys to be 
reviewed and 
used to inform 
the carers 
strategy in North 
Wales. 

 

2. Carers being involved in local 
decision making 

Agencies 
designed to give 
carers a voice in 
local decision 
making and 
make sure all 
services in the 
area become 
more carer- 
aware and carer- 
friendly 

All partners Evidence needed to 
establish current 
situation 

Links to be made 
with Public 
Service Boards 
and their Well- 
being plans 

 

3. Policy and Practice Protocols Policy and 
practice 
protocols on 

All partners Confirmation needed 
of current situation 
and sharing of 

  

P
age 210



Appendix 4 Carers: NWCSG Action Plan 

3 

 

 

 
 

  confidentiality 
and sharing 
information are in 
place. 

 information 
arrangements 

  

4. Success measures Success All partners  Carers strategy  
  measures are  measures to be 
  available to  adopted 
  inform the   
  progress of the   
  carers strategy   

 Social Services and Well Being Act 2014 

5. Specialist advocacy available All carers in 
North Wales to 
be able to 
access specialist 
advocacy, 
including for 
Continuing 
Health Care and 
for young carers 

Local authorities, 
BCUHB 

Informal advocacy 
available, with need to 
ensure that formal 
advocacy support is 
available across the 
region 

Increased 
understanding 
needed of why 
carers need 
advocacy, with a 
view to learning 
and improving 
the way services 
are provided, 
which could lead 
in reduced 
demand for 
advocacy. 

 

     To consider the 
possibilities of 
support for self- 
advocacy. 

P
age 211



Appendix 4 Carers: NWCSG Action Plan 

4 

 

 

 
 

 Population Needs Assessment 

6. Flexible carer break provision The need for 
carers to access 
flexible and 
bespoke breaks 
in accordance to 
what matters to 
them 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 
 
 

Third sector 

Discussion held with 
NWASH regarding the 
possibilities of more 
innovative use of 
Direct Payments to 
support carer breaks. 

NWCOG work 
programme in action: 
Contributing to 
National Carers 
Officers Learning and 
Improvement Network 
work stream on 
alternative carer 
breaks. 

Local discussions 
needed to build 
business cases 
locally for using 
Direct Payments 
to facilitate 
flexible carer 
breaks. 

 

     
Third sector 
innovative carer break 
projects. 

 

     
Local initiatives as 
part of third sector led 
projects 

 

P
age 212



Appendix 4 Carers: NWCSG Action Plan 

5 

 

 

 
 

    Social 
prescribing/community 
navigators 

  

P
age 213



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Wales Carers Operational Group Action Plan – April 2018 

Carers have a key role in the health the health and social care environment in Wales and need to be recognised and valued for the support they 
provide. They themselves also need support in this vital role, and local authorities should therefore help ensure that carers are able to live their 
own lives as independently as possible. This is also in line with the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA) which legislates 
for enhanced rights for carers and simplifies and consolidates the law, giving them for the first time equivalent rights to the person they care for. 

 
The action plan is based on: 

 
The offer for carers in North Wales as agreed at the Workshop on 19 March 2018 – Regional standards, local commissioning 

 
i) The Welsh Government’s national priorities for carers: 

 
• Supporting life alongside caring – all carers must have reasonable breaks from their caring role to enable them to maintain their 

capacity to care, and to have a life beyond caring 
• Identifying and recognising carers – fundamental to the success of delivering improved personal well-being outcomes for carers 

is the need to improve carers’ recognition of their role and to ensure they can access the necessary support 
• Providing information, advice and assistance – it is important that carers receive the appropriate information and advice where 

and when they need it 
ii) The North Wales Population Assessment Regional Plan 2018-2023 

 
The action plan reflects the regional standards, local commissioning approach involved in the offer for carers. The carers offer has been ageed 
as a region, with much of the delivery happening on a local level led by local organisations. The North Wales Strategic Group will have a role in 
monitoring progress, providing support and facilitating joint work where appropriate, with the North Wales Carers Operational Group 
collaborating to deliver services which meet the offer for carers and identifying opportunities to work better together. 

P
age 214



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

2 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

 The offer for carers 

1 Carers and the essential role 
they play are identified at first 
contact or as soon as 
possible thereafter 

Need to identify, 
support and 
signpost carers 
at the earliest 
point 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Unclear whether all 
carers are identified. 

 
 

Some carers do not 
wish to be identified. 

  

     
Mapping carer 
pathways 

 

     
Triangle of care work 
incorporates this and 
is implemented in 
mental health services 
(BCUHB) 

 
 
 
Extension   of 
Triangle of Care 
work to  Acute 
services, 
Community 
Mental  Health 
services and 
Dementia 
services. 

P
age 215



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

3 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

    Acute hospital 
discharge support has 
been strengthened 
with support available 
in all 3 hospital sites 

 
 
GP facilitator work 
under review 

Exit strategy 
needed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Data needed on 
GP/community 
hospital  model 
under pilot in 
NEWCIS 

 
 

Synergy in 
outcomes and 
outputs. 

 
 

Royal College of 
General 
Practitioner 
resources to be 
looked at as well 
as the possibility 
of designing 

 

P
age 216



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

4 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

     posters to be 
displayed in GP 
surgeries. Need 
to work towards 
standards for 
GPs. 

 
 
Letter to be 
drafted from the 
RPB to GPs from 
the partnership 
board stating 
what the offer for 
carers from the 
primary carer 
needs to be and 
what the benefits 
to them are. 
Copy to staff. 

 
 

A statement to 
be made to 
carers stating 
what they can 
expect. 

 

P
age 217



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

5 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

2 Carers’ views and knowledge 
are sought, shared, used and 
regularly updated as overall 
care plans and strategies 
take shape 

Need to involve 
carers in the 
planning of 
services, also as 
part of the 
evaluation of 
locally run 
projects 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 
 
 

Third sector 
organisations 

Local partnerships, 
local engagement and 
strategy development 
work involves carers 

 
 
Partnership Carers 
Reference Group 
meets regularly 

  

     
Case studies are 
collated 

     
Surveys – Partnership 
and local authorities 
for WG statistics 

P
age 218



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

6 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

       

3i) Staff are ‘carer aware’ and 
trained in carer engagement 
strategies 

Staff need to be 
aware of and 
welcome the 
valuable 
contribution 
carers can make 
and be mindful of 
carers’ own 
needs. Staff 
need knowledge, 
training and 
support to 
become carer 
aware. 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Training available, but 
unclear as to whether 
this is consistent 
across services. 

 
 
Triangle of care 
incorporates training 
needs 

Social Care Wales 
have commissioned 
Carers Wales to co- 
produce a new 
national online carers 
awareness training 
which will be 
appropriate for health, 
local authority and 
third sector workers. 

Training needs 
analyses 
needed. 

 

P
age 219



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

7 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

3ii) Carers’ training needs are 
being addressed 

Training needs of 
carers to be fed 
into the Social 
Care Workforce 
Development 
Plan (SCWDP). 

Local authorities Training delivered for 
carers by third sector 
organisations. 

 
 
Carers have access to 
SCWDP training. 

Carer training 
needs should be 
incorporated into 
SCWDP, with 
consideration 
given to training 
already provided 
by third sector 

 

4 Policy and practice protocols 
on confidentiality and 
sharing information are in 
place. 

Staff need to be 
confident in 
sharing of 
information with 
carer 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Triangle of care 
incorporates 
understanding of 
confidentiality and 
sharing of information. 

  

5 Defined post(s) responsible 
for carers are in place (carers 
leads) 

Role of carer 
lead officer 
needs to be able 
to influence 
discussions on 
strategic 
direction within 
organisations. 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Each local authority 
has a carers lead 
officer post. 
Responsibilities vary 
from area to area. 

Post of BCUHB 
lead officer 
needs to be 
funded from core 
budget. 

 

6 A carer focused introduction 
to the service and staff is 
available, with a relevant 

Carers need to 
be thought of on 
an equal basis 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Carer leaflets 
available from local 
authorities. 

Understanding 
needed of gaps 
in provision. 

 

P
age 220



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

8 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

 range of information across 
the care pathway. 

as the person 
cared for 

 Triangle of care 
incorporates a 
standard for 
introductory materials 

Audit needed, as 
part of Triangle 
of care work 
where possible. 

 

7 A range of carer support 
services is available. 

Capacity to 
provide bespoke 
services to 
carers according 
to what matters 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 
 
 

Third sector 

A range is available 
across North Wales, 
with differences from 
area to area in terms 
of how service is 
delivered. 

Local 
partnerships to 
work together to 
ensure that 
support services 
are 
commissioned in 
response to what 
matters to carers. 

 

 Social Services and Well Being Act 2014 

8 Carers’ needs assessments To carry out 
needs 
assessments 
where a carer 
appears to have 
support needs 
and to conduct 
regular reviews 

Local authorities Needs assessments 
carried out, but lack of 
clarity and 
consistency in data. 

 
 
One authority 
commissions a third 
sector provider to 
carry out assessments 
on its behalf 

Link to carer 
surveys. What 
are carers telling 
us about the 
sustainability of 
their caring role. 

 

P
age 221



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

9 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

9 Advocacy Independent Local authorities A range of advocacy   
  professional  services are available. 
  advocacy as well   
  as informal   
  advocacy   

 Population Needs Assessment 

10 Flexible carer break provision The need for 
carers to access 
flexible and 
bespoke breaks 
in accordance to 
what matters to 
them 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 
 
 

Third sector 

Contributing to 
National Carers 
Officers Learning and 
Improvement Network 
work stream on 
alternative carer 
breaks. 

  

     
Third sector 
innovative carer break 
projects. 

     
Local initiatives as 
part of third sector led 
projects 

P
age 222



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

10 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

    Social 
prescribing/community 
navigators 

  

11 Supporting carers in 
employment 

Employers to 
develop 

Local authorities 

Health 

Third Sector 

Carers Wales 

Carers Wales 
Employers for Carers 
scheme underway. 

 
 
BCUHB policy for 
carer absences 
adopted but not 
implemented. 

 
 
NEWCIS Carer 
Friendly Employment 
Recognition 
Standards available 

  

12 Young adult carers supported Bespoke support 
needed for 
young adult 
carers 

Third sector 
 
 

Local authorities 
 
 

Health 

Gaps in services 
identified, namely 
more intensive and 
tailored support 
around employment, 
training, confidence 
building and housing. 

Consider the 
possibility of a 
third sector led a 
regional bid to 
the People and 
Places lottery 
fund to improve 
services for 

 

P
age 223



Appendix 5 Carers: NWCOG Action Plan 

11 

 

 

 
 

 INDICATOR/RISK NEED LEAD/KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE 
ACTION 

PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

     young adult 
carers. 

 

P
age 224



Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
 
 
 

North Wales Young Carers Operational Group: Action Plan January 2018 
 

Welsh Government defines young carers as carers who are under the age of 18. The Code of Practice for Part 3 of the SSWWA 
2014 defines young adult carers as being ages 16 to 25. This action plan is inclusive of the needs of all young and young adult 
carers up to age 25 years. 

 
The needs and indicators have been extracted from Annex 1 of Code of Practice on the exercise of social service functions in 
relation to Part 3 SSWWA 2014 (COP) http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/151218part3en.pdf and from the North Wales 
Population Needs Assessment Carers Chapter https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/7-Carers-chapter.pdf 
pages 223-230 (PNA). 

Guiding Principles of the North Wales Young Carer Action Plan. 
 

 That the action plan is based on what matters for young carers/young adult carers 
 That we involve young carers/young adult carers in service design 
 That we develop robust, sustainable and flexible services in partnership to support young adult carers 

 
 
 

 INDICATOR / RISK NEED LEAD/ KEY 
PARTNER 

WHERE ARE WE 
NOW? 

FUTURE ACTION PROGRESS 
R/A/G 

1 The individual is/will 
be unable to access 
support to maintain 
or develop family 
or other significant 
personal 
relationships (COP) 

Need for peer 
support, 
counselling and 
carer break 
services (PNA) 

Local Authority 

Health 

Carer support 
services. 

Additional carer 
break funding for 
LA`s. 

 
School counselling 
services do exist. 

Strengthen link with 
CAMHS and ACEs 
leads. 

 
Link in with MH 
Primary Care and 
Well-Being pathway. 

 

P
age 225

http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/151218part3en.pdf
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/7-Carers-chapter.pdf%20pages%20223-230
https://www.northwalescollaborative.wales/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/7-Carers-chapter.pdf%20pages%20223-230


Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
    YC and schools 

based services re: 
peer support. 

 
Carer support 
services provide 
the majority of 
support. 

Map how available 
formal counselling 
is. 

 
Query: Health 
Representative from 
Childrens Services. 

 

2 The individual 
experiences loss of 
control, or is likely to 
experience loss of 
control, over their 
immediate 
environment and/or 
day-to-day life 
including financial 
stability.(COP) 

Young carers may 
feel insecure about 
their housing as 
they are not able to 
receive benefits or 
take on 
responsibility for 
paying council tax 
themselves (PNA) 

Local Authority 
 
Carer support 
services. 

Currently we don’t 
know we need to 
explore: Links with 
housing, 
contingency 
planning YC 
services, access to 
benefits advice, 
welfare rights etc? 

Work with L/A to 
research need and 
uptake for 
tenancy/housing 
related support for 
YC. 

 
Map what services 
are available and is 
there a need? 

 

3 The individual is 
unable to undertake, 
or is likely to be 
unable to undertake 
family and social 
roles and 
responsibilities that 
enable them to meet 
personal well-being 
outcomes for 
themselves or others 
(COP). 

Need for carer 
breaks and 
opportunities to 
socialise (giving 
them time to be a 
child) (PNA) 

Local Authority 
 
Carer support 
services. 

YC services and 
LA provide these 
provisions. 

 
What is the current 
uptake of Carers 
Assessment? 
Carers 
assessments 
should identify and 
signpost to achieve 
these personal 

YC Services to 
adopt regional 
Young Carer 
Assessment protocol 
currently being 
developed (Vicky 
Allen) 

 

P
age 226



Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
    well-being 

outcomes. 
  

4 The individual’s 
social support 
systems are or could 
be at risk (COP). 

Preventative 
measures to 
prevent the social 
support systems 
becoming at risk 
(PNA) 

Local Authority 
 
Carer support 
services. 

Team Around the 
Family (TAF)/Team 
around Child 
(TAC); Family 
Group meetings; 
and YC services 
address these 
issues. 

Further work to be 
done around 
community support 
and inclusion. 

 

5 The individual is 
unable to attain or 
experience good 
physical and/or 
mental health 
(COP). 

Need for support to 
improve resilience, 
emotional 
wellbeing and self- 
esteem. Need for 
peer support 
networks with other 
young carers who 
understand. 
Counselling 
services and 
support with their 
own health needs 
(PNA) 

Health 
 
Local Authority 

Support services. 

YC Services and 
School based 
counselling. 
Some discounted 
leisure centre 
access. 

Further work to be 
done with CAMHS, 
primary mental 
health services and 
GPs. 

 
Updated mapping of 
current leisure 
opportunities for 
YCs 

 
Training 
opportunities on-line 
re: Mental Health 
information and 
resilience. What else 
is available? 

 

6 The individual is/will 
be unable to access 
and engage in work, 
training, 
education, 
volunteering or 

Need for support 
with education and 
learning 
Young adult carers 
miss or cut short on 
average 48 days of 

Local Authority 

Education services. 

Carer support 
services. 

YCiS programme. 
 
Pilot YCiS in 
primary schools 
from Transitional 
Funds. 

Potential to work 
with Pupil Referral 
Service and Careers 
service to capture 
YC`s in transition? 

 

P
age 227



Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
 recreational activities 

(COP).. 
school each year 
(nearly 5 weeks). 
This among other 
factors can have a 
negative impact on 
achievement and 
future attainment 
(PNA). 

  Make links with 
Challenge Advisors. 

 
Need to establish 
links with Directors 
of Education and 
Cluster Leads to be 
involved in this work. 

 

7 Lack of awareness 
and respect by some 
professionals, 
particularly in health 
(PNA) 

Need for advocacy, 
especially when 
dealing with 
professionals in 
order to have their 
voices heard 
(PNA). 

Local Authority 

Health 

YC Services 
 
National ID card 
being proposed by 
WG. 

 
Childrens 
Advocacy Service 
(unclear if this is 
open to YCs) 

 
Training and 
promotion in and 
for primary care 
health 
professionals 
ongoing. 

Advocacy for YC as 
with adults? 
Potential to map 

 
Triangle of care 
approach for YC`s in 
MH 

 
WCPPE leading on 
work around training 
on medicines 
management for 
YCs 

 

    Medicines 
management 

 

    Triangle of Care  

8 Accessible user 
friendly information 

Access to 
appropriate 

All Partners. YC services SS&WB ACT 
General Functions 

 

P
age 228



Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
 either online or one 

to one without using 
jargon (PNA). 

information, advice 
and assistance 
(PNA) 

 Local Authority IAA 
systems 

 
Health support and 
further IAA 
internally. 

350. In addition, 
alignment to the 
standards within the 
National Standards 
and Quality 
Assurance 
Framework for 
Information Services 
for Young People is 
recommended. 
http://www.promo- 
cymru.org/ 
resources- 
2/national- 
standards-quality- 
assuranceframework 

 

   Promote information 
for YC in the wider 
community. 

9 Problems making 
GP appointments 
and wider issues 
within primary care 
services (PNA) 

Improve 
identification and 
understanding 
within primary care 
(PNA). 

Health 
 
Carer support 
services. 

Targeted 
interventions and 
GP facilitators work 
on-going. 

Governance around 
accessible 
healthcare and how 
we can promote 
from this angle. 

 

    New model of 
primary care 
facilitators being 
assessed to see if 
this has a better 
impact. 

 
Continued 
engagement with 
managed practices 
to show the benefit 
of engaging with 
YC`s. 

P
age 229



Appendix 6 Carers: NWYCOG Action Plan 
 

 

 
     Targeted campaigns 

for GP`s, checklist 
why beneficial to be 
inclusive. 

 

10 Very young carers, 
those under the age 
of eight, are at 
particular risk and 
have been excluded 
from some young 
carers’ assessments 
and services in the 
past on the grounds 
that a child under 
eight shouldn’t have 
any caring 
responsibilities 
(PNA). 

Commissioners 
need to make sure 
there is support in 
place for these 
young people 
whether through 
young carers’ 
services or other 
services for 
vulnerable children 
(PNA). 

All Partners. Work with primary 
schools via YCiS 
programme and YC 
services. 

 
YC services some 
working from age 
5. 

 
Eligibility for care 
and support Part 3 

Establish better and 
targeted links with 
Health visitors, 
school nurse and 
GPs. 

 
Map the 
discrepancies within 
YC services. 

 
Link with private 
nurseries who may 
not be linked in to 
wider work stream. 

 

     Child in Need/ child 
at Risk; are their 
caring roles being 
capture if there is 
already a primary 
need? 

P
age 230



Appendix 7 Carers: CRG Action Plan 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 
Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 

Regimentation and 
institutionalisation of 
support services offered 
to carers. Carers wish to 
be offered a 
personalised and 
bespoke package of 
wrap around care. 

• Inform the Regional Leadership 
board of case studies and 
examples highlighting this issue. 

• Continue to challenge old 
behaviours within Local Authority 
and Health Boards. 

• CRG members to bring issues to 
the attention of the CRG so that 
issues can be tackled in order to 
change culture and processes. 

ALL 

ALL 

Ongoing. • Informed Regional Leadership Group of this 
issue at the CRG Workshop on 16th November 
2017. 

• This has also been completed by professionals 
in their engagement with the Regional 
Leadership Group. 

• This has been captured by the Regional Business 
Manager and put forward in her mapping 
report. 

• This has been captured within our collection of 
carer’s stories to inform the Regional Leadership 
Group. 

• Education around this is ongoing within the 
Health Board and Local Authority. 

• CRG members bring specific issues to the group 
and ones that can be tackled are handed over to 
the appropriate person to be deal with. 

Encourage early 
identification and 
intervention for the 
carer and person cared 
for to take the pressure 
off carers. Good quality 

 
• Educate Health staff. 
• Educate Local Authority staff. 
• Develop a package of training for 

all health and social care staff to 
ensure consistency in awareness 
and provision. 

 
Health Board 

L/A`s  
ALL 

 
Ongoing 
Ongoing 
March 
2018 

• Ongoing awareness raising and training being 
undertaken in BCUHB. Also looking at audits 
and opportunities for procedural change to 
improve identification of carers and what staff 
do with this information once captured. 

• Mandatory training for LA staff on the SSWWA 
2014 and ongoing training being delivered 

North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 – v1 | Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 1 

P
age 231



Appendix 7 Carers: CRG Action Plan 

2 North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 – v1 | Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 
education and training 
for health care 
professionals around 
carers issues. 

   across the region. Still inconsistencies in each 
L/A. 

• Social Care Wales are developing a National 
training package for all health, LA`s and social 
care workers to utilise. All partners have been 
collaborated with and a draft version is due to 
be circulated early next year. 

 
 
 
Eliminate geographical 
barriers and information 
sharing barriers 
between services. In 
order to foster a climate 
of partnership and 
integration. 

• Inform the Regional Leadership 
Group of this issue. 

• Promote consistency with services 
across geographical areas. 

• Allow LA`s and third sector 
organisations to work more closely 
together. 

ALL 

ALL 

Ongoing • Informed Regional Leadership Group of this 
issue at the CRG Workshop on 16th November 
2017. 

• This has also been completed by professionals 
in their engagement with the Regional 
Leadership Group. 

• This has been captured by the Regional Business 
Manager and put forward in her mapping 
report. 

• The Regional Leadership Group has 
recommended that carer’s services budgets are 
pooled. Not only will this spread the funds we 
have further, but this will promote cross 
boundary working. 

P
age 232



Appendix 7 Carers: CRG Action Plan 

3 North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 – v1 | Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 
Improve the experience 
for carers within the 
Continuing Health Care 
(CHC) process. 

• AD and DC to meet with Will 
Williams. 

• AD to work closely with CHC staff 
trainer Sian Kelbrick. 

• AD/DC/WW to look at capturing 
carer experiences in the CHC 
process and how to do this. 

• AD to meet with ASNEW around 
advocacy in the CHC process. 

AD/DC 
LA`s. 
CHC 

Ongoing • AD and DC met with WW on 17th October 2017 
and committed to working more closely 
together. Very important to ensure that carers 
are supported and informed throughout the 
process. 

• Training for staff is very good and explicitly 
states what carer`s are entitled to and should be 
provided with. Carer friendly, however, this 
does not always happen in practice. AD will 
support trainer SK and explore carer issues in 
more depth with staff. 

• DC and WW looking at how to utilise carer 
survey in order to target poor practice and 
highlight good practice in the CHC process. 

• AD met with specialist CHC advisor on 12th 

October from ASNEW, very good however only 
available in some LA areas and long waiting lists. 
Advocacy to be promoted in the CHC process. 

• AD has met with Sian Kelbrick Interim Head of 
CHC Performance and Compliance on 9th March 
2018, I have advise on their strategy and 
suggested future ways of improving carer 
inclusion and engagement. Ad provided Sian 
with the CRG action plan and fed back the 
comments received about the CHC. Sian has 
agreed to adopt out carers servey to drive 

P
age 233



Appendix 7 Carers: CRG Action Plan 

4 North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 – v1 | Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 
    improvement for carers and also will distribute 

out BCUHB Carers Leaflets to every new person 
cared for and family. They are also going to 
adopt their invitation letters to be more carer 
inclusive and advise carers of their rights and a 
right to an advocate. AD has provided the CHC 
with a map of carers` services and advocacy 
services. 

Carers wish to be able to 
access expert advice and 
assistance when issues 
arise in relation to 
mental health and 
substance misuse carers. 

• Feedback to the Mental Health 
Patient Experience Group. 

• Recommend a telephone support 
service/triage service for families 
and carers. 

• Encourage Triangle of Care (ToC) 
principles throughout all of MH 
division which will promote advice 
and assistance being offered to 
carers at the earliest opportunity 
preventing the need for emergency 
advice. 

AD 
BCUHB 

March 
2018 

• ToC audits have been undertaken in all 
rehabilitation units and many CMHT`s. The 
audits have been analysed and in the process of 
feeding back to each unit with 
recommendations and support processes. 

• AD will start to compile report of final findings, 
developments to date and overarching 
recommendations in January 2018. 

• Working closely with third sector partners and 
carers to improve out services for MH carers. 

• (March 2018) The Rehabilitation Units have now 
adopted all of the changes highlighted by the 
ToC and a carer pathway has been created. 

P
age 234



Appendix 7 Carers: CRG Action Plan 

5 North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019 – v1 | Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 
 • AD to write and submit a report to 

the M/HPEG of the ToC finding and 
CRG findings. 

   

Item Action Responsible Deadline Progress 

Carers Week Plans 
 
Monday 11th June to 
Sunday 17th June 2018 

• The group to plan awareness raising 
activities for Carers Week 2018 

CRG members May 2018 • 

 P
age 235



Meeting:  Cabinet 
 
Date:   19 February 2019 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Peredur Jenkins, Cabinet Member for Finance 
 
Subject:  2019/20 Budget 
 
Contact Officer: Dafydd L Edwards, Head of Finance 
 

 
2019/20 BUDGET 

 
Decision sought (dependent on Cabinet decision on part 10 of the report and Appendix 12) 

 
(a) Recommend to the Council (in its meeting on 7 March 2019) that: 
 

1. A budget of £247,797,900 should be set for 2019/20, to be funded by 
£176,551,790 of Government Grant and £71,246,110 Council Tax income, with an 
increase of 5.5%. 

 
2. £18,316,130 is added to the capital programme to be spent in 2019/20 in order to 

establish a capital programme worth £34,991,250 by 2019/20 to be funded from 
the sources noted in Appendix 4 of the report.  

 
(b)  Approve moving forward with implementing the list of savings schemes in Appendix 3, 

in order to establish the budget recommended to the full Council. 
 

(c) Note the Medium Term Financial Strategy and projections in Appendix 8, and adopt 
the plan which is in part 18-20 of it. 

 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council has to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 and, in accordance with the 

usual practice, the annual budget is presented within the context of a medium term 
financial strategy (Appendix 8), ensuring that the budget prepares for the position to 
come, rather than meeting the requirements of one year alone. 

 
1.2 This year, the Council profits from previous years’ medium term planning, as we are 

able to use some previously planned savings to help balance the budget.  Nevertheless,  
some difficult decisions must be made to combine achieving additional savings and 
increasing the Tax by 5.5%. 

 
1.3 It is recommended that the Tax is increased by 5.5% in 2019/20 in order to protect 

services for the people of Gwynedd, as implementing the other savings schemes that 
were considered would have been unacceptable due to the effect on the people of 
Gwynedd. 

 
1.4 Having consulted with the public, and having discussed in two series of workshops in 

December/January, and with the Audit and Governance Committee (14 February), it is 
a matter for the Cabinet to consider the 2019/20 – 2021/22 financial strategy, by 
recommending an appropriate budget to the Council for 2019/20.   

 

Page 246

Agenda Item 8



1.5  By 2019/20, we would need to increase our expenditure by £10.37m in order to “stand 
still” (details in part 3 below), including £2.5m to meet pressures on the services’ 
budgets (details of individual ‘bids’ are in Appendix 2).   

 
1.6 In order to address the financial gap, £5.4m of savings (details in part 4 below and the 

individual schemes are listed in Appendix 3) will have to be attributed, and then Council 
Tax will have to be increased 5.5% (details in part 5 below, and in Appendix 6).  

 
1.7 A thorough review of the Asset Strategy is underway, but for now we have established 

a programme on the basis of the minimum required for 2019/20, as noted in Appendix 
4, which will mean adding £18,316,130 to the 2019/20 capital programme. 

 
1.8  The Medium Term Financial Strategy modelling work in Appendix 8 shows, unless 

anything fundamental changes in the Government’s actions, that it is likely that flexible 
procedures are required in order to realise more savings in following years.  With this 
in mind, it is recommended that the Cabinet considers a savings strategy for the future, 
whilst urging Welsh Government to fund local authorities appropriately. 

 
1.9 The 2019/20 budget attempts to protect the services the Council provides for the 

people of Gwynedd, and recommends a 5.5% Council Tax increase in order to achieve 
that aim this year.  By ensuring savings, they are intended to be achieved in those 
areas which will have the least effect upon our citizens, but this will be more challenging 
by 2020/21 and beyond. 

 
1.10 It is a matter for the full Council to consider the budget and set the Council Tax for 

2019/20 on the basis of the issues noted in the following report.  The detailed report 
notes the factors that influence the proposed revenue budget for 2019/20, and outlines 
the main changes since 2018/19.  

 
 
2. WELSH GOVERNMENT GRANT 

 
2.1 The Welsh Government has announced the settlement to finance local government for 

2019/20.  The details, as announced officially by Welsh Government, are noted in the 
table below, together with the real “cash” figures:  

 

 
Revenue Support Grant  
2018/19 – 2019/20 
 

Total 
Welsh 

Authorities 
£ 

Gwynedd 
Council 
official 

£ 

Gwynedd 
Council 
”cash” 

£ 

2018/19 Government Grant  
(without amendment) 4,214,066,930 176,376,410 175,127,330 

2018/19 Government Grant  
(amended) 4,227,135,930 176,926,640 175,677,570 

2019/20 Government Grant  4,237,431,000 176,551,790 176,551,790 

Increase  £ +10,295,070 -374,850 +874,220 

Increase  % +0.2% -0.2% +0.5% 

 
 Further details are available here – 
  

https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/settlement/lg-settlement-2019-

20/final-settlement-2019-20/?lang=en  

Page 247

https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/settlement/lg-settlement-2019-20/final-settlement-2019-20/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/settlement/lg-settlement-2019-20/final-settlement-2019-20/?lang=en


2.2 It can be seen from the Welsh Government’s official figures which are in the above 
table notionally that Gwynedd Council receives a decrease in the grant of £375k by 
next year (after amending the 2018/19 figure to reflect the transfers into the 
settlement), which is a reduction of -0.2%, with the average increase across Wales 
being +0.2%. 

 
2.3 A number of factors feed the local government grant allocation formula, namely the 

number of pupils, number of income support claimants, etc. and those factors have not 
gone in our favour this year.   

 
2.4 Despite that, in contrast to the £374,850 reduction in the Welsh Government’s “like for 

like” official figures (above), quite a significant increase of £1,249,070 was received 
due to a tax base adjustment, which re-distributes the grant between Welsh local 
authorities.  This was due to a decrease in council tax properties in Gwynedd (to 
compensate for the effect of migration of ‘holiday homes’ to the business rates list), 
compared with the usual general increase in council tax properties across other Welsh 
local authorities.  This means that the grant movement in “cash” terms is a net increase 
of £874,220 which is +0.5%. 

 
 

3. COUNCIL REVENUE EXPENDITURE - 2019/20 
 
3.1 The table below shows the increase in the expenditure required in order to “stand still” 

in 2019/20.  
 

Additional Expenditure Requirements 

 
         £     £ 
Base Budget 
 

 242,862,930 

Staff Salary Inflation 
 

5,260,930  

Teachers’ Pensions 
 

1,632,340  

Other Inflation (suppliers) 
 

2,253,830  

Levies 
 

372,860  

Demography 
 

878,420  

Transfers to the Settlement 
 

546,640  

Bids – Pressures on Services 
 

2,513,390  

Miscellaneous Budget Adjustments 
 

360,060  

Earmark the additional Council Tax 
Premium yield to Reserves 
 

 
669,560 

 

Borrowing Costs / Interest on balances 
 

-149,270  

Services’ Income Adjustments 
 

-100,640  

Teachers’ Pensions Grant  
 

-1,632,340  

Specific Grants 
 

-2,000,000  

Net total of increases 
 

 10,370,000 

Total 2019/20 expenditure 
requirements before savings 

  
253,232,930 

 

  

Page 248



3.2 Base Budget 2018/19 
Although £243m is the net 2018/19 expenditure, it is important to note that the 
Council’s true expenditure is £403m as we receive a multitude of specific grants worth 
£99m and raise nearly £61m for services which we provide. 

    
3.3 Salary inflation £5.26m 

Provision has been made for a 2% salary increase for Council staff, in accordance with 
the national agreement, with a significantly higher % for some staff on lower grades 
worth £1.6m to meet the national ‘living wage’ requirements.  Also, £1.4m is provided 
for a salary increase of up to 3.5% for Gwynedd’s school teachers. 

 
3.4 Teachers’ Pensions - £1.63m 

The Westminster Government has increased the employers pension contribution rate 
for the Teachers’ Pensions Scheme from 16.5% to 23.6% from September 2020, and 
7% of the value of costs for Gwynedd school teachers’ salaries for 7 months is £1.63m.  
The Department for Education is consulting regarding funding the cost fully in schools 
in England, and before long, a specific grant is expected to be received to fund the cost 
in schools in Wales. 

 
3.5 Other inflation £2.25m 

Net amount which includes provision for the effect of the ‘living wage’ (minimum pay) 
on the costs and fees of our private suppliers, together with a significant increase in 
inflation on fuel and energy budgets. 

 
3.6 Levies £373k 

In December 2018, North Wales Fire Authority decided to raise the levy 5.2% on the 
constituent authorities, which increases the requirement on Gwynedd Council of £313k, 
while there was an increase of £10k in special drainage levies for ‘Natural Resources 
Wales’, and a £50k increase in the Snowdonia National Park Authority levy. 

 
3.7 Demography £878k 

Total amount which reflects +£418k due to a net increase in the number of pupils in 
schools, +£471k for the Adults Department due to an unavoidable increase in care 
costs for an ageing population, and +£11k due to an increase in the number of children 
receiving care from the Children and Families Department.   
The net figure of +£418k for schools hides different positions in different sectors, 
namely secondary +£617k, primary -£260k and special +£61k.  

 
3.8 Transfers to the settlement £546k  

Apart from resources for the teachers’ salary agreement (pressures which have been 
included within ‘Salary Inflation’ above), two responsibilities will transfer into the Welsh 
Government’s grant settlement for the Council by 2019/20.  The budgets that will 
transfer to the Council’s budget, together with the relevant responsibilities, will be 
assigned to the relevant departments.  

 
Therefore, there will be an increase of £312k in the Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
Department’s budget to reflect new responsibilities regarding the capital threshold for 
residential care. 

 
There will also be a £234k increase in the Education Department’s budget to reflect the 
transfer of more free school meals in the context of implementing Universal Credit.  

Page 249



3.9 Pressures on Services £2.51m 
 
Unavoidable ‘bids’ – refer to Appendix 2 for details of each individual ‘bid’. 

 
It is recommended to approve applications (“bids”) worth £2.51m by the Council’s 
departments for permanent additional resources to meet the unavoidable pressures on 
their services.   

 
It is also recommended to approve a one-off bid worth £38,280 from the Reserve to 
Assist the Financial Strategy. 

 

Bear in mind that many of the Council’s main priorities (developmental matters in order 
to make a difference) are being funded and commissioned separately (individually by 
Cabinet decisions), through the Council’s Plan.  What is presented here through the 
“bids” are unavoidable commitments that the departments are facing now. 

 
Every department has the right to identify any expenditure which the Council has to 
fulfil to ensure the continuation of basic services. This heading is not for new 
developments, but rather for continuation of current basic services.  

  
Of course, an element of these applications are highlighted whilst reviewing this year’s 
spending patterns.  Others are a result of factors where there is a need for expenditure 
in order to protect outcomes for the public, or to meet statutory requirements.  There 
is also an element of central government creating more pressure and expectations, and 
then we have to deal with the consequential effects. 

 
The items presented here in Appendix 2 have been challenged thoroughly by the 
Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet Member for Finance before being 
recommended to be approved by the Cabinet.  Further, all these ‘bids’ were discussed 
when they were presented on slides at the series of ‘Budget Workshops’ on 4-7 
December 2018, where Council members reached a consensus that the expenditure 
was unavoidable. 
 

3.10 Adjustments to Miscellaneous Budget £360k 
A total which reflects a significant number of adjustments in provisions across the 
Council, but mainly to earmark a reserve to address possible additional expenditure 
pressures during 2019/20 (especially in the children’s care field) and also to address 
income predicaments during 2019/20 (similar to the decision regarding the price of 
school meals in September 2018). 
 

3.11 Council Tax Premium £670k 
  It is recommended to earmark the Council Tax Premium yield in 2019/20 in a specific 

reserve to be used to finance the Council’s Housing Strategy.  £2.03m had been 
earmarked in the original budget for 2018/19, therefore the additional £670k will mean 
a total of £2.7m by 2019/20. 

 
Specific attention is given to this in Appendix 6. 

 
3.12 Borrowing Costs and Interest on Balances -£149k 

Projection of a reduction in interest payable on loans in 2019/20, as old long-term loans 
come to an end. 

 
3.13 Adjustments to Services’ Income Budgets -£101k 

Net amount which has adjusted services’ income targets, including -£198k Adults 
(Welsh Government has raised the non-residential weekly fees cap from £70 to £80), 

Page 250



the Education Department +£66k (the cost of freezing the price of school meals in 
September 2018), Consultancy -£100k (additional staff fees), Finance +£97k (£55k as 
a result of new bank costs and £42k benefit subsidy adjustment), Economy and 
Community +£30k (mainly Maritime fees), and Environment +£5k (+£40k planning 
fees, -£20k street care, and -£15k traffic and statutory arrangements). 

 
3.14 Specific Grants -£2m 
 

A substantial number of specific grants are received where the Council is often expected 
to commit to additional specific expenditure.  In some cases, specific grants can be 
used to fund pressures on unavoidable expenditure. 

 
This has already been mentioned in 3.4 above where a specific grant is expected in 
order to fund the additional cost of teachers’ pensions.  Also, a grant of £0.3m is 
expected to fund teachers’ salaries inflation in 2019/20, a £1.2m care pressures grant 
which could be used to fund Adults and Children’s demography and ‘bids’, together 
with £0.5m to prevent children from being taken into care which could be used to fund 
some of the Children’s Department’s preventative bids. 
 
 

4. SAVINGS 
 
4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy presented with the 2018/19 budget to the full 

Council on the 8th of March 2018 forecasted a funding gap of between £11m and £20m 
over the 3 years 2018/19 – 2020/21.  Therefore, it was decided to make an early start 
on the challenging task of identifying significant savings for 2019/20 and beyond. 

 
4.2 This resulted in the Cabinet setting challenging savings targets for the departments, 

considering all ‘possible’ schemes presented by department heads during the summer 
of 2018.  The Cabinet members achieved the difficult work of selecting the schemes 
presented here in Appendix 3, disregarding options where the effect on the people of 
Gwynedd would be unacceptable. 

 
4.3 Having identified the probable 2019/20 funding gap in the wake of the Welsh 

Government’s disappointing indicative ‘settlement’ for local authorities in October 2018, 
the budget position was explained to Council members in a series of ‘Budget 
Workshops’ on 4–7 December 2018. 

 
4.4 Having listened to members’ feedback in the ‘Budget Workshops’, the Cabinet Member 

for Finance presented a report on proposed savings to the Cabinet meeting on 18 
December 2018, noting that the Council is facing a significant funding gap by 2019/20 
and is presenting a programme of savings to partly address the gap, with the increase 
in Council Tax having to address the residual gap.  The Cabinet decided to adopt the 
savings schemes presented in 6 lists, depending on the results of the consultation, as 
ones that the Council would have to achieve.  Details of the relevant minutes and the 
original lists are here -  

 
https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=12357 

 
4.5 The Cabinet held a public consultation during January 2019 and the main findings have 

been announced on line.  These conclusions are also presented here in Appendix 11, 
and the Cabinet must pay approriate attention to the results of the consultation whilst 
deciding on implementing the savings schemes.  The public’s objection to some specific 

Page 251

https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=12357


plans were considered in the Members’ Workshop on 5 February, and some of thoes 
have been chosen in Appendix 12.  

 
4.6 Also, 6 ‘Savings Workshops’ were held with Council members on 18–28 January to see 

if members wanted to change direction, and an informal collective meeting was held 
on 5 February in order to ensure members’ consent on the way ahead. 

 
4.7 Therefore, depending on the Cabinet’s decision on part 10 of the report and Appendix 

12, should the Council approve implementing the proposed schemes presented in 
Appendix 3, we would harvest £2.45m worth of further savings in 2019/20. 

 
4.8 Also, in order to address the funding gap, £2.48m of ‘Gwynedd Challenge’ savings, 

which have already been approved for 2019/20, can be harvested. 
 
4.9 Additionally, the Chief Executive was asked to go ahead with his ideas to find a further 

£0.5m efficiency savings in order to reduce the funding gap. 
 

 
Savings to address the 2019/20 Funding Gap 

 
Approved Gwynedd Challenge Savings 

           £ 
2,483,100 

Proposed Savings Schemes 2,451,930 
Further Efficiency Savings 500,000 
Total Savings to close the Gap 
 

5,435,030 

 
4.10 As a result, there would be a total of £5.4m savings to be used to reduce the funding 

gap.  Clearly, an alternative decision on the schemes in Appendix 12 would mean a 
reduced total, as noted in part 10 of the report. 

 
4.11 All the proposed savings schemes which need to be approved are presented here in 

Appendix 3, as presented to the Cabinet on 18/12/18, but with updated assessment 
impact details / links. 

 
 

5. 2019/20 FUNDING GAP AND THE COUNCIL TAX 
  
5.1 It can be seen from part 3 above, that the Council’s expenditure requirements (before 

deducting savings) for 2019/20 are £253.2m.  It is noted in part 2 above that the Welsh 
Government’s grant will be £176.6m. 

 
5.2 As explained in part 3 above, a total of £5.4m of savings to be used to reduce the 

funding gap. 
 

 
Establishing the 2019/20 Budget 

 
2018/19 Base Budget 

            £ 
242,862,930 

Additional Expenditure Requirements 10,370,000 
2019/20 Expenditure Requirements before Savings 253,232,930 
less Welsh Government Revenue Grant Income -176,551,790 
less Total Savings to close the Gap -5,435,030 
Funding Gap from Council Tax 71,246,110 
  

Page 252



5.3 This means that there is a remaining gap of £71.25m, and it is recommended to meet 
that gap with Council Tax.  The Tax would need to be raised by 5.5% in order to 
produce sufficient income.  Again, should there be an alternative decision on the 
savings schemes in Appendix 12, then the gap to be funded from the Tax would be 
more, as noted in part 10 below. 

 
5.4 Background information and the context for setting the Tax level (together with details 

of the Premium on second homes and empty properties) is presented in Appendix 6. 
 
 
6. CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 This report and the appendices set out the factors that should be considered when 

establishing the 2019/20 budget and confirms that the savings strategy to address 
the financial position which the Council is facing must continue. 

 
 

2019/20 BUDGET 
 

6.2 Dependent on the Cabinet’s decision on Appendix 12, it is recommended to address 
a revenue expenditure requirement of £247.8m, having added £10.4m (which includes 
a provision of £2.5m for pressures on services).  

 
6.3 After receiving a grant of £176.6m from Welsh Government and depending on £5.4m 

of savings, the level of Council Tax will need to increase 5.5% to yield £71.25m of 
income in order to close the 2019/20 funding gap.  

 

 
Balanced budget for 2019/2020 

 
2019/20 Expenditure Requirements before Savings 

       £ 
253,232,930 

2019/20 Savings Total -5,435,030 
2019/20 Budget 247,797,900 
  
To be funded from -  
Grant Income 176,551,790 
Council Tax (yield after raising 5.5%) 71,246,110 
2019/20 Budget 
 

247,797,900 

 
6.4 This will mean setting a net budget  of £247,797,900.  An analysis of the budget per 

service is given in Appendix 1.  Once again, should there be an alternative decision 
on the savings schemes in Appendix 12, then the budget figure would be more, as 
noted in part 10 below. 

 
 
7. CAPITAL 
 
7.1 It is intended to establish a new 2019/20 – 2028/29 asset strategy and present it for 

approval soon.  Details are in Appendix 4. 
 
7.2 For the time being, it is recommended to add £18,316,130 to the capital programme 

to be spent in 2019/20, in order to establish a total programme worth £34,991,250 to 
be funded from the sources noted in Appendix 4.   

Page 253



8. LONGER TERM STRATEGY 
 
8.1 The revised Medium Term Financial Strategy is included here in Appendix 8.  This year, 

there is more uncertainty about the future due to the Westminster Government’s 2019 
Expenditure Review. 

 
8.2 On the basis of our assumptions, it is probable that additional savings will need to be 

identified by 2020/21 and 2021/22, and that could be as much as £10m over the two 
years.  Should the medium scenario in our projections happen, £5.6m more savings 
would be required over the two years 2020/21 and 2021/22, but an element of the 
2019/20 savings yield (up to £4.2m) will be available as a head start whilst addressing 
part of the required savings. 

 
8.3 Therefore, a savings strategy for the future will need to be considered, whilst urging 

Welsh Government to fund local authorities appropriately. 
 
 
9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS AND VARIOUS ASSESSMENTS 
 
9.1 It is considered that the current level of general balances, i.e. £6m, is appropriate and 

this budget does not recommend the use of these balances for practical cash flow and 
unexpected expenditure.  Detailed information about the balances and reserves are 
presented in Appendix 7. 

 
9.2 Appendix 5 explains Gwynedd’s schools’ very favourable budget position in detail. 
 
9.3 When deciding on a budget, and in particular regarding savings schemes, the Cabinet 

and the Council must consider the effects of their decisions from an equality perspective 
in accordance with the Council’s statutory duties through the 2010 Equality Act.  As a 
result, detailed assessments have been prepared for the individual savings schemes 
and also for the Budget.  Appendix 9 deals specifically with the duty, and the results of 
the assessments are summarised in Appendix 3.  The complete assessments are 
available as background documents by following the links in Appendix 3. 

   
9.4 The Council implements the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 

recommendations in the report are based and developed in accordance with the 
Council’s statutory duty under Section 3 to undertake sustainable development in all 
its activities.  More detailed information about the Wellbeing Act and relevant findings 
are in Appendix 10. 

 
9.5 The statutory finance officer must express an opinion on the robustness of the 

estimates.  An assessment of risks and appropriate confirmation are presented in 
Appendix 13. 

 
  

Page 254



10. ALTERNATIVE DECISIONS 
 
10.1 On 5 February 2019 in a Big Savings Workshop, 5 savings schemes were chosen for 

further attention.  These are set out in Appendix 12. 
 
10.2 Should there be a decision not to action these 5 schemes, the figures in the above 

recommendations would change as follows – 
 

2019/20 Above Report Adjustment Change 

Budget 247,797,900 +71,720 247,869,620 

Income from Tax 71,246,110 +71,720 71,317,830 

Savings Total 5,435,030 -71,720 5,363,310 

Tax Increase 5.5% 0.1% 5.6% 

 
 
 
 

 
Opinion of local member 
Not a local matter 
 

 
Views of the Statutory Officers 
 
Monitoring Officer: 
It is apparent that there are a number of considerations for the Cabinet to take into account 
in forming a recommendation on the Budget for the Council and in deciding on the programme 
of savings to meet the financial gap. The report provides detailed information in relation to 
these matters.  It is important that the Cabinet gives appropriate attention to all these matters 
in coming to a view. The results of the public consultation exercise are also reported upon in 
detail and appropriate consideration needs to be taken of the responses received in coming to 
a conclusion.  I can provide any further guidance in the meeting.  
 
Head of Finance: 
I have collaborated with the Cabinet Member in the preparation of this report and I confirm 
the content.  Having considered all the risks outlined in Appendix 13 to the report, and the 
mitigation steps, I am of the opinion that the Council’s Budget for 2019/20 is robust, sufficient, 
and achievable. 
 
  

Page 255



 
 

APPENDICES 
 

 

1 Budget Summary 
 

2 Bids 
 

3 Savings 
 

4 Capital 
 

5 Dealing with the Schools’ Budget in 2019/20  
 

6 Council Tax 
 

7 Balances 
 

8 Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 

9 Equality Impact Assessment 
 

10 Wellbeing of Future Generations Act  
 

11 
 

Consultation Results 

12 Alternative Decisions 
 

13 Robustness of Estimates 
 

 
 
 

Page 256



APPENDIX 1 - BUDGET SUMMARY

PROPSED BUDGETS BY SERVICE 2019/20

Base Transfer Pay Inflation Other Demography Various Pressure Adjusting Utilising Savings Base

Budget to the and Inflation Budget on Income Specific & Budget

2018/19 Settlement Pensions Adjustments Services Budgets Grants Cuts 2019/20

DEPARTMENTS £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Corporate Management Team and 

Legal 2,046 28 19 0 (201) 1,892

Corporate Support 7,741 150 42 (9) (363) 7,561

Finance 6,613 157 25 (15) 98 97 (559) 6,416

Highways and Municipal 23,790 532 367 89 36 (260) 24,554

Environment 5,130 184 3 34 (25) 5 (367) 4,964

Gwynedd Consultancy 229 91 (98) (15) (100) (127) (20)

Central Education 14,431 234 250 182 265 93 (104) 15,351

Schools Budget 70,043 0 3,745 264 418 (257) (68) 66 (1,932) (248) 72,031

Economy and Community 4,165 298 (105) (434) 30 (338) 3,616

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 50,426 312 1,166 976 471 245 1,180 (199) (1,200) (1,465) 51,912

Children and Supporting Families 13,842 285 124 (11) 98 631 (500) (293) 14,176

Departmental Total 198,456 546 6,886 1,799 878 1 1,945 (101) (3,632) (4,325) 202,453
Corporate and 

Capital Matters 44,942 6 453 600 (1,111) 44,890

TOTAL = 243,398 546 6,892 2,252 878 601 1,945 (101) (3,632) (5,436) 247,343

Less Community Council Precepts (2,207) (2,207)

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 241,191 546 6,892 2,252 878 601 1,945 (101) (3,632) (5,436) 245,136

Financed by:

Balances and Specific Reserves 1,672 420 570 0 2,662

NET EXPENDITURE TOTAL = 242,863 546 6,892 2,252 878 1,021 2,515 (101) (3,632) (5,436) 247,798

Financed Through:-

Grant 175,127 176,552

Council Tax 67,736 71,246

Total Income 242,863 247,798

P
age 257



APPENDIX 2

Ref Bid Title Permanent    

(£)

One-off    

(£)

Settlement  

(£)

Capital 

(£)

Education Department

Bid 1 School Taxi Transport 400,000

Bid 2 Integration – Statements / Individual 

Development Plan  
193,000

Finance Department

Bid 3 Increase in Microsoft Software prices 97,890

Adults, Health and Well-being Department

Bid 4 Homelessness Prevention 35,000

Bid 5 Learning disability - Transition Age 286,800

Bid 6 Occupational Therapist - Learning Disability 23,000

Bid 7 Social Workers - Learning Disability 45,500

Bid 8 Registering Care Workers 38,280

Bid 9 Safeguarding Hub 51,000

Bid 10 Permanent resources to staff the new Dementia 

Units 

808,000

Children and Supporting Families Department

Bid 11 Social Worker x2 100,000

Bid 12 Additional Occupational Therapy Capacity 23,000

Bid 13 Returning Home Interviews 20,000

Bid 14 Child Placements 657,000

Highways and Municipal Department

Bid 15 Waste Matters 36,150

Education Department

Set 1 Free School Meals - Impact of the Universal Credit 

Full Service (UCFS)
234,150

Adults, Health and Well-being Department

Set 2 Change in the Capital Threshold that forms the 

basis of Self-Funding Care Service from £40,000 

to £50,000 

312,490

Economy and Community Department

Cap 1 Renew Mobile Shelving System Tracks - 

Caernarfon Library Storeroom
57,350

Cap 2 Voluntary Development Fund (CIST Gwynedd) 50,000

Cap 3 Adapt Changing Rooms at Glaslyn and Dwyfor 

Leisure Centres 
12,800

Cap 4 Urgent Repair Works to Parc Glynllifon Structures 48,000

Page 258



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Details of the Bid 

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT (G.T.) 
 

Bid 1 School Taxi Transport - £400,000 Permanent  
 

The department forecasts an overspent of £721,130 in 2019/20 and is based on a budget of 
£2,100,340 compared with commitments of £2,821,470:- 

 School taxis operated by the Integrated Transportation Unit £2,596,620 
 Parent taxis operated by the Integrated Transportation Unit £101,340 
 Others - including contracts with Cambrian Railway and "Pecyn 25" taxi contracts 

operated by the Education Department and Out of County Transport operated by 
other Authorities £123,510 

 
How – the bid will reduce the overspent in the Department's revenue budget.  
 

Risks - failing to meet the requirements of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008. 
 
Comments – It is recommended that the application is supported, but the Department have 
been instructed to bring the overspend under control. 
 

 

Bid 2 Integration – Statements / Individual Development Plan (IDP) - 

£193,000 Permanent 
 
Since 2016/17, there has been a significant annual increase in the cost of Statements/IDP 
that are mainly funded by reducing the 'Integrated Other' allocation. By now, the ‘Strategic 
Review of Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion' is taking from this heading, and therefore 
a bid is submitted for the permanent shortfall of £193,000.          
 
If the patterns of significant cost increase between 2016/17 and 2018/19 continues in 
2019/20, there will be a deficit of £400,000 in this heading.  An Independent Review is 
currently ongoing which looks into the procedures, criteria and trends over the last 3-5 years 
to find whether there are any trends, the impact of inward migration and looked after children 
coming into the county; cross-departmental support for vulnerable families and the burden 
on the Education Department; impact of commencing the use of Individual Development Plans 
rather than Statutory Assessments. 
 
How - the additional revenue would fund the deficit following losing the ‘Integrated Other’ 
budget contribution. 
 
Risks - should the bid be refused the school quantum would have to be cut in 2019/20.  
 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported, but the Department have 
been instructed to keep the budget under control. 
 
 

  

Page 259



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT (P.J.) 
 

Bid 3 Increase in Microsoft Software prices - £97,890 Permanent  

 
The Windows and Office software agreement (including e-mail, Skype and Sharepoint) at 
the current price will come to an end on 30 June 2019, and this software is essential to our 
use of computers and there is no practical option other than to continue to use this 
software.    
 
How - Funding the additional requirement would enable us to continue to use software that 
is essential to the day to day work of any officer who uses computers.  
 
Risks - Should the additional funding support not be available, we will face having to cut the 
number of computer users from 2,182 to 1,524.  It would be a less detrimental impact than 
not using the Windows and Office software at all.  In turn, this change would have an impact 
on our ability to support and provide services to the County's residents. 
 
Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 260



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING DEPARTMENT (G.R.) 

Bid 4 Homelessness Prevention - £35,000 Permanent 

The Housing Act (Wales) 2014 places a statutory duty on the Council to assist in preventing 

homelessness or to find somewhere else to live for people who present themselves at risk of 

becoming homeless. Since this Act emerged in April 2015, there has been a significant 

increase in the number of cases presented to the homelessness service along with an increase 

in the number of people who enter temporary accommodation.    

Whilst coping with the significant increase, the service also lost staff in the savings cycle of 

2015/16. This means that the number of cases per staff member has increased significantly 

which has led to less time to carry out homeless prevention work and work to move people 

on and out of temporary accommodation.  There is also an increase in the number of complex 

cases meaning that there is a need to spend more time on each case to find solutions. 

A recent review of the service by an independent consultant (Arc4, September 2018) 

anticipates that the increase in demand for the service will continue.  This is common across 

other Local Authorities and we know that Conwy and Denbighshire Councils have invested to 

respond to the challenge. 

How - fund 1 Housing Solutions Case Worker.  This would enable the Team to carry out more 

early intervention work to prevent homelessness by avoiding placing people in temporary 

accommodation and in turn reducing the financial burden and the need to use short-term 

arrangements.  

Risks - failure to deliver statutory responsibilities to prevent homelessness in accordance with 

the Housing Act (Wales) 2014; increase the time it takes to deliver what is important to the 

client; number of people being housed in temporary accommodation will increase which could 

destabilise vulnerable individuals and increase costs. 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Bid 5 Learning disability - Transition Age - £286,800 Permanent 

Fund the care packages of 11 individuals who are transferring from the Children and 

Families Department to the Adults, Health and Well-being Department (Learning Disability).   

This will include Direct Payments, Supported Accommodation or Day Service to meet with 

the needs of the individuals and their families. 

 

How - enabling families/carers to continue to care for individuals who have significant 

needs, giving the individual the opportunity to develop further skills with the intention of 

promoting independence.   

 

Risks - failing to meet the statutory responsibilities of the service in accordance with the 

Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 and the possibility that the situation at 

home might break down, which could lead to having to place the individuals in more 

expensive placements.  

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 261



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Bid 6 Occupational Therapist - Learning Disability - £23,000 Permanent 

(Bid for one therapist to be shared between this department and the Children and 

Supporting Families Department). 

There has been no Occupational Therapy expertise in the Learning Disability Service for some 

years now, and the impact can be seen in our ability to work as a multi-disciplinary team, 

and also when dealing with complex cases (e.g. court proceedings where specialist reports 

are required). In a time where we are transforming our services, developing this role within 

our service is crucial on many levels:-  

Strategic: In order to advise us of new developments, especially on the design of buildings 
we are transforming to become hubs and also in terms of the development of new buildings.  

 
Operational: We need this role on a preventative level and also to work with some of the 
intensive and complex cases. It will be possible for this role to work with the multi-disciplinary 
team to advise other workers and families in terms of dealing with challenging behaviour.  
This role would be able to collaborate on intensive and complex cases to create a support 
plan in a creative way to meet the needs with a person centred planning approach. 
 

How - an element of the bid is essential to meet with the service's statutory responsibilities 

in accordance with the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014. Presently, the 

service is offered by the adults’ service, it is not sufficiently specialised to meet the needs of 

adults with learning disabilities and to focus specifically on assessments in terms of 

equipment.  The aim is to develop a service that focuses on dealing with challenging 

behaviour and to adapt the environment in order to reduce difficult and challenging 

behaviour. There would also be scope for this role to advise our staff/support workers who 

often deal with challenging behaviours and require this specialist support and advice. 

Risks - failing to comply with the service's statutory responsibilities in accordance with the 

Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 and lack of Occupational Therapy 

expertise in the field of Learning Disabilities. 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 262



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Bid 7 Social Workers - Learning Disability - £45,500 Permanent 

Since 2013, two Learning Disabilities Social Worker posts have been funded on a temporary 

basis by the Council Plan. There are a number of benefits to both posts including, scrutinising 

service quality, reviewing care packages, assessments and plans; collecting information to 

profile services and feed into the commissioning procedure for planning service provision in 

future; freeing up the time of every worker to manage more cases and plan ahead in greater 

detail; greater capacity to review packages; by holding regular reviews, being able to identify 

savings immediately and amend care plans in accordance with the needs assessment; 

developing the importance of reviewing and further savings in the service; provide workers 

with the professional credibility to develop and change service in a creative way in light of 

detailed reviews; improve the quality of the service and scrutinising providers.  

How - an element of the bid is essential to meet with the service's statutory responsibilities 

in accordance with the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014.  

Historically, the Disabilities Service has had fewer Social Workers than other teams. Since 

2013, when this capacity was developed as part of the service, it has had a significant impact, 

including its ability to meet needs in a creative way, review needs on time, address more 

than £600k in savings, and recover significant amounts by challenging the Continuous Health 

Care procedure and a reduction in the number of adults receiving service out of county in 

Gwynedd. 

Currently, both posts are on a temporary basis. This team is stable and works well. This 

budget would create one permanent post on the structure.  There has been significant 

investment in staff development and the whole team (in a positive period of transformation).  

Risks - failing to comply with the service's statutory responsibilities in accordance with the 

Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 and a risk of losing key staff members.   

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 263



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Bid 8 Registering Care Workers - £38,280 One-off 

The Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 noted that a register of care 

workers must be maintained. The senior workers have already registered with Social Care 

Wales, but now there is an expectation for frontline care staff e.g.  Home Carers and Staff 

in Residential Homes to register every year.      

 

There is a need to invest time in training and ensure that front-line staff know how to 

register and what's expected of them.  The bid was originally submitted in 2018/19 and an 

officer has been appointed to this post from August 2018 until the end of March 2019.   

This is a further application for a temporary resource to continue with this work in 2019/20 

and 2020/21.  Training has begun for home care staff and it is anticipated that support will 

be provided to register up to 30 members of staff every month.  It is anticipated that this 

additional resource will continue with the work of registering the home care workforce 

during 2019/20 mainly, and residential home workers being addressed in 2020/21.    

How - to provide a full response to statutory requirements and support the workforce.   

 

Risks - not able to employ staff to undertake our statutory services in terms of caring for 

the most vulnerable residents.   

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 264



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Bid 9 Safeguarding Hub - £51,000 Permanent 

Establish a Safeguarding Hub within the Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Team, by 

funding a leading post to ensure that the Authority meets its statutory responsibilities in 

relation to safeguarding matters as noted in section 7, the Social Services and Well-being Act 

(Wales) 2014.    

There will be responsibility for developing the Safeguarding Hub to receive all of the Adults 

Department's safeguarding enquiries along with determining and agreeing on how to manage 

the enquiries/ referrals to ensure that residents are safe. It will ensure that the legal 

responsibilities and the department policies in the Safeguarding field are met.  

It will provide a single point of contact for all safety referrals and enquiries ensuring a timely 

and suitable response preventing delay and duplication. 

Care Inspectorate Wales has noted the need to strengthen arrangements in relation to 

safeguarding matters.   

How - having a single point of contact for safeguarding matters will ensure consistency in 

the response across areas and services; officer developing expertise in the field and 

providing specific advice and guidance to the service, and working very closely with the 

area teams and developing a close relationship with partners; supporting the Department 

to ensure that DOLS Best Interest assessments are completed in accordance with legal 

requirements.  

Risks - inconsistencies in terms of responding to safeguarding enquiries and referrals across 

areas and services; without a single point of contact, the service is not easy for individuals 

to contact therefore there is a risk of delay in response; duplication or lack of implementation 

as there is no one to take the lead; the importance of the work not highlighted when adding 

duties of leaders' roles; lack of expertise increases risk to safety and well-being; without a 

designated person, it will be difficult to develop a relationship with partners such as the 

Health Board's safeguarding officers. 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Bid 10 Permanent resources to staff the new Dementia Units - £808,000 

Permanent 
 
Bid for permanent resources to staff the new Dementia Units at Llys Cadfan, Plas Hafan, 
Plas Hedd and Bryn Blodau to support the implementation of the Redesigning Care Services 
priority within the Council Plan and to meet the requirements of Care Inspectorate Wales in 
terms of residential homes’ staffing rotas. 
 
How – Each of the dementia units will be a home for 7 or 8 individuals. 
 
Risks – Without this investment, the contribution of the four homes to the Council Plan’s 
aim of offering dementia care and end-of-life care / more intensive care nearer to home 
will be limited. 
 
Comments – The approval of the Cabinet on 27 November 2018 has prejudged the decision 
on the permanent ‘bid’. 
 

Page 265



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

CHILDREN AND SUPPORTING FAMILIES DEPARTMENT (D.M.) 

Bid 11 Social Worker x2 - £100,000 Permanent 

In order to manage the increase in demand for service in light of the increase in the number 

of court cases, an increase in the number of looked after children and children who live at 

home following a court case, the Department has had to ensure that the Arfon children's 

team has enough social workers to cope with the workload and ensure that the work load is 

not unreasonable. Maintaining placements with parents is more challenging than supporting 

foster and residential placements as the plans continue to have a level of risk following a 

court case. 

To ensure that every looked after child has a designated social worker, the department has 

been reporting an overspend on social work jobs over the last five years, with an additional 

2.5 officers being employed.  

How - it will enable the team to continue to operate as is currently does, but will create two 

permanent posts on the structure.    

Risk - the department will continue to overspend on staffing in the Arfon children's team.  

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Bid 12 Additional Occupational Therapy Capacity - £23,000 Permanent 

(Bid for one therapist to be shared between this department and the Adults, Health and 

Well-being Department). 

The Derwen service for disabled children is integrated with the health service. The 

responsibility to assess adaptations for disabled children falls on the Council's Occupational 

Therapist.  In addition, the Therapist provides training on manual handling equipment before 

staff can use the equipment when working with children.  

There is a waiting list for assessment by the Occupational Therapist and there is only one 

Occupational Therapist across all of the county.  Complex cases also mean that it is not 

possible to address less complicated cases early enough.  

The workload is too much for one full-time officer and in the absence of an Occupational 

Therapist, it is not possible to act.   

How - increase the Occupational Therapy capacity that would reduce the waiting list, 

reduce waiting times for assessment and would therefore provide a service or adaptation 

much sooner.   

Risk - incorrect use of equipment and therefore risk of harm to a child and/or staff 

member, complaints due to the Council's failure to provide a service and possible actions / 

threat to the registration of the Support Service by CSSIW. 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Page 266



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

Bid 13 Returning Home Interviews - £20,000 Permanent 

Child sexual exploitation is one of the safeguarding priorities of the Council and the 

Safeguarding Children Regional Board. In the past in situations where looked after children 

go missing from care and then return, the police used to hold a returning home interview to 

obtain information about the time they went missing and to ensure they were not harmed. 

A few years ago the police secured a grant, and Barnardo’s Cymru was commissioned to hold 

these interviews with the north Wales local authorities' looked after children and young 

people.  When the grant period came to an end, it was expected for local authorities to hold 

these interviews, and this was approved by the Regional Operational Board and by the Chief 

Executives across north Wales. 

The Returning Home Interviews for Gwynedd children who go missing are held by the social 

worker, and the information is transferred to the police.  These are very small numbers 

compared with the numbers who are not looked after children in Gwynedd, but are placed 

here in private residential provisions. There are no resources in the service to meet this 

requirement without additional resources. 

How - it will provide extra resource to the structure on a key worker level which will be 

based in the youth justice service and will ensure that we will comply with regional 

safeguarding expectations.   

Risk - non-compliance with children and young people safeguarding requirements as 

determined by the Regional Operational Board.  Additionally, a lack of compliance in this 

field would be open to criticism from Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW).  

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

Bid 14 Child Placements - £657,000 Permanent 

Although there are strategies in place to use placements efficiently and to scrutinise 

arrangements regularly there is no control over the nature and number of applications. The 

number of applications this year for intensive and complex cases makes an out-of-county 

residential placement unavoidable. The department has endeavoured to reduce the number 

of residential placements as part of an end to end plan, but the demand this year for this 

type of placement is much higher than expected. 

How - the current budget is committed to the current placements, and therefore it is not 

possible to have additional placement without overspending against the budget. The bid is 

based on the estimated expenditure for 2019/20. 

Risk - failing to place could lead to a situation where we will not be operating legally where 

a risk assessment shows that it is not safe for them to remain at home.  Also, not 

responding could lead to overspending. 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

  

Page 267



  APPENDIX 2a 
REVENUE BIDS 2019/20 

HIGHWAYS AND MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENT (G.W.G.) 

Bid 15 Waste Matters - £36,150 Permanent 

Dealing with Recycling materials - There are increasing costs as a consequence of more 

recycling materials such as rubble, hazardous waste and timber in the Recycling Centres 

along with increasing transportation costs. 

How - the bid would ensure that the service is able to keep up with demand and deal with 

recycling materials.    

Risks - failing to reach and maintain Welsh Government's statutory targets and failing to 

provide a service to Gwynedd residents.  

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 
 

 

 

Page 268



  APPENDIX 2b 
2019/20 SETTLEMENT (TRANSFER IN / NEW RESPONSIBILITY) 

Details of the Settlement 

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT (G.T.) 
 

Set 1 Free School Meals - Impact of the Universal Credit Full Service (UCFS) - 

£234,150 Permanent 
 
The Universal Credit Full Service is a new benefit payment that supports people who are on 
a low income or unemployed.  It will replace 6 benefit payments, namely, Income based Job 
seeking Allowance; Income-based Employment and Support Allowance; Income Support; 
Working Tax Credit; Child Tax Credit and Housing Benefit. 
 
By 12 December 2018 Gwynedd will go live with the UCFS and consequently, it is expected 
there will be an increase in the number of children receiving free school meals.  
 
Welsh Government has allocated £7 million to Welsh Authorities to address the impact of 
UCFS on the School Meals service as the number of pupils entitled to free school meals will 
increase. Consequently, the school meals income is expected to fall, with an increase in free 
school meals costs. 
 
An application is made for £234,150, which is Gwynedd's element of the transfers into the 
settlement. 
 
How - there will be no overspend in the Department's revenue budget as an adjustment will 
be made to the school meals income budget and the free school meals expenditure budget.  
 
Risks - should the bid be refused there would be an overspend in the Department's revenue 
budget from 2019/20 onwards.  
 

Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING DEPARTMENT (G.R.) 

 

Set 2 Change in the Capital Threshold that forms the basis of Self-Funding Care 

Service from £40,000 to £50,000 - £312,490 Permanent 
 
An application following on from the decision of the Welsh Government to increase the 
capital threshold used for assessing residential/nursing care self-funders from £40k to £50k 
with effect from April 2019. 
 
An application is made for £312,490, which is the new responsibility element of the 
settlement.   
 
How – Increasing the capital threshold will mean that people will reach the threshold that 
makes them eligible to receive financial support from the Council earlier.   
 
Risks – without the additional funding, the budget will be inadequate leading to an 
overspend situation. 
 
Comments - It is recommended that the application is supported. 

 

Page 269



  APPENDIX 2c 
CAPITAL BIDS 2019/20 

 
Details of the Bid 

 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY DEPARTMENT (I.T.) 

Cap 1 Renew Mobile Shelving System Tracks - Caernarfon Library Storeroom 

£57,350 
 

The Mobile Shelving system is now 36 years old and the tracks are now significantly worn, 

which often causes the shelving to fall off the tracks. This is a dangerous situation in terms 

of staff health and safety.  In one part of the system, the shelving is completely locked 

down and cannot be moved in any direction, and therefore it is not possible to obtain the 

books and fulfil users' orders. 

The Store undertakes a crucial role for the service. Of the 36,000 requests for books every 

year, 21% of them are supplied from the Store.  

How - long-term solution to ensure that the Store resource delivers its function in full, 

providing mobile shelving in the workplace and preventing risk in terms of health and 

safety. 

Ensure that the Library service is able to meet the needs of the people of Gwynedd.  

 

Risks - it is no longer possible to use 1 of the 5 systems, with a risk that the remainder of 

the system’s sections will also become inoperative. There is a risk to the health and safety 

of every member of staff who uses the shelving, especially in terms of back strain or a 

significant injury should an entire shelf collapse. 

The risk of not responding is that it will significantly limit the library service's ability to 

provide a full library service to the residents of Gwynedd and other users as we will not be 

able to fulfil requests. This is already the case with requests for Welsh language books, and 

due to the nature of the collection, it has a particular effect on those who are undertaking 

research or educational studies. We would not be able to purchase at this level of demand 

for requested books even if all the books needed were in print and available.   

Should the Store become inoperative, there will be implications for the employment of one 

member of staff. 

 

Page 270



  APPENDIX 2c 
CAPITAL BIDS 2019/20 

Cap 2 Voluntary Development Fund (CIST Gwynedd) - £50,000 

 
Communities are faced with challenges and opportunities when responding to social, cultural 

and economic changes that affect them. A number of voluntary groups are responding to 

these challenges by maintaining local assets and activities. A number of voluntary groups are 

also responding to these opportunities by developing new plans - particularly at the moment 

in the context of transferring assets from public service to community management. 

Over recent years, the Council, through the Capital Voluntary Development Fund, has 
supported some communities to develop schemes that have responded to the impacts of 
the savings schemes, and the strategic plan.  
 

How - by providing grants to voluntary groups across the county to develop and realise 
community projects. Specifically, supporting projects that involve the asset transfer agenda 
and investing in local community assets.  
 
Risks - the Council would not have a resource to refer groups that are responding to the 
savings / cuts agenda.  

Page 271



  APPENDIX 2c 
CAPITAL BIDS 2019/20 

Cap 3 Adapt Changing Rooms at Glaslyn and Dwyfor Leisure Centres - £12,800 

 
In the last year, a number of complaints have been received from disabled users regarding 
the changing rooms at the two above mentioned centres. The current layout of the space 
means that it is not always possible for disabled users to make use of a changing area that 
is suitable for their needs.  
 
At Glaslyn Centre, families and disabled customers must share one small area. Sometimes, 

the three cubicles are in use by families, and it is not possible for disabled customers to use 

them. 

At Dwyfor Centre, the changing area for disabled customers is also a corridor for families to 

get to the swimming pool.  This had led to situations where fathers have unintentionally 

disturbed the privacy of female disabled customers as they change. 

The new layouts, with more space in a separate cubicle, would also be an improvement in 
terms of our arrangements for families and transgender people who would wish to use 
private changing facilities. 
 
How - adaptations to the changing rooms at both centres would create a larger space, 
would be fit for purpose and separate for disabled customers and their carers. 
 
Risks - there is a risk that the Council could be challenged on grounds of the Equality Act 

2010 as it is difficult for disabled people to have full access to the leisure facilities.  

The above mentioned responsibilities will remain under the new arrangements with Cwmni 

Byw'n Iach Cyf, as it is not possible to deputise responsibility for the general equality duty 

to external organisations that undertake functions on the Council's behalf. 

Some disabled customers have specific health reasons and failure to gain access can lead 

to additional health problems. 

Concerns in terms of safeguarding vulnerable children and adults and the bid offers 
improvement in relation to transgender people and more than one group with protected 
characteristics.  

Page 272



  APPENDIX 2c 
CAPITAL BIDS 2019/20 

Cap 4 Urgent Repair Works to Parc Glynllifon Structures - £48,000 

 
The size of the site is very substantial and most of it is open to the public which attracts 

thousands of users to the rural park every year.  

During recent years a number of changes have been implemented to realise efficiency 

savings.  The Department intends to review Glynllifon's long-term management 

arrangements. Currently, there is an interim arrangement in place, rather than a 

sustainable model for the future.  

Matters have been raised during the last 12 months that have highlighted the need for 

urgent repair work within the Rural Park.  These include: 

- Urgent repair work to structures such as bridges and paths that are used by people 
visiting the park. 

- Repair work on historic structures (the Park has been designated a Grade 1 Listed 
Landscape), fountains and ditches 

- Work to restore paths to improve safety and access 
- Tree lopping to protect the safety of park users. 

The main aim of this work will be to undertake urgent repair work to ensure there is no 

further deterioration in historic resources in coming years. 

How - the additional expenditure will provide specific resources to respond to the identified 

risks namely, urgent work on bridges £16k, urgent measures to protect historic structures 

£18k; path restoration £9k; tree lopping £5k. 

It is anticipated that it will be possible to divert the Service's core resources towards 
implementing urgent measures. 
 
Risks - potential implications of not responding: 

 Failure to respond to anticipated hazards 
 Probability that the Council will not deliver its duty of care to those who walk the site  
 Risk of an accident on the site 
 Insufficient resources leading to further deterioration in the condition of the historic 

assets. 
 The Council will be open to accusations that the Grade 1 historic gardens are not 

being managed or protected.  

 

 

Page 273



APPENDIX 3 

SAVINGS 

1. The savings which have the least effect on the people of Gwynedd of course 

are efficiency savings, especially those which can be implemented in back office 

functions. However the opportunity for such savings has reduced significantly 

over the last 10 years, as we have already implemented them in order to find 

the considerable savings we have had to find over that period. 

2. Nevertheless, various departments have found further opportunities to achieve 

further savings by looking at systems or reducing back office budgets.  These 

schemes are noted in references 1.1 to 1.43 in the tables below. 

3. There are also further efficiency savings which can be made by finding different 

ways of delivering services and these are noted in references 2.1 to 2.19 below. 

4. Opportunities have also been identified to achieve savings by investing and 

these are identified in references 3.1 to 3.6. 

5. After that, there are other services where we need to consider the income 

generation opportunities which exist in order to protect essential Council 

services.  These appear in references 4.1 to 4.28. 

6. In the end however, we will have to find savings in areas which are going to 

have an impact on the people of Gwynedd and that impact will vary from 

scheme to scheme. 

7. The best way to minimise that impact is to persuade other organisations to take 

over responsibility for those functions, and two schemes, in references 5.1 to 

5.2 below, fall into that category. 

8. In references 6.1 to 6.27, there are other schemes which we can implement, 

whilst accepting that there will be an impact on our people, but noting that 

these are the schemes which will have the least effect. 

9. It is important to note that this list has been drawn up having taken into account 

the results of the public consultation. 

10. Ensuring a quality education, substantial aspects of the care services; and two 

aspects of our municipal services (waste collection and recycling, along with the 

recycling centres) appeared in the 10 most important areas for the people of 

Gwynedd. 

11. That said, it can be seen that everything we do is important to someone. Even 

with the service which came out as the least important overall from all those 

services we provide, it can be seen from page 17 of the report that around 100 

respondents noted this was one of the most important services for them. 

  

Page 274



12. As the Care and Education functions account for 62% of the Council’s spending, 

it is impossible to omit them from any contribution towards the savings, but it 

can be seen from the list that we do not intend to ask schools to contribute to 

the schemes for decision here for 2019/20. Further, the contributions sought 

from the Care and Education fields are confined to efficiency savings, or savings 

which have a marginal effect. 

13. Regarding groups with protected characteristics, it can be seen that public 

transport is prominent in their priorities.  Therefore, the list below deliberately 

avoids asking for financial savings in those areas, although we are aware that 

costs are increasing significantly and the service will be hard pressed to keep 

all current services within their current budget. 

14. You may note that the business sector naturally take a different perspective to 

the people of Gwynedd, and note that many areas associated with business 

support are the things which are most important to them. In formulating the 

proposals we have tried to limit such savings to the least detrimental reductions, 

but it is not possible to avoid an element of reduction in our functions.  Any 

protection we could apply to this activity would mean a higher Council Tax than 

we would otherwise wish to see, but it is important that we continue to invest 

an element of our budget in this activity. 

15. At its meeting on 18 December 2018, the Cabinet decided to conduct a public 

consultation on the savings schemes listed in references 3.1 to 6.27 below.  The 

consultation came to an end on 31 January 2019, and an analysis of the results 

is presented in Appendix 11.  

16. There was an opportunity to discuss the responses and analysis, together with 

the possible effects, in an informal workshop for all members of the Council on 

5 February.  

17. In order to establish a consensus of the best way forward, specific issues from 

the consultation were discussed to consider whether to reduce the proposed 

5.5% increase in Council Tax by implementing further cuts.  The consultation 

shows that over half of the respondents were in favour of the Cabinet’s motion, 

or the option to raise Council Tax by more than 5.5% in order to avoid having 

to make so many savings. The consensus at the Members’ workshop on 5 

February was that the impact of the further cuts was unacceptable. 

18. Consideration was also given to proposals not to implement some specific 

savings schemes, thus increasing the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. The 

workshop weighed up the potential impact of the proposals and the reasons the 

respondents gave for raising them. 5 schemes were selected for further 

consideration, on the basis of the potential impact, and these plans can be seen 

in Appendix 12. The justification submitted in response to the consultation is 

included in Appendix 11, according to the number of comments received.  

Page 275



19. Of course, actioning some of the savings, would mean having to follow statutory 

processes and they would be subject to the results of such processes. Clearly 

the recommendation and any decision recognizes this and does not prejudice 

their outcomes. 

20. The proposals noted in the following list will generate the savings below in 

2019/20.  A number of schemes also generate savings in future years which will 

enable us to start planning ahead – 

  £ 

Part 1 Back office efficiency 1,272,980 

Part 2 Further efficiencies 269,370 

Part 3 Invest to Save 21,500 

Part 4 Increasing income 481,590 

Part 5 Cease activity but ask others to take 

responsibility (saving realised in future 

years) 

- 

Part 6 Savings which will have an impact (to 

varying extents) 

406,490 

 Total 2019/20 2,451,930 

 

Page 276



Appendix 3  

 

 

Ref. Plan 2019/20 
2020/21 
onwards 

Explanation 
Summary of the equality impact 
assessment 

Link to the 
equality 
impact 
assessment 

1.1  

Achieve savings 
through purchasing 
more cheaply (e.g. 
office supplies & IT) 

£20,000 £40,000 

The Environment Department leads on the work of 
managing corporate category purchases and identify 
opportunities to purchase more cheaply. Examples of 
this is managing and better purchasing of materials 
such as office equipment, office furniture, safety 
clothes, Information Technology, Printing, etc. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.2  
Set costs against 
capital budgets 

£22,500 £22,500 

The officers who work full-time on the 21th Century 
Schools project are currently funded from the Service's 
revenue.  It is intended to set some costs against the 
21th Century Schools grant. A business case will need 
to be completed for each individual plan. Neutral 
impact on the residents of Gwynedd. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.3  
Reduce office costs by 
letting vacant spaces 

£70,000 £0 

It is considered that there are opportunities to make 
better use of office space creating empty space to let 
to tenants on commercial rent. Work required on 
marketing, adaptations and negotiation with 
prospective tenants. Neutral impact on the residents of 
Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.4  

Rationalise and 
Integrate the back 
office of the 
Environment 
Department  

£11,880 £23,120 

As the back office of both Services have been 
combined to create one Unit, efficiency improvements 
are possible, along with rationalising the use of back 
office computer systems. The work supports the 
service's statutory duties, which is very often from the 
beginning to the end of the various duties. There could 
be an impact in the form of a delay for the residents of 
Gwynedd when dealing with planning, public 
protection and land charges matters. It is difficult to 
anticipate the exact level of delay, but there will be 
less capacity whilst the workload will be the same. The 
question is whether it will be possible to compensate 
for the lower capacity by improving efficiency. We will 
not know until we attempt to achieve this.  

 
An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
impact has been identified but the 
Department will monitor impact 
especially in the field of disability and 
the Welsh language. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad1 
 

P
age 277

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad1
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad1
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad1


Appendix 3  

 

 

1.5  
Remove a post within 
the Property Safety 
Service  

£0 £30,000 

This unit has been through a Ffordd Gwynedd exercise 
that led to new working arrangements and a reduction 
in annual revenue costs of approximately £55,000. 
Performance of the core duties is satisfactory. 
However, the field is one in which work beyond the 
core duties arise at random/short notice following 
significant health and safety incidents in other places 
e.g. Grenfell, internal wall falling on a child in a school 
in Scotland, new concerns about Radon gas, new 
inspection requirements imposed by the insurance 
company, responding to poor results of drinking water 
tests in small holdings etc. In reducing this budget, the 
team would not have the resources to cope with this 
type of work beyond the core duties. 

After careful consideration of the 
effect, the Department has identified 
alternative ways of achieving the 
same work which will mean that all 
sites are being examined as it is 
today and therefore avoid the 
impact on the consumer. 

 

1.6  

Previous restructuring 
savings within the 
Corporate Support 
Department   

£30,000 £0 

These savings deriving from the remains of many 
restructures within the Department over the last three 
years have already been implemented and there are 
no further implications to them. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.7  

Reduce funds for 
travelling expenses 
and supplies within the 
Corporate Support 
Department by 
approximately 10% 

£40,000 £0 

These travelling expenses and office supplies savings 
have already been implemented as part of preparatory 
work for further savings, and therefore there will be no 
impact on the people of Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.8  
Terminate software 
agreement 

£10,000 £0 

The Research and Analytics Unit uses a specialist 
software system as required, but it will seek to use 
cheaper alternative sources without hindering the 
Unit's work too much.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.9  

Remove a 
management post 
within the 
Organisational 
Development Service 
and merge the service 
with the Learning and 
Development Service  

£44,000 £0 

There are three posts within the Service.  The Service 
Manager post was removed at the end of June this 
year, by combining the former Service with the 
Learning and Development Service from 1 July. It is 
anticipated that this work could continue to be 
achieved with no impact on the current provision but, 
given the short period of time that has gone by since 
combining both Services, it would be premature to 
state that there would be no impact on the service 
provided.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 278



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.10  
Review the support to 
the Public Services 
Board 

£15,000 £0 

Reduction from 1.5 posts to 1 post (one post is already 
vacant). This is administrative work which we are 
required to complete on behalf of the Public Services 
Board and the Board will need to be sharper in terms 
of what the support team will need to do in addition to 
ensuring resources and capacity contributions from the 
other partners.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.11  

Regrade two posts 
within the Corporate 
Support Department 
that support the 
Council's work.  

£15,000 £0 

The Business Support Service was set up  in June 2017, 
and it is a combination of many former small Services. 
The structure inherited  needs to be modernised in 
light of the changes that have happened in the way of 
working within the Council, e.g. ownership and 
responsibility for performance at the centre of our 
managers' expectations rather than being a specific 
responsibility for our corporate services. A review of 
the responsibilities of two posts has led to amended 
job descriptions that meet the needs for the future, 
and this has led to job evaluations that award lower 
salary levels.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.12  
Transfer to a new 
customer contact back 
office system (Ffos) 

£0 £23,000 

The service has decided to change the back office 
system from a system provided by an external supplier 
to a system designed internally. This would save 
revenue costs by avoiding having to pay an external 
company for an annual licence. It is aimed to complete 
the work of transferring to the internal system in full 
by April 2020. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.13  

Reduce administrative 
support within the 
support service by 
introducing IT systems  

£65,000 £39,000 

Reduce the administrative resource when presenting 
more Staff Self-Service (Information Technology) 
modules for managers and staff. It is anticipated that 
the structure could be rationalised following the 
presentation of these modules by removing the need 
to input data more than once into the workflow in the 
fields of recruitment and appointments, processing 
timetables and recording staff absences. It is 
emphasised that these modules need to be developed 
and presented in full before the further savings could 
be realised within the Service.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 279



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.14  

Remove a post within 
the Information 
Service following the 
introduction of an 
electronic system  

£30,000 £0 

Part of the Service's role is to support departments 
with the work of keeping records and documents. With 
an expected reduction in the requirement for support 
in light of the introduction of the iGwynedd electronic 
system, the Service believes that it is possible to cope 
with the reduction in resources, without it impacting 
Council services too much. iGwynedd has not currently 
developed in full, but it is believed that any short-term 
impact of removing this post could be overcome 
through the current investment in temporary posts 
funded corporately in order to provide iGwynedd in full 
across the Council.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.15  

Remove one human 
resources officer post 
and one human 
resources consultant 
post by changing  the 
delivery model (20% 
staff reduction) 

£0 £80,000 

We are trying to move to a model where there will be 
less dependence on the human resources consultancy 
service. This would mean transferring skills to 
managers to enable them to fulfil their role effectively 
and this would enable us to reduce by 2 out of 10.5 
posts. The risk is that the workload would not decrease 
as managers would be unable to cope. There would 
also be a need to ensure that the appropriate support 
is available in alternative ways. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.16  

Reduce the support to 
the Management 
Team and project 
management  

£68,750 £41,250 

One part of this saving could mean a reduction in the 
direct day to day support to the Management Team, 
whilst the second part would mean a reduction in the 
expertise within the Council in the field of project 
management, and limit the flexibility to respond to the 
Service requirements somewhat. It is believed that it 
would be possible to cope with the usual requirements 
with some changes in the method of working, but the 
discipline of project management may consequently 
deteriorate over time.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 280



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.17  
End the Organisational 
Development Service  

£0 £54,000 

Ending this service would mean that the current 
resource would not be available to address staff 
benefits, to carry out surveys, to promote the culture 
and offer support to managers in order to embed the 
‘Ffordd Gwynedd’ principles or to act as the point of 
contact for the people of Gwynedd to deal with formal 
complaints. This unit has been very successful in 
developing benefits for staff including negotiating 
discounts in local shops and encouraging local shops to 
offer them in order for staff to buy locally. It would not 
be possible to undertake this activity which would 
mean that it would deteriorate over time whilst the 
other aspects of the work would unavoidably receive 
much less attention as a result of the other 
requirements on the Learning and Organisational 
Development Service. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.18  
Reduce the costs of 
phone lines by using 
more of VOIP 

£38,000 £38,000 

We have already transferred many Council phone lines 
to the use of VOIP, i.e., use computer lines to make 
phone calls rather than pay for traditional phone lines.  
It would be possible to extend the concept beyond the 
main Council offices to other organisations, schools, 
care homes, and any building that has suitable network 
connection provided by the IT Service, thus saving 
money. It would not have an impact on Gwynedd 
residents. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.19  
Reduce External Audit 
Fees  

£40,000 £0 

Our risk profile shows that we should be able to 
renegotiate prices. There would be no implications for 
Council services or for the people of Gwynedd. There is 
a risk that they could refuse, but there has been some 
success in recent years.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.20  
Change the method of 
funding Procurement 
Systems 

£35,000 £0 

Reduce the software provision budget, with the 
intention of minimising the advisory support on our 
systems. There would be no implications for the people 
of Gwynedd, nor would there be an impact on services 
in the short-term. There might be a need to fund a 
development in the long-term.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 281



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.21  
Reduce Travelling 
within the Finance 
Department by 30% 

£5,750 £0 

Reduce the transport budget for the department by 
using electronic communication methods, such as 
Skype for Business, journey planning, etc. There should 
therefore be no impact on the people of Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.22  
Reduce the Income 
Service's staffing by 8% 

£11,380 £0 

Following staff restructuring, part of a role is vacant 
within the service. Our current performance reflects 
this and, consequently, the impact of abolishing the 
post has already been seen on the relevant 
departments. This could be done permanently. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.23  
Reduce the Payroll 
Service's staffing by 9% 

£19,500 £0 

Following staff restructuring, one post is vacant within 
the service. Our current performance reflects this and, 
consequently, the impact of abolishing the post has 
already been seen on the relevant departments. This 
could be done permanently. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.24  
Reduce staffing in 
accountancy field 

£49,130 £0 

Following staff turnover, a post is vacant within the 
service. Our current performance reflects this and, 
consequently, the impact of abolishing the post has 
already been seen on the relevant departments. This 
could be done permanently. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.25  
Use one-off 
underspend to fund 
training 

£34,400 £0 

Reduce the permanent budget to fund training, with 
the intention of using one-off underspend to fund it in 
future, which means that any professional training in 
the Finance IT field is reliant upon one-off funds 
(underspend or departmental fund) being available to 
fund it. No impact on the financial support to 
departments / the people of Gwynedd, as long as the 
level of training is maintained. Risk in the long-term 
that staff would not have the necessary skills if the 
underspend is unavailable, and the Finance service 
having no appropriately trained and qualified officers 
would be a significant risk to the Council's ability to 
make the best use of its resources on behalf of the 
people of Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 282



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.26  
Re-negotiate the 
Council's network 
agreement 

£170,000 £0 

This has been agreed with Welsh Government and our 
provider, with costs reducing by £200,000 per annum.  
We would need to invest £30,000 per annum in order 
to strengthen our internet connection as there is a 
natural increase in the use of digital media. There 
would be a need to centralise budgets (from every 
Council department and from the schools' devolved 
budgets) in order to realise a reduction in costs as 
savings. There would be no impact on support services 
for the departments or the people of Gwynedd. It is an 
opportunity to make savings and strengthen our 
provision.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.27  

Reduce the costs of 
supplies for the 
Finance Department 
by 2.5% 

£16,330 £0 

It is considered possible to reduce the supplies budget 
by maximising the use of electronic working methods 
and avoiding the costs of paper, printing, etc. without 
having any impact on Gwynedd residents.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.28  
Remove a post within 
the Income Service  

£5,850 £17,550 

At present there is one vacant post, currently filled on 
a temporary basis in the general debts Recovery Team. 
It would be possible to  remove this post without 
dismissing a permanent member of staff, but it is likely 
that there would be an effect on our ability to recover 
debts. We don't know exactly what that effect would 
be without experimenting to see. Losing one person 
who recovers debt would mean fewer efforts to seek 
to recover with the risk of losing more than we would 
save. If that happened we would need to consider 
reinstating the budget.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 283



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.29  

Extend the principles 
of the Alltwen Pilot 
Scheme across the 
service 

£133,500 £400,500 

Based on evidence from the Alltwen pilot scheme and 
evidence from other counties such as Torfaen, freeing 
up staff time to have appropriate initial chats in order 
to have accurate solutions the first time, along with 
integration with health colleagues and the third sector, 
could lead to better results at a lower cost. Very often, 
this involves  preventative solutions within their 
networks and local communities, rather than being 
solely dependent on traditional care packages or a 
menu of Social Care services. Therefore, it is 
anticipated that there would be a positive impact on 
the individual by being able to achieve what matters to 
them in a timely manner and in an integrated method 
with key partners such as the Health Service and the 
third sector. 
 
However, despite the initial evidence we have, it is 
impossible to anticipate the level of efficiency savings 
that is possible by extending the principles of ‘Ffordd 
Gwynedd’ across the service. The main reasons for this 
is that the demand on our services is continuing to 
increase and the conditions of those who receive 
support are intensifying, and the fact that the success 
of changing the way we work is wholly dependent on 
our ability to create more resilient communities and 
integrate our work with key partners in future. We 
must wait to see the experience of the first tranche 
before depending on this saving figure.  

The investment and change in the 
way care services will be provided 
should have a positive impact for 
everyone who receives a service. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad2 
 

1.30  

Improve work 
processes by holding a 
'Ffordd Gwynedd' 
review and using the 
new IT system's 
finance modules 

£40,000 £40,000 

The Ffordd Gwynedd review and the finance modules 
of the new IT system offers opportunities for changing 
and improving existing work processes.    
 
It is anticipated that these changes would lead to 
restructuring teams within the business service  It is 
anticipated that the plan would lead to efficiency 
savings and therefore there would be no negative 
impact on residents. Nevertheless, there is an 
associated risk that the plan would not achieve the 

The services provided by the 
Business Unit support everyone who 
receives support from the 
Department regardless of their 
circumstances / background. The 
individuals should not see any impact 
but the Council will have to keep 
track of any impact and make the 
changes step by step. It is anticipated 
that modifying work methods will 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad3 
 

P
age 284

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad2
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad2
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad2
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad3
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad3
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad3


Appendix 3  

 

 

saving in full and that the early assumptions are not 
attainable  

not be impacted to a certain 
threshold but that it would have an 
impact on the support offered if that 
threshold is crossed. Continuous 
monitoring will be required to 
ensure that this does not happen. 

1.31  
Review the business 
support within the 
Adults Services 

£0 £135,000 

We will continue to review our work processes to 
identify any further efficiency opportunities which exist 
within the Department. Given the work currently 
underway which could lead to up to 8 FTE posts fewer, 
and the efficiency savings which have been found over 
recent years, it is unlikely that the amount in question 
could be achieved through efficiency savings alone. 
 
Nevertheless, it is presumed that the exercise of 
reviewing our work processes will help us to identify 
the cuts which would have the least effect on the 
people of Gwynedd. We anticipate that these cuts 
could include proposals to accept a general reduction 
in the standard of delivering some tasks that are 
necessary in nature in terms of legal requirements, as 
well as also not undertake some tasks which are 
possibly of a more developmental nature. 
 
Specifically in terms of the current review of putting a 
new support structure in place, we presume that this 
would give us the right balance in the future in terms 
of ensuring that we make the best use of frontline 
staff's time. The risk involved with making cuts to the 
business support is the fact that frontline workers 
would have to undertake additional and specialist tasks 
which is unlikely to be their strength, leading to a 
situation where they would unavoidably spend less 
time with residents. It is therefore anticipated that 
implementing the 'cuts' element as part of this scheme 
is likely to have a negative effect on the ability of our 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The scheme is about services that 
support the Department’s front line 
services. Individuals who receive a 
service should not see any impact 
but the Council will have to monitor 
every step. If continuous monitoring 
shows that the internal changes have 
an impact on the provision of front 
line services then any further 
changes will need to be modified or 
restricted. 
 
 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad4 
 
 

P
age 285

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad4
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad4
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad4


Appendix 3  

 

 

frontline staff to deliver what is important to residents, 
understand the needs of our population at a local level, 
as well as the ability of the Social Work Teams to 
manage the demand effectively. The business support 
sets a key work foundation if we are to succeed with 
the challenge of managing the demand for our 
services. 

1.32  
Review working 
arrangements within 
Highways 

£37,500 £12,500 

By conducting a 'Ffordd Gwynedd' review, we have 
identified ways of removing work duplication between 
the commissioning element and the highways 
workforce. It is unlikely that Gwynedd residents would 
notice the difference, although it could lead to fewer 
staff to respond to enquiries at times. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.33  
Rationalise Fleet 
Workshops from 3 to 2 
in the County 

£0 £130,000 

The number of workshops we have could be 
rationalised to save money. It is unlikely to have any 
impact on Gwynedd residents but, obviously, we could 
lose up to 6 (FTE) mechanic posts locally.  
 
The Fleet Service has not conducted a full business 
plan for the savings plan or a risk assessment of 
reducing from three sites to two. Closing one 
workshop would mean that vehicles would have to 
travel from one area to the other to be serviced. It 
would also be required to invest within the other 
workshops in order to incorporate the work of the 
workshop that would close. This could impact the 
business case, thus bringing the net saving down.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.34  
Reduce the 
professional / legal 
fees budget 

£7,260 £0 

4 budget lines contribute to this total, which includes a 
budget to buy professional services through 
assessments independently of the services in court 
cases or before commencing a court case, and court 
case initial fees. The Children Service has these 
budgets, and there has been a historically small 
underspend on the budget headings. It is anticipated 
that it would be possible to slightly reduce each of 
these headings without having an impact on children 
and families, and continuing to meet the court 
requirements to a good standard. 

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 286



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.35  

Reduce the training 
budget with the 
Children and Families 
Service  

£8,980 £0 

Removing the specialist training element from the 
budget would allow us to save 3% of the IFSS budget. 
This would not have an impact on children, families or 
staff. This element was part of the funding available to 
put this new statutory service in place, and 'train the 
trainer' arrangements already existed within the 
service. This is no longer essential. There was also a 
specialist training needs that were required when 
establishing the new team. By now that need has 
reduce significantly and staff undertaking the general 
training provision to professional workers. There would 
be no impact on the direct provision of services to 
children and families.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.36  

Reduction in the 
Children and Families 
Department support 
budget  

£14,960 £0 

This would be a reduction in the furniture and supplies 
budget for the service, which would have no impact on 
the children and families. There would also be a 
reduction in the options to attend professional training 
courses outside the County, which are expensive in 
terms of purchasing and travelling.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.37  
Remove a support 
officer post 

£29,210 £0 

As both former Chief Officers give up their work, a 
support officer will not be required. This plan has 
already been implemented and there will be no impact 
on Gwynedd residents.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.38  
Delete the corporate 
working areas' budget 

£46,340 £0 

This sum was put to one side to fund corporate plans 
when rearranging the previous Senior Management in 
2014. In the current climate, it could be abolished 
without having any impact on the people of Gwynedd, 
considering any future need of any underspend or one-
off bids.  

No equality impact anticipated  

1.39  
Create efficiency 
savings within the 
Coroners Service 

£5,000 £0 

Although it is a statutory service and that we do not 
have much choice with regard to how much we pay (as 
we must compensate the coroner for his/her costs). It 
is, however, considered that some efficiency savings 
could be discovered and a review will be undertaken to 
identify possibilities without impacting the people of 
Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 287



Appendix 3  

 

 

1.40  

Cut 2 days of elections 
and legal 
administration support 
(a reduction of 7% in 
administrative 
support) 

£6,225 £6,225 

It is considered that it would be possible to reduce the 
administrative support without having much impact on 
Gwynedd residents, and there is a slight possibility that 
it could impact elements of the work somewhat. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.41  

Delete the entire 
‘Ffordd Gwynedd’ 
reviews support 
budget. 

£56,030 £5,340 

Whilst it is possible to reduce the budget without any 
substantial impact, this option, namely to abolish it 
completely, could slow reviews down due to a failure 
to resolve the required financial support. Departments 
would have to meet this need themselves. Saying that, 
this is not unreasonable. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.42  

Limit staff time to 
attend educational 
courses, e.g. BTEC, 
HNC and degree 
courses 

£9,000 £0 

The Department gives staff opportunities to attend 
training whilst working for the Council. By limiting the 
time during working hours his would mean that more 
time is available to acquire fees by increasing the 
Department's productive hours. 

No equality impact anticipated  

1.43  
Restructure the 
management of the 
Consultancy Service 

£11,500 £11,500 

A change in our work patterns means that senior 
officers of the department must acquire more fees, 
which is now possible through YGC doing more work 
beyond Gwynedd, e.g. NMWTRA, Welsh Government, 
the private sector and other local governments. This, 
therefore, means that the Department's Senior Officers 
are required to do more work to generate fees rather 
than the "managerial" work. 

No equality impact anticipated  

2.1  
Reduce the resource 
within the Countryside 
Service 

£5,000 £15,000 

A 'Ffordd Gwynedd' review is currently underway in 
this Unit. It is anticipated based on our information of 
what is currently happening that opportunities will 
arise to free-up savings through that work but if that 
does not deliver it would be possible to reduce the 
budget by reducing the work undertaken a little.  

Access to rights of way may be even 
more limited to families, older 
people and disabled people if the 
Unit could not fully complete its 
work programme. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad5 
 
 

2.2  
Reduction in the 
number of Councillors 

£0 £100,000 

The Local Government Boundary Commission has 
already noted that they will reduce the number of 
elected members. Although no saving will be available 
until May 2022, it should be taken into consideration 
now in order to avoid unnecessary cuts to services. 

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 288

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5


Appendix 3  

 

 

2.3  
Revise DBS checking 
arrangements 

£0 £50,000 

A review is currently being held in relation to the 
Council's current policy to recheck the crime records of 
each officer who fulfils work where a DBS check is 
required. Each check costs £44 which means that the 
Council pays this fee at the beginning of each relevant 
officer's employment, and every 3 years thereafter. It 
is a legal requirement to carry out a DBS check on each 
newly employed officer in the relevant fields, but it is 
the Council's choice to currently recheck the records 
every 3 years (although organisations such as the Care 
Inspectorate etc. support this). Ceasing to carry out 
rechecks every 3 years would realise an annual saving 
of £50,000 for the Council, and a review is currently 
being held to consider how it would be possible to do 
this without endangering the safety of vulnerable 
children and adults, i.e. receiving any disclosure of a 
crime record following a recheck which draws 
attention to the crime amongst the Council workforce 
is very scarce and, when a crime has been committed, 
this would be known to the employer before carrying 
out the recheck. Other options that would realise a 
smaller saving are also part of the consideration, but 
further work on the possibilities is required before 
submitting them.  

No equality impact anticipated  

2.4  

Remove 1 post form 
the Communication 
and Engagement 
Service  

£0 £26,000 

This Service provides support to all the work 
undertaken in the engagement field, the Council's 
website, press office, internal communication, 
communication with councillors and communicating in 
emergencies. We anticipate that we can still continue 
to provide the service in line with corporate priorities 
whilst reducing 1 post.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 289



Appendix 3  

 

 

2.5  
Restructure the 
support for Scrutiny 

£25,000 £0 

There is a need to ensure a structure that has the 
capacity to support the increasing requirements of the 
Council's scrutiny arrangements. Two posts have 
become vacant in the Democracy Service and 
redirecting the financial resource to a scrutiny support 
purpose is being looked at, whilst realising a financial 
saving at the same time. This could be done in the face 
of a review of working arrangements currently being 
held within the Democracy Service, i.e. this is what 
allows for the saving and the ability to redirect a 
resource. 

No equality impact anticipated  

2.6  
Reduce staffing at the 
Tax and Benefits 
Service by 4%  

£40,440 £0 

This 1.5 post is already vacant in the Unit, and our 
current performance reflects this. Not filling this post 
permanently would mean that we could maintain the 
current performance but there would be less ability to 
cope with unusual situations in future. Whilst residents 
should not be impacted during period of normal 
pressure, there would be an impact in terms of a delay 
before responding at busier times, or during a period 
of change in arrangements. 

Disabled people and people from an 
ethnic minorities are more likely to 
be inactive economically and 
therefore are more likely to receive 
benefits. In most cases, Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Relief are 
paid to individuals with a long-term 
disability immediately without 
applying to the Council, as they also 
receive benefits administered by the 
DWP. So there is less likely that 
delays would deal with their bids to 
compared to others. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad6 
 
 

2.7  
An electronic payslip 
system for everyone 

£3,750 £11,250 

Discontinuing paper payslips completely would be 
unpopular among many members of staff who 
currently receive paper payslips. There is a risk that it 
could increase the number of enquiries. However, it 
would have no impact on the public. 

No equality impact anticipated  

2.8  
Savings in place from 
recent restructuring of 
the Library Service  

£15,000 £0 

Over the last 4 years, the Libraries Service has 
introduced a series of changes to its provision model 
and has achieved savings for the Council as a result. 
£15k of savings have been generated above the target 
set for the service by the Council, and during 18/19, 
this budget will be used to help ground the new 
service.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 290

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad6
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad6
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad6


Appendix 3  

 

 

2.9  

Collaborate with the 
third sector to find a 
new provider to take 
over the day care 
service in Criccieth and 
Blaenau Ffestiniog 

£25,000 £75,000 

There are two day centres, namely Encil Y Coed, 
Cricieth (18 attending at present with the centre open 
three days a week) and Blaenau Ffestiniog (15 
attending at present and open four days a week) 
where bodies such as Age Cymru are present in the 
areas already. The Hafod y Gest and Ffestiniog 
Memorial Hall developments are opportunities to 
collaborate. 
 
Although the service will continue for the individuals 
changing the provider can be sensitive matter for those 
who attend and their families. Many of those who 
attend both centres have already gone through 
changes some years ago when closing Noddfa Madog 
day centre in Porthmadog where many of those 
attending the centre moved to Encil y Coed and 
Blaenau Ffestiniog.  
 
There is also a risk for individuals to choose not to 
attend the new provision in the area which would 
mean an increase in demand for domiciliary care in 
areas where it is challenging to deliver care packages. 
 
The savings would be achieved by considering holding 
the centre at a different location in the area. Blaenau 
Ffestiniog day centre is held in the community centre. 
We pay an annual rent to the centre they have noted a 
concern that the community centre would not be able 
to sustain itself without the rent. 

This plan is about changing the 
provision by working in partnership. 
The needs of each individual will 
continue to be assessed separately. 
It is not a scheme that eliminates a 
service. It will be delivered by means 
of a more efficient alternative. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad7 
 
 

2.10  

Improve the 
coordination of the 
service with the 
Children and Families 
Department at the 
time of transfer 

£0 £60,000 

Currently, the Children and Families Service provides a 
service for children with learning disabilities until they 
reach 18 years old, and then the Adults Service 
commissions services for them from then on. There is 
an opportunity to take advantage of the efficiencies 
that could arise by jointly planning better. A change in 
culture would be required to develop services based 
on lifelong collaboration principles across both 
services, and this would be a challenge. Initially, it 

The plan should facilitate and 
improve the support individuals and 
their families receive during the time 
when service provision transfers 
between Council departments. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad8 
 
 

P
age 291

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad7
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad7
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad7
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad8
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad8
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad8


Appendix 3  

 

 

would be possible for us to scrutinise the best way of 
collaborating when reviewing CHC cases at transition 
age sooner, and working with the Children and 
Families Department to plan the support.  

2.11  

Review of out of 
county packages in 
order to find more 
local locations to 
individuals 

£50,000 £50,000 

This important work of reviewing out of county 
packages needs to continue in order to be in-keeping 
with the strategy of providing support based on active 
support principles in the field of learning disabilities 
and the recovery model in the field of mental health 
and give the opportunity (when appropriate) to those 
who want and need it, to receive support locally. As we 
go through the cases and look at developing 
opportunities locally for individuals, we are confident 
in being able to discover some savings, but reaching 
the £100k level could be a challenge, especially when 
reaching cases with profound needs and intensive 
behavioural management. 

This plan is about reducing the 
reliance on expensive out-of-county 
placements and strengthening the 
provision at a local level. Each 
placement or service to support 
individuals will continue to be based 
on an individual assessment. The 
service will not change if it cannot be 
demonstrated that the service 
required is available locally. Reducing 
the use of out-of-county placements 
should promote the development of 
local services and facilitate the 
contact of individuals with their 
families. 
 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad9 
 
 

2.12  

Hire Collection 
Vehicles at the 
Recycling Centres 
instead of purchasing 
them 

£15,000 £5,000 

Currently, we purchase lifting vehicles at the recycling 
centres, but a review has demonstrated that savings 
could be made by hiring these vehicles. There would 
be no impact on Gwynedd residents.  

No equality impact anticipated  

2.13  
Rationalise the 
Highways' On-duty / 
On-call arrangements   

£7,500 £7,500 

We currently have on-call arrangements in the 
Highways service, which receives and acts upon calls by 
the public, the Police and other agencies regarding 
matters relating to highways maintenance. Currently, 
the service is arranged based on the areas / work unit 
division / commissioning. It would be possible to move 
to a situation of combining some aspects of the 
arrangement, or operating based on two areas.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 292

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad9
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad9
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad9


Appendix 3  

 

 

2.14  
Use cheaper materials 
to maintain roads 

£45,000 £0 

By using non-premium binder when maintaining roads, 
it is considered that money could be saved. It is not 
believed that Gwynedd residents would notice the 
different. In reality, we already use it in some places.  

No equality impact anticipated  

2.15  

Change CCTV with 
monitoring officers to 
a system 'without 
officers' 

£0 £210,000 

With the Cabinet's agreement, this work is already 
underway as our equipment have reached the end of 
their lifetime. Of course, there is a possibility that 
relevant residents find that the service is not as good 
as the current service without supervision, but by using 
modern equipment, it is possible to enlarge camera 
images that watch a wider area, and have nearly the 
same impact.  

As an improved system will be used 
there will be a positive effect but on 
the other hand the cameras will not 
be watched all the time. Therefore 
every equality feature will have a 
positive and negative effect 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad10 
 
  

2.16  

Change working 
arrangements for 
collecting waste by 
establishing shifts and 
shorter circuits 

£0 £150,000 

Our experience shows an argument for changing our 
shifts pattern in terms of waste collection. Although 
this would not mean a change in frequency to our 
collections, it would mean changing collection days for 
some. It could, however, help with the complaint that 
we miss some collections because some on the lorry 
are unfamiliar with the circuit, as it would then be the 
same people on the circuit continuously. This could 
also help to create "ownership" of the circuit amongst 
the workforce. Changing the collection day for a 
number of residents would create some confusion at 
the beginning. Need an alternative arrangement to 
ensure completing the task (circuit) to give residents 
assurance that the collection is done on the same day.  

Positive - Promoting equal 
opportunities. Likely impact 
regarding less rushing to work. Crew 
ownership for the same circuit 
means that they would be able to 
identify people who receive 
additional support. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad11 
 
 

2.17  
Support and train 
child-minders and 
nurseries ourselves 

£24,980 £0 

A reduction in the ability to provide training packages 
and set up grants for childminders and nurseries. There 
would not be a significant impact on children and 
families because the service could provide the training 
internally without the need to commission externally.  

Any effect on children will be limited 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad12 
 
 

P
age 293

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad10
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad10
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad10
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad11
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad11
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad11
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad12
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad12
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad12


Appendix 3  

 

 

2.18  
Reduce the 
Maintenance 
Allowance budgets 

£0 £30,900 

This is a budget that will be reduced in expenditure 
over the coming years, as it achieves family support 
packages under a historical package. No expenditure 
has been approved from a new from this budget for a 
number of years, and it will end when the young 
people who continue to receive the allowance turn 18 
years old. There will be no further use of it after the 
next 3 years, and therefore there would be no impact 
on children and families. It is no longer possible to 
approve plans under this arrangement due to 
legislative change. 

No equality impact anticipated  

2.19  

Realise more efficiency 
savings within the 
Emergency Planning 
Service 

£12,700 £0 

This service is provided by a joint Unit for North Wales. 
A discussion with the unit manager indicates that we 
should be able to see a further efficiency saving of this 
size over the next 3 years. £10,000 of this has already 
been achieved and it should not have any substantial 
impact on Gwynedd residents. 

  

3.1  
Provide electric car 
charging points in car 
parks  

£0 £50,000 

The use of electric cars is increasing quickly, with 
increasing demand for charging points in car parks. The 
details for the available grants to fund the equipment 
are in the process of being announced. By 
implementing this proposal, there would be a positive 
impact on the residents of Gwynedd, as a lack of 
charging points is a problem for anyone who is 
currently considering buying an electric car in 
Gwynedd. Detailed work on this plan is required before 
being able to note certainty in realising this plan, and 
we emphasise that this initial figure is an estimate 
only.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 294



Appendix 3  

 

 

3.2  

Invest in 
improvements that 
would make Neuadd 
Dwyfor more efficient, 
and prepare to look at 
an alternative model 
for the future  

£0 £100,000 

The Department has received a business review of the 
Neuadd, which highlights that making changes with a 
modest capital investment would lead to making the 
Neuadd £100,000 cheaper to run within 3 years of 
realising the plan. When the situation of Neuadd 
Dwyfor was discussed during the Gwynedd Challenge 
exercise, the Council decided that this budget should 
not currently be cut, but subject to discussing options 
with any local organisation with a view for them to 
take responsibility for it, with the aim of reducing costs 
that fall on Gwynedd taxpayers, and that any savings 
should be included in the efficiency savings. 
 
There has been no local interest in running the 
Neuadd, but by realising this plan, the resource cost 
would reduce to £48,000 per annum. Having said that, 
we do not run such a facility in any other location. 

Non-investment will ultimately lead 
to the need to close and not provide 
arts services there. This would 
directly impact on liveliness and 
activities in Welsh. There are a 
number of arts activities targeting 
specific ages, e.g. children and young 
people, older people, disabled 
people, and closing or having a too 
high prices would directly affect 
them. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad13 
 
 

P
age 295

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad13
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad13
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad13


Appendix 3  

 

 

3.3  

Create a new Respite 
Care Unit at Tan 
Marian which will 
reduce the costs of 
external placements 

£21,500 £21,500 

A new bespoke Respite Care Unit needs to be created 
in Tan y Marian to focus on profound and complex 
needs. This need has manifested itself for many 
reasons: 
 
1. A change in the profound and complex needs of the 
adults we support  
2. A change in the needs of people of a transitional age 
(young people, middle aged people, older adults)  
3. Fewer out of county cases and more adults receiving 
intensive support locally  
4. More adults with profound and complex needs living 
at home 
5. Need to revisit the 'block booking' of respite care 
weeks at two locations in Gwynedd. These services are 
now unable to meet the needs of the adults with 
physical needs and more profound behaviour.   
 
Also, we need to set a County respite care framework 
with a menu of choices based on demand, needs and 
location in order to provide choice and a wide range of 
services across the county. This is based on the reasons 
above and also in order to set a system for the way we 
commission respite care. This would be more cost 
efficient rather than following the system of spot 
purchasing additional respite care opportunities. By 
doing so, it is anticipated that we will create savings by 
reducing the block booking contract, reducing the use 
of the spot purchasing system and ending the block 
booking opportunities that currently exist. 

The services offered at this site are 
specifically for disabled individuals 
and their families / carers. The needs 
of each case will be individually 
assessed and appropriate and 
appropriate provision will be offered. 
It is hoped that this plan will 
strengthen the provision of respite 
care service in the County. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad14 
 
 

P
age 296

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad14
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad14
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad14


Appendix 3  

 

 

3.4  

Develop 3 Extra Care 
Housing developments 
in Gwynedd (Pwllheli, 
Ffestiniog, South 
Meirionnydd areas)  

£0 £300,000 

The Council has already developed two Extra Care 
Housing provision in Gwynedd - Bala (Awel y Coleg) 
and Bangor (Cae Garnedd), and the third is in the 
process of completion in Porthmadog (Hafod y Gest), 
(with the savings target attached). Based on our 
experiences thus far, it is estimated that a saving of 
£200,000 could be made with each new development 
by having the correct split and balance in relation to 
care needs in each development. Substantial financial 
investment will be required to build 3 additional extra 
care housing developments in Gwynedd, but as well as 
generating savings that would better meet the true 
needs of older people. 
 
Naturally it would be a long-term plan. A housing 
association would be responsible for the building. The 
care costs would be the department's responsibility. 
There is a possibility of extending the provision to 
individuals with learning disabilities, physical 
disabilities and mental health conditions in addition to 
a provision for older people only. The provision would 
mean that individuals have their own tenancy and can 
receive timely support if required to enable them to 
continue to be independent for as long as possible in 
their local communities. There is evidence that it 
would be possible to provide care to individuals with 
very profound needs within the plans. The plans 
enable couples to be able to stay together and receive 
support and would enable families to continue to 
provide elements of support should they wish to do so. 

The investment and change in the 
way care services will be provided 
should have a positive impact for 
everyone who receives a service. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad15 
 
 

3.5  

Reduce the 
dependency on 
temporary 
accommodation by 
investing in 
appropriate 
accommodation  

£0 £100,000 

The Department has a responsibility to provide 
temporary accommodation to homeless individuals. 
The Department ensures accommodation in different 
ways, but are finding it difficult to identify suitable 
accommodation for some individuals as there is a lack 
of provision available, and have to contribute to the 
cost of the provision. A supply of appropriate 
additional property could help reduce the dependency 

The plan is based on the needs of 
individuals. That will be based on a 
specific assessment of their 
circumstances. As the plan is about 
improving reports and facilities, it 
should lead to no change or a 
positive change for those who are 
supported. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad16 
 
 

P
age 297

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad15
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad15
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad15
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad16
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad16
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad16


Appendix 3  

 

 

on more costly accommodation. If the Council can 
ensure capital investment to ensure that smaller units 
and alternative accommodation are available, 
dependency on temporary accommodation could be 
reduced. Management of the units must be ensured, 
and that we have direct access to them and 
maintenance funds to avoid managerial challenges.  

3.6  
Install LED lamps to 
the remainder of 
street lights 

£0 £45,900 

We have already changed 10,264 street lighting units 
to LED. We have received approval for £1.389m 
through the Government's loans scheme in order to 
achieve the work that will commence in April 2019 and 
will be completed in March 2022 to change 7,000 of 
the 'largest' road lamps to more effective ones. The 
sum available at the end of the period we would have 
repaid the loan will be £184,000, but it will only be 
45,900 in the initial years. Residents will notice initially, 
before getting used to the new lights. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.1  

Increase the fee for 
the care club before 
school from £0.80 to 
£1 

£43,000 £0 

We currently  charge 80p for the care element before 
schools and approximately 2,000 children take 
advantage of the service. By increasing the fee to £1, 
families would have to pay more for the service, with a 
danger that some would choose not to continue, and 
having to change their work patterns in order to cope. 
It could also mean fewer children coming to have the 
free breakfast.  

It is not envisaged that there will be 
a significant negative effect on any of 
the equality characteristics as the fee 
increase is relatively small .  However 
an impact has been identified on 
poorer children (eg those who come 
from families with a disabled 
member or a member from an ethnic 
minority group) 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad17 
 
 

4.2  

Increase the fee to 
assess the quality of 
water in order to 
reflect the cost of 
providing the service. 

£12,500 £12,500 

The Public Protection Service is required to inspect and 
sample private drinking water sources in order to 
ensure that they are safe. The work range required to 
do this has changed over the years, and the fee 
charged should reflect this. Naturally, by increasing the 
fee, users of private water sources would have to pay 
more for the service, but only to the degree that it 
covers the true costs of doing the work. 

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 298

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad17
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad17
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad17


Appendix 3  

 

 

4.3  

Issue penalties on 
contractors who fail to 
comply with legislation 
when working on our 
roads  

£15,000 £0 

It is possible to use the technology system more 
effectively to have better control over the work of 
statutory contractors. A financial penalty arrangement 
is in place for failing to conform with legislation. Having 
better control over the work would lead to identifying 
any inconsistencies, and attracting penalty notices. A 
neutral impact on the residents of Gwynedd. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.4  

Increase income by 
ending free Christmas 
parking from 2019 
onwards; increase the 
number of pay and 
display car parks and 
increase parking fees 
whilst considering how 
we can maintain or 
even reduce the cost 
to residents  

£82,500 £97,500 

Free parking at Christmas leads to a loss of income of 
approximately £45,000.  
 
Changing the criteria for pay and display car parks 
would mean that we would start charging in areas that 
are currently free, in addition to an increase in charges 
in some locations.  
 
Increasing the charges by 10% would obviously 
generate more income but would impact both visitors 
and local residents. In the majority of short stay car 
parks the cost of parking would increase from £1 to 
£1.10 per hour, whilst parking at long stay car parks for 
4 hours would increase from £2 to £2.20.  
 
The Council would like to consider the possibility of 
avoiding this increase to the people of Gwynedd, or 
even reducing it by reducing the cost of the season 
ticket for example. Significant work would be required 
to establish the final plan.  

The policy is likely to have an impact 
on people who are poorer, e.g. 
families with disabled people, people 
from an ethnic minority or family 
with a disabled member. The size of 
the impact is dependent on the size 
of the fee. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad18 
 
 

4.5  
Increase pest control 
fees in line with 
market prices 

£5,000 £5,000 

Recent work to increase income by increasing fees and 
attracting new customers has been successful. We 
remain cheaper than other companies and, therefore, 
it appears that there is an opportunity to increase fees. 
There would be a small impact on the residents of 
Gwynedd in light of a small increase in fees, e.g. 
treatment of rats in a house would increase from £40 
to £45, which is still competitive in comparison to 
approximately £60 by private companies. Naturally, 
the situation will need to be monitored carefully to 

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
significant impact has been identified 
as the service is not used regularly. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad19 
 
 

P
age 299

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad19
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad19
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad19


Appendix 3  

 

 

ensure that we still offer a competitive price in 
comparison to others.  

4.6  

Significantly increase 
the fees charged to 
Statutory Contractors  
for road closures / 
traffic orders 

£12,500 £17,500 

This plan entails significantly increasing the fees 
charged on statutory contractors and others for road 
closures.  The impact on our residents could increase, 
i.e. costs of holding events with community benefit 
(events that are not commercial in nature). This could 
lead to events either being held without informing us, 
and they might be putting the public in danger, or that 
events are not held thus reducing community benefit.  

The Unit often undertakes actions in 
response to requests from disabled 
people and families to deal with 
situations that pose a risk to them. If 
the budget was reduced, it may not 
be possible for the Unit to undertake 
all its security plans and increase the 
risk to disabled people and families.  

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad20 
 
 

4.7  

Increase the 
Occupational Health 
Service's income by 
selling more services  

£20,000 £0 

The Unit generates income by selling its occupational 
health service to other public organisations. The 
increase in the income target is based on the Service's 
performance over the last three years.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.8  

Attract additional 
income by providing 
services to other public 
bodies 

£46,340 £10,000 
We have been discussing our services with external 
bodies to better reflect the services we offer to them.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.9  
Create income by 
selling our fleet 
tracking system  

£0 £20,000 

In Gwynedd, an internal fleet tracking system has been 
developed, which brings savings of approximately 
£100,000 to the Highways Department. There is 
considerable interest from other authorities, following 
efforts to sell the system to them. Our ability to 
harvest this saving would depend upon contracts from 
other partners, but there is an opportunity to raise 
additional income. 

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 300

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad20
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad20
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad20


Appendix 3  

 

 

4.10  
Generate income by 
preventing fraud 

£0 £40,000 

We would set up the service in order to attempt to 
identify more cases of fraud than is currently 
identified. Obviously, the sum noted is surplus, which 
the service would need to generate after considering 
the costs to set up and run the service. There is a risk 
that the sum would not realise itself, but we will not 
know without trying. In light of the Welfare Reform Act 
2012, the DWP set up the 'SFIS' fraud detection 
service, including transferring the Council's former 
fraud prevention staff to the DWP in 2015/16. Before 
seeing the result of the SFIS operation, it was not 
possible to estimate the scale of the likely residual 
fraud. Of course, it is inevitable that an element of 
fraud will not have been identified, and it is nearly 
impossible to estimate how much. There is, therefore, 
a real risk of depending on this sum.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.11  

Attract additional 
income through an 
Internal Collection 
Agency 

£0 £100,000 

Rather than depending upon external agencies to 
recover debts, it would be possible to set up our own 
unit. The sums that the debtors would have to pay (on 
top of the debt) would still be the same, but the profit 
made by commercial agencies would come to the 
Council rather than a private company. The success of 
such initiatives across north Wales has been varied. 
There would be costs associated with introducing the 
service. Also, there is a significant risk of failing to 
attract the additional income, and a possibility of a 
deterioration in the tax collection rates. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.12  

Standardise parking 
arrangements by 
introducing parking 
fees to areas (e.g. Y 
Glyn area) 

£20,000 £20,000 

Parking fees are already payable in some car parks in 
Padarn Park. It is intended to introduce similar parking 
fees in additional areas (e.g. the Glyn area) which 
would reconcile the arrangements. It is important to 
note that Gwynedd residents are the highest 
percentage of visitors who use the site for recreational 
purposes. It would also be an aim to attempt to get 
other bodies to take responsibility for our country 
parks, thus reducing the cost for us to provide them. 
An investment would be required to implement  

The policy is likely to have an impact 
on people who are poorer, e.g. 
families with disabled people, people 
from an ethnic minority or family 
with a disabled member. The size of 
the impact is dependent on the size 
of the fee. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad18 
 
 

P
age 301

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18


Appendix 3  

 

 

4.13  
Establish parking fees 
at Dinas Dinlle 

£15,000 £35,000 

Parking fees are already payable in some car parks 
near the main beaches. It is intended to introduce 
similar parking fees in additional areas which are 
currently free to be consistent with other areas, e.g. 
Dinas Dinlle. It should be noted that a high percentage 
of visitors to the beaches (especially out of season) are 
residents of Gwynedd and it could lead to an increase 
in street parking.  

The policy is likely to have an impact 
on people who are poorer, e.g. 
families with disabled people, people 
from an ethnic minority or family 
with a disabled member. The size of 
the impact is dependent on the size 
of the fee. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad18 
 
 

4.14  

Increase launching 
fees across the 
beaches of Gwynedd 
from £10 to £15  

 £10,000 
It is possible to increase launching fees from Council 
slipways from £10 to £15. An investment is required in 
order to implement.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.15  
Charge the schools 
more for the archives 
service  

£5,000 £5,000 

70 schools have committed to using the archives 
service this year and they pay 50% of the cost of the 
service by paying a fee of £254 per school. The option 
would lead to an increase in the schools' fee to £397 
per school, which is an increase of nearly £150 per 
school (depending on the number of schools which will 
have committed). 

The Service may not continue if 
School Heads cannot secure the 
additional budget.  That could have a 
significant impact on the following 
equality characteristics: 
 
Nationality - The materials convey 
the history of the communities 
reflecting the Welshness of the 
County. Awareness of the wider 
context of their communities for 
pupils, strengthening identity and 
sense of place. 
 
The Welsh language - As above 
Pupils, by understanding more about 
their communities roots, can take 
pride in the history of their locality 
and strengthen their personal and 
community identity. 
 
Age - affect children's opportunities 
to nurture and develop skills and 
reduce their experiences. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad21 
 
  

P
age 302

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad18
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad21
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad21
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad21


Appendix 3  

 

 

4.16  

Increase inspection 
and licensing fees of 
multi-occupancy 
properties from £140 
to £180 

£0 £20,380 

We charge a fee for inspecting and licensing multi-
occupancy property, and the licence is then valid for a 
5-year period. The fee contributes to the cost of the 
service, and the fee could be increased whilst staying 
with the Government guidelines. Currently, £140 is 
charged per room, and it is anticipated that the fee 
could be increased to £180 per room. There is a risk for 
the rent levels to increase for some vulnerable tenants 
as the cost is transferred.  

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
impact has been identified 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad22 
 
  

4.17  

Increase the income 
from street 
enforcement by fining 
more individuals who 
litter  

£10,000 £10,000 
We are currently looking at collaborating regionally or 
extending operating powers to others within the 
Council in order to implement this. 

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
impact has been identified 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad23 
 
  

4.18  
Garden Waste: more 
income or reduce costs 

£25,000 £75,000 

There are many options to save money in the field of 
garden waste. It would be possible to charge an annual 
fee and/or reducing the service to 9 months is possible, 
but this might create an element of dissatisfaction 
amongst approximately a third of residents. A 
consultation would be required with the residents on 
the favoured method of saving.  

It will affect people on a low income, 
who can not dispose of their free 
garden waste at the Recycling 
Centres. This could include groups of 
people like those on benefits in 
relation to disability or pensioners on 
low incomes. We will look at ways to 
mitigate these effects. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad24 
 
 

4.19  

Charge a fee for re-
supplying bins that 
have been damaged by 
residents 

£6,250 £18,750 

In a year, we are required to supply 12,000 waste 
containers, and it is estimated that approximately 75% 
of these cases are due to damage by residents. We 
could ask them to pay for resupplying. As a first step, 
we will charge for resupplying residual bins only.  

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
significant impact has been identified 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad25 
 
 

4.20  

Charge an additional 
fee for cremating on 
the same day as the 
service  

£10,000 £10,000 
It is possible to change cremation arrangements to an 
arrangement where we only cremate on the same day 
if an additional fee is paid.  

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
impact has been identified 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad26 
 
 

4.21  
Increase Crematorium 
fees from £520 to 
£550    

£7,500 £22,500 Increase the cremation fees from £520 to £550.  No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 303

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad22
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad22
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad22
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad23
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad23
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad23
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad24
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad24
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad24
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad25
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad25
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad25
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad26
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad26
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad26


Appendix 3  

 

 

4.22  
Recycling Centres: 
charge a fee on traders 

£5,000 £15,000 

Currently, traders are not permitted to take materials 
to recycling centres. By licensing traders to be able to 
do this, we could increase income. There would be no 
impact on residents. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.23  

Charge a fee for 
disposing DIY materials 
(e.g. Rubble at £3 per 
bag or £30 per trailer) 

£25,000 £75,000 

Some nearby councils charge residents to take DIY 
materials to recycling centres. This material is 
expensive to recycle and we have concerns about 
traders bringing material to the sites, and alleging that 
they are private individuals. It is anticipated  charging a 
fee on goods such as rubble, tyres, asbestos and 
others. For example, Rubble £3 a bag or £30 for a full 
trailer, tyres £4 each, asbestos £12 a bag. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.24  
Increase waste 
collection fees for 
businesses 

£0 £100,000 

Although we do not have to provide the service, we 
collect waste from businesses, and this pays for itself. 
Of course, there are private providers and to a degree, 
the fact that the Council provides a service helps 
rationalise the market and helps pay our overhead 
costs. It would be possible to charge more, but there 
would be a danger for us to then lose business and 
would make the others inefficient. There would be no 
impact on residents, but there would be an impact on 
2001 businesses in the County. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.25  
Increase income by 
selling legal services to 
other public bodies 

£33,000 £0 

As part of the work to attempt to encourage more 
income, the Unit has managed to generate more 
income by doing work for others. This income is 
already in hand, therefore there would be no impact 
on the people of Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.26  
Increase YGC fees in 
the civil engineering 
consultancy work field 

£40,000 £0 

Increase fees in order to reflect the movement within 
the market in terms of the private sector costs. Costs 
to clients would increase of course, but it is considered 
that this is sustainable considering the current market.  

No equality impact anticipated  

P
age 304



Appendix 3  

 

 

4.27  
Increase income in the 
flood prevention field 

£25,500 £25,500 

Due to the challenge of climate change, the Service has 
succeeded in acquiring work that would contribute 
more income for at least the next 5 years. 3 additional 
officers will need to be employed in order to be able to 
achieve this work, with a low risk for this work to 
reduce after 5 years.  

No equality impact anticipated  

4.28  

Increase income by 
offering technical, 
scientific and 
engineering support to 
flood risk mitigation 
plans to Councils 
across Wales 

£7,500 £22,500 

The department is developing expertise in the flood 
prevention field which is not available in many 
councils, and it is considered that some of this 
expertise could be sold to other councils in Wales. 2 
additional officers would be required in order to do so, 
but for the next 5 years, the income would be 
sufficient to meet the cost and generate higher 
income. There would be a small risk that the work 
could reduce after the first 5-year period. 

No equality impact anticipated  

4.29  

Increase income by 
offering more project 
management support 
to Welsh Government 
on major plans  

£10,000 £0 

There are further opportunities for the Department to 
offer a project management function to Welsh 
Government, and although there is no certainty of 
being able to acquire it, experience demonstrates that 
the opportunity is there, and it should be aimed to 
broaden the department's horizons to attempt to 
obtain such work. 

No equality impact anticipated  

5.1 
Transfer some public 
toilets to others 

£0 £50,000 

The intention here is to transfer some assets to the 
Community Council / Town Council, or possibly to a 
Community Group. If this figure is to be reached, 
between 6 and 10 toilets will need to be transferred. 
Achieving the sum will depend upon discovering bodies 
that will be willing to take them on and maintain them. 

Generally will hae a positive impact 
on the characteristics of disability, 
age (older people and families) and 
pregnancy and maternity. The 
proposal is intended not only to 
achieve financial savings, but to seek 
to improve the provision of toilets. In 
developing the proposal, the Council 
has assessed the needs of their 
community to try to meet that need 
in the best possible way, and where 
appropriate 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad27 
 
 

P
age 305

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad27
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad27
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad27


Appendix 3  

 

 

5.2 
Transfer Play Areas to 
others 

£0 £210,000 

There are significant costs associated with running play 
areas but, in some locations, there are local 
organisations or councils that run them. Consequently, 
in the current climate, it must be questioned whether 
the Council can continue to spend on these facilities. 
The intention here is to offer organisations or councils 
to receive and run them, or completely cease to 
maintain them after a specific time.  

Potential impact if assets are not 
successfully transferred to others.  
The possible result from ending the 
service could be a negative impact 
on chance of children and families 
having somewhere to play outside 
which is important so that they can 
keep healthy and fit. If this happens 
a full equality impact assessment 
would need to be made. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad28 
 
 

6.1  
Reduce the 
contribution of the 
Council to GwE by 1% 

£6,410 £0 

The Council contributes £640,000 to GwE for the 
schools' improvement service.  Reducing the 
contribution would reduce the resource available to 
offer schools, but it is difficult to quantify the exact 
implications , as the practical impact would be a slight 
reduction in the support for schools, and it is difficult 
to anticipate when this would have an impact. As it is a 
small percentage, it is likely that the impact would be 
minor and the reduction could be focused on those 
schools where less input is needed.  

No equality impact anticipated 

 

6.2  
End Library Services to 
Schools  

£36,780 £36,780 

The Libraries Service supports literacy and reading in 
the primary schools through Lori-Ni which visits the 
schools at least twice a year in order to enrichen 
children's reading experiences. The Libraries Service 
also provides resources to support the curriculum at 
teachers' request, the resources include books, story 
sacks, interactive materials for the white board, and 
group reading sets which enrich the nature of the 
materials and the curriculum experience available for 
children. Without this resource children would have 
less access to books and recreational reading 
experience, and the schools would have fewer 
curricular resources to enable them to ensure good 
quality education experiences for children. 

It is acknowledged that the proposal 
will have an impact on children, but 
that effect is not envisaged to be 
substantially negative. This is 
because schools are expected to find 
alternative ways to provide suitable 
books that reflect different equality 
features  

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad29 
 
 

P
age 306

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad28
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad28
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad28
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad29
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad29
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad29


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.3  

Reduce the frequency 
of cleaning in some 
areas within Schools 
by reducing hours by 
1.7% 

£17,560 £17,560 

We currently clean schools through a specification 
which generally means cleaning the entire school 
floors, including toilets and wiping furniture daily, 
damp mopping and scrubbing the floors of various 
areas, but not daily, with a deep clean for one week. 
This all costs £2,045,320.  By reducing the budget by 
£35,120, the frequency of cleaning some areas within 
the school would have to be reduced, and the only way 
to do this would be to cut staff hours. This will mean a 
reduction of 1.7% in the cleaning hours of all sites 
which could mean, for example, furniture would not be 
able to be wiped every day. This would lead to a 
deterioration in schools' hygiene standards unless 
schools choose to reinforce the budget from their core 
budget. 

It is not expected to have a 
significant negative impact on any of 
the equality characteristics as the 
size of the reduction in hours is 
relatively small when split across all 
schools. 
 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad30 
 
 

6.4  
Reduce the resource 
within the Road Safety 
Unit 

£7,500 £2,500 

This is a small team of 1.5 officers, who presents the 
teaching, advertising and training aspects on road 
safety matters across all ages. It is possible to reduce 
how much road safety promotional materials the Unit 
currently distributes to school pupils. This would not 
have a substantial detrimental impact on the service of 
teaching vulnerable people. In addition, the number of 
school crossing patrols currently employed could be 
rationalised by reviewing the circumstances of 
individual sites against the existing criteria to establish 
crossing provisions. This would ensure that only the 
sites with a low risk for crossing the road would be 
impacted.  

There is the potential that reducing 
the number of children crossing 
patrols outside the schools would 
increase the road safety risk for 
disabled and non-disabled pupils and 
parents. The likelihood of collision 
between the pupils and parents and 
vehicles would increase without a 
crossing patrol there to help cross 
the road. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad31 
 
 

P
age 307

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad30
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad30
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad30
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad31
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad31
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad31


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.5  
Reducing the budget 
for maintaining public 
footpaths 

£5,000 £5,000 

The funds for maintaining public footpaths (Budget of 
£177,160) goes towards maintaining approximately 
1700 kilometres of category 1 and 2 footpaths, and 
approximately 2200 kilometres of category 3, 4 and 
uncategorised footpaths. In accordance with the 
Council's Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan, we 
prioritise the work on category 1 and 2 footpaths. 
Most of the funds are, therefore, concentrated on 
these Category 1 and 2 paths which are main paths 
between centres and are used the most e.g. paths 
around communities, circular foot paths, access to 
beaches etc. 
 
The work involves carrying out reactive work following 
complaints, e.g. fixing the surface, fixing structures and 
responding to extreme weather e.g. trees falling during 
storms, and re-installing signs etc. that is undertaken 
by this Council. However, this also means managing 
growth, that is undertaken through an arrangement 
with some Community Councils. 
 
The impact of a £10,000 cut would mean that less of 
the network would be attended to, and would put 
increasing pressure on our ability to encourage the 
Community Council to manage growth. 

Access to rights of way may be even 
more limited to families, older 
people and disabled people if the 
Unit could not fully complete its 
work programme. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad5 
 
 

6.6  
Reduce the resource 
within the Planning 
Policy Service 

£2,500 £2,500 

It is possible to somewhat rationalise the unit by 
changing duties and discovering a saving, but it is 
noted that a cut of over 30% has already been made to 
staffing levels over the last 7 years.  There will be an 
impact of reducing expertise and resilience, along with 
an increase in delay in fulfilling statutory duties on 
behalf of Gwynedd and Anglesey residents. There will 
also be delay with advising the Planning Units 
(Development Control) of both counties on planning 
applications / advice. The saving needs to be shared 
with Anglesey 50/50.  

An initial assessment has been 
undertaken to see if there was an 
effect. No impact has been 
identified. www.gwyned

d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad32 
 
 

P
age 308

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad5
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad32
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad32
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad32


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.7  
Reduce the budget for 
the Traffic Orders unit 
by 33% 

£2,500 £7,500 

It would be possible to slightly reduce the budget of 
the Unit involved with traffic orders which would limit 
the Service's ability to respond to comments from the 
public, police etc. on safety situations, e.g. speeding 
and reckless parking. The current budget of £30,000 
enables the Service to impose orders on our roads and 
carry out physical work such as placing yellow line, 
introducing driving zones and introducing traffic 
calming measures. This will, possibly, force the Service 
to consider implementing a quota arrangement to 
ensure that the expenditure does not exceed the 
available budget. This type of arrangement would have 
to be on a first come first serve basis as it would not be 
practical to collect a list of situations in order to 
prioritise them in the final quarter of any financial year. 
Having to consider this type of arrangement would 
mean that fewer orders would be processed. 

The Unit often undertakes actions in 
response to requests from disabled 
people, families and older people to 
deal with situations that pose a risk 
to them. Reducing the budget for 
setting the physical measures on the 
roads might potentially increase the 
risk to these groups as it would be 
necessary to prioritize what works 
takes place. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad33 
 
 

6.8  

Reduce seasonal 
employment  of the 
Tax and Benefits 
Service by 50% 

£42,780 £0 

There was a need to make extensive use of overtime as 
a result of a backlog of 2,000 items after the summers 
of 2017 and 2018. At busy times such as 
September/October or the turn of the financial year, 
without this budget there would be a delay in 
providing support for the people of Gwynedd to pay 
their rent, or make necessary adaptations to their 
Council Tax accounts. It is difficult to quantify what 
exactly the effect would be without letting it happen to 
see, but it can be anticipated that it would take longer 
to clear any work backlog. 

In normal years, the remaining 
budget will be sufficient to cope with 
seasonal work pressures. In years of 
unusual pressure the shortage in the 
overtime budget may result in delays 
in dealing with tax issues or dealing 
with benefit applications or Council 
Tax Relief. Disabled people and 
individuals from an ethnic minority 
are statistically more likely to be 
poor and dealing with benefit claims 
could, therefore, affect Disabled 
people and people from ethnic 
minorities more than the general 
population. Having said that, as this 
cut is not expected to cause any 
delays, the risk is very small. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad34 
 
 

P
age 309

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad33
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad33
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad33
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad34
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad34
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad34


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.9  

Remove a vacant post 
within the Business 
Support Service (a 
reduction of 25% in 
the number of staff) 

£23,000 £0 

One post (out of the 4 in the Unit) is already vacant, 
and whilst it clearly affects the Council's ability to deal 
with enquiries by individual businesses, the current 
performance level reflects what can be done without 
the post. Based on 2016/17 figures, the nature of the 
enquiries included Land and Property Enquiries  (51%); 
Grants and financial support (31%); Business 
development support (10%); Business Information (6%) 
and inward investment (2%). The impact of removing 
this post would be that the delay in responding to 
business enquiries would continue, a risk that the 
Council would not be able to give as much support to 
each enquiry, and that the Council could not be 
proactive in raising Gwynedd businesses' awareness of 
opportunities.  

No equality impact anticipated 

 

6.10  

Review parking fee and 
operational 
arrangements at 
Storiel  

£10,000 £10,000 

Storiel has been established as a museum and gallery 
in Bangor, with exhibitions being organised in 
community areas across the county in order to extend 
access. This proposal involves reviewing the 
operational arrangements in terms of increasing 
income, including parking fees.  

Raising income targets can affect 
fees and this can have a significant 
impact on those who can participate 
and our principal supporting our 
communities.  It would affect access 
to specific heritage / arts activities 
for some races, the Welsh, people of 
all ages, and disabled people.  It can 
lead to a loss of collaboration 
opportunity to provide learning 
opportunities, promote our unique 
culture, build confidence, engage 
with minority groups and promote 
social inclusion. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad35 
 
 

P
age 310

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad35
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad35
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad35


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.11  

Reduce the mobile 
library service - visiting 
less locations and less 
often  

£7,500 £2,500 

The Libraries Service has 3 mobile community vehicles, 
namely: 
Arfon Mobile Library – Mobile and Home Service 
Dwyfor Mobile Library – Mobile and Home Service 
Meirionnydd Mobile Library – Mobile and Home 
Service  
 
The mobile libraries visit villages and housing estates 
throughout the county (140 stops) and fulfils the 
monthly service 10 times a year. In addition to the 
mobile libraries service, the vehicles also provide a 
home delivery service to the users who are 
housebound or who find it difficult to visit their local 
library for various reasons. 
Number of users in 2016-17  
Arfon – 103 adults, 0 children, 54 housebound 
Dwyfor – 156 adults, 1 child, 36 housebound 
Meirionnydd – 208 adults, 10 children, 84 housebound                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
It is likely that a number of the users who visit the 
mobile Service in a village stop is eligible to receive a 
Home Service, but that they choose to use the mobile 
stop for social purposes.                                                                                                                                                                                 
By reducing the service's budget, the mobile library 
would visit fewer stops across the county and/or would 
visit stops less often.  

The users who are at risk of being 
affected are older and / or disabled 
users, who will lose a service 
altogether, or have to wait for a 
longer period after applying for a 
home library service. These users 
could be socially isolated and faced 
with access to a public library due to 
mobility problems or public 
transport difficulties. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad36 
 
 

P
age 311

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad36
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad36
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad36


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.12  

Remove 1 post from 
the Economic 
Development Service 
(reduce staffing by 
33%)  

£20,000 £20,000 

We would aim to seek grants to fund one post within 
the Unit but if we are unsuccessful that post would 
have to be abolished. This would reduce our ability to 
develop strategic projects as the resource would 
reduce from three to two officers.   
 
The type of schemes these officers achieved in recent 
years was to target £9m to develop Plas Heli Pwllheli, 
target £13m to support the development of the 
Caernarfon Waterfront initiative (Galeri, Castle, Hen 
Ynys and Welsh Highland Railway); support the 
development of Plas Heli Pwllheli (£9m); complete an 
investment of £4.5 in Outdoor initatives in 
Meirionnydd (Coed y Brenin, Fishing Hatchery at 
Trawsfynydd Lake, Antur Stiniog, Glanllyn Bala); 
Establish a Shop Local programme and Business 
Improvement District programme (Caernarfon and 
Bangor BIDS); support the Harlech regeneration 
initiative; develop the World Heritage Site business 
case for the slate areas and target £450k Lottery funds 
for those communities together with establishing a 
fund to upgrade empty buildings.  
 
We are in the process of targeting £25m to upgrade 
the site and access to Llanbedr airfield and target £4m 
to regenerate Bangor city centre. With fewer staff, 
fewer projects would be developed and implemented, 
leading to less investment in communities to create 
the conditions to safeguard and create new jobs in the 
future.  

No equality impact anticipated 

 P
age 312



Appendix 3  

 

 

6.13  

Remove 1 post and 
change the 
management 
arrangements of the 
Community 
Regeneration Service 
(a 20% reduction)  

£37,500 £12,500 

Abolishing one post and changing management 
arrangements would mean less support for Gwynedd 
Council to support social enterprises and groups. There 
are 5 officers in the Unit and the type of plans that are 
currently receiving support are noted below - support 
o Ddrws i Ddrws to prepare a grant application for a 
new minibus; The Sporstman tavern, Nefyn to prepare 
a grant application to renovate the public house; 
Noddfa Café And Cegin Cofi to target various grant 
funds; Vic, Penygroes to draw up a robust business 
case to target grants; Nod Glas Company, Dinas 
Mawddwy, to target match funding; support the 
Maesywaun Cylch Meithrin to relocate to the Ysgol Bro 
Tryweryn site; support the Barmouth partnership to 
review community resources and prepare a business 
case to transfer assets; advise and support the 
Maesgeirchen Partnership with a pack of community 
projects, support Partneriaeth Ogwen  with a pack of 
projects, varying from setting up a land trust, 
community buildings energy, and options for the 
library site. 

An initial assessment has been 
undertaken.  No effect recognised. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad37 
 
 

P
age 313

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad37
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad37
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad37


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.14  

Remove 1 post from 
the Tourism and 
Marketing Service 
(reduce staffing by 
25%) 

£12,500 £12,500 

This Unit consists of 4 officers coordinating efforts 
between local, regional and national partners, along 
with the tourism industry itself in the county in order 
to attempt to improve and promote Gwynedd as a 
tourism destination, and market it through social 
media and the Snowdonia Mountains and Coast 
website.  
 
By abolishing 1 post, an activity will need to be 
prioritised, that will mean:             
- Reducing marketing activity - the Snowdonia 
Mountains and coast website, social media, leaflets 
and booklets, etc.  
- Reducing the activity of developing the sector, e.g. 
grant applications for Visit Wales to improve the 
products and the offer here (grants of over £600,000 
had been received over the past three years to 
improve this offer here in Gwynedd)             
- Reducing the support to the county tourism 
partnership;  
- Reducing the contribution of officers' time and 
resources to work and strategic partnerships with Visit 
Wales and North Wales; 
- Removing the capacity to administer brown and 
white signage applications. 
 
Following the Council's decision to close the Gwynedd 
Information Centres' network, enquiries from visitors 
and the industry are still referred to the Council and 
onwards to the service. Abolishing 1 post would have 
an impact on the Council's ability to respond to 
enquiries by Gwynedd businesses, visitors and public 
sector partners, at a time where a significant increase 
has been seen in the number of visitors to Gwynedd.  

No equality impact anticipated 

 

P
age 314



Appendix 3  

 

 

6.15  

In the long term, 
reduce the subsidy to 
the new Company 
being established by 
20%  

£0 £155,000 

We are about to set up a commercial company that 
would help us realise substantial savings (£435,000). 
This will be based on the Council committing to pay a 
subsidy of £741,000 to the company in the short-term, 
at least.  It is hoped that in the long-term, the company 
could reduce the subsidy that the Council would have 
to pay, either by discovering other markets or reducing 
the running costs further. Although it would not be 
possible to do this immediately, it is reasonable to 
expect this to happen in the long-term.   

An assessment will be carried out as 
the Company develops its proposals 
for achieving the saving 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad38 
 
 

6.16  
Reduce the strategic 
grants budget for the 
arts by 20% 

£0 £18,000 

This budget was halved during the Gwynedd Challenge 
savings process. Implementing this scheme would 
mean that the Council would not give support to 11 
main arts companies in Gwynedd. Several of them lead 
on projects which have a national effect in terms of the 
Welsh language and culture. The companies receiving 
assistance are - 
Bara Caws; Music in Hospitals; Canolfan Gerdd William 
Mathias; Cofis Bach; Dawns i Bawb; Galeri Caernarfon; 
Fran Wen; Plas Glyn y Weddw; Literature Wales; 
Pontio; Theatr Ardudwy; Theatr y Ddraig 
Several of these companies note that receiving an 
element of support from the Council ensures that they 
can attract funding from the Arts Council of Wales and 
ensure further investments in the Arts in Gwynedd.  

Risk of losing influence with 
organisations to adopt equal 
opportunities and Welsh language 
policies. It can directly affect 
liveliness and activities in Welsh 
language  
 
Many of those who receive grants 
work with specific groups or ages in 
society, e.g. vulnerable individuals, 
youths, older people health / mental 
health problems, children and young 
people, mothers and babies, etc. 
 
Loss of opportunity to work together 
to provide learning opportunities, 
promote our unique culture, build 
confidence, engage with minority 
groups and promote social inclusion. 
 
It can have an impact on other 
services and organizations if there is 
a reduction in the opportunities to 
participate e.g. health and wellbeing, 
activities for young people. i.e. 
leading to the demand for more 
social care, hospitals, police. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad39 
 
 

P
age 315

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad38
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad38
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad38
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad39
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad39
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad39


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.17  
Reduce the budget of 
the books fund by 10%  

£19,500 £0 

The Books Fund budget was reduced by 25% during the 
Gwynedd Challenge exercise. By reducing this a further 
10%, the choice available to the residents of Gwynedd 
will clearly be much less, and the waiting time for 
books would increase, making it less attractive for 
residents.  

The cut will affect the equality 
characteristics groups: Welsh 
Language, Disability, Age - children 
and older people, Sexual Orientation, 
as well as a large number of users 
from these groups who live on a low 
income. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad40 
 
 

6.18  

Review physical 
disability care 
packages and look to 
achieve objectives 
through alternative 
ways 

£25,000 £75,000 

We have cases that cost over £1000 a week for the 
Department (out of county placements and care 
packages that have been inherited from other counties 
under the ordinary resident regulations). By reviewing 
these packages, it is considered that the needs could 
be met in alternative ways. The figure is based on 
similar work that has already been achieved in the field 
of Learning Disabilities and there will be a key element 
of invest to save by investing in suitable homes and 
extra care housing developments.   
A social worker will need to be appointed for an 18 
month period to work on the plan to review all out of 
county cases and complete an analysis of the need that 
exists now and in future.                                                                                                                                                         
It is possible that considerable investment will be 
required beforehand in order to ensure suitable 
resources to provide the care locally.  A positive impact 
if it is possible for individuals to return to receive care 
locally.  
It must be borne in mind that some individuals have 
received care for many years, therefore managing any 
change and expectations will be key. There is an 
element of over-servicing in the ordinary residence 
packages, and it will be a process of change over time 
in order to cope and the support provided in an 
alternative way.  

The plan is about supporting and 
delivering services based on need. As 
a result, the method of support can 
be different and more local or with a 
different provider. The plan should 
not have a negative impact on any 
individual / group. The needs of each 
individual will be assessed 
separately. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad41 
 
 

P
age 316

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad40
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad40
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad40
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad41
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad41
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad41


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.19  
Review of the 
Continuous Health 
Care packages 

£50,000 £150,000 

When reviewing continuous health care packages, we 
attempt to ensure that Health pays a fair contribution 
towards the care packages given to individuals in 
accordance with the rules established. This important 
work needs to continue in terms of the 'best value' 
principle, but also in terms of responsibility for the 
support/care package. We are reviewing the CHC/DST 
procedure jointly with Health and aim to receive more 
benefits from this work. 
 
The intention here is to chase up the most intensive 
cases and, whilst we are quite confident that 
approximately £100k could be achieved, the entire 
£150k will be a considerably greater challenge. The 
Learning Disabilities Service has already implemented 
the easier and less controversial cases by achieving 
savings of £600k in terms of reviewing packages, 
achieving best value for money service principles, and 
has challenged health for their contribution. It is not 
possible to challenge packages more than once.   
 
There are staff capacity implications to do the work, 
and a risk of receiving legal challenges and complaints. 
Additional capacity is required to scrutinise the needs 
assessment and the DST, and to attend dispute 
meetings with health when the agency disagrees with 
the decision in terms of the CHC level.  

This plan involves rationalising and 
improving working arrangements 
between the Local Authority and the 
Health Board. It’s about the systems 
and relationships behind a program 
to support individuals and not on the 
support itself. On that basis, no 
direct impact is anticipated on any 
individual, as it does not add to the 
existing joint assessment 
arrangements. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad42 
 
 

6.20  
Waste collection 
calendars in electronic 
form only 

£22,500 £7,500 

Currently, we distribute waste collection calendars on 
paper form to all 62,500 houses in the county. 
Providing them on-line or on request only would create 
a substantial saving for us. 34,382 individuals have a 
self-service on-line accounts and we already 
correspond with these people through this method in 
relation to the garden waste service.  

An initial assessment has been made 
to see if there was an effect. No 
significant impact has been identified 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad43 
 
 

P
age 317

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad42
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad42
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad42
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad43
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad43
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad43


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.21  

Barmouth Bridge – 
stopping payment to 
Network Rail for the 
right of way over the 
bridge  

£0 £35,000 

This is a plan that came to the forefront during the 
Gwynedd Challenge exercise, but at the time, it was 
decided that the budgets should not be cut, but that 
this was subject to reaching a target of substantially 
reducing the cost for the Council of contributing to its 
future. We still pay £35,000 to Network Rail as it was 
not be possible to reduce the cost for us. By ceasing to 
pay the contribution to Network Rail, it is a matter for 
them whether they would close it for the use of the 
Coastal Path and the National Cycling Path. There 
would be a negative impact locally and in terms of 
tourism attraction if Network Rail decided not to keep 
it open.  

No differential effect as Network Rail 
own the bridge 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad44 
 

6.22  
Reduce the budget of 
Women's Aid by 20% 

£8,080 £2,690 

It would be possible to reduce the budget for Women's 
Aid by 20% by removing the children's worker within 
the South Gwynedd Women's Aid and Domestic 
Violence. The contribution is optional and is available 
to any family that has suffered or is living in a domestic 
violence situation, not just for families known to the 
Council's services. Gwynedd is the only authority in the 
North that maintains a service level agreement with 
Women's Aid. A reduction by the Council does not 
mean that the organisation could not carry on 
providing as they have access to other sources of 
funding. Women's Aid note that they make use of the 
agreement with the Council to attract other funding 
and grants to the organisation, but it is difficult to 
receive confirmation of this. The remainder of the 
Council's resources will also be available to provide a 
statutory service to Women who need it. 

No significant impact has been 
identified on children and young 
people as there is hope that the 
organization will be able to use 
alternative source of money 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad45 
 
 

P
age 318

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad44
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad44
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad44
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad45
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad45
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad45


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.23  
Reduce the advocacy 
budget by 6% 

£1,570 £520 

Providing advocacy to children and young people in 
care, who are disabled or who receive a care and 
support plan is a statutory requirement in the 2014 
Act. A reduction of 6% would have no significant 
impact on the number of children and young people 
being referred to the service as the take-up of the 
advocacy service by the eligible children and young 
people is low compared to the capacity within the 
allocated budget. There is a regional agreement and 
after 3 years of implementation, it is clear that 6% 
could be reduced without having an impact on the 
direct service for children based on 3 year data. It is a 
regional agreement with contributions by the 5 other 
authorities in North Wales. It is likely that other 
authorities would reduce their contributions in time. 

It is not expectated that there will be 
a change in the way in which children 
and young people will have access to 
the Service, due to the low take-up 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad46 
 
 

6.24  
Halve the foster 
parents' recruitment 
and training budget 

£5,420 £0 

Recruitment and marketing activity is expensive, but it 
is possible to maximise our activity on low-cost social 
media and websites and make more use of the 
Council's communication resources. It is therefore 
anticipated that this would have a low impact on 
children and families, due to the small risk that the 
new arrangements would not be as effective.  

It is possible to reduce the budget 
using alternative methods such as 
social forums that are cheaper than 
traditional methods so no impact is 
predicted 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad47 
 
 

6.25  

Reduce the Council's 
contribution to the 
Youth Justice Service 
by 7% 

£12,390 £1,770 

There would be a need to lose 0.4 FTE staff by sharing 
the reduction across secondments and the Restorative 
Justice team's funding (non-statutory), and there 
would be some impact on children and families by 
reducing the ability to do proper work with victims; 
holding fewer community projects and cutting the 
contact hours with children and young people.  

Not a substantial effect on young 
people, however we will need to 
monitor the impact of reduced 
capacity within our supporting 
projects (Health and Wellbeing and 
Accommodation Support). The year 
on year reduction of children and 
young people accessing the service 
helps to alleviate the impacts of 
these reductions. 

www.gwyned
d.llyw.cymru/
Asesiad48 
 
 

P
age 319

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad46
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad46
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad46
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad47
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad47
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad47
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad48
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad48
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/Asesiad48


Appendix 3  

 

 

6.26  

Reduce resource 
within the Legal Unit 
to support the work of 
other departments 

£7,500 £7,500 

Past research shows that this work cannot be obtained 
at a lower cost by sourcing it externally. Nevertheless, 
it is considered that more efficiency could be squeezed 
out of the system accepting that there would be a risk 
of seeing more matters facing delay - without realising 
it, it is difficult to say how much. There would also be a 
need to find a resource to fill in when elections are 
held. 

No equality impact anticipated 

 

6.27  

Restructure the 
Building Control Unit 
by reducing the 
number of team 
leaders 

£23,000 £0 

Restructuring would reduce the Unit's number of staff 
and, through this, there is a risk for the time it takes to 
check full planning applications to increase from 13 
days to 15 days. The customer satisfaction review 
score has decreased from 9.6 this year to 9.0. Every 
effort will be made to reduce the impact on the Unit's 
customer satisfaction. 

No equality impact anticipated 

 

 

P
age 320



APPENDIX 4 
 
CAPITAL 
 
1. Whilst local authority revenue budgets face constraints, capital budgets are also under pressure, 

and there are revenue implications for capital expenditure which is not funded by specific grants. 
 
2. In light of the revenue financial constraints we face and the fact that our previous Asset Strategy 

included a significant element of prudential borrowing (which places pressure on the revenue 
budget to pay for the borrowing costs), a thorough review of the next Asset Strategy is underway. 

 
3. A proposed programme for schemes for the next three years is set out below: 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

  
2019/20  2020/21 2021/22 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

New Schemes       

Asset Management Plan to be Allocated 11,728 7,535 6,610 

Highways Refurbishment 2,650 1,325 0 

Childcare 1,238 1,113 0 

Housing Strategy  2,700 2,700 2,700 

  18,316 12,673 9,310 

Approved Schemes -  Already a part of 
the Programme 

16,675 6,129 0 

PROGRAMME TOTAL 34,991 18,802 9,310 

 
4. We will be funding the programme as follows:  
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME FUNDING 

  
2019/20  2020/21 2021/22 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

New Schemes       

Capital Provision in the Settlement 7,995 7,535 6,610 

Grants and Contributions 2,563 2,438 0 

Renewals and Other Funds 7,758 2,700 2,700 

  18,316 12,673 9,310 

Approved Schemes -  Already a part of 
the Programme 

      

Other Borrowing 1,393 777 0 

Grants and Contributions 8,753 525 0 

Capital Receipts 98 750 0 

Departmental and Corporate Revenue 265 0 0 

Capital Fund 1,435 0 0 

Renewals and Other Funds 4,731 4,077 0 

  16,675 6,129 0 

PROGRAMME FUNDING TOTAL 34,991 18,802 9,310 

Page 323



5. It is intended to establish a new asset strategy from 2019/20 going forward, in accordance with 
the report presented to Cabinet early in 2019. The new asset strategy will be operational for the 
period from 2019/20 to 2028/29. 

 
6. The procedure for establishing the next strategy was approved by the Cabinet on 16 January 2018 

and in the following months all Council members were asked to prioritise the schemes put forward 
by departments.  A report on the detailed schemes will be presented for approval early enough for 
the 2019/20 financial year. 

 
7. The above table therefore reflects the general capital requirements (together with the funding) for 

setting the 2019/20 to 2021/22 budget, whilst the individual scheme details will be established by 
the Council in the new 10 year asset strategy. 

 
8. Therefore, the full Council is asked to add £18,316,130 to the capital programme to be spent in 

2019/20, in order to establish a total programme worth £34,991,250 by 2019/20, to be funded 
from the sources noted in the table under part 4 above. 

 
 
 

Page 324



APPENDIX 5 
 
DEALING WITH THE SCHOOLS’ BUDGET IN 2019/20 
 
1. Whilst developing a savings strategy and draft budget for 2019/20, a way ahead was 

agreed in order to avoid transferring a further savings target for Gwynedd schools again 
this year. 

 
2. The schools’ budget will increase this year due to the usual “demography” adjustments, 

which derive from changes in the number of pupils.  The actual number of pupils in 
September 2018 is used to calculate 2019/20 allocations.  The position varies from 
school to school, but on the whole the effect of an increase in pupil numbers means 
that the schools’ budget in its entirety will increase £418k, which includes a reduction 
-£260k primary, an increase +£617k secondary, and +£61k for special schools.  Against 
this years’ £617k increase, the secondary sector achieves a saving of £299k in 2019/20, 
following a decision to defer for two years from 2017/18, when the secondary 
demography was negative. 

 
3. It can be seen in the ‘bids’ part of this report (Appendix 2) that there is a 

recommendation to agree to fund bids worth £593k for the Education Department, 
towards the transport (£400k) and integration (£193k) budgets, which means that the 
cost of ‘Education’ increases substantially between 2018/19 and 2019/20.  However, 
there is a reduction of £247k in schools allocations in accordance with the Additional 
Learning Needs and Inclusion Strategic Review.  Certainly, having taken inflation of 
over £4m into consideration, the schools’ budget will be much higher in 2019/20 than 
the 2018/19 level. 

 
4. Also, there are a number of Welsh Government specific grants in the Education field.  

Whilst it appears that there will not be a “cash” reduction for these grants this year, it 
seems that the Government doesn’t add inflation to their grants.  Therefore, with costs 
(teachers’ salary and pension inflation) increasing 5%, schools will perceive the position 
of some of the Government’s grants as a cut in “real” terms.  However, our schools will 
receive a new grant from the Government towards teachers’ training.   

 
5. The Westminster Government have increased the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

employers’ contribution rate from 16.5% to 23.6% from September 2019.  This will 
cost £1.6m for the 7 months in 2019/20, and the full year effect by 2020/21 will be 
£2.8m.  It is 7% of the teachers’ pay bill, but a 40% increase in employers’ pension 
contributions. 
 
 While drafting this budget, it was assumed that the Welsh Government will fund the 
2019/20 teachers’ pension increase through a specific grant.  In January 2019, the 
Department for Education have consulted with the education sector mentioning “fully 
funding” the cost (£910m) for schools in England.  A consequential allocation to the 
Welsh Government is anticipated, and in turn that would be passed on to local 
authorities, and then on to schools. 
 
If there is no specific grant funding, or if the grant is far from being sufficient, at that 
time the Council will revisit this and discuss with schools how to deal with the one-off 
pressure in 2019/20. 

Page 325



APPENDIX 6 
 
COUNCIL TAX 
 
1. It is a key decision for the full Council’s members to make, in light of the considerations 

presented here, to establish the exact level of Council Tax for 2019/20.  The key to all 
of this is to strike an appropriate balance between the need to spend on services for 
the most vulnerable in our society, and the appropriate tax increase to be levied on the 
residents of Gwynedd.  

 
2. In historical assumptions made in our medium term financial strategy, a figure of 3.5% 

was used, as an estimate of the average increase in Wales.  By 2016/17, it was decided 
to increase the tax 3.97%, in order to avoid implementing some cuts.  By 2017/18, as 
a number of factors had gone in our favour, it was possible to balance the 2017/18 
budget with a 2.8% increase in the tax level.  By 2018/19, the Welsh Government’s 
grant settlement was disappointing, and the tax had to be increased 4.8%.   

 
3. This year, by 2019/20 it is recommended to increase the tax 5.5%, which would yield 

tax of £71.2m, including £2.7m of Premium yield and £2.84m of additional income 
towards the gap.  This would equate to a Council Tax increase of £71.53 in a Band D 
property, or £1.37 a week.  The tax raised by the community councils and the Police 
Authority would of course be additional to this.  

 
4. Over 16.4% of households which are liable to pay tax in Gwynedd receive some 

element of assistance towards their Council Tax, and over 60% of properites in 
Gwynedd are in bands lower than band D.  Every additional 0.1% of tax would adjust 
the funding gap we would need to find by around £71,246.  Therefore, 0.5% would 
mean adjusting the funding gap by around £356,230 whilst 1% would mean adjusting 
the funding gap by around £712,461.  

 
5. The increase in Gwynedd’s Council Tax, together with the average increase across 

Wales since 2014/15, is shown below. 
  

Year Gwynedd Wales 
   

2018/19 
2017/18 

4.8% 
2.8% 

5.0% 
3.1% 

2016/17 4.0% 3.7% 

2015/16 4.5% 4.3% 

2014/15 3.9% 4.2% 
   

   
Total 2014-19 20.0% 20.3% 

 
Average 2014-19 

 
4.0% 4.1% 

 
In 2018/19, Gwynedd Council’s Band D Council Tax level was £1,301, while the average 
level of tax for the counties in Wales was £1,219. 
 
https://gov.wales/docs/statistics/2018/180322-council-tax-levels-2018-19-en.pdf 

 
  

Page 326

https://gov.wales/docs/statistics/2018/180322-council-tax-levels-2018-19-en.pdf


6. We do not yet know what the exact average increase across Wales will be for 2019/20, 
but the latest information I have is that the average across Wales will be around 5.5%.  
Therefore, the motion here is going to be very close to the Wales average for 2019/20, 
and therefore adhere to the long-term policy. 

 
7. The choice between maintaining services and taxation is always difficult, of course, and 

it is a matter for all members to weigh things up and find a balance they consider to 
be appropriate.  However, further to many informal conversations in two series of 
members’ workshops, and having considered the response of Gwynedd residents to 
the public consultation, a Council Tax increase of 5.5% is recommended, which 
would be a weekly increase of £1.37, or £71.53 annually, with a Band D tax 
of £1,372.06 for 2019/20. 

 
 
COUNCIL TAX PREMIUM YIELD ON EMPTY PROPERTIES AND SECOND HOMES  
 
8. In the full Council meeting on 6 December 2018, it was decided to continue with the 

premium of 50% on second homes and on properties that have been empty for 12 
months or more for 2019/20.  It is estimated that the Council will receive £2.7m of 
additional income in 2019/20 by charging the Premium, and it is intended to earmark 
the money in a fund in order to implement the Housing Strategy, which aims to provide 
housing for young people in our communities.   

 
9. All of the income and relevant expenditure to be addressed must be incorporated into 

the 2019/20 budget.  

Page 327



APPENDIX 7 
 
BALANCES  
 
1. Local authorities need a prudent level of ‘working capital’ balances to maintain adequate cash 

flow and meet unforeseen expenditure.  It is foreseen that the Council will have general 
balances of £6m at the end of this financial year, representing around 1.5% of the Council’s 
gross revenue expenditure. 

 
2. We have noted, on more than one occasion, that due to the turbulent environment we will 

be facing in the years ahead, that it is appropriate to keep sums in reserve in order to deal 
with problems that could arise.    

 
3. Nothing has happened in the meantime to change this opinion, and more challenging savings 

schemes in view of the Welsh Government’s disappointing grant settlement for local 
government in 2019/20 mean that the risk continues (if not intensifies).  Therefore, the need 
to ensure that we have appropriate balances to deal with any financial shocks is still relevant 
(see Appendix 8 for the medium term Financial Strategy). 

 
4. Having set aside funds in the Reserve to Assist the Financial Strategy in order to deal with 

possible overspending by some services in 2018/19, and after committing £38k from a 
specific fund in order to finance one-off bids, it is recommended that we do not use 
general balances in 2019/20.    

 
5. The Council has a number of specific reserves established to meet specific expenditure 

needs. These are also part of the Council’s budget of course, and have been scrutinised 
annually.  Attention was given to the specific reserves by the Cabinet on 22 May 2018 and 
also the Audit and Governance Committee on 28 June 2018, when it was approved to transfer 
£2.75m from reserves and provisions towards corporate priorities / requirements.  I review 
the level of these reserves continually, and it is intended to hold another intensive 
review by May/June 2019, to consider how much scope there will be for the Council to 
change its priorities within these reserves. 

  
6. In their report “Meeting the Financial Challenges facing Local Authorities in Wales” the Wales 

Audit Office stated (in paragraph 1.8): 
 

“Councils can use reserves to help them to balance their budgets where savings plans do not 
achieve the expected results or where income is less than anticipated.  However, financing 
recurrent expenditure from reserves would not normally be appropriate.  A prudent level of 
useable reserves is a key element of financial stability; the minimum appropriate level will 
vary dependent on an authority’s known and potential liabilities and its spending plans.  There 
are signs that a few councils are over-relying on general reserves to deal with budget 
shortfalls, rather than seeking more sustainable approaches, which often involve making 
unpopular decisions.” 
 

7. Also, on 14 November 2018, the Welsh Government issued a statement on local authority 
reserves, which provides a useful context for our position and shows Gwynedd Council at a 
reasonable level in the middle of the Welsh authorities’ range of usable reserves. 

 

https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/whole-government-

accounts/publications/whole-government-accounts-reserves/?lang=en 

 
8. I am convinced that the Council’s use of specific funds to finance one-off requirements is a 

totally appropriate action, and it is recommended that the Council’s balances are not used to 
balance the 2019/20 budget. 

Page 328

https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/whole-government-accounts/publications/whole-government-accounts-reserves/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/finandfunding/whole-government-accounts/publications/whole-government-accounts-reserves/?lang=en


APPENDIX 8 
 
MEDIUM TERM PLAN TO ADDRESS THE 2019/20 - 2021/22 FUNDING GAP 
 
 
1. For a number of years, whilst establishing its budget, Gwynedd Council has been planning ahead to prepare for what might be on the 

horizon.  This has paid dividends, and in fact this is why we have been able to use £2.48m of ‘Gwynedd Challenge’ savings to balance 
the 2019/20 budget.  Not all Councils are in a position to be able to avoid cutting school budgets, raising tax 9%, etc. this year. 

 
2. In order to continue on this course, in addition to establishing a budget for 2019/20, an effort has also been made to project the financial 

position for the following two years, so that we can set the 2019/20 position in its wider context and plan how we are going to meet the 
challenges ahead. 

 
3. Since determining the Financial Strategy 2018/19 - 2020/21 in February / March 2018, detailed work to reassess likely budgetary 

commitments and assess a range of possibilities, has been carried out. In order to identify the financial challenge to the Council, further 
to thorough research, a range of assumptions were identified for the Government's grant 'settlement' level and the spending requirements 
of the Council's services, in order to provide likely financial scenarios for 2019/20 - 2021/22. These financial scenarios are presented to 
the Cabinet / Council in the form of a fan chart ("funnel of expectations") in order to identify the likely need for savings (or 'funding 
gap') to 2021/22. 

 
 
Government’s Grant Assumptions for 2020/21 and beyond 
 
4. In projecting, the most uncertain figure is the grant figure that we will receive from the Welsh Government from 2020/21 onwards. As 

the central grant 'settlement' funds 72% of the Council's net budget, this element is key in trying to project the financial position. 
 
5. A combination of economic and political factors determine the amount of grant we will receive - the state of the economy, spending and 

taxation policies, and the UK and Welsh Governments’ prioritisation selections. In order to update the projection of what might happen, 
we have used the latest information available to us now, including the projected total UK public spending in the Chancellor's latest 
Budget. 

 
6. The UK Government is going to conduct a Spending Review during 2019, which is a fundamental factor that could significantly change 

the position.  This will determine how the total UK public spending will be allocated between various departments (and thus, how much 
the Welsh Government will receive through the implementation of the "Barnett formula").  It's probably superfluous to add that there’s 
an extra layer of uncertainty regarding the impact of 'Brexit' on the economy, and consequently, how much money will be available to 
spend on public services. 

P
age 329



 
7. Despite the fact that so many economic and political factors are uncertain, the Council must plan prudently in the meantime, for a range 

of possible scenarios.  In order to model how much may be allocated to local government in Wales, for the projections in this report we 
have made reasonable assumptions about the positions of relevant UK Government departments, the impact of the Barnett formula, the 
income the Welsh Government will get from the new devolved taxes, and the Welsh Government's prioritisation (how much 'protection' 
will be given to Health and other projects). 

 
8. Regarding this last factor, as we don’t have any definite information about the Welsh Government's intentions, we have had to assume 

that they will continue with the same type of funding direction seen over recent years (i.e. giving less of an increase to local government 
compared to the Health Service and various other spending areas under Government care). If they changed this policy so that services 
are more equally funded, we would need a lot less further savings in 2020/21 and 2021/22. 

 
 
The Council’s Expenditure Requirements 
 
9. The most recent financial information about the Council's spending requirements for the 2019/20 budget has been prepared, based on ‘true 

inflation’ (specific levels of inflation on pay and other budgets) and relevant trends, together with the 'pressure on services', including 
demographics (pupil numbers statistics and the number of older people) and bids for unavoidable growth in expenditure, net of possible 
adjustments to minimize the requirement on the budget. 

 
10. We have reviewed our pay inflation and other inflation forecasts, and reviewed the forecasted demand for services.  Of course, the basis 

of these projections is less reliable when forecasting further into the future. 
 
Probable Scenarios – the need for savings 
 
11. Final figures are in place for 2019/20, and it appears that the budget may be balanced by harvesting £ 5.4m savings plus a 5.5% increase 

in the level of Council Tax – which will be around the average level for local authorities in Wales, as mentioned in the assumptions of the 
previous medium term financial plan. 

 
12. The fan chart below is presented for the next three years (2019/20 - 2021/22) creating a realistic and prudent picture of what could hit us.  

The "funnel of expectations" fan chart shows a combination of the possible scenarios, showing results in 10% bands.  
 
13. Local authorities tend to declare their gross 'funding gap', before raising the rate of Council Tax.  The first 'funding gap' calculated here is 

a net gap, which shows how much savings the Council will need to achieve in order to balance the budget after raising Tax by around the 
average increase.  Then, the second fan chart shows the gross gap for comparison with other local authorities.   

P
age 330



 

   -5000

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£
0

0
0

Gwynedd Council possible funding gap to 2021/22

February 2019 version - on a net 
basis (after increasing the rate of 
Council Tax by around the average)

£5.7m

£11.8m

£6.5m

£15.4

£5.4

£8.8m

£11.0

P
age 331



 

   
-5000

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£
0

0
0

Gwynedd Council possible funding gap to 2021/22

February 2019 version - on a 
gross basis (before raising the 
rate of Council Tax)

£11.7m

£17.8m

£15.0m

£24.0

£8.9

£14.8

£19.5

P
age 332



Savings Strategy 2020/21 and 2021/22 
 
14. There could be a significant challenge ahead of the Council over the 2 years 2020/21 and 2021/22.  See from the net gap fan chart that a 

strategy may be required to find a potential total of up to £10m of additional savings by 2020/21 and 2021/22.   
 
15. With uncertainty arising from the Westminster Government Spending Review, the actual result could be outside our 'best / worst scenarios' 

on the chart.  However, if the 'central' case happens, £3.4m of additional savings would be required by 2020/21 and a further £2.2m by 
2021/22 (totalling £5.6m), while an element of the 2019/20 schemes’ savings (possibly up to £4.2m) would be available for 2020/21 and 
2021/22.  Disregarding the 10% most peripheral results, the total gap for the two years can range between £1.1m and £10m. 

 
16. While our arrangements should aim to be flexible enough to deliver up to £10m of savings, after the 2019/20 savings strategy experience, 

we know how challenging it was to identify less than half of that amount of savings.  Cabinet members have considered the impact on 
services for the people of Gwynedd and see that the line where no further cuts can be made is approaching.  

 
17. We’ve concluded that the general picture appears to be serious for many Welsh local authorities, facing considerable pressure this year, as 

their financial situation becomes more vulnerable.  Some councils have ventured last year and tested that by now there is no 5% cap on 
the Council Tax increase, but remember that an additional 5% tax increase would only bring an additional £3.6m to the Council's coffers.  
That amount would not meet the Council's inflation, while a tax increase would put pressure on the people of Gwynedd.  

 
18. Ideally, the Council would like to implement a 4 or 5 year financial strategy.  Unfortunately, that is totally impracticable, as the Welsh 

Government has only provided a single year settlement without an indicative figure for the following year (understandably perhaps, in the 
face of national financial uncertainty due to the UK Government's Spending Review during 2019, etc.). 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan for 3 years 
 
19. Therefore, it is sensible to deal with the 2019/20 budget now, and continue with the savings strategy to respond in more detail by the 

following two years (2020/21 and 2021/22) when we will have identified the relevant funding gap with more certainty.   
 
20. Meanwhile, while aiming to be flexible enough to be able to achieve up to £5.6m further savings (the central case of the forecasts) 

over the two years 2020/21 and 2021/22, whilst ensuring that all efficiency options are identified, it must be recognized that 
this will be extremely challenging and the Welsh Government should be urged to provide an appropriate grant settlement for 
2020/21 and beyond.  

 
21. Within this regime, we will continue to implement consistent principles in considering an increase in Council Tax close to the 

Welsh local authorities’ average increase, maximizing the efficiency savings that can be realized (in order to avoid further 
cuts), and implement cuts only as necessary, in order to meet the remaining balance of the funding gap. 

P
age 333



APPENDIX 9 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
1. The budget outlined here endeavours to continue to provide appropriate outcomes for all 

the county’s citizens, but as there was insufficient increase in our income to meet inflation, 
etc, we must implement the savings schemes already approved, together with the 
package of additional schemes which are in Appendix 3. 

 
2. With savings, there is a possibility for us to have an impact which would disproportionately 

affect those with protected characteristics, but the departments responsible for the 
individual savings schemes have held appropriate impact assessments regarding the 
financial decisions on the savings and cuts presented here.  Where appropriate, in 
Appendix 3, there are comments opposite the individual schemes, or a link to detailed 
assessments. 

 
3. Our aim was to ensure that our financial decisions conform with the requirements of the 

Equality legislation, namely:  
 Eliminate illegal discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and any other 

conduct prohibited by the Act.  
 Promote equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 
 Encourage good relations between those who share a protected characteristic and 

those who do not.   
 In assessing, the relevant departments attempted to identify how to make the best of 

every opportunity to improve equality as well as trying to avoid or mitigate any negative 
effects to the best of their ability. 

 
4. In planning our budgets for the continuation of the Council’s services, our accountants 

have given consideration to equality on every level, by utilising data and evidence in 
relation to demography and trends by planning at a strategic level.  In the same way (but 
more specific) when coming to decisions on individual savings schemes, the Council’s 
heads of department have collected data, analysed the effect of schemes and monitored 
appropriately. 

  
5. We have clear regimes for finding savings, which include a full assessment of the impact 

of savings in terms of equality.  The relevant department has analysed each individual 
scheme, noting if an impact assessment needs to be conducted when developing the 
project.  This will be the procedure with further efficiency savings by 2019/20. 

 
6. The recommended budget does more than meet inflation costs.  It also attempts to 

ensure that unavoidable financial pressures being placed on services (due to greater 
demands from increasing numbers of clients, pupils, etc) are also addressed by making 
conscientious and reasonable budgetary decisions (see the additional expenditure 
requirements, including ‘demography’, in part 3 of the report).  

 
7. Each service has the right to submit a request for resources if it considers that additional 

funding is required to ensure that services continue.  The sums seen under the “service 
pressures” heading is recognition that the Council provides sufficient funding to ensure 
that our financial arrangements do not have a detrimental impact on the level of services 
provided.  Full details are given in Appendix 2 and it can be seen that a substantial part 
(£1,786,350) of the total sum of permanent revenue bids (£3,060,030) is going to social 
care, and the majority of the remainder (£1,139,640) will go towards school pupils’ special 
needs.  

Page 334



Here is a presentation on Equality Impact Assessments by the specialist Policy and Equality 
Officer, together with her observations, specifically about the effect of the savings (she has not 
commented on other positive aspects of the budget mentioned above, such as care ‘bids’). 
 
 

What is an equality impact assessment? 

It is very important that consideration be given to people regarding the nine equality 
characteristics that are protected under the Equality Act 2010 when making decisions about 
savings. The nine characteristics are as follows - age, sex, religion or belief, sexual orientation, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, and marriage and civil partnership. 
Many of these characteristics are common for all people of Gwynedd, e.g. all of our residents 
have an age and race.  The others are characteristics that affect a percentage of the people of 
Gwynedd, but it is important to bear in mind that people who have a relationship with the 
individual are also protected, e.g. family, friends, carers (in the case of disability), etc.  Without 
considering the impact on these characteristics, it is not possible for us to ensure that the people 
of Gwynedd are treated fairly. 

The Act also places a general duty on us as a Council to give due attention to the need to: 

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that is 

prohibited by the Act 

2. Promote equal opportunities between people that share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

3. Foster good relationships between people who share a protected characteristic and those 

who do not. 

It should be noted that the general duty is only relevant for eight of the nine characteristics (it 
does not include marriage and civil partnership). 

Welsh Government has placed further duties on public organisations in Wales, which are specific 
duties.  One of these duties is to carry out an equality impact assessment when considering the 
introduction of a new policy or when making changes or cuts to a service.  Sufficient evidence is 
required to consider whether the decision would have a disproportionate impact on people who 
share one or more protected characteristics.  There is also a need to assess the impact of its 
ability to conform to the general duty. We are required to ensure that there is relevant evidence 
in order to understand the likely or real impact of policies, including the opinions of people who 
have protected characteristics. 

How much emphasis should be given on an equality impact assessment? 

Having considered this, the decision makers must give due attention (i.e. appropriate weight) to 
the results of such assessments. This makes it a requirement to consider taking action to deal 
with any problems noted, such as dealing with negative impacts, where possible. The fact that 
as assessment shows an impact does not therefore prevent you from breaching a service level, 
but the Council must consider every possible way of preventing or mitigating any negative 
impacts. 

Assessing the impact of the savings 

The Equality Impact Assessments are available by clicking the link next to the proposal on the 
table.  You will notice that an equality impact assessment has not been completed for each 
proposal.  Of course, each service, when preparing to submit its proposals, had a responsibility 
to look at whether there was an impact. If there is no impact on people with protected 
characteristics, there is no need to complete an equality impact assessment.  Sometimes, it would 
become clear that there was no impact when completing the assessment, and these assessments 
have been submitted as summaries. Although the Equality and Policies Officer has given an input, Page 335



it was the responsibility of the Department to determine whether an equality impact assessment 
was required. A summary is also available in the table but it is extremely important that everyone 
reads the full assessments in order to obtain the full picture of the impacts on different cohorts 
of people. 

 

Results of the Equality Impact Assessments 

By looking at the equality impact assessments, you will notice that the proposals have a greater 
impact on some protected characteristics than others. The cumulative impact on people in such 
a situation should always be considered. Some of the assessments show that the greatest impact 
is on disabled people, older people and children, be that negative or positive.  Bearing in mind 
that people who have a relationship with a person with protected characteristics are also 
protected, the impact on carers and parents should therefore also be noted.  Having said that, it 
must be borne in mind that the Council has considered a large amount of other savings and has 
attempted to select those with the least impact on the overall population in addition to people 
with protected characteristics. The assessments also show the measures that will be taken, if 
possible, to mitigate any negative impact highlighted. 

Another factor for consideration is poverty.  Although it is not a protected characteristic, statistics 
show that people with some equality characteristics are more likely to be poor than the rest of 
society.   This includes families of disabled people, some people from ethnic minorities and 
families with children.  Some of the proposals will have a detrimental impact on some of these 
people. 

Location must also be considered when looking at the impact.  Some of the proposals impact 
specific areas, but no clear cumulative impact has currently been identified.  This will need to be 
assessed further when developing the assessments as the proposals mature. 

It is also important to consider the impact these savings will have on staff members.  Some staff 
members will lose their jobs or will have to change their job.  As approximately 70% of the 
Council's workforce are women, it is unavoidable that these savings will have a greater impact 
on women. 

 

Page 336



APPENDIX 10 
 
WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 
 
1. The work of planning and preparing the recommendations has taken place within the 

context of the Act’s requirements.  Although the recommendations are derived from a 
difficult financial position, the Council has acted on the basis of the principle of acting 
in a way that addresses the statutory duty in Section 3 to undertake sustainable 
development and achieve the Council’s Wellbeing Objectives.  This is addressed by 
identifying and evaluating options for savings, but also in decisions and choices from 
the perspective of supporting investment in services. 

 
2. Main conclusions for the 2019/20 budget regarding the 7 well-being goals: 
 

 Prosperous – Neutral   
 Resilient - Positive (prudential long-term approach to funding services) 
 Healthier – Positive (funding Dementia Units, and other ‘Care’ requirements)   
 More Equal - Positive (taxing in order to fund 'welfare' services) 
 Cohesive Communities – Neutral   
 Culture and Language – Positive (by funding bilingual services) 
 Globally Responsible – Neutral 

 
3. This budget reflects the following five ways of working that the Council is required to 

consider when applying sustainable development. 
 

 Looking to the long term - The budget plans for the future, identifying future 
needs and demand for services, taking a strategic approach to ensure services 
are sustainable.  

 Taking an integrated approach - The budget proposals encourage ways of 
working with partners, where that’s more sustainable.  

 Involving the population in decisions – Part of the budget process and savings 
strategy included engagement with residents, customers and partners.  

 Working in a collaborative way – Where better services can be provided by 
collaboration, the budget process and savings strategy encourages this.  

 Understanding issues and preventing them – The budget process facilitates an 
understanding of the financial position, so that issues can be tackled at the 
source.  Also, the public consultation and the 2 series of Members’ Workshops 
have aided an understanding of the financial savings strategy. 

 
4. Regarding specific financial savings schemes, as part of the corporate and departmental 

savings regime, where appropriate there was a specific wellbeing assessment for each 
individual scheme, and consideration thereof in the workshops organised to scrutinise 
them and to prioritise savings to be implemented. 

 
5. Generally, coupled with the Council’s Plan and Wellbeing Objectives, this budget 

supports the Council to realise strategic objectives. 
 

Page 337



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gwynedd Council’s Financial Strategy 

public consultation results 

  

 

January 2019 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/financialstrategy  

 

 

 
 

 

Page 338

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/financialstrategy


2 

 

Contents Page 

 

1. Background 

 

3 

2. Conducting the survey 

 

5 

3. Overview of the survey respondents 

 

6 

4. Methodology used to analyse the results 

 

10 

5. Main messages 11 

6. Overall survey results 

 

12 

7. Council Tax question: Comparison of results for different groups (age, 

gender etc). 

  

16 

8. Organisation / business responses 

 

21 

 Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to 
raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 Appendix C: General comments by all respondents 

 Appendix Ch: Comments by businesses / organisations 

 Appendix D: Arthog Community Council correspondence 
 

22 

 

34 

41 

45 

51 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 339



3 

 

1. Background 

 

1.1 The financial situation facing Gwynedd Council over the years to come is going to be 

more challenging than ever. 

 

1.2 In 2019/20 alone, the Council is facing a financial deficit of £13 million. This is due to:  

 

   £m 

Inflation 9.5 

More children and older people needing help 3.0 

Further reductions in Government funding 0.5 

Total 13.0 

 

 

1.3 As Gwynedd has been cutting back on expenditure for more than a decade, the Council 

is now reaching a situation where deep cuts are inevitable. In order to cope with this 

challenging situation, the Council’s departments have been looking for ways to reduce 

their spending and ways to generate additional income.  

 

1.4 Gwynedd Council has already asked the views of the people of Gwynedd about which 

local services are important to them in the ‘Which services are important to you?’ 

survey that took place in September – November 2018.  

 
1.5 The results from the ‘Which services are important to you?’ survey clearly shows that 

the services the Council provides are either important or very important to the people of 

Gwynedd or to a specific group or community within the county. In response to what the 

people of Gwynedd have already said, the Council intends to:   

 

 protect front line services by saving a further £2 million in expenditure on central 

and “back office” services and by finding new ways of providing services that won’t 

effect the public;  

 protect Care and Education (the two areas responsible for almost 2/3 of the 

Council’s expenditure) specifically by not asking schools to contribute to the further 

savings needed in 2019/20 and by limiting the contrubution of these two service areas 

to efficiency savings or savings that will only have a marginal effect;  

 protect the Public Transport budget as this is a priority for various groups that have 

protected characteristics (people under 25 years old, people over 65 years old and 

disabled people in particular); 

 limit the cuts that effect the Business Sector to an absolute minimum. 

 

1.6 The Council has already been planning some savings over recent years, and by 

pursuing further grants it is possible to reduce the gap from £13 million to £6.8 million. 

 

1.7 The Council has also identified opportunities to reduce its back office costs even further 

and is hopeful that there is room to implement further savings of £2 million.   

 

Page 340



4 

 

1.8 There are two options left for the Council to meet the remaining £4.8 million gap for 

2019/20 – further savings and/or increasing the Council Tax:  

 

 Further savings – the Council is of the opinion that it can deliver further savings that 

would produce £1 million in 2019/20.  

 Increasing the Council Tax – delivering the £1 million of savings through the proposals 

outlined would leave the Council with £3.8 million to raise from Council Tax. This would 

mean a 5.5% increase in Council Tax.    

 

1.9 The purpose of the Gwynedd Council Financial Strategy consultation was: 

 

 to explain the financial situation that’s facing the Council to the people and 

organisations of Gwynedd; 

 present the two options available to the Council – achieving further savings and/or 

increasing the Council Tax; 

 offer the opportunity for the people and organisations of Gwynedd to have their say on 

the 65 proposals considered by the Council; 

 provide appropriate opportunities for individuals, community groups, interest groups 

and organisations to note any possible effects on one of the protected characteristics 

groups.  

 

     1.10 As an introduction to the questionnaire it was explained that: 

 

 the Council faces a challenging financial situation over the coming years; 

 the results from the consultation will be presented to Gwynedd councillors as 

information that will be useful in considering how best to allocate the inadequate 

amounts of money available to fund local services between 2019/20 and 2022/23; 

 it’s the responsibility of Gwynedd councillors to weigh up all the information and 

evidence they will receive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 341



5 

 

2. Conducting the survey 

 

2.1 The survey was undertaken over 4 weeks between 4 – 31 January, 2019.  

 

2.2 There was an opportunity for residents and organisations to participate in two ways:  

 

i) Complete the questionnaire ‘Gwynedd Council Financial Strategy’ in one of two 

ways:  

 

 Online via the website www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/financialstrategy; 

 A paper booklet and questionnaire available through Siop Gwynedd, the 

Council’s libraries and leisure centres.  

 

ii) Send in a letter or an email with any feedback or comments.  

 

2.3 A wide range of methods were used to promote and raise awareness of the opportunities 

to participate in the survey, including: 

 

 publishing a series of press releases, which were used as a basis for articles in the 

local and regional newspapers (Daily Post, Cambrian News, North Wales Chronicle) 

 a proactive campaign on social media which included a regular series of messages 

and video clips that were promoted through the Council’s Twitter, Facebook and 

Instagram accounts and through a number of partners; 

 circulating details of the survey to Community Councils; 

 circulating details of the survey to a number of bodies to share with their members, 

including members of the: 

 

- Gwynedd Third Sector Liaison Group; 

- Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Service Board; 

- Gwynedd Business Network; 

- Eryri and Meirionnydd Young Farmers; 

- Bangor University Students’ Union; 

- Yr Urdd; 

- Age Cymru Gwynedd a Môn; 

- arts organisations; 

- environmental groups etc;  

 

 Contacting groups and organisations affected directly by one or more of the 65 

proposals.  

Page 342



6 

 

3.  Overview of the survey respondents 

 

3.1 Over the engagement period 588 people from Gwynedd and 21 local businesses / 

organisations took the opportunity to complete the survey.  

 

3.2  Gender  

 

3.2.1 Of the individuals who responded: 

 

 279 were women;  

 259 were men;  

 2 noted ‘Other’; 

 

3.2.2 In addition to this, 48 individuals stated that they preferred not to say or chose not 

to answer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Graph 1: Gender of respondents * 
 

Dynion 

49.4% 

* The graph doesn’t take into consideration 
the number of individuals who answered “I 
prefer not to say” or the individuals who 
chose not to answer.  

Graph 2: Gender of the people of Gwynedd 
(over 11 years old) 

 

Page 343



7 

 

3.3 Age 

 

3.3.1 The graph below shows the number and percentage of respondents according to age 

Group. 33 people chose not to answer the question.  

 

 

3.4 Language 

 

3.4.1 Of the individuals who responded: 

 

 310 (52.7%) noted that Welsh was their first language; 

 206 (35.0%) noted that English was their first language; 

 6 (1.0%) noted that they were bilingual in Welsh and English; 

 5 (0.9%) noted their first language as ‘Other’; 

 61 (10.4%) individuals stated that they preferred not to say / didn’t answer 

the question.  

 

3.4.2 The following graphs show the number and percentage of respondents according to 

their first language and the percentage of the linguistic background of Gwynedd’s 

residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Graph 3: Age of respondents 

Page 344



8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 Disability 

 

3.5.1 themselves as disabled. 83 individuals decided not to answer this question or chose ‘I 

prefer not to say’. Even though it’s not possible to make a direct comparison, graph 7 

indicates that 9.7% of Gwynedd residents have noted that they have a condition that 

“severely limits their day to day activities”. This compares to the 9.5% of respondents 

that noted in the consultation that they consider themselves as disabled. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nac ydw 
92.0% 
(2,070) 

 

Graph 4: Respondents first language* 

Cymraeg a 
dwyieithog 

64.9% 

(1,487) 

Saesneg 

34.3% 

(786) 

Graph 5: The percentage of Gwynedd 
population over the age of 3 years old that 

noted that they can speak Welsh 

Gallu 
siarad 

Cymraeg
65.4%

Ddim yn 
gallu 
siarad

Cymraeg 
34.6% 
 

Graph 7: Percentage Gwynedd residents 
that stated that they had a condition that 
“severely limits their day to day activities”  
 

Graph 6: Number of respondents that 
considered themselves as disabled 

 

* The graph doesn’t take into consideration the 
number of individuals who answered “I prefer not 
to say” or the individuals who chose not to 
answer.  

* The graph doesn’t take into consideration the 
number of individuals who answered “I prefer not to 
say” or the individuals who chose not to answer.  

No 
90.3% 
 

Yes 
9.7% 
 

Page 345



9 

 

3.6 Local Area 

 

3.6.1 The following table and graph shows the number and percentage of respondents per 
local area. 138 individuals chose not to give their postcode and 11 individuals noted a 
postcode outside of Gwynedd.    

 

 

 

 

 

Local Area Number of 

responses 

Percentage of all 

respondents 

Percentage of Gwynedd 11+ 

population that live in the area 

Bangor 40 9.1% 17.9% 

Caernarfon 105 23.8% 20.0% 

Dolgellau 60 13.7% 8.6% 

Dyffryn Nantlle 30 6.8% 6.2% 

Dyffryn Ogwen 20 4.6% 6.7% 

Ffestiniog 20 4.6% 5.2% 

Llŷn 56 12.8% 15.7% 

Penllyn 14 3.2% 3.7% 

Porthmadog 52 11.8% 10.0% 

Tywyn 42 9.6% 6.1% 

Postcode not 

given 138 N/A N/A 

Total 577* 100.0% 100.0% 

 

 

 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Bangor Caernarfon Dolgellau Dyffryn
Nantlle

Dyffryn
Ogwen

Ffestiniog Llŷn Penllyn Porthmadog Tywyn

Graph 8: Respondents per 10 Local Area 
 

Percentage of all respondents Percentage of Gwynedd 11+ 
population that live in the area 

* This total does not include the 11 individuals that gave a postcode that’s outside of Gwynedd.  

Page 346



10 

 

4. Methodology used to analyse the results 

 

4.1 Council Tax question 

 

4.2 The respondents who had chosen the option “Gwynedd Council should increase the 

Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to reduce the need to deliver the 

65 proposals listed in Table 1” were encouraged to note which proposal/s they felt the 

Council should not implement. 

 
4.3 There was an opportunity for the respondents that chose the following options to note any 

comments on the financial strategy or to note any possible effects on one or more of the 

equality characteristics groups:  

 

 “I agree that the proposals noted in Table 1 are ones that are reasonable for the 

Council to achieve and that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 

strikes an appropriate balance between the need to protect services and the 

Council Tax level” 

 “Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by less than 5.5% for 

2019/20 and implement more cuts to Services than the 65 proposals listed in 

Table 1 whilst accepting that this could mean a reduction in services that are most 

important to me” 

 “I do not wish to express an opinion on the Council Tax but wish to 

comment on the proposals listed in Table 1”  

 

 

  

Page 347



11 

 

5. Main messages 

 

5.1 Around half (48.6%) of the respondents felt that the Council should increase the Council 

Tax by less than 5.5% for 2019/20 and implement more cuts to services than the 65 

proposals listed, whilst accepting that this could mean a reduction in the services that are 

most important to them (see page 13). 

 

5.2 The other half (51.4%) were either in favour of the Cabinet’s option to increase the 

Council Tax by 5.5% (34.3% respondents supported this), or the option to increase the 

Council Tax by more than this in order to reduce the number of savings (see page 13). 

 
5.3 A small minority (17.1%) felt that the Council should increase the Council Tax by more 

than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to reduce the need to deliver the 65 proposals 

presented to them. None of the proposals particularly stood out as ones to protect by this 

group of respondents with 43 of the 65 proposals receiving between 1 and 11 comments. 

None of the proposals received more than 11 comments (see page 13). 

 
5.4 A higher percentage of disabled respondents (30%) noted that Gwynedd Council should 

increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5%, compared to the results as a whole 

sample. Please note that only 48 disabled people answered the consultation. 

 
5.5 149 specific comments regarding the proposals were received by 79 individuals that 

wished to increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. See Appendix A (page 22) 

 
5.6 There was an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire for each respondent to provide 

comments. The comments refering to specific proposals can be found in Appendix B 

(page 35) and the general comments found in Appendix C (page 41). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 348



12 

 

6. Overall survey results 

 

6.1 Graph 9 shows the results for the Council Tax question. 461 individuals chose to 

give an opinion on the Council Tax. 

 

6.2 Graph 10 shows the proposals that the respondents that chose “Gwynedd Council 

should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to reduce 

the need to deliver the 65 proposals listed in Table 1” feel that the Council should not 

implement and are listed in popularity order. The table also notes any comments and 

possible effect on one or more of the equality characteristics groups. The full comments 

can be found in Appendix A. 

 

6.3 There was an opportunity for each respondent to give further comments on the Financial 

Strategy and note any possible effect on one or more of the equality feature groups, 

protected under the Equality Act 2010: 

 disabled people; 

 people of different ages; 

 people of different genders; 

 people of any different race; 

 people with / without a religious belief; 

 people with any sexual orientation;  

 people who are transsexual; 

 pregnant women / maternity.    

 

6.4 134 comments were received on specific proposals and 248 general comments on the 

Financial Strategy.   

 
6.5 Any specific proposal that’s received comments can be found in popularity order in 

Appendix B. It’s important to note that these comments don’t necessarily support the 

proposal, they vary in comments that support, oppose the proposals and neutral 

comments.  

 
6.6 The general comments have been categorised into themes and any theme that’s 

received 5 comments or more can be found in graph 12. To see the general comments 

in full go to Appendix C.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 349



13 

 

34.3%
(158)

17.1%
(79)

48.6%
(224)

“Gwynedd Council should 
increase the Council Tax 
by less than 5.5% for 
2019/20 and implement 
more cuts to services than 
the 65 proposals listed in 
Table 1 whilst accepting that 
this could mean a reduction 
in services that are most 
important to me” 

“I agree that the proposals 
noted in Table 1 are ones that 
are reasonable for the Council 
to achieve and that 
increasing the Council Tax 
by 5.5% for 2019/20 strikes 
and appropriate balance 
between the need to protect 
services and the Council Tax 
level” 

“Gwynedd Council should 
increase the Council Tax by 
more than 5.5% for 2019/20 
in order to reduce the need to 
deliver the 65 proposals listed 
in Table 1” 

* 127 of the respondents chose “I do not wish to express an 
opinion on the Council Tax but wish to comment on the 
proposals listed in Table 1” or did not answer the question.  

Graph 9: Council Tax question results* 

P
age 350



14 

 

 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

54 - Reduce the strategic grants budget for the arts by 20%

49 - Reduce the mobile library service - visiting less locations and less often

55 - Reduce the budget of the libraries books fund by 10%

59 - Barmouth Bridge – stopping payment to Network Rail for the right of way over the bridge 

60 - Reduce the budget of  Women’s Aid by 20%  

1 - Provide electric car charging points in car parks

10 - End free Christmas parking from 2019 onwards and increase parking fees

40 - Remove an element of the Teacher Support Service from the Library Service for Schools

50 - Remove 1 post from the Economic Development Service

51 - Remove 1 post and change management arrangements of the Community Regeneration Service

63 - Reduce the Council's contribution to the Youth Justice Service by 7%

39 - Remove an element of the Mobile Service from the Library Service for Schools

21 - Charge schools more for use of the archives Service

29 - Charge a fee for disposing DIY materials

36 - Transfer some public toilets to others

43 - Reduce the budget for maintaining public footpaths

19 - Charge parking fees at Dinas Dinlle

25 - Charge a fee for re-supplying bins that have been damaged by residents

42 - Reduce the resource within the Road Safety Unit

52 - Remove 1 post from the Tourism and Marketing Service

56 - Review physical disability care packages and look to achieve objectives alternative ways

57 - Review of Continuous Health Care packages

61 - Reduce the advocacy budget by 6%

62 - Halve the foster parents' recruitment and training budget

2 - Invest in improvements that would make Neuadd Dwyfor more efficient, and prepare to look at an alternative…

26 - Charge an additional fee for cremating on the same day as the service

34 - Increase income by offering technical, scientific and engineering support to flood risk mitigation plans for…

37 - Transfer play areas to others

53 - In the long term, reduce the subsidy for the new Leisure Company being established by 20%

16 - Generate income by preventing fraud

24 - Garden Waste: more income or reduce costs

27 - Increase Crematorium fees from £520 to £550

31 - Increase income by carrying out legal services for other public bodies

33 - Increase income in the flood prevention field

35 - Increase income by offering more project management support to the Welsh Government on major plans

38 - Reduce the contribution of the Council to GwE by 1%

41 - Reduce the frequency of cleaning in some areas within schools by reducing hours by 1.7%

45 - Reduce the budget for the Traffic Orders unit by 33%

46 - Reduce the seasonal employment within the Tax and Benefits Service by 50%

47 - Remove a vacant post within the Business Support Service

48 - Review parking fees and operational arrangements at Storiel

58 - Waste collection calendars in electronic form only

64 - Reduce resource within the Legal Unit to support the work of other departments

Graph 10: Number of respondents that did not want the Council to implement specific proposals* 

Number of respondents that did not want the Council to implement specific proposals 

P
age 351



15 

 

 
Graph 11: The general comments where 5 or more respondents have made the comment 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

The Council Tax should not be raised

There needs to be a reduction in the Council’s main officers’ wages

Services for vulnerable, elderly people should not be cut

People on low income find it hard to pay high Council Tax

Need to reduce the number of councillors / councillor allowance

The Council has too much staff / Need to get rid of inefficient staff

Need to look for more efficiency savings before cutting back on services

Council staff have work terms that are too good – too many benefits 

The additional 50% tax on second home owners has meant that they have been able to pay less
by registering their property as a business

Need to charge more tax on second home owners

Not enough information presented on the possible effect of these proposals on different groups

Need for a thorough impact assessment on all of these proposals

Councils should collaborate to create saving

This questionnaire is a waste – Council not going to listen to the views of residents 

Need to make better use of volunteers to undertake some duties

Number of comments  

P
age 352



16 

 

7. Council Tax question: Comparison of results for different groups (age, gender etc). 

 

7.1 Results based on gender 

 

7.1.1 Graph 12 and graph 13 show the results for the Council Tax question based on 

gender. A higher percentage of men (22.5%) noted that the Council should increase 

the Council Tax by more than 5.5% in order to reduce the number of proposals, 

compared to the number of women (12.2%).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.2 Results based on age 

 

7.2.1 Graphs 14-17 show the results based on age group. Even though a higher 

percentage of young people have noted that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% 

for 2019/20 strikes and appropriate balance, it’s important to note that only 20 

individuals under the age of 25 participated in the survey.   

 

 

 

 

40.1%
(89)

12.2%
(27)

47.7%
(106)

30.1%
(64)

22.5%
(48)

47.4%
(101)

* 57 chose not to express an opinion.  * 46 chose not to express an opinion.  

Graph 12: Female  

(279 respondents) 

Graph 13: Male 

(259 respondents) 

“I agree that the proposals noted in Table 1 are ones that are reasonable for the Council to achieve and 
that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 strikes an appropriate balance between the 
need to protect services and the Council Tax level.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by less than 5.5% for 2019/20 and implement 
more cuts to services than the 65 proposals listed in Table 1 whilst accepting that this could mean a 
reduction in services that are most important to me.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to reduce 
the need to deliver the 65 proposals listed in Table 1.” 

Page 353



17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54.5%
(6)

9.1%
(1)

36.4%
(4)

33.8%
(53)

14%
(22)

52.2%
(82)

32.2%
(30)

19.4%
(18)

48.4%
(45)

35.7%
(65)

19.8%
(36)

44.5%
(81)

Graph 14: Under 25 years old respondents 
(20 respondents) 

Graph 15: 25-44 years old respondents 
(192 respondents) 

Graph 16: 45-64 years old respondents 
(221 respondents) 

Graph 17: 65+ years old respondents 
(122 respondents) 

“I agree that the proposals noted in Table 1 are ones that are reasonable for the Council to achieve 
and that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 strikes an appropriate balance 
between the need to protect services and the Council Tax level.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by less than 5.5% for 2019/20 and 
implement more cuts to services than the 65 proposals listed in Table 1 whilst accepting that this 
could mean a reduction in services that are most important to me.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to 
reduce the need to deliver the 65 proposals listed in Table 1.” 

* 29 chose not to express an opinion  * 39 chose not to express an opinion  

* 35 chose not to express an opinion  * 9 chose not to express an opinion  

Page 354



18 

 

7.3 Disabled respondents results 

 

7.3.1 Graph 18 shows the results for the respondents that noted they were disabled. 

Despite the sample being small, a higher percentage of disabled people (30%) noted 

that Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% 

compared to the responses as a whole. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.4 Results based on first language 

 

7.4.1 Graph 19 and graph 20 shows the results based on first language. There weren’t 

any significant differences between the respondents that noted Welsh / bilingual as 

their first language and those who noted English as their first language.   

 

 

 

20%
(8)

30%
(12)

50%
(20)

Graph 18: Respondents that considers themselves disabled 

(48 respondents) 

* 8 chose not to express an opinion.  

“I agree that the proposals noted in Table 1 are ones that are reasonable for the Council to achieve 
and that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 strikes an appropriate balance 
between the need to protect services and the Council Tax level.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by less than 5.5% for 2019/20 and 
implement more cuts to services than the 65 proposals listed in Table 1 whilst accepting that this 
could mean a reduction in services that are most important to me.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to 
reduce the need to deliver the 65 proposals listed in Table 1.” 

Page 355



19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.5 Results per 10 Local Areas 

 
7.5.1 Table 1 shows the results per 10 Local Area.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Graph 19: Welsh / bilingual 
first language  

(316 respondents) 

Graph 20: English 
first language 

(206 respondents) 

37.2%
(98)

17.4%
(46)

45.4%
(120)

35.1%
(54)

16.2%
(25)

48.7%
(75)

* 52 chose not to express an opinion.  * 52 chose not to express an opinion.  

“I agree that the proposals noted in Table 1 are ones that are reasonable for the Council to achieve 
and that increasing the Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 strikes an appropriate balance 
between the need to protect services and the Council Tax level.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by less than 5.5% for 2019/20 and 
implement more cuts to services than the 65 proposals listed in Table 1 whilst accepting that this 
could mean a reduction in services that are most important to me.” 

“Gwynedd Council should increase the Council Tax by more than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to 
reduce the need to deliver the 65 proposals listed in Table 1.” 

Page 356



20 

 

Table 1: Results per 10 Local Area 

Tick the statement that best 

reflects you opinion 

Number of 

respondents 

as a whole  

Bangor Caernarfon Dolgellau Dyffryn 

Nantlle 

Dyffryn 

Ogwen 

Ffestiniog Llŷn Penllyn Porth-

madog 

Tywyn 

“I agree that the proposals noted 

in Table 1 are ones that are 

reasonable for the Council to 

achieve and that increasing the 

Council Tax by 5.5% for 2019/20 

strikes an appropriate balance 

between the need to protect 

services and the Council Tax 

level.” 

158 

(34.3%) 

10 

(32.3%) 

31 

(34.0%) 

16 

(33.3%) 

11 

(42.3%) 

5 

(27.8%) 

8 

(47.1%) 

18 

(38.3%) 

4 

(33.4%) 

16 

(38.1%) 

15 

(45.5%) 

“Gwynedd Council should 

increase the Council Tax by more 

than 5.5% for 2019/20 in order to 

reduce the need to deliver the 65 

proposals listed in Table 1."  

79 

(17.1%) 

7 

(22.6%) 

16 

(17.6%) 

6 

(12.5%) 

4 

(15.4%) 

  

6 

(33.3%) 

4 

(23.5%) 

3 

(6.4%) 

4 

(33.3%) 

9 

(19.0%) 

6 

(18.1%) 

“Gwynedd Council should 

increase the Council Tax by less 

than 5.5% for 2019/20 and 

implementing more cuts to 

services than the 65 proposals 

listed in Table 1 whilst accepting 

that this could mean a reduction 

in services that are most 

important to me” 

224 

(48.6%) 

14 

(45.1%) 

44 

(48.4%) 

26 

(54.2%) 

11 

(42.3%) 

7 

(38.9%) 

5 

(29.4%) 

26 

(55.3%) 

4 

(33.3%) 

18 

(42.9%) 

12 

(36.4%) 

  461 31 91 48 26 18 17 47 12 42 33 

  
 

                    

“I do not wish to express an 

opinion on the Council Tax but 

wish to comment on the 

proposals listed in Table 1” 

127 9 14 12 4 2 3 9 2 10 9 

Total 588 40 105 60 30 20 20 56 14 52 42 

P
age 357



21 

 

8 Organisation / business responses 

 

8.1 21 responses were received on behalf of an organisation or business.  
 

8.2 We did not ask businesses / organisations to answer the question on Council Tax but 
there was an opportunity for them to comment on any of the 65 proposals by noting any 
effect on one or more of the equality feature groups protected under the Equality Act 
2010.  
 

8.3 The full list of names and comments made by different organisations / businesses can be 
found in Appendix Ch (page 45). 
 

8.4 Correspondence by 1 community council was received (see Appendix D on page 51). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 358



22 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

54 - Reduce the 

strategic grants 

budget for the arts 

by 20% 

11  The arts have received enough cuts already (4) 

 Reducing the Strategic Grants would have an adverse future effect on the range 

of Arts within the county. 

 The cultural loss would be far greater than the minute sum of money saved. 

 Budget should not be cut 

 Small, local enterprises will suffer – the ones that try to include everybody such 

as Cofis Bach and Dawns i Bawb. 

 Strategic grants are important to sustain art organisations. 

 Investing in the arts is an investment to the future. 

 The arts is an important sector in Gwynedd and is one that employs young 

people that would otherwise move away from their local community (2) 

 The funding by the Council brings in additional finance and grants into the area. 

 Everybody should have the right to try art events and it would be hard, even 

impossible to do so without finance from the Council. 

 The arts in Gwynedd does fantastic work for children and young people’s 

wellbeing (2) 

 The fact that there’s demand for the work of the theatre companies based in 

Gwynedd proves the special work done by those companies – and this raises the 

profile of the county across the whole of Wales.  

 I have further extensive concerns about this proposal 

• Disabled people  

• Young people 

• All of the equality groups 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 359



23 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

49 - Reduce the 

mobile library 

service - visiting 

less locations and 

less often 

9  You should only reduce the frequency of the service and not change the 

locations that the mobile library visits.  

 This service is vital for older people to socialise, reduce loneliness which in turn 

prevents costs to the Health Service (3) 

 It shouldn’t be cut if it’s well used. 

 Negative impact on users is much greater than worth of saving. 

 Books help people with their mental health. 

 By reading, children learn. 

 Reducing this service would contribute towards another step in reducing the 

quality of life in rural areas – no public transport to reach libraries (2) 

• Older people  

• Disabled people 

• There would be an effect on 

each equality group  

55 - Reduce the 

budget of the 

libraries books 

fund by 10% 

9  An educated population will lead to economic growth  

 The libraries should not be run by volunteers – it’s a profession   

 The arts have received enough cuts already  

 Another cut to this service would be unfair and unjustifiable 

 You should ensure a wide collection of current books especially for young 

children. 

 I rely on the library for books to help me learn and gain skills. 

 Reducing the variety of books available would have a negative effect – less use 

in the long run. 

 The Council should ensure expenditure on books that correspond to the National 

Library Standards that defines the local authority’s statutory obligation to provide 

a comprehensive and effective service. 

 The standards of the service has already deteriorated and it would be sad to see 

it deteriorate further, the cuts have already been substancial. 

 Children – less educational 

opportunities 

 Disabled people – no access 

to information  

 It would have an effect on 

every equality group  

 Disabled people, children 

and older people especially 

those in low income groups 

that can’t by books of their 

own. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 360



24 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

59 - Barmouth 

Bridge – stopping 

payment to 

Network Rail for 

the right of way 

over the bridge. 

8  Is there a way to introduce a toll rather than risk the Bridge closing.  

 The value of this is more than the value of the saving.  

 Less tourists will visit the area. (4) 

 Effect on the costal path and National Cycling path. (2) 

 It’s irresponsible of the Council to depend on National Rail to keep the path open 

if a cut is made in the service.  

• Disabled people  

• Older people  

• Children  

60 - Reduce the 

budget of Women's 

Aid by 20% 

7  Such an important service for children with difficult childhoods should not be cut. 

 Has there been any discussions with the organisation to see what effect this 

would have? 

 The service is priceless – helps with domestic abuse against children, reduces 

the burden on the health and police service. 

 This service truly saves lives. 

 Not the time to cut this service as domestic violence is on the rise. 

 I know of the benefits Women’s Aid gives 

 A cruel and callous service cut 

• Pregnant women  

• New mothers 

• Disabled people • People of 

any race, gender, age 

• Effects women, children and 

some religions 

1 - Provide electric 

car charging points 

in car parks  

6  Not enough electric cars in use yet – you should wait to see what the need will 

be further on. (2) 

 Need to attract outside grants for this. 

 This shouldn’t be the Councils’ responsibility. 

 This scheme would only benefit those who have enough money to by electric 

cars 

 

10 – End free 

Christmas parking 

from 2019 onwards, 

increase parking 

fees and the 

number of pay and 

display carparks  

6  It helps support businesses over the winter months (4) 

 Parking fees are already too high for local residents. 

 These are three different plans and should be considered separately. 

  

 

P
age 361



25 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

40 - Remove an 

element of the 

Teacher Support 

Service from the 

Library Service for 

Schools 

6  This service is important to educate children.  

 Negative effect on children’s literacy. 

 Negative effect on disadvantaged children.  

 The value of this service is worth much more valuable to schools than the value 

of the saving.  

 Books help people with their mental health 

 Twofold cuts to schools 

• Effect on children  

• It would effect every equality 

feature group 

50 - Remove 1 post 

from the Economic 

Development 

Service (reduce 

staffing by 33%) 

6  This post does not need to be cut because the officer's costs can be added to 

external grant applications. 

 Negative effect on the county’s economy.  

 The post should not be removed – the local economy benefits from it (2) 

 Save the post but stop spending on Llanbedr airport 

 The service is key to develop strategic projects. 

• It would effect every equality 

feature group  

51 - Remove 1 post 

and change the 

management 

arrangements of 

the Community 

Regeneration 

Service (a 20% 

reduction) 

6  An alternative way of keeping this post should be looked at through discussions 

with Mantell Gwynedd.  

 In this uncertain period with Brexit it would be very difficult to remove this post as 

it is essential to develop community groups and connects the different Council 

departments to work together which would ultimately reduce costs to the Council. 

 Negative effect on the county’s economy  

 A crew that can be relied upon to give support regardless of the challenge and 

contribute to the local economy by attracting grants that in turn are spent locally. 

 Getting rid of this post makes no sense if the Council expects communities to 

take greater responsibilities in providing services within the communities (2) 

• Less support for 

communities / volunteers  

 

 

 

 

P
age 362



26 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

63 - Reduce the 

Council's 

contribution to the 

Youth Justice 

Service by 7%. 

6  You should look at ways to avoid getting children in to the youth justice system in 

the first place - this would save money in the long term.  

 You should protect this service to support vulnerable young people (2) 

 Reducing the contact hours and less community projects are concerning – 

vulnerable you people suffer. 

 By reducing the budget more children will re-offend – therefore additional costs 

in the long run for the police, health and education services. 

 A cruel and callous service cut 

• It would have an effect on 

every equality group  

• Children and young people  

39 - Remove an 

element of the 

Mobile Service 

from the Library 

Service for Schools 

5  This service is important for children’s education.  

 Negative effect on children’s literacy. 

 Negative effect on disadvantaged children.  

 An agreement is in place to keep this service until March 2020. 

 Visiting the mobile library is an opportunity that some wouldn’t receive otherwise 

and it contributes towards the development and education of children. 

• Effect on children  

• Disabled children  

21 - Charge 

schools more for 

use of the archives 

service. 

`4  Agree with the cut but it should be implemented more effectively. 

 School budgets should not be cut.  

 It’s a small saving in financial terms but a huge loss for the schools and makes 

the service totally unsustainable. (2) 

• Effect on children in schools 

that don’t have much to 

spend   

29 - Charge a fee 

for disposing DIY 

materials (e.g. 

rubble at £3 per 

bag or £30 per 

trailer) 

4  This will lead to ‘fly tipping’ and the Council spending more to clean up the mess. 

(4) 

 Need to make sure that offenders are prosecuted and educated.  

 Need to ensure that only the people of Gwynedd use the recycling centres. 

 Hard to believe that the income would be greater than the cost of administrating. 

 There should be a way of licensing traders to use these sites and generating 

income by doing so. 

• Effect on every equality 

group  

• Generally, disabled people 

have less income therefore 

charging an extra fee would 

effect them financially. 

 

 

 

P
age 363



27 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

36 - Transfer some 

public toilets to 

others 

4  The tourism industry depends on public toilets (2) 

 Negative effect on children, older people and disabled people if they close.  

 Other bodies don’t have the resources to take responsibility of public toilets. 

• Effect on children / people 

with health problems who 

depend on the facilities. 

• It could mean putting 

children in nappies when 

they don’t need to be in order 

to go out.  

43 - Reduce the 

budget for 

maintaining public 

footpaths 

4  Risk of a legal challenge which would possibly be more that any saving made.  

 The public footpaths are already in a deplorable condition and the lack of 

signage is illegal.  

 Important to keep public areas tidy and clean.  

 Footpaths are essential for tourism. 

• Not accessible to disabled 

people, children and women  

19 - Charge parking 

fees at Dinas 

Dinlle. 

3  This punishes Gwynedd residents for using a local attraction. (2) 

 Ruin a popular attraction and in the long term will attract less visitors.  

 A risk that people to park on the road – dangerous.  

 It is registered as common land. 

• Disabled people and older 

people less likely to visit 

because of parking costs  

25 - Charge a fee 

for re-supplying 

bins that have been 

damaged by 

residents 

3  It will be very difficult to prove who damaged the bins (3) 

 Some would find it difficult to pay therefore recycling rates would decline. 

 

42 - Reduce the 

resource within the 

Road Safety Unit  

3  Negative effect on disadvantaged children. 

 The team is already small – couldn’t cope with further cuts in resources. 

 A risk to children’s safety as the cross the road. 

• A particular effect on 

disabled children. 

 

 

 

P
age 364



28 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

52 - Remove 1 post 

from the Tourism 

and Marketing 

Service (reduce 

staffing by 

25%) 

3  Negative effect on the county’s economy. 

 Cutting back the service would be unwise, especially in the uncertain climate due 

to Brexit. 

 In a time where tourism is on the rise in Gwynedd, it’s unwise to reduce the 

budget. We need to support the growth for the benefit of our economy and 

communities. 

• All of the equality groups. 

56 - Review 

physical disability 

care 

packages and look 

to achieve 

objectives through 

alternative ways 

3  More intense requirements would ultimately mean higher costs. 

 Needs a full impact assessment before considering this. 

 The danger with cutting back and adapting, especially with complicated matters 

like this one is that the individual could suffer dearly. 

• Disabled people – cutting 

back on the service could 

have an effect on their 

quality of life. 

57 - Review of 

Continuous Health 

Care packages 

3  More intense requirements would ultimately mean higher costs. 

 Too much effect on vulnerable people to be able to justify this saving. 

 A cruel and callous service cut. 

• A huge effect on some of the 

groups. 

61 - Reduce the 

advocacy budget 

by 6% 

3  The Social Services Welfare Act will increase the number that will be eligible for 

the advocacy service and it is therefore premature to cut its budget and would 

have a negative impact on the experiences of children and young people. 

 More intense requirements would ultimately mean higher costs. 

 The actual worth of this saving is too little to justify it. 

• Effect on every equality 

group  

• Effect on disabled children / 

young people. 

62 - Halve the 

foster parents' 

recruitment and 

training budget 

3  There is a lack of foster parents in Gwynedd already – this will worsen the 

situation. (2) 

 Highly important to recruit good foster carers, but there’s a need for pooling the 

communication resources the Council already have. 

• Effect on every equality 

group. 

• Children and young people. 

P
age 365



29 

 

 Reducing this budget means less recruitment and therefore higher costs of 

locating out of the county or in residential places alongside the detrimental effect 

on the children having to be moved often. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 366



30 

 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

2 – Invest in 

improvements that 

would make 

Neuadd Dwyfor 

more efficient, and 

prepare to look at 

an alternative 

model for future 

management of the 

facility. 

2  This is the only art enterprise the Council has – it should be protected and 

enhanced. 

 

 This proposal make no sense financially – don’t invest 

26 - Charge an 

additional fee for 

cremating on the 

same day as the 

service 

2  Very insensitive proposal – it could cause concern to the family. 

 The Council should consider the needs of different religions before going ahead 

with the additional fees. 

• Effect on every equality 

group  

• Religious groups  

34 – Increase 

income by offering 

technical, scientific 

and engineering 

support to flood 

risk mitigation 

plans 

for Councils across 

Wales 

2  This proposal should be assessed in 3 years. 

 Natural Resource Wales’s hypothesis on flood locations is worthless. 

 

37 - Transfer play 

areas to others 

2  The value of play areas in communities is more than the value of the saving.  

 Health and Safety standards would deteriorate over time if play areas were to be 

transferred from the Council’s care. 

• Effects people of all ages  

 

 

P
age 367



31 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

53 – In the long 

term, reduce the 

subsidy to the new 

Leisure Company 

being established 

by 20% 

2  Cuts should not be implemented until the new company has been established 

and is running successfully.  

 This idea will not work. 

 

16 – Generate 

income by 

preventing fraud 

1  How do you know how much income you could charge? 
 

24 – Garden Waste: 

more income or 

reduce costs 

1  Reducing collections over winter would make sense but not to stop the service 

altogether. 

 

27 – Increase 

Crematorium fees 

from £520 to £550 

1  Burial fees are already high enough without adding extra costs. 
 

31 – Increase 

income by carrying 

out legal services 

for other public 

bodies 

1  This suggests that you have too many legal staff if this doesn’t have any effect 

on the people of Gwynedd. 

 

33 – Increase 

income in the flood 

prevention field 

1  This proposal should be assessed in 3 years.  
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 368



32 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

35 – Increase 

income by offering 

more project 

management 

support to the 

Welsh Government 

on major plans 

1  Does the Council have the expertise to manage projects 
 

38 – Reduce the 

contribution of the 

Council to GwE by 

1% 

1  Needs to ensure that this service is bilingual 
 

41 - Reduce the 

frequency of 

cleaning in some 

areas within 

schools by 

reducing hours by 

1.7% 

1  Children's health should not be put at risk by breaking the cleaning budget.  
 

45 – Reduce the 

budget for the 

Traffic Orders unit 

by 33% 

1  Any reduction to the budget of this unit would have an effect on traffic control 
 

46 – Reduce 

seasonal 

employment within 

the Tax and 

Benefits Service by 

50% 

1  This reduction in service would result in delay when helping the people of 

Gwynedd to pay rent or make a necessary adjustment to their Council Tax 

accounts. 

 

 

P
age 369



33 

 

Appendix A: Comments on the proposals by respondents who wanted to raise the Council Tax by more than 5.5%. 

 

Proposal reference 

number 

Number of 

comments 

Reasons given for not wanting the proposal to be implemented  Comments regarding the impact of 

the proposal on one or more of the 

equality feature groups (number of 

comments) 

47 - Remove a 

vacant post within 

the Business 

Support Service (a 

reduction of 25% in 

the number of staff) 

1  Businesses need more support and you need to attract new businesses and not 

less in order to strengthen the economy. 

 

48 – Review 

parking fees and 

operational 

arrangements at 

Storiel 

1  Saving is too little to justify compared to the loss for the public. 
 

58 – Waste 

calendars in 

electronic form 

only 

1  Not everybody has/wants access to the internet – especially older people 
 

64 – Reduce 

resource within the 

Legal Unit to 

support the work of 

other departments 

1  This is sure to be on the expense of the Council legal work 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 370



34 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments Total 

comments 

Proposal 10 : End free Christmas 

parking from 2019 onwards / 

Increase parking fees 

• Free parking over Christmas should not be stopped – attracts people to the streets (8) 

• Parking fees should not be risen at all (5) 

• Need to look at parking fees e.g. Charge £1 for two hours parking etc (3) 

19 

• Agree there shouldn’t be a free parking period over Christmas (3) 

Proposal 59 : Barmouth Bridge – 

stopping payment to Network Rail 

for the right of way over the bridge. 

• Not paying Network Rail for the right of way should not be considered – crucial for tourism and local 

people wellbeing. (9) 

• Charging a toll to cross Barmouth Bridge would make more sense (1) 

11  

• Shouldn’t listen to the minority – Network Rail should not be paid (1) 

Proposal 25 : Codi ffi am ail 

gyflenwi biniau sydd wedi'u difrodi 

gan drigolion 

• How will you prove who is damaging the brown bins. The bins are of poor quality and are easy to 

damage (10) 

10 

Proposal 24 : Garden Waste: more 

income or reduce costs 

• Cuts should not be made to the garden waste service as it could cause other problems such as 

people burning the waste, the Council missing recycling targets. (5) 

9 

• Reducing brown bins collection to 9 months would be a good idea (4) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 371



35 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments 
 

Total 

comments 

Proposal 54 : Reduce the strategic 

grants budget for the arts by 20% 

• The arts have had enough cuts already – this has a negative effect on the child and young people 

development and on local businesses (8) 

8 

Proposal 1 : Provide electric car 

charging points in car parks 

• Need to look at charging points in the longterm as means to create income (2) 

• No need to provide electric car charging points – not enough demand in Gwynedd (2) 

• Will these charging points be available across the county? (1) 

• Agree that we need charging points but don’t feel that it’s the Council’s duty to provide them (1) 

7 

• Benefits to people as electric cars become more popular – those who can only drive an automatic 

car / less carbon emissions (1) 

Proposal 36 : Transfer some publis 

toilets to others 

• Reducing the numbers of public toilets would have an effect on the older generation who depend on 

them when going out. (6) 

7 

• Agree that transfering the toilets to others that can is a good idea (1) 

Proposal 2 : Invest in improvements 

that would make Neuadd Dwyfor 

more efficient, and prepare to look 

at alternative model for future 

management of the facility 

• The Council should not continue to run Neuadd Dwyfor as it doesn’t run any other facility of its type 

in any other part of the county (4) 

• Like going to Neuadd Dwyfor but not enough use of the place (1) 

• Closing Neuadd Dwyfor would mean less opportunities for local schools/college to perform (1) 

6 

Proposal 7 : Increase the fee for the 

before school care club from £0.80 

to £1 

• Free breakfast should not be offered in schools (3) 6 

• A larger fee should be charged for the free school breakast club (3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 372



36 

 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments 
 

Total 

comments 

Proposal 43 : Reduce the budget for 

maintaining public footpaths 

• Less older people will use the Public footpaths if they aren’t maintained regularly (5) 

• Public footpaths – question the worth of the saving compared to the economic worth (1) 

6  

Proposal 49 : Reduce the mobile 

library service – visiting less 

locations and less often 

• Worry about the negative effect on disabled children/adults if the mobile library service stops (5) 6 

• You should get rid of the mobile library service (1) 

Proposal 21 : Charge schools more 

for the use of the archives service. 

• Fees should not be charged on schools – effects on children’s education in the long run (3) 3 

Proposal 37 : Transfer play areas to 

others 

 Worry about children’s play areas closing – is this going against the Play Strategy 3 

Proposal 41 : Reduce the frequency 

of cleaning in some areas within 

schools by reducing hours by 1.7% 

 Don’t agree with the cuts to school cleaning hours – children should be able to learn in a clean 

environment (3) 

3 

Proposal 58 : Waste collection 

calendars in electronic form only 

 Everyone doesn’t have access to a computer/the internet to be able to receive an electronic 

calendar (3) 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 373



 

37 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments Total 

comments 

Proposal 6 : Install LED lamps to 

the remainder of the county’s street 

lights 

 LED street lights don’t produce enough light – can’t see properly with them during the night 2 

Proposal 19 : Charge parking fees 

at Dinas Dinlle 

 Charging a parking fee at Dinas Dinlle and Llanberis will affect the number of visitors visiting the 

area (2) 

2 

Proposal 20 : Increase launching 

fees across the beaches of 

Gwynedd from £10 to £15 

 Increase the launching fees on beaches – maybe charge an even larger fee 2 

Proposal 23 : Increase the income 

from street enforcement by fining 

more individuals who litter 

 Agree that individuals who litter need to be fined – but this needs to be consistent across the county 2 

Proposal 29 : Charge a fee for 

disposing DIY materials (e.g. 

Rubble at £3 per bag or £30 per 

trailer) 

 Agree that a fee should be charged for disposing materials in Recycling Centres (1) 2 

 Charging a fee for disposing waste in Recycling Centres is a stupid idea – would result in increased 

fly tipping (1) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 374



 

38 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments Total 

comments 

Proposal 56 : Review physical 

disability care packages and look to 

achieve objectives through 

alternative ways 

 Physical disabilities care packages – collaboration is important but hard to predict financial cuts or 

savings without doing the research first (2) 

2 

Proposal 61 : Reduce the advocacy 

budget by 6% 

 The Social Services Wellbeing Act will increase the number eligable for the advocacy service 

therefore its premature to reduce this budget and result in a negative effect on the children and 

young people’s experiences. (2) 

2 

Proposal 63 : Reduce the Council’s 

contribution to the Youth Justice 

Service by 7%. 

 Reducing the Youth Justice budget would effect a group of vulnerable children (2) 2 

Proposal 3 : Create a new Respite 

Care Unit at Tan y Marian, Pwllheli 

which will reduce costs of having to 

pay for external placements 

 Need to conduct a consultation on the new Respite Care Unit – ensure that the care is of the same 

standard or better than at curent (1) 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 375



 

39 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments Total 

comments 

Proposal 56 : Review physical 

disability care packages and look to 

achieve objectives through 

alternative ways 

 Physical disabilities care packages – collaboration is important but hard to predict financial cuts or 

savings without doing the research first (2) 

2 

Proposal 61 : Reduce the advocacy 

budget by 6% 

 The Social Services Wellbeing Act will increase the number eligable for the advocacy service 

therefore its premature to reduce this budget and result in a negative effect on the children and 

young people’s experiences. (2) 

2 

Proposal 63 : Reduce the Council’s 

contribution to the Youth Justice 

Service by 7%. 

 Reducing the Youth Justice budget would effect a group of vulnerable children (2) 2 

Proposal 3 : Create a new Respite 

Care Unit at Tan y Marian, Pwllheli 

which will reduce costs of having to 

pay for external placements 

 Need to conduct a consultation on the new Respite Care Unit – ensure that the care is of the same 

standard or better than at curent (1) 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 376



 

40 

 

Appendix B: Comments on specific proposals by all of the respondents 

 

Proposal Comments Total 

comments 

Proposal 56 : Review physical 

disability care packages and look to 

achieve objectives through 

alternative ways 

 Physical disabilities care packages – collaboration is important but hard to predict financial cuts or 

savings without doing the research first (2) 

2 

Proposal 61 : Reduce the advocacy 

budget by 6% 

 The Social Services Wellbeing Act will increase the number eligable for the advocacy service 

therefore its premature to reduce this budget and result in a negative effect on the children and 

young people’s experiences. (2) 

2 

Proposal 63 : Reduce the Council’s 

contribution to the Youth Justice 

Service by 7%. 

 Reducing the Youth Justice budget would effect a group of vulnerable children (2) 2 

Proposal 3 : Create a new Respite 

Care Unit at Tan y Marian, Pwllheli 

which will reduce costs of having to 

pay for external placements 

 Need to conduct a consultation on the new Respite Care Unit – ensure that the care is of the same 

standard or better than at curent (1) 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 377



 

41 

 

Appendix C: General comments by all respondents 

 

Comment Number of 

respondents that 

have noted this 

The Council Tax should not be raised 19 

There needs to be a reduction in the Council’s main officers’ wages 19 

Services for vulnerable, elderly people should not be cut 15 

People on low income find it hard to pay high Council Tax 14 

Need to reduce the number of councillors / councillor allowance 13 

The Council has too much staff / Need to get rid of inefficient staff 12 

Need to look for more efficiency savings before cutting back on services 11 

Council staff have work terms that are too good – too many benefits  8 

The additional 50% tax on second home owners has meant that they have been able to pay less by registering their property as a business 7 

Need to charge more tax on second home owners 7 

Not enough information presented on the possible effect of these proposals on different groups 7 

Need for a thorough impact assessment on all of these proposals 6 

Councils should collaborate to create saving 6 

This questionnaire is a waste – Council not going to listen to the views of residents  5 

Need to make better use of volunteers to undertake some duties 5 

Gwynedd Council puts too much emphasis on the Welsh language – additional costs by being bilingual 4 

The area’s wages ar too low 4 

Green bin collection should be changed to every 4 weeks 3 

Glad to see the proposals to increase income rather than cut services  3 

There needs to be a Council Tax increase in order to save services 3 

They should look at how much is spent on maintaining roads 3 

 

P
age 378



 

42 

 

Appendix C: General comments by all respondents 

 

Comment Number of 

respondents that 

have noted this 

Need to look at local Council Tax that reflects the people’s means of paying e.g. household income 3 

The Council Tax should reflect the standard of services received 3 

The results of this questionnaire will not reflect the true opinion of the people of Gwynedd as there wasn’t an option to reject the cuts and not to 

raise the Council Tax rate  

3 

There needs to be more effort to get money for Local Government 2 

Need to turn street lights off between 1am and 5am 2 

The leisure service should not be cut 2 

The Council offices should be made more energy efficient  2 

Council offices should be closed over Christmas 2 

Agree that charging fees is a fair way to reduce the effects of cuts 2 

Too much money wasted on external consultants 2 

These service cuts are going to have a negative impact on disabled people 2 

These service cuts are going to have an adverse effect on rural communities 2 

Too much support for those who aren’t working 2 

There needs to be a Council Tax on static caravans 2 

Irrelevant comment 2 

An effort should be made to fill empty social housing much quicker 1 

Lessons need to be learnt from “Her Gwynedd” – give publicity to the decisions made and when they will happen 1 

The Council shouldn’t run Doc Fictoria and Marina Pwllheli 1 

Glad to see that Care and Education are protected 1 

It’s completely shameful that there’s no need for you to be fluent in Welsh to be a police officer in North Wales – attracting non-Welsh speakers 

into the area 

1 

Need to ensure that there are signs/information available to tourists 1 

P
age 379



 

43 

 

Appendix C: General comments by all respondents 

 

Comment Number of 

respondents that 

have noted this 

Welcome the fact that the Council is investing to create savings 1 

Need to stop spending on preferred education and school transport 1 

Need to ensure that each parking fine is collected 1 

Need to reduce the number of road inspectors 1 

Multi tenancy owners should pay some sort of tax 1 

I’d like to see private care homes managed by the Council 1 

There needs to be less Councils in Wales 1 

Harsh cutting back on services will create a problem in the future 1 

Tourism tax should be considered 1 

Waste collection staff that drop rubbish on the roads when collecting rubbish 1 

I have never agreed that we should pay tax for the Police Commissioner 1 

The county’s houses need to be re-banded for Council Tax purposes 1 

Teachers should go on courses during school holidays – this would save paying for expensive supply teachers 1 

There’s no need to support the arts to such extent 1 

There should be an additional charge to park vehicles that take more than one parking space e.g. caravans 1 

There should be a financial penalty for those caught feeding seagulls / not picking up dog waste 1 

Too many of the Education Department’s staff attracted to work for GWE 1 

Too many staff in small schools 1 

The current Council Tax rate should be reduced 1 

People on low income should receive a public transport travel card 1 

You should go after those who don’t pay Council Tax 1 

The Language Centres should not be closed on any account  1 

P
age 380



 

44 

 

Appendix C: General comments by all respondents 

 

Comment Number of 

respondents that 

have noted this 

Worry about the disabled people/pram access to cemeteries if they aren’t maintained regularly 1 

Make more cuts to “ring fenced” services such as Care and Education 1 

Welcome the Council’s honesty regarding the cuts 1 

I have faith in the Council’s wisdom to make a decision on the expenditure for the year to come. 1 

Why is there a need to ask the equality questions? 1 

A child membership fee should be in place in Leisure Centres 1 

The additional 50% Council Tax on second homes is very unfair – paying more for less services as we don’t live here for the majority of the year 1 

Getting rid of Newyddion Gwynedd would result in a saving 1 

More correspondence / forms should be available electronically 1 

The effect of these cuts on the Welsh language should be considered 1 

Service cuts could have a negative effect on transsexual people 1 

Service cuts could have a negative effect on pregnant women 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 381



 

45 

 

Appendix Ch: Comments by businesses / organisations 

 

Name of business / 

organisation 

Comments on the Financial Strategy Effect on one or more of 

the equality feature groups 

Derwen Children's 

Integrated Services for 

Children with Disabilities 

The advocacy service for Children -especially those with disabilities are depleted enough as it is. It is 

imperative that the voice of the child is heard as reiterated in the Social service Well being ACT 2014 

and the Unite Nations 'Every Child's right to be heard' 

A reduced advocacy service 

would mean that Children 

with disabilities wouldn't have 

the opportunity  to have their 

voice heard! 

Pontio, Prifysgol Bangor Byddai gostwng neu ddileu arian strategol celfyddydol yn effeithio ar ansawdd bywyd a llesiant pobl 

anabl, o wahanol oedran ac o wahanol ryw 

 

Plas Glyn y Weddw Mae torri y gyllideb celf ymhellach yn mynd i gael effaith negyddol ar y nifer o brosiectau celf yn y sir ac 

o ganlyniad yn mynd i effeithio ar ansawdd y gweithgareddau celf yn y dyfodol. 

Pob sector o gymdeithas yn 

mynd i gael ei effeithio 

Dawns i Bawb Rydym yn deall y penderfyniadau anodd sydd yn gorfod cael eu gwneud. Mae popeth yn mynd i gael 

rhyw fath o effaith ar drigolion, gwasanaethau a busnesau lleol fel ein cwmni ni. Dydy Dawns i Bawb, 

na'r sector celfyddydau, ddim yn derbyn llawer iawn o bres gan y Cyngor. Roeddwn wedi colli 50% o'n 

grant blwyddyn diwethaf ac oedd rhaid gwneud tipyn o newidiadau i'n darpariaeth Gwynedd mewn 

ymateb i hyn. Roedd yr effaith yn heriol ond llwyddwyd i gadw'n rhaglen yn mynd. Mae 20% ar ben hwn 

bron yn amhosib i gynllunio. Mae DiB yn darparu rhaglen ddawns i bobl o bob oedran a gallu dros y Sir 

cyfan ac yn llwyddo darparu gweithgareddau dawns i dros 13,000 o bobl yng Ngwynedd pob blwyddyn. 

Mae'ch cyfraniad chi yn hanfodol i ni gallu gwneud hyn. A da ni'n ddim ond un esiampl. Mae na llwyth o 

sefydliadau a chwmnïau eraill sy'n gwneud gwaith debyg gyda'ch cefnogaeth ariannol. Rydym yn 

rhwydwaith cryf gydag arweiniad gan Gwynedd Greadigol ac yn y sector celfyddydol dros Gymru, mae 

Gwynedd yn un o'r rhai mwyaf addawol achos y ffordd mae Gwynedd Greadigol yn cyd-weithio gyda'r 

cwmnïau a theatrau. Mae Gwynedd Greadigol wedi derbyn llythyron gan bobl lleol ac ysgolion sy'n sôn 

am bwysigrwydd cwmnïau fel Dawns i Bawb a sut mae'r celfyddydau yn ymateb mewn ffordd positif i 

iechyd a lles pobl o bob oedran, i addysg ein plant, i'r iaith Cymraeg ac i'r Ddeddf Llesiant 

Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol. Mae gan y celfyddydau lle pwysig yn ein byd a mae partneriaeth sydd newydd 

cael ei datblygu rhwng Cyngor Celfyddydau Cymru a'r NHS yn tystiolaeth o hwn. Mae'r wlad yn wynebu 

 

P
age 382



 

46 

 

amser caled iawn. Mae celfyddydau'n rhoi cyfle i bobl gael llais, dweud eu dweud, teimlo'n grymus fel 

unigolyn a chymunedau, rhannu, cymdeithasu a theimlo'n positif. Yn yr amser ansicr hwn, da ni'n angen 

y celfyddydau mwy nag erioed. 

BCUHB 

  

Cyfuniad o'r ddau yn gwneud synnwyr Effeithio pob grŵp nodwedd 

Sustrans Cymru 

  

Item 59 - Barmouth Bridge – stopping payment to Network Rail for the right of way over the bridge.  

The right of way across the bridge is an important link for local communities, the National Cycle Network 

(NCN) and for the Wales Coast Path. The removal of this link would effect a large number of people 

(over 100,000 people use the Mawddach Trail / NCN 8 each year) in terms of their accessibility, their 

health and well-being and also the local economy. Every effort should be made to keep this vital link 

open and accessible all year round. 

Any closure would effect the 

community as a whole but 

could have an extra negative 

effect on disabled people and 

/ or people of different age 

groups 

Ysgol Pendalar Fe hanerwyd y gyllideb yma yn ystod proses arbedion Her Gwynedd. 

Byddai gweithredu'r cynllun yma yn golygu y byddai'r Cyngor yn gorfod ystyried lefel y cymorth y gellid ei 

roi i'r 11 prif gwmni celfyddydol yng Ngwynedd.  

Mae cyd-weithio gyda'r cwmnïau celfyddydol rhain yn cynnig gwerth aruthrol i ddisgyblion yn yr ysgol 

arbennig. Mae'r cyfle i weithio gyda artistiaid proffesiynol ar brosiectau arloesol yn codi dyheadau, hunan 

hyder a hunan ddelwedd disgyblion ac yn ennyn diddordeb a mwynhad y celfyddydau ynddynt. 

 

Theatr y Ddraig We depend on the small amount of money (just £3,000) we receive from the Gwynedd Arts Fund to 

attract more funding and to generate further business.  Although we are an arts organisation we are also 

a business and we contribute to the economy - employing people, using local contractors and buying 

local produce.  I think it's unfair to shave 20% off our funding - we have already been cut by 50% and 

have been hit hard by this.  Also it is unfair that people who live near Pwllheli have £100,000 spent on 

their theatre/cinema but the people who live in Barmouth have nothing spent on theirs. 

People from remote geographical communities are being discriminated against by these cuts. 

 

Cwmni’r Tebot Fel cwmni theatr sydd yn dechrau arni ac yn cynnig cyfleoedd i unigolion ifanc, lleol, bydd torri'r arian 

sydd ar gael i'r celfyddydau yn drychinebus i ni. Nid yn unig gan ein bod yn gobeithio elwa o'r gronfa ond 

hefyd am ein bod yn cyd-weithio gyda chwmnïau eraill yng Ngwynedd ac yn elwa o'u profiad a’u 

harbenigedd ac y byddant hwythau yn dioddef o dan law y toriadau hyn. Cwmni theatr cymunedol sydd 

a'n bryd ar wasanaethu cymunedau bychain sydd yn aml yn cael eu anghofio ydym ni a byddai toriad fel 

hyn, wrth i ni ddatblygu yn gnoc. Mae cyfraniad celfyddydol Gwynedd yn un sydd i'w deimlo drwy Gymru 

a thu hwnt ac mae o'n 'ffenest siop' dda i'r Cyngor am eu bod yn galluogi cwmnïau a mudiadau i wneud 

gwaith da. 

 

P
age 383



 

47 

 

Inigo Jones  

  

Mae’r cynnig i dorri un swydd yn yr adran twristiaeth yn annoeth ac yn ein arwain i fethu yn ein 

ymdrechion i gryfhau’r diwydiant.  

 

Os caiff ei weithredu ni fydd y lefelau staffio yn ddigonol i roi cynigion ymlaen i ennill cyllid o ffynonellau 

allanol sydd wedi bod yn y gorffennol, ag all fod eto yn y dyfodol, yn fuddiol i sicrhau incwm sydd 

gymaint ei angen ag all ddarparu enillion sylweddol ar fuddsoddiad. 

 

Byddai swyddogaethau pwysig eraill yr adran Dwristiaeth hefyd yn cael eu heffeithio yn ddifrifol.  

 

Mae Twristiaeth yng Ngwynedd yn gwbl bwysig i’r economi leol, ac mae gwneud toriadau mewn adran 

dwristiaeth sydd yn barod ar ei gliniau yn gyrru’r neges gwbl anghywir, yn enwedig pan mae’r cyngor yn 

gofyn i’r diwydiant dwristiaeth am gefnogaeth i ddarganfod ffyrdd gwahanol o godi cyllid ar gyfer y 

ddiwydiant yn y dyfodol 

 

Awdurdod Parc 

Cenedlaethol Eryri 

Mae Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Eryri yn dymuno nodi'r angen am ystyriaeth i flaenoriaethau'r Bwrdd 

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. 

 

Cyngor Cymdeithas 

Botwnnog 

Cynlluniau i fuddsoddi er mwyn creu arbediad:  

25 - Ni chytunwn â hyn gan fod llawer o'r biniau sydd yn cael eu difrodi yn malu wrth gael eu gwagio gan 

weithwyr y lorïau sbwriel 

36 a 37 - yn anffodus nid yw cyfanswm yr arian sydd gennym yn ein Cyngor Cymuned yn ddigon i ni 

gymeryd drosodd a'u rhedeg. 

51 - Byddai'n golled fawr iawn i drigolion Llyn pe byddai Cyngor Gwynedd yn methu cefnogi 'O Ddrws i 

Ddrws' - colled i bobl hyn a phobl anabl sy'n methu gyrru ac heb fod yn berchen ar fodur i'w cludo i'r 

feddygfa, i'r ysbyty ayyb. 

 

Cyngor Cymuned Bryncrug Pryder ynglŷn ag effaith y toriadau ar drigolion. Dylid ceisio sicrhau nad yw'r gwasanaethau y mae'r 

cyhoedd yn eu defnyddio o ddydd i ddydd yn cael eu colli e.e. torri gwair, ysgubo ffyrdd 

 

Cyngor Cymuned Arthog Gweler llythyr yn Atodiad D 
 

Canolfan Gerdd William 

Mathias, Galeri, Caernarfon 

Mae'n destun pryder i ni bod awgrym i dorri y grantiau strategol i'r celfyddydau o 20% yn arbennig gan 

bod y gronfa eisoes wedi cael ei thorri yn ei hanner yn dilyn ymgynhoriad Her Gwynedd.  Carwn gynnig 

ychydig sylwadau ar bwysigrwydd y gronfa hon :  

Ers cael ein derbyn fel aelod newydd o’r portffolio grantiau strategol yn 2011, rydym ni (Canolfan Gerdd 

William Mathias) wedi gallu sicrhau parhad a datblygiad nifer o brosiectau pwysig megis Doniau Cudd 

 

P
age 384



 

48 

 

(ein prosiect cerdd creadigol i oedolion sydd ag anableddau dysgu), Camau Cerdd (sesiynau cerdd i 

blant o 6mis i 7oed), cyngherddau cymunedol, gwaith gyda phobl hýn a threfnu Gwyliau cerdd o statws 

rhyngwladol. Mae’r gweithgareddau rhain yn dod a budd sylweddol i Wynedd ar sawl lefel :  

 

•Darparu profiadau celfyddydol safonol i drigolion Gwynedd o 0 – 100+ oed yn cynnwys henoed, yr 

anabl, plant a theuluoedd gan hybu iechyd a lles.   

•Darparu gwaith i gerddorion hunan-gyflogedig sy’n ymdrechu i gynnal bywoliaeth ym maes y 

Celfyddydau yng Ngwynedd.  

•Denu pobl o’r tu allan i’r Sir a Chymru i Gaernarfon gan gyfrannu at yr economi leol.  

Creu partneriaethau gyda chwmniau eraill ac adrannau eraill o fewn y Cyngor megis y Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol.  

 

Mae gallu dangos cefnogaeth gan y Cyngor Sir hefyd yn gymorth mawr wrth ymgeisio am grantiau o 

ffynnonellau eraill o Gymru a’r tu hwnt. Enghraifft ddiweddar o hynny yw ein llwyddiant i sicrhau grant 

o £198,189 o Gronfa Spirit of 2012 fel rhan o’u Music Challenge Fund. Nód y Gronfa hon yw cefnogi 

prosiectau sy’n dod a phobl abl ac anabl ynghyd i gymryd rhan mewn cerddoriaeth gan wella iechyd 

meddwl a lles. Heb os roedd ein ‘track record’ o gynnal Doniau Cudd gan gydweithio gyda Tim 

Anableddau Dysgu Cyngor Gwynedd a gyda chefnogaeth ariannol y Gronfa Strategol yn gryfder mawr 

yn y cais ac yn gymorth i sicrhau’r buddsoddiad sylweddol yma. Bydd y prosiect yn dod a budd i 

drigolion Gwynedd trwy’r sesiynau rheolaidd fydd yn cael eu cynnal yn Harlech, Caernarfon a Phwllheli 

dros y 3 mlynedd nesaf. Bydd hefyd yn darparu gwaith i nifer o gerddorion llawrydd o’r Sir, yn cynnwys 

sawl un sydd wedi datblygu sgiliau ym maes iechyd a lles trwy weithio ar rai o’r prosiectau a arianwyd 

trwy’r grant strategol yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf. Yn ogystal mae un swydd ran amser Rheolwr Prosiect 

yn cael ei chreu.  

 

Yn yr un modd mae Gwyliau Rhyngwladol a drefnir gennym yn dod a budd economaidd sylweddol i’r 

ardal. Daeth Gŵyl 2018 á thelynorion a’u teuluoedd o 24 gwlad i Gaernarfon am wythnos lawn o 

weithgareddau gan ddod a budd sylweddol i westai, bwytai, siopau ac atyniadau twristiaid lleol. 

Mae rhai prosiectau y bu i ni eu sefydlu gyda chymorth y gronfa bellach yn cynhyrchu incwm digonol a 

ddim yn dibynnu ar gyfraniad o’r gronfa strategol felly mae’r elfen o ‘seed funding’ yn holl bwysig 

hefyd.  

 

P
age 385



 

49 

 

Mae’r gronfa hefyd yn helpu i ddenu buddsoddiad pellach yn y celfyddydau gan drigolion y Sir e.e. yn 

ddiweddar trwy ein grant bu i ni gynnig gwers flasu un i un am ddim i hyd at 15 o bobl dros 55oed. Mae 

13 wedi mynychu gwers flasu hyd yma a 8 ohonynt wedi penderfynu parhau i dderbyn gwersi ar eu 

costau eu hunain gan gyfrannu at gyflogaeth tiwtoriaid cerdd lleol a'n incwm ninnau.  

 

Dim ond ambell enghraifft yw’r rhai uchod o sut mae’r gronfa nid yn unig yn cyfrannu at sicrhau 

profiadau celfyddydol o safon i drigolion Gwynedd ond yn cyfrannu at economi a chyflogaeth y Sir, 

iechyd a lles ei thrigolion ac yn hyrwyddo’r Sir i bob cwr o’r byd.  Mae sawl enghraifft arall ymhlith y 

cwmniau eraill sy’n elwa o’r gronfa strategol yn sicr.  

Mawr obeithiwn yn dilyn y toriad sylweddol o 50% a wnaethpwyd eisoes y bydd y Cynghorwyr yn 

penderfynu yn erbyn gwneud unrhyw doriadau pellach. 

O'n safbwynt ni fel cwmni mae'r prosiectau rydym yn gofyn am gefnogaeth ar eu cyfer yn cynnwys 

prosiectau sy'n darparu cyfleoedd i grwpiau sy'n amal wedi eu tangynrychioli yn cynnwys:  

Doniau Cudd - sy'n darparu sesiynau cerdd i oedolion sydd ag anableddau dysgu. 

Camau Cerdd sy'n darparu profiadau cerddorol i deuluoedd ifanc yn cynnwys mamau sydd ar gyfnod 

mamoaleth.  

 

Cyngherddau cymunedol rhad ac am ddim mewn ardaloedd gwledig o'r Sir. 

Ein cynllun Atgofion ar Gân mewn partneriaeth gyda Adran Celfyddydau Cymunedol Cyngor Gwynedd 

sy'n anelu at daclo unigrwydd ymhlith bobl hŷn Gwynedd. 

Mae'r sefydliadau eraill sy'n elwa o'r gronfa hefyd yn darparu ar gyfer sawl un o'r grwpiau a nodir.  

Er bod cwmniau yn ymdrechu i fwyafu incwm lle bo'n bosibl o werthiant tocynnau / ffioedd cofrestru ag 

ati, mae'n hanfodol os am ddarparu yn eang a cheisio cyrraedd pawb bod rhai gweithgareddau yn cael 

eu sybsideiddio. Un o effeithiau posibl toriadau yw y bydd costau cymryd rhan yn y celfyddydau yn 

cynyddu gyda'r peryg o fod allan o gyrraedd rhai o'r trigolion mwyaf bregus sy'n elwa gymaint o'r 

ddarpariaeth. Sgil effaith posibl hynny wedyn yw dirywiad mewn lles. 

Heb nodi pa sefydliad – 

“Classified” 

Having just read it, think you need to consult with local businesses first. Most proposals would lead to 

people (source funding) avoiding Pwllheli and local areas. Cutting down on services should be a no go. 

Stopping free parking at Christmas: that hasn't been thought through has it. 

 

Môr Wyn Guest House, 

Abermaw 

Dim Sylwad 
 

P
age 386



 

50 

 

First Light, Abersoch Dim Sylwad 
 

Ysgol Bro Hedd Wyn, 

Trawsfynydd 

Dim Sylwad 
 

Cwmni Fran Wen Dim Sylwad 
 

Cimera C.B.C Dim Sylwad 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 387



 

51 

 

Appendix D: Arthog Community Council correspondence 

 

Page 388



 

52 

 

 

 

 

Page 389



 

53 

 Page 390



 

54 

 

P
age 391



 

55 

 Page 392



 

56 

 

 

P
age 393



APPENDIX 12 
 
ALTERNATIVE DECISIONS  
 
Of the options raised in the small workshops on savings for the Members (18 – 28 January 2019), or raised by a substantial number of the 
public as part of the public consultation, these are the five savings schemes identified in the big workshop on savings for the Members on 5 
February 2019 requiring further consideration.  

   

Scheme 
%  

Council 
Tax 

2019/20 

  

2020/21 
onwards 

Scheme  
Total 

Majority of the Members in favour of raising Council Tax to avoid 
implementing the saving  

      

Ref. 6.22  Reduce the Women’s Aid budget by 20% 0.01% £8,080  £2,690 £10,770 

Ref. 6.25  Reduce the Council’s contribution to the Youth Justice Service by 7%  0.02% £12,390  £1,770 £14,160 

        

Substantial proportion of the Members in favour of raising Council Tax to 
avoid implementing the saving or have abstained from voting  

      

Ref. 4.19  Charge a fee for supplying bins that have been damaged by residents  0.01% £6,250  £18,750 £25,000 

Ref. 4.4  Free parking over Christmas 0.07% £45,000  £0 £45,000 

Ref. 6.16  Reduce the strategic grants to the arts by 20% 0.00% £0  £18,000 £18,000 

Total of the 5 Schemes 0.11% £71,720   £41,210 £112,930 

 

P
age 390



APPENDIX 13 
 
ROBUSTNESS OF ESTIMATES 
 
1. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to 

report on the robustness of budget estimates and the adequacy of the proposed 
financial reserves.  Appendix 7 outlines the position of the balances and reserves, while 
this appendix confirms the robustness of the budgetary estimates which are the basis 
of the budget. 

 
2. Budget estimates are based on assumptions of future expenditure and income and 

contain an element of assumption risk. The impact of this risk can be mitigated through 
contingency plans, contingency budgets and financial reserves. 

 
3. The robustness of budget estimates is not simply a question of whether they are 

correctly calculated. In practice, many budgets are based on estimates or forecasts, 
and there will be an element of risk as to whether plans will be delivered and targets 
achieved. Different risks to the budget are considered below: 

 
4. Inflation Risk – This is the risk that actual inflation could turn out to be significantly 

different to the assumption made in the budget. For 2019/20, inflation has been 
allowed based on the latest information about pay awards and prices, but there is a 
risk that inflation will rise again during 2019/20, and uncertainty over the probable rise 
(apart from salary and pensions inflation which has already been agreed).  A rise in 
inflation may add to the Council’s costs, but that could be funded through the use of 
reserves, if necessary. 

 
5. Interest Rate Risk - Interest rates may affect the budget through the interest earned 

- i.e. an interest rate rise would increase income. In accordance with the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy, the budget is not reliant on high investment returns. 
Interest rates continue at a historical low and are not likely to begin increasing until at 
least 2020/21.  Therefore, the interest rate risk is considered low and this is a 
compensating risk for inflation risk because if one increases the other is likely to 
increase also. 

 
6. Specific Grants Risk - There are risks attached to the large number of specific grants 

from Welsh Government, Europe or other bodies which support a proportion of Council 
expenditure.  Some of these could be reduced, or be cut altogether, and we don’t have 
a complete picture as the financial year begins. When the grant ceases, so must the 
associated expenditure, but contract terms may mean that expenditure cannot be cut 
as quickly as the grant, or severance costs may need to be funded.  Further, the activity 
funded may be so important to the delivery of the Council’s own Priorities that the 
Council decides to continue with the expenditure.  We will mitigate this risk by ensuring 
that we have the best information available on each grant, but the funding bodies 
(Government, etc) control this position. 

 
7. Income Risks – The budget is based on securing a specific increase in fees which is 

equal in value to the increase in the relevant service costs.  If demand for Council 
Services falls, and income targets are not achieved, that may cause overspending on 
service budgets. The actual budget position will require careful monitoring during the 
year and, if necessary, spending may need to be cut back to match reduced income.  
This will not be possible with some large corporate budgets, where estimated income 
must be set at a prudent level. 

  

Page 391



8. Savings Risks – One significant risk in current circumstances is that the Council is 
over-optimistic regarding the savings that will be achieved. If these projects should run 
into difficulties and fail to achieve the savings taken out of the budget, significant 
overspendings could occur.  We will mitigate this risk by ensuring that savings schemes 
are owned by departments and Cabinet members, and by monitoring relevant progress 
regularly. 

 
9. Staff Redundancy Costs – Some services restructure their staff in order to achieve 

savings, with staff being released through redundancy.  Where appropriate, the cost 
of redundancies is funded from a central contingency reserve, and an appropriate sum 
has been earmarked for this purpose, which mitigates the risk. 

 
10. Council Tax Premium – When deciding on the Tax Base, a prudent assessment was 

made of the number of second homes and empty properties to include in the 
calculation.  There is a risk that the number of properties subject to the premium have 
been over estimated and that the income collected is lower than the amount estimated 
(due to properties transferring to the business rates list).  We are managing this risk 
by employing inspectors who check the facts, and by not committing all of the tax yield 
from the Premium until the position becomes clearer. 

 
11. The Statutory Finance Officer’s Opinion – Having considered all the risks noted 

above and the mitigating actions, the Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) is of the 
opinion that the budgets are robust, sufficient and achievable. 

 

Page 392



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report for a Cabinet meeting

Decisions sought

a) In order to avoid creating a further building maintenance backlog, that the 
£1.1m budget set aside to fund borrowing in the previous asset plan be 
transferred to supplement the Building Maintenance revenue budget;

b)  That the Cabinet accepts the recommendations mad ein clauses 28; 30; 32 ; 35; 
40; 43 and 44 below; and 

c) Recommends to the Council that it adopts the Asset Plan attached to this 
report which incorporates all of the outcomes noted in (b) above.

Background

1. The current Asset Plan has come to an end and we need to develop a new plan for 
the period 2019/20 - 2029. 

2. As a starting point for such a plan, all departments were asked to identify their 
likely requirements for the next 10 years. In accordance with the requirements of 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) act 2015, a number ofthese schemes 
relate to preventative work and look to the long term in order to ensure sustainable 
services for the future.  

3. Having received these schemes, all Council members were asked to prioritise the 
schemes put forward by departments.   38 members undertook the task and the 
rank order in which they were placed appears in Appendix 1.

4. In consdering the relative priority to be given to schemes the detail of each scheme 
was presented and they were asked to prioritise according to the relative benefit 
which they felt the scheme would offer to the people of Gwynedd.   

Date of meeting: 19 February 2019

Cabinet member Councillor Peredur Jenkins, Finance Cabinet Member

Contact Officer: Dilwyn Williams, Chief Executive

Title: Asset Plan 2019-29

Page 393

Agenda Item 9



5. This was obviously in the context of the well-being aims noted in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan.       

The list of schemes

6. There are three sectors were members were not given the choice of whether or not 
to undertake the schemes as there is no choice in the matter, namely -

 Buildngs Repairs and Maintenance
 Fleet Renewal
 Information Technology Renewal

Buildings Repairs and Maintenance

7. At the start of the last plan we knew that we were not spending sufficient resources 
on repairs and maintenance of buildings.  This meant that we faced a backlog 
which had developed over the years as a result.  

8. At the start of the last plan we estimated this backlog to be £27m and an assessment 
made on the basis of the limited information available at the time suggested that 
we needed to spend an additional £1.5m per annum to avoid the backlog getting 
worse. [This was an estimate based on a mathematical extrapolation as we did not 
possess sufficient information to come to an informed opinion]

9. In the last plan therefore an annual sum of £1.5m was added to the repairs and 
maintenance budget in order to try and avoid worsening the problem and a further 
£20m was placed in the plan in order to attack the backlog which had developed.

10. By now we would therefore expect the backlog to have fallen to £7m but a recent 
study has shown that it is now still £14m. Obviously, this was due to the fact that 
the additional £1.5m per annum was insufficient to ensure that it did not worsen.

11. This latest information shows that we need to spend around an additional £2m per 
annum on the core repairs and maintenance budget if we are to stop the condition 
from deteriorating.

12. This has already been reported to the Cabinet when we reported on the current 
plan back in March 2017, and at that time, the Cabinet took the opportunity to 
increase the sum available in the repairs and maintenance budget by £800,000 
which means that we would still need to provide a further £1.2m per annum if we 
wish to avoid the backlog increasing.

13. However, the real answer to this problem is to ensure that there exists an adequate 
repairs and maintenance budget to meet the need rather than try to use the capital 

Page 394



budget to supplement it as repairs and maintenance is in reality a revenue liability 
and not capital. [In using the capital budget, although we have hitherto avoided 
having to do so, if we needed to borrow to finance the commitment we would need 
to pay interest costs on such borrowings which woud not make any sense at all]  

14. It so happens that there is an annual revenue budget o £1.1m set aside to fund 
borrowing in the former plan which is unallocated and I therefore recommend 
that this be earmarked for repairs and maintenance so that the budget is sufficient 
(or close enough) to avoid any worsening in the backlog.  

15. In doing so we will solve one of our problems which would otherwise have to be 
solved in from the Asset Plan.

16. That said, the £14m backlog which currently exists can only be dealt with through 
the Asset Plan, (with some elements meaning that in the long run we could be 
faced with the closure of buildings if it continues to be unaddressed).  

Fleet Vehicles  and Information Technology

17. The cross-departmental requirements show that we need to provide for a total of 
£9.2m over the next 10 years to replace the vehicles and information technology 
equipment which departments use and this must be the first call on Asset Plan or 
services will cease.   

Likely resources

18. The essential context for all of this is of course the resource likely to be available to 
us and before moving on to consider the list itself, consideration is given to this 
issue here.

19. Our current capital settlement shows that we receive capital resources of around  
£6.6m each year.  Over the period of 10 years therefore we should have £66m.

20. In addition, in a recent statement, Wales’ First Minister has indicated that he will 
provide an additional £100m for local auhtorities in Wales to spend on capital over 
a 3 year period.  The first two installements of this resource have already been paid 
to us in 2018/19 and 2019/20 and it is estimated that our share will total around  
£4.5m. There is also £1.4m available in the former Asset Plan’s capital fund making 
a total available over 10 years of £72m.

21. It is possible that over the next 10 years we could see further resources become 
available through specific grants and we need to be alive to this possibility in order 
to try and maximise the resources available  for our core needs.

Page 395



22. Assuming that other requirements will come to light as the years go by, which will 
require capital investment, it is usual for us to retain some resource in order to be 
able to meet those needs.  

23. The consequence is that this sum would be available to meet any need not covered 
by the Plan, but which would be released if no other requirements arise in order to 
meet the  next scheme on the list.   

24. In the last Plan we retained an annual sum of £0.5m for this purpose and it is 
sugggested that this be done again.

25. That would mean that we need to retain £5m  (10 years x £0.5m). 

26. With the £9.2m we need to earmark for fleet and information technology renewals, 
this means that we currently have £57.8m to spend on schemes (accepting of course 
that further resources could become available in future).  

Prioritising the list of schemes

27. Bearing in mind that our current assessment is that we will only have £57.8m to 
fund the Asset Plan over the next 10 years, in keeping to the rank order which the 
members set in the consultation exercise, that would mean that all schemes above 
number 32 would be likely to be undertaken and that the other schemes below that 
position would not, unless further resources come to light.

28. The first issue for the Cabinet to consider is that there are a number of schemes 
which present Health and Safety red risks which fall into the category of being 
unlikely to be undertaken, namely - 

 Scheme no 40 – Arfon Tennis and Leisure Centre 
 Scheme no 45 - Padarn Country Park; and
 Scheme no 52 - Plas Silyn Leisure Centre

In view of the significant risks to life and to the Council, we cannot let these 
schemes be ignored and I recommend that they be promoted to the list to be 
delivered. 

29. There are other schemes which have been placed in an amber risk category due to 
the fact that not undertaking them would have serious implications in terms of 
future sustainability; equality issues or that the Council would be unable to deliver 
on its well-being aims in the Corporate Plan.  These schemes are – 

Page 396



 Scheme 33 – Penygroes Health and Care Hub
 Scheme 35 – Aberdyfi Quay
 Scheme 39 – Renewal of part of the Cadfan Road Bridge structure in Tywyn
 Scheme 44 – Renewal of Llanystumdwy Bridge
 Scheme 46 – Maesgeirchen Centre
 Scheme 47 – Renewal of Pont y Mwnwgl. Y Bala
 Scheme 48 - Penllyn Bridge near Brynrefail 
 Scheme 49 – Renewal of the smallholdings water purification sstems 
 Scheme 50 – Renewal of all weather pitches
 Scheme 54 – Cycle route repairs and maintenance

30. Assuming that the Council does not wish to see us closing facilities to the public, 
and wishes to see us delivering for those who are the most vulnerable in our 
communities,   I recommend that we also try and bring all of thsese schemes into 
the programme. 
 

31. Taken together therefore the £57.8m we are likely to have will be £7.15m short of  
that required to deliver the programme.

32. Taking into account that we have a Housing Strategy being developed which will 
see a significant amount being invested in the housing sector over the next 10 
years, the question arises of whether some of the housing schemes above scheme 
32 should be funded from the resources available for that strategy. However I do 
not think it would be appropriate for all housing requirements to be funded from 
that source and therefore I recommend that schemes 28 (Provision of grants to 
fund the Council’s Empty Houses scheme) and 32 (Develop a fourth Extra care 
Housing scheme) be transferred for consideration from the resource available for 
the Housing Strategy.  

33. This would continue to leave Schemes 4 (Housing Grants) ; 19 (Hostel for the 
homeless) and 30 (Development of a third extra care housing scheme) being 
funded from the Asset Plan.

34. This would find £5.5m of the £7.15m of which we are short.

35. Since the departments submitted their cases for capital spending, the Welsh 
Government have announced that they intend to provide  and additional  £1.3m 
per annum for 3 years to improve the condition of roads,  starting this year and 
therefore, taking into account that the department noted that they needed an 
additional £1m a year to improve our road condition from next year onwards, we 
can asume that the resource from Welsh Government will meet that need for the 
first 3 years and plan to fund the investment thereafter if no further resource is 

Page 397



forthcoming. This would negate the need to find a further £3m and I recommend 
that we take that action.

36. This would leave £1.35m unallocated.

37. However there are two amber risks which continue to be outside the programme 
and which therefore need consideration.

38. Scheme number 33 Getting rid of the repairs and maintenance backlog means 
that the backlog would continue and there would be a risk that in due course a 
building might have to close as a result. 

39. As this is the next scheme on the list which would receive consideration if further 
resources became available we should see some resource being directed towards 
it over the planning period.  In the meantime, as we have ensured that there is 
sufficient repairs and maintenance resource to avoid a worsening of the position,   
if any element of the backlog results in having to close a building, we can divert 
some of that funding to rectify the issue on a case by case basis.  

40. As the former Plan had identified those assets which were available to be sold, and 
we had undertaken those sales in order to fund the former Plan, the assessment of 
available resources over the next 10 years takes no account of any capital receipts 
which may arise. I recommend that we also deal with the repairs and maintenance 
backlog by noting that any capital receipts which do arise, and which have not 
already been allocated to other schemes, be allocated to clear the backlog and that 
£600,000 of the £1.35m noted above be also allocated for that purpose.

41. The second scheme is Scheme 41 Completion of the Review of Educational 
reorganisation in Bangor. 

42. There are two possible solutions here. The first is that there is a possibility that the 
resource required to fulfil scheme 29 to ensure suitable post-16 education provision 
will nt require the whole amount noted in the Plan, and should that situaton arise, 
the first call for any amount released would be this scheme. 

43. Otherwise the only other answer would be that the Department would have to find 
revenue savings to pay for the borrowing required to finance the scheme. As we 
have not asked the schools to contribute any savings for 2019/20 this is not 
unreasonable, and I recommend that we follow this course of action.  

44. There is also another scheme which requires some consideration namely scheme 
42 Feasability Studies in the Environment Department. This budget is used to 
undertake studies which are then elligible for grant funding as we already have 

Page 398



plans on the shelf to take advantage of such grants when they become available . 
If we are unable to invest in such studies in this area it could be counterproductive 
as we would then be in a much weaker position to take advantage of such 
opportunities. I therefore recommend that we allocate the £750,000 which remains 
unallocated towards this work.   

45. In the former Asset Plan we estimated the resource available and the list of 
schemes included in the Plan was limited to the resource available.  

46. In the new plan the intention is to include every scheme noting where the available 
resource is likely to take us (in accordance with the outline given above) and keep 
the remianing schemes as a reserve list to be undertaken if resources become 
available during the course of the planning period. 

47. I recommend therefore that  the Cabinet agrees to the recommendations made in 
clauses 28; 30; 32 ; 35; 40; 43 and 44 above and recommends that the Council adopts 
the Assset Plan attached to this report which incorporates all of the report’s 
recommendations.

Equalities Act 2010 - effect on those with protected characteristics

48. This report does not recommend any action which will be detrimental to the 
service provided to any individual with protected characteristics.  Indeed, the 
purpose of the Asset Plan is to ensure that we direct our available capital resources 
to those places which will have a positive effect on all of our citizens including 
those with protected characteristics.

49. Some schemes, especially those in the social care sector, are aimed at ensuring that 
the quality of the service provided to those with protected characteristics are 
improved and those schemes are obvious from the list. Where a scheme had an 
indirect effect upon those with protected characteristics, the details of the scheme 
given to members would have identified that effect.  

50. Many of of the schemes which we will be prioritising at the outset fall into the 
category of improving the resources available for those with protected 
characteristics. 

51.It is hoped that we will also be able to undertake the remaining schemes if 
resources allow during the 10 year span of the Plan but if a more detailed equality 
impact assessment identifies an impact not known at the time of preparing this 
Plan, then we will need to re-visit the prioritisation set out in this Plan

Page 399



Views of the Statutory Officers:

Monitoring Officer

The responsibility for  formulating the Assets Plan to be recommended to the 
Council rests with the Cabinet. This involves the Cabinet evaluating and coming to a 
view on a range of matters including statutory and legal issues, priorities and 
meeting needs within the anticipated resource. The information for reaching this 
conclusion is included in the report and the draft Asset Plan. 

Head of Finance

I confirm that accountants from the Finance Department have worked with the 
author to prepare financial aspects of this plan and I support the decision sought.

Page 400



Appendix 1

Members’ Prioritisation List

Colour Code = the Chief Executive’s risk assesment base don his opinion of the relative risk 
of not meeting the need 

Significant Risk Medium Risk 
High Risk Lowest risk

Plan Department Title Description
Cost over 
the 10 years 

1

Highways and 
Municipal

Caergylchu Work to develop and renew the Caergylchu site in 
order to comply with standards for the next 10 
years 

£718,000

2

Environment Asbestos disposal A programme to manage the condition and 
dispose of asbestos reaches a dangerous 
condition in our properties. 

£1,708,000

3

Highways and 
Municipal

Replacement of 
Housing Estate Water 
Pipes 

Replace the Housing Estate Water Pipes 
(commenced in 2016)

£2,400,000

4

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Housing Grants Providing the £1.3m per annum to address the 
housing grants statutory requirements 

£13,000,000

5

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Canolfan Dolfeurig A new building to improve the day care provision 
for adults with learning disabilities in order to 
replace the unsuitable building that is ineffective 
to maintain in the future  

£1,200,000

6

Highways and 
Municipal

Preventing 
deterioration of 
roads

Carry out more road maintenance work to 
prevent a deterioration in the condition in Class 1, 
2 and 3 roads 

£10,000,000

7

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Tan-y-marian 
Residential Home 

Adapt a section of the Home to offer specialist 
respite care mainly to adults with severe physical 
disabilities 

£200,000

8
Highways and 
Municipal

Burial Land Ensure sufficient burial land for the next ten years £682,000

9

Education Ysgol Treferthyr A new school to replace a building that is in a 
serious condition that cannot be maintained in 
the future. 

£1,750,000

10

Consultancy North Promenade, 
Barmouth - Flood 
Prevention 

Repairs to a deteriorated wall which provides tidal 
flooding protection and also upgrade an existing 
drainage system to reduce the flood risk to 200 
properties 

£347,500

Page 401



11

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Plas Pengwaith 
Residential Home 

Adapt the Residential Home to ensure that it is 
possible to respond to more intensive needs and 
support the end of life / health needs

£400,000

12

Consultancy Hirael, Bangor - Flood 
Prevention

Work to repair a tidal flood prevention wall and 
also upgrade an existing drainage system to 
reduce the flood risk to 120 properties 

£312,000

13

Consultancy Pwllheli - Flood 
Prevention 

Protection work on Crugan beach to reduce the 
risk to 200 houses in Pwllheli in the short-term 
whilst planning for a more comprehensive 
solution

£500,000

14

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of Pont 
Capel Horeb, Arthog

New bridge as it is not viable to continue 
maintaining the existing bridge 

£632,700

15
Highways and 
Municipal

Replacing road safety 
fences 

Replace sub-standard fences £1,000,000

16

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Plas Hafan 
Residential Home 

Further to the development currently taking 
place, develop a specialist Dementia unit to offer 
day, residential and respite services 

£300,000

17

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Plas Hedd Residential 
Home 

Further to the Dementia Unit being developed at 
present, this scheme would involve developing a 
specialist Dementia Unit for young people with 
Dementia 

£125,000

18

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of Pont 
Dysynni, Tywyn

Reinstall a parapet and paint Pont Dysynni, Tywyn £401,000

19

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Homelessness 
Hostels 

Provide new hostels for the homeless £500,000

20

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Cefn Rodyn 
Residential Home 

Adapt the Residential Home to ensure that it is 
possible to respond to more intensive needs and 
support the end of life stage / health needs

£400,000

21

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Bryn Blodau 
Residential Home 

Change the balance of use within the home to 
offer a broader range of joint services with the 
hospital's new development 

£300,000

22

Highways and 
Municipal

Flooding on the 
Highway

A programme of small schemes to avoid damage 
to houses when surface water will overflow from 
the highway 

£1,000,000

23
Highways and 
Municipal

Replacing traffic 
lights 

Replace columns and traffic lights at the end of 
their operational life 

£650,000

24

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Hafod Mawddach 
Residential Home 

Develop a specialist dementia unit, to offer day, 
residential and respite services 

£400,000

25

Education Upgrade the 
condition and 
suitability of schools 

Upgrade the condition and suitability of 
approximately 30 schools that would probably be 
ineligible on their own for a plan to make them 
suitable for the 21st Century.  

£3,570,000

Page 402



26

Consultancy Ffordd y Traeth, Y 
Felinheli - Flood 
Prevention 

Work to build a wall to prevent tidal flooding and 
reduce the flood risk to 33 houes 

£138,800

27
Highways and 
Municipal

Coed Ffridd Arw Development work in order to comply and obtain 
a full licence for the transfer site

£210,000

28

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Housing Grants Provision of grants to fund the Council's Empty 
Houses scheme

£3,000,000

29
Education Provision for Post-16 

Education
 Potential plan in order to ensure a suitable post-
16 education provision in Arfon. 

£6,300,000

30

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Extra Care Housing Fund a third Extra Care Housing scheme in 
addition to the two that will be funded through 
the Social Housing Grant 

£2,500,000

31

Consultancy Viaduct Gardens, 
Barmouth - Flood 
Prevention 

Repairs to a wall that provides tidal flooding 
protection and also upgrade the existing drainage 
system to reduce the flood risk to 50 properties 

£312,000

32

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Extra Care Housing Fund a fourth Extra Care Housing scheme in 
addition to the two that will be funded through 
the Social Housing Grant 

£2,500,000

33

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Penygroes Health 
and Care Hub 

A scheme to provide a health care 'Hub' to include 
a local surgery, dentist surgery, health clinics, 
Children and Families Support Centre and shop, 
extend and improve Plas Gwilym, Smarthouse 
(OT/Telecare equipment), Care facilities when 
travelling, Housing/Living Units for older people 
and individuals with specific requirements and 
possibly young people 

£3,500,000

34

Environment Buildings 
Maintenance - deal 
with the repairs and 
maintenance backlog

Deal with 1/3 of the defects identified during 
surveys of the condition of our operational 
buildings, e.g. re-wiring, re-roofing, new boilers, 
new windows, new kitchens and toilets, etc.  

£14,000,000

35

Consultancy Aberdyfi Quay Rebuild a quay that is now in a fragile condition 
and is insufficient to provide protection from the 
tide 

£437,500

36

Adults, Health 
and Well-
being 

Housing Grants Provision of grants to improve the condition and 
safety of sub-standard housing

£4,000,000

37
Highways and 
Municipal

Playing Fields Replace play equipment and safety measures in 
playing fields 

£516,000

38

Highways and 
Municipal

Installation of 
equipment to pay to 
use public toilets 

Install payment machines in toilets that are to be 
transferred to the community 

£165,000

39

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of  Pont 
Cadfan Road, Tywyn

Repairs in order to be able to continue using the 
bridge - renew the paint protection system. 

£101,500

Page 403



40

Economy and 
Community

Arfon Leisure / 
Tennis Centre 

Extend the customer and staff car park due to the 
health and safety risks deriving from the failure to 
separate pedestrians and vehicles (at least 50 
additional parking spaces are needed) 

£150,000

41

Education Complete a review of 
education 
organisation in 
Bangor 

Investing in the buildings of Bangor secondary 
schools in order to provide education resources of 
the expected standard for the 21st Century for 
our children and young people, which would be a 
follow-up to the investment seen in the county's 
primary schools. 

£6,340,000

42

Environment The Feasibility 
Studies of the 
Transport Service 

Carry out feasibility studies and complete 
preparatory work to enable us to bid for 
substantial grant funding towards essential plans 
to deal with highway safety matters or substantial 
repairs. 

£1,000,000

43

Consultancy Tremadog - Flood 
Prevention 

Work to upgrade the existing defective drainage 
system to reduce the risk of flooding to 20 houses 

£75,000

44

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of Pont 
Llanystumdwy

Repairs in order to be able to continue using the 
bridge - work to strengthen the arch

£154,800

45
Economy and 
Community

Parc Padarn Invest in paths and relics in order to deal with 
health and safety risks

£175,000

46

Children Canolfan 
Maesgeirchen / Ty 
Cegin

Develop the provision to support families in the 
Maesgeirchen area, Bangor

£500,000

47

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of Pont 
Mwnwgl y Llyn, Y 
Bala

Repairs in order to be able to continue using the 
bridge - new bearings and repair the concrete 
structure of Pont Mwnwgl y Llyn, Bala

£380,500

48

Highways and 
Municipal

Repair sections of the 
structure of Pont 
Penllyn,  near 
Brynrefail

Repairs in order to be able to continue using the 
bridge - renew the expansion joint

£108,000

49
Environment Smallholdings Replace the drinking water purification systems in 

12 smallholdings 
£400,000

50

Economy and 
Community / 
Education 

Multi-purpose 
playing fields 

Replace Astroturf pitches that have reached the 
end of their lifespan in secondary schools or 
leisure centres in 10 locations in Gwynedd

£1,300,000

51

Consultancy Waterloo Port, 
Caernarfon - Coastal 
Protection 

Coastal protection work to protect 8 houes and a 
cycle path

£55,000

52

Economy and 
Community

Plas Silyn Leisure 
Centre 

Re-design the car park in order to have a one-way 
system, create drop-off and pick-up spaces and 
create additional parking spaces on the site

£100,000

Page 404



53
Consultancy Penpaled, Cricieth - 

Coastal Protection 
Work to upgrade current assets to reduce flood 
risk to four houses 

£45,000

54

Environment Maintaining the 
Lonydd Glas 
Recreational Routes 
Network 

Maintenance work on the Lonydd Glas to ensure 
that they remain open and are available for public 
use. 

£140,000

55
Economy and 
Community

Bangor Swimming 
Pool

Renovating and internal alterations in order to 
better utilise the space 

£500,000

56
Economy and 
Community

Hafan Pwllheli Replace the pontoons and stakes £700,000

57

Economy and 
Community

Neuadd Dwyfor Investing in the building in order to improve the 
facilities and the possibility of centralising 
Pwllheli's services 

£350,000

58
Economy and 
Community

Plas Ffrancon Leisure 
Centre, Ogwen 

Work to return the space to leisure requirements 
should the Flying Start agreement end

£100,000

59

Environment Improving the 
Lonydd Glas 
Recreational Routes 
Network 

Improve the existing Lonydd Glas £60,000

60

Economy and 
Community

Libraries Service Internal alterations to Pwllheli Library in order to 
provide space to deliver the objectives of the 
Gwynedd Libraries Strategy - More Than Books 

£120,000

61

Economy and 
Community

Dwyfor Leisure 
Centre 

Extend the car park and use the tennis court area 
in front of the building (at least 25 additional 
parking spaces are needed) 

£75,000

62
Economy and 
Community

Bangor Library Adapt the existing Bangor Library building, or re-
locate, in order to offer a better provision 

£300,000

Page 405



1

Gwynedd Council
Asset Plan

2019/20 – 2028/29

Page 407



2

Introduction

1. This is Gwynedd Council’s Asset Plan for the ten year period starting in 
2019/20. 

2. The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s aims and improvement 
priorities, and also sets out our well-being objectives in accordance with the 
requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.
  

3. In order to achieve these aims, services have to use a variety of assets.

4. The first step in establishing this plan was to ask every Council Department to 
identify those schemes they needed to undertake over the next 10 years in 
order to deliver those aims. 

5. Every Council Member was then given the opportunity to take part in a  
prioritisiation process by identifying the priority he or she considered should 
be given to an individual scheme and the Cabinet considered the results of this 
consultation process in creating this Plan.

6. Apart from some specific schemes where appropriate emphasis had to be given 
to the risk of not fulfilling that scheme, in general, the Cabinet followed the 
prioritisation determined by members during the consultation process.
 

7. This Asset Plan therefore takes all of the capital spending requirements the 
Departments have noted they need in order to fufil the aims noted in the 
Council’s Corporate Plan, and sets out the relative priority to be accorded to 
those schemes.

8. The Council would obviously like to undertake every scheme identified by the 
departments, but considering what we currently know of the capital resources 
that will be available to the Council over the next ten years, this resource will 
not permit us to carry out every scheme.

9. Having said that, the situation could change over this period and we would 
review this scheme in light of any additional resources made available or any 
change in circumstances.

10. This Plan will form the basis of our capital spending strategy for the ensuing 
ten years and this Plan will also therefore drive our annual capital budgets.  

Page 408



3

RESOURCES

11. The key context to all of this of course is the resource which is going to be 
available for us to fund the Plan. 

12. Our current capital settlement shows that we receive £6.6m of capital resources 
every year.  Therefore over a period of 10 years it is anticipated we will have 
£66m. 

13. On top of that, in a recent budgetary statement the First Minister of Wales 
declared that he will provide an additional £100m for local authorities to spend 
on capital over a period of 3 years.  The first two instalments will be paid in 
respect of 2018/19 and 2019/20 and our share of this resoure is anticipated to 
be £4.5m.  There is also £1.4m from the old Asset Strategy Fund still available 
making a total capital resource of £72m available over the 10 year period.

14. It is possible over the next 10 years that we will see additional resources arising 
in the form of grants towards specific purposes and we should be alive to this 
possibility so as to try to ensure that we maximize the resources available for 
our core needs.  

15. Over a period of 10 years, there is also a strong likelihood that we will dispose 
of some assets which will increase resources available but as the Council’s 
Capital Plan for the period 2009-2018 is already based on selling a large amount 
of assets surplus to our requirements, there do not appear to be any 
opportunities at the moment to supplement our resources with any certainty.

16 The spending needs identified by the different departments are noted below.  
The schemes are divided into three groups:- 

 Schemes that we will be able to undertake within the resources 
available; 

 Schemes that will have to be addressed by other means; 
 Schemes where we will have to wait and see whether we can add to the 

resource available before they can be completed

17 If we receive further resources either through individual grants for approved 
schemes or otherwise we will prioritise schemes that cannot currently be 
approved in the order noted in part C which represents the priority accorded to 
them by the Council.  

Page 409



4

PART A – SCHEMES THAT ARE POSSIBLE TO ACHIEVE WITHIN THE 
AVAILABLE RESOURCES

Education Department

18 Potential Scheme to ensure suitable post-16 education provision in Arfon. 
(£6,300,000).  A review of the post-16 provision in Gwynedd is currently being  
undertaken, with a clear focus on Arfon schools, where post-16 pupils receive 
their education in the secondary schools rather than in a tertiary College 
provision as is the case in the rest of the county. The Isle of Anglesey Council 
will be looking at this provision at the same time. Although we do not 
currently know what the exact conclusions of the research will be, but 
accepting that there will be a strong possibility that capital expenditure will be 
needed in order to deliver any solution, be that through schools or any other 
solution, Welsh Government has already agreed in principle to include the 
match funding as a part of the investment in Band B of the 21st Century 
Schools Programme which means that we will receive 65% of the scheme’s 
possible cost (£18m) through grant aid.  It is possible that the cost will be less 
depending on the response which will become clear in the review.

19. A new school to replace Ysgol Treferthyr, Criccieth which is in a serious 
condition (£1,750,000).  The existing Ysgol Treferthyr building is in a serious 
condition (the only school in Gwynedd in Category C or lower). Match funding 
for a new school has been agreed in principle in Welsh Government's Band B 
schemes which means that 65% of the total cost of the scheme (£5m) will be 
grant funded.

20. Upgrade the condition and suitability of schools (3,570,000).  The Council has 
already invested in the schools' field in order to raise the quality of our schools 
and Welsh Government has acknowledged that by agreeing in principle to 
earmark match funding from money in Band B in order to assist the Council to 
further realise the programme which means that 65% of the total cost of the 
scheme (£10.2m) will be grant funded.

Environment Department

21. Carry out feasibility studies and complete preparatory work to attract grant 
funding towards highway and environmental schemes. (£750,000)
Carrying out feasibility studies and completing preparatory work enables us to 
persuade a variety of public bodies and landowners to finance schemes within 
the County and enables us to respond quickly when grants become available.  
Since 2005, the Council has managed to deliver capital projects to the value of 
approximately £75 million to improve the highways infrastructure and a vast 
majority of these (89%) have been funded with grants or a combination of 

Page 410



5

grants, with 70% supported by a feasibility study.  Failing to carry out 
feasibility studies would reduce the ability to do so.   The Department had 
asked for £1m over the scheme’s lifetime but we do not have funds available to 
meet this sum in its entirety and we will therefore be providing £750,000 for 
this plan. 

22. Maintaining the Lonydd Glas Recreational Network (£140,000).  The Lonydd 
Glas network attracts over 300,000 annual journeys and it has been developed 
over the past 20 years at a cost of approximately £5m (mainly through external 
grants).   However they require maintenance and unless we carry out the 
necessary maintenance work some sections would have to be closed.  

23. Disposing of asbestos from our properties (£1,708,000) - Every year, the 
Council inspects every piece of asbestos in our buildings, in accordance with 
the statutory requirements.  If the asbestos is in a dangerous condition, it must 
be disposed of, otherwise the building must close. There are serious 
implications to the health of building users unless asbestos is managed very 
carefully. This is the amount that we estimate will be required over the years in 
order to meet the need.

24. Replace the drinking water purification systems in smallholdings (£400,000) - 
Some smallholdings are located in isolated areas and do not have access to a 
public water supply. The families who live there are dependent on being able 
to use water from a well or natural reservoirs. This water is unsuitable to drink 
without being purified and the purification systems are now old and are 
reaching the end of their lifespan. 

Economy & Community Department

25. Health & Safety Issues in Leisure Centres (£250,000) - Health & Safety 
assessments have shown that there are risks deriving from the failure to 
sufficiently separate pedestrians and vehicles in the Plas Silyn Leisure Centre, 
Penygroes and Arfon Tennis Centre, Caernarfon. We need to rectify the 
situation by undertaking these schemes.

26. Parc Padarn, Llanberis (£175,000)  - This site is obviously full of risks as it is a 
quarry. It includes a network of paths that are open to the public - which 
meander through former quarries and ancient woodland.  The quarry area 
includes a number of old buildings that are now deteriorating and collapsing 
(roofs, walls, etc.).  In addition, a substantial number of trees (over 100 oak 
trees) have collapsed in recent storms. It is considered that work needs to be 
done to protect the safety of visitors to the Park, and the users of relevant 
public footpaths.

Page 411



6

27. Multi-purpose playing fields (£1,300,000) - A number of AstroTurf pitches 
were developed in the 90s that are extensively used by schools and the broader 
community. The pitches are now reaching the end of their lifespan and unless 
they can be replaced, they will be dangerous to use and must be closed. This 
will have a substantial impact on schools' ability to meet the physical education 
curriculum and on a substantial number of clubs (football, hockey, rugby etc. 
[both children and adults clubs]).

Children and Family Support Department

28. Canolfan Maesgeirchen/Ty Cegin (£500,000) - Our family support strategy is 
in its infancy; however, one certainty is that the area of Maesgeirchen, Bangor 
deserves specific attention in terms of providing support. Although the Council 
does have a presence there already, it could be argued that a different provision 
is needed if we are to realise our vision in our family support strategy. 
Although we are yet to define exactly what needs to be done, obviously 
investment will be needed if the aim of seeing the principle of "one service" is 
to be realised and whilst it will be possible to target some grants, the Council 
may have to contribute as well. 

Adults, Health & Well-being Department

29. Housing Adaptation Grants (£13,000,000) - A substantial proportion of the 
housing grants spend is statutory expenditure on adaptations (£1.3m per 
annum), to enable disabled people to continue in their homes or to facilitate 
hospital discharge. This funding pays for the Disability Facilities Grant (DFG) 
and the minor adaptations to property scheme. We have a duty to provide 
adaptations if an assessment has noted that it is essential and necessary. 
Adaptations are important in order to promote independence and to support 
carers and avoid challenges. 

30. Hostels for the Homeless (£500,000) - The nature of the current resources is 
dated and investment and alterations are needed to provide a quality service 
and to comply with expectations in terms of quality. Without upgrading, there 
will be challenges in the future, in terms of an increase in protecting the 
interests and privacy of individuals, particularly in terms of the current 
requirement to share some facilities such as bathrooms and kitchens.

31. Extra Care Housing (£2,500,000) - Extra Care Housing allows us to meet the 
real needs of older people by offering them a property that allows them to live 
independent lives whilst receiving appropriate support. The demand is 
increasing and whilst we are likely to be able to develop two such sites by 
means of grants etc., there is room to extend the provision for individuals with 
learning disabilities, physical disabilities and mental health conditions as well 
as provision for older people only. The provision means that individuals have 

Page 412



7

their own tenancy and are able to receive timely support if needed in order to 
enable them to remain independent for as long as possible within their local 
communities. There is evidence that it is possible to provide care to individuals 
with very intensive needs within the schemes. They also allow couples to stay 
together and receive support and enable families to continue to provide 
elements of support should they so wish.

32. The department had requested that they be given the resource to develop two 
additional sches at a cost of £5m.  The Plan provides for one scheme and 
priority to be given to the second scheme will be considered as part of the 
Housing Strategy prioritisation process.
 

33. Penygroes Health and Care Hub (£3,500,000) - This would be an innovative 
scheme to provide an integrated health and care hub with the opportunity to 
use the development as a catalyst for community and economic recovery at the 
same time. The scheme would ensure a timely response, by the most suitable 
person, to local residents. It would develop collaboration and integration 
between the local community, third sector and statutory bodies in order to 
make the best use of resources and deliver what matters to the community. The 
geographical location of Penygroes means that the development would benefit 
the local community and the residents of the County in a broader sense. The 
scheme would include a housing provision for older people and individuals 
with specific needs and would create an opportunity to adapt the care 
provision offered from Plas Gwilym residential home. Developing an 
equipment facility that allows specialist equipment to be trialled to ensure 
suitability before providing or purchasing their own equipment, provides a 
local service that can respond in a timely manner. Similarly, there is an 
opportunity here to strengthen the county provision to support children and 
families, in particular by working in partnership on preventative work.

34. Canolfan Dolfeurig, Dolgellau (£1,200,000) - In our efforts to ensure that 
people with Learning Disabilities are able to live complete lives and participate 
in society, we give them opportunities during the day in Meirionnydd at 
Canolfan Dolfeurig. The building is in a very poor condition and is unfit for 
purpose. It raises many concerns in relation to health and safety matters. The 
report of the Property Department notes that the cost of repairing the building 
properly to maintain the service for 20-25 years would make less sense than 
building a smaller resource with purpose-built space. This would also reduce 
running and maintenance costs. The aim would be to develop a community 
hub in this building in order to continue the existing services on the site and 
develop a broad range of day and work opportunities for adults with learning 
disabilities in the south of the county. In addition, it would be possible to 
develop a range of services and group work to be held from the Hub. 

Page 413



8

35. Residential Homes (£2,125,000) – We have a number of residential homes in 
need of adaptations so that we can in the future provide the service that 
responds to the true needs of our residents in the .  This would allow us to 
provide specialist dementia care and to respond to more intensive needs such 
as health needs and support end of life needs as well as being able to provide 
respite care.   The residential homes in question are :-

 Hafod Mawddach Residential Home, Barmouth
 Bryn Blodau Residential Home, Blaenau Ffestiniog
 Cefn Rodyn Residential Home, Dolgellau
 Plas Hafan Residential Home, Pwllheli
 Plas Hedd Residential Home, Bangor
 Plas Pengwaith Residential Home, Llanberis
 Tanymarian Residential Home, Pwllheli 

Highways and Municipal Department

36. Preventing deterioration of roads (£7,000,000) - Whilst the comparative 
condition of our class A and B roads places us "central" in the national tables, 
the condition of our class C roads - namely the longest length we have, is in the 
18th position across Wales. The current expenditure on road maintenance (a 
revenue budget of £6.961m) is insufficient to avoid a deterioration and on the 
current level of expenditure, a deterioration of approximately 1% per annum is 
anticipated. To keep the roads in their current condition, it is anticipated that 
an additional investment of approximately £1m per annum would be required. 
Naturally, more would need to be spent if one wishes to see an improvement.  

37. We will be receiving £3.9m of additional resources for our roads from Welsh 
Government which will be sufficient to meet the need for the first three years of 
the Plan and we will consider providing £1m per annum after that time if 
further rsources from Welsh Government do not materialise.
 

38. Replace traffic lights (£650,000) - We need to replace columns and traffic lights 
which are coming to the end of their operational life.  In the past, the small 
numbers arising from the road maintenance budget could be coped with; 
however, the numbers are increasing as more reach the end of their lifespan.

39. Replace sub-standard safety fences (£1,000,000) - During the first 10 years of 
the previous Asset Plan, half of the sub-standard Safety Fences (timber posts), 
were replaced (34 locations). Another 34 still need replacing.

40. Defective Bridges (£1,778,500) – Following the Council’s Highway 
Maintenance Review published in 2016 it was decided that we would deal with 
bridges by moving to a risk based inspection and assessment system for 
bridges andretaining walls (i.e. ensuring that we have clear and definitive 

Page 414



9

arrangements for establishing ansd targeting our main risks).   The assessments 
show that a number of our bridges require attention if we are to continue using 
them.  Failure to do so could result in traffic restrictions on the bridges with 
possible diversions or even closure.  The following are the bridges in question:-

 Pont Mwnwgl y Llyn, Bala
 Cadfan Road Bridge, Tywyn
 Penllyn Bridge near Brynrefail
 Llanystumdwy Bridge
 Capel Horeb Bridge, Arthog
 Dysynni Bridge, Tywyn

 
41. Flooding on the Highway (£1,000,000) - We do not currently have a specific 

budget to deliver minor schemes in order to prevent water from flowing onto 
the road and cause damage to residential property. Recently, many cases of this 
has occurred and consideration must be given to using the roads maintenance 
budget as a way of dealing with the worst examples. Obviously, there are 
implications to the residents in those places that suffer as well as to the 
Council's reputation. There could also be legal implications.  We therefore need 
to provide a budget for such work. 

42. Providing Land for Burials (£682,000) - Failing to deliver this scheme would 
mean that we would not have sufficient burial land in three urban areas within 
the county.

43. Replacement of Housing Estate Water Pipes (£2,400,000) - A report was 
submitted to the Cabinet on 7/6/16, noting that there is a responsibility on the 
Council to maintain unadopted water pipes that serve Council housing. This 
work (that would remove sub-standard water pipes), would continue in the 
long-term and it is estimated that this amount is needed over the plan period. 
Failing to do so would create a risk of legal challenge and could mean that CCG 
tenants would receive sub-standard supplies.  

44. Develop and Renew the Caergylchu Site (£718,000) – There is a need to renew 
the building's roof and meet fire requirements to ensure that recycling and 
transfer activities continue.

45. Develop the Coed Fridd Arw Waste Transfer Site (£210,000) – Currently only 
a section of the site can be used under the waste treatment and recycling 
material licence. The exception to the rest of the site under the licence will end 
within a year unless a surface water management system is provided on the 
site.

Page 415



10

Gwynedd Consultancy Department

46. Flood Prevention Schemes (£2,047,800) – The Consultancy Department is 
responsible for assessing flood risk within the County and looks at ways of 
alleviating the risks.  There are a number of schemes where an application 
could be made for grant aid to undertake alleviation works but that would 
depend on match funding from the Council.   The schemes under consideration 
and the risks protected are:-

 Aberdyfi Quay -  a structure that protects the area behind property from 
erosion and maintains a number of quay services in Aberdyfi

 North Promenade, Barmouth – This is in order to release an investment 
of £1.6m to protect 200 properties from flooding. 

 Viaduct Gardens, Barmouth - This is in order to release an investment 
of £1.6m to protect 50 properties from flooding and would also assist 
with the long-term strategy of sand management in the town. 

 Crugan Beach, Pwllheli - This money will release an investment of £2m 
to protect 200 houses in Pwllheli. 

 Repairing and upgrading drainage system at Hirael, Bangor - Assist 
the long-term strategy and provide flood protection in the Hirael area in 
Bangor. Protect up to 120 homes and key infrastructure. 

 Fordd y Traeth, Y Felinheli - This would release an investment of £800k 
to prevent flooding to 33 houses.

Renewal Shemes

47. Vehicle Fleet (£2,037,000) – A number of Council services utilise vehicles in 
order to deliver their services, and whilst some departments have renewals 
funds to replace those vehicles when that needs to be done, others are 
dependant upon the capital budget to replace them. The amount shown here is 
the amount which will be required to replace vehicles over the next 10 year 
period. 

48. Information Technology Equipment (£7,215,360) – In the same way, the use of 
information technology is now key for all Council services, and this resource 
needs to be replaced when it comes to the end of its life.  This sum is the 
amount required to fund that replacement programme over the 10 year 
timeframe of the Plan.
 

Page 416



11

PART B – SCHEMES WHICH WILL HAVE TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY OTHER 
MEANS

49 Education Department - Complete the review of education organisation in 
Bangor. (£6,370,000) 

50. The Council and Welsh Government is already investing £12million in Band A  
of the Welsh Government's 21st Century Schools Programme in the primary 
sector in Bangor.  This further investment in Band B that would see the Welsh 
Government funding 65% of the total cost of the scheme of £18.2m and is key in 
order to build on, and complete, the work of investing in education in the 
Bangor area.  

51. However, in view of the financial constraints which we face; the resources 
required in order to undertake the Education schemes noted in paragraphs 18-
20 of this Plan restraints and the comparative priority given to this scheme 
against other schmes, we need to consider other ways of delivering it.  

52. There is a possibility that the cost of undertaking the post-16 scheme noted in 
paragraph 18 above could be less than that earmarked for it, and if so, we will 
divert any resources released as a result towards this scheme. 
   

53. If there is no reduction in the cost of that scheme or if it is insufficient, if this 
scheme continues to be a priority for the Education Department, the scheme 
can be undertaken by borrowing additional moneys to do so, but that would 
entail the Education Department finding the revenue resources to pay the cost 
of that borrowing.
  

54. Environment Department - Dealing with the repairs and maintenance 
backlog (£14,000,000) .

55. At the beginning of our previous asset Plan, we had a £27m maintenance back-
log as we had not been investing enough in the maintenance of our buildings.  
As a result of the expenditure earmarked in the previous plan, this amount has 
now reduced to £14m. To be able to deal with all condition issues identified in 
our buildings at present, e.g. leaking roofs, old windows, damp, kitchens and 
toilets in a poor condition, etc. there is a need for a greater investment than that 
set aside in the revenue budget which is spent to try and stop the situation 
getting worse. 
 

56. This investment would meet all of the need and would avoid the risk of a 
building having to be closed due to a failure arising due to the historic deficit.  
However, it is such an enormous sum that the expenditure cannot be met if we 
wish to undertake the other elements of this Plan.  

57. On that basis therefore we cannot give this scheme priority and will expect the 

Page 417



12

department to move funds from the revenue maintenance budget if a situation 
arises when a building would have to be be closed for this reason. 
  

58. In addition however, if any capital receipts are received during this Plan’s 
lifetime which have not already been earmarked for other schemes, we will 
direct those capital receipts towards making inroads into the repairs and 
maintenance backlog. We will also start on that work by providing £600,000 of 
the Capital Plan’s resources for that purpose.

59 Adults, Health & Well-being Department - Grants for Empty Houses 
(£3,000,000) - This investment would fund the Council's Empty Houses Scheme 
which brings 60+ empty houses back into use every year. Without the resource, 
the scheme cannot be continued. Gwynedd Council has been pioneering in the 
field and the housing units that are restored are recycled in order to provide 
accommodation for people on the housing register and the homeless. It is 
anticipated that reducing this investment would increase the demand on the 
register and the period to obtain permanent accommodation. 

60. The empty homes scheme also supports first-time buyers, by offering them 
support to bring empty houses back into use. Expenditure on empty homes 
will obviously attract additional private investment within the County's 
boundaries. Between 2008 and 2017, it is estimated that £3.9m in Council 
money was spent on empty homes which led to a further private investment of 
£10.5m.

61. However, taking into account the sums already being allocated for the housing 
function in this Plan and the resources available, and knowing that there will 
be substantial sums available over the next 10 years to deliver the Council’s 
Housing Strategy, we will transfer this scheme to receive consideration under 
the arrangements for  considering the priorities for resources abvailable to 
deliver the Housing Strategy. 

62. Extra Care Housing (£2,500,000) – As noted in paragraph 31 of the Plan we 
intend to provide resources for one additional Extra Care Housing scheme but 
consideration of the second additional scheme will have to be transferred to the 
prioritisation process for the Housing Strategy.

Part C – SCHEMES WHICH WILL  HAVE TO WAIT TO SEE WHETHER WE CAN 
ADD TO THE RESOURCE AVAILABLE BEFORE WE CAN UNDERTAKE THEM

63. Grants to improve the condition and safety of sub-standard housing 
(£4,000,000) - This investment funds schemes that improves the condition and 
safety of sub-standard housing. Money such as Gwynedd's contribution is used 
to attract match funding from external sources and to stimulate further 
improvements. A number of schemes administered on behalf of the Welsh 
Assembly are subject to the Council's match funding. It would be difficult for 

Page 418



13

the Council to attract money from Government and act and encourage 
restoration work without intervention and making a financial contribution. We 
assist vulnerable individuals that would not be able to supervise the necessary 
improvements themselves. The money enables the Council to give low-interest 
loans to applicants who would not otherwise receive assistance, and enables 
people to remain in their homes. The money also tops up the DFGs, which 
avoids the need for older and vulnerable people to receive permanent care.  

64. Replace play equipment in playing fields (£516,000) - Without this 
investment, play equipment would not be replaced at the end of their 
operational life. During the 10 years, it is anticipated that 42 of the 131 Council 
playing fields would replace the play equipment and improve the safety 
measures.

65. Installation of equipment to pay to use public toilets (£165,000) - In order to 
facilitate the transfer of some public toilets to others, it would be desirable to 
install payment machines on those toilets so that those who are taking over the 
toilets could gain an element of income from them.  Failing to do so would 
raise a question as to whether other organisations would be as prepared to take 
responsibility for them.

66. Upgrade defective drainage system at Tremadog (£75,000) - This money will 
release an investment of £500k to protect 20 houses in Tremadog.

67. Waterloo Port, Caernarfon (£55,000) – A scheme to protect the access to the 
beach below Waterloo Port in Caernarfon. The work is associated with a sea 
wall that is unable to hold the land back behind the cycle path. Also, to protect 
8 houses from flood risk.

68. Penpaled, Criccieth (£45,000) - To protect the coast and four houses.

69. Bangor Swimming Pool (£500,000) - Currently, our fitness and "dry" sports 
offer is very restricted to the residents of Bangor due to a lack of suitable space 
in the existing building. In addition, the current design of the changing rooms 
restricts the number of swimming lessons we are able to offer and this leads to 
waiting lists. We are also open to possible challenge from protected groups via 
equality legislation, e.g. lack of women only changing space and restricted 
space for disabled people. It is also unsuitable for the users of the fitness room, 
e.g. open/poolside showers only. 

70. Hafan Pwllheli (£700,000) - Hafan Pwllheli's income derives from the boat 
moorings located there.  The pontoons and stakes at Hafan date back to the 90s 
and they need to be replaced. Failure to do so would lead to a deterioration in 
their condition and would lead to the need to remove pontoons from Hafan, 
thus reducing income (and therefore the profits), generated there. A reduction 

Page 419



14

in the number of customers would also be likely to affect businesses around 
Hafan. The need for further investment is anticipated in 2030.

71. Neuadd Dwyfor, Pwllheli (£350,000) - A scheme to the value of £340k has been 
submitted to the Welsh Government in order to make improvements to 
Neuadd Dwyfor - revamping the library (the project noted above), creating a 
joint reception, revamping the hallway and developing a space for hot drinks / 
Wi-Fi access and newspapers there and create an activity room. The bid was 
unsuccessful due to the pressure on the national fund. Without investment, the 
building will not be able to offer the experience that customers would expect 
and this could lead to a reduction in income. Investing in the building would 
place the Council in a much stronger position to discuss the transfer of the 
service with partners. Without investment, or transfer in the short/medium 
term, the viability of the Theatre/Cinema at Neuadd Dwyfor will be at risk and 
subsequently there would be implications to the Library and to the 
Council/community meeting spaces on the site. There would also be 
implications to the Council as the Theatre space in Neuadd Dwyfor is listed 
and the Council would be responsible for protecting it. Should Neuadd Dwyfor 
close, it would impact not only the service, but also the businesses in Pwllheli 
Town Centre and the broader area (it is a rainy day facility for tourists).

72. Plas Ffrancon Leisure Centre, Bethesda (£100,000) - Currently, a section of the 
Leisure Centre is used by Flying Start and income derives from that. Should 
that scheme end, the space would not be suitable to ensure that an income 
could be derived from and it would require some expenditure in order to 
return it to an use that would create income.  Of course, this is dependent on 
whether or not Flying Start comes to an end.

73. Improving the Lonydd Glas Recreational Network (£60,000) – This would be 
a programme to update and improve signs and user information in the most 
widely used areas on the network.  It would also provide a programme of 
access improvements along the network in order to facilitate greater use and 
improve user safety near road junctiuons along with undertaking a programme 
of fencing and protecting retaining walls where the liability rests with the 
Council.
  

74. Adapt Pwllheli Library (£120,000) - Work has been completed to introduce a 
self-service system to the Gwynedd library network in 2017/18. However, the 
space in Pwllheli Library restricted the service's ability to take advantage of 
opportunities to improve efficiency as a result of the new system. Investment is 
required to adapt the building and take full advantage of co-locating 
opportunities with the reception of the Theatre/Cinema in the building

75. Dwyfor Leisure Centre (£75,000) - There is an insufficient number of parking 
spaces on the site to cope with the number of users and they have to park on 

Page 420



15

the street or on nearby streets. The benefit of the scheme would be to improve 
user experience and reduce on-street parking problems for nearby residents.

76. Adaptations to Bangor Library - Bangor Library offers a very restricted 
provision of space for users considering that it is one of the main libraries in 
Gwynedd, one of the largest communities, and is also a University city. There 
is insufficient space in the current building to carry out any work to extend or 
partnership work with external agencies. Therefore, our ability to provide a 
comprehensive library service such as reading activities (Reading Clubs), 
health and well-being activities (information sessions, Mindfulness sessions), 
children's activities (story and rhyme sessions for babies, family literacy 
activities), is very low compared to other towns in the county. There is no 
opportunity to promote the library as a community information hub either, 
which has happened successfully in some of the other libraries.

77. If we manage to find further resources during the Plan’s timeframe, we will try 
and undertake the schemes noted in Part C according to the rank orderin which 
they appear above, which reflects the order in which they were placed by 
members during the consultation process.   

CONCLUSIONS

78. The total cost of schemes noted in Part A above and in paragraph 58 of Part B is 
£67m which is £5m lower than the £72m estimate we are likely to have 
available to us over the planning period. 

79. However we need to be alive to the fact that other calls will arise during that 10 
year period and it would be inappropriate for us to leave ourselves without the 
capability of meeting those requirements.   

80. Accordingly, the £5m noted above will be retained in order to have £0.5m per 
annum to respond to such needs. 

81. The priority to be given to any new requirement will have to be assessed 
against the priorities established in this Plan. If no new requirement arises,  
then the resource can be committed on an annual to fund those schemes which 
appear in Part C.   

82. It also possible that further information could come to hand, be it further 
significant requirements; a significant adjustment in the resource available or a 
more detailed equality assessment which might affect the prioritisation 
accorded in this plan to various schemes and the Plan will periodically 
therefore need to be the subject of a review.  

Page 421



16Page 422


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15, 22 AND 29 JANUARY
	20190122 Cabinet Minutes
	20190129 Cabinet Minutes

	6 REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL PLAN 2018-23
	Item 6 - Gwynedd Council Plan
	Clawr Cynllun Cyngor 19-20 Saes.pdf
	Concise Plan Part 1.pdf
	improvement_plan.pdf
	Concise Plan Part 2.pdf
	Cyflwyniad i'r Cynlluniau Busnes Adrannol - S.pdf
	Front Page - Education.pdf
	Education Department Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Adult Health and Well-being.pdf
	Adults, Health and Wellbeing Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Highways and Municipal.pdf
	Highways and Municipal Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Children and Supporting Families.pdf
	Children and Supporting Families Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Environment.pdf
	Environment Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Economy and Community.pdf
	Economy and Community Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Ymgynghoriaeth Gwynedd Consultancy.pdf
	YGC Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Corporate Support.pdf
	Corporate Support Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Finance and IT.pdf
	Finance Department Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Legal Services.pdf
	Legal Services Plan.pdf
	Front Page - Financial Information.pdf
	Financial Information.pdf
	Front Page - Well-being Statement.pdf
	Gwynedd Council Well-being Statement 201920.pdf

	Item 6 - Gwynedd Council Plan -  Equality Impact Assessment

	7 NORTH WALES CARERS STRATEGY
	Item 7 - North Wales Carers Strategy
	North Wales Carers’ Strategy
	- A strategy for carers of all ages

	North Wales Carers’ Strategy - Summary
	The offer for carers in North Wales
	Personal well-being outcomes for carers
	Standards of service
	North Wales Regional Partnership Board
	2.0 The Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014
	3.0 National priorities
	4.0 About carers in North Wales
	5.0 Priorities for carers in North Wales
	5.1 Engagement with carers and carers’ voice
	5.2 Induction and training
	5.3 Assessment and support for all carers
	5.4 Information, advice and assistance
	5.5 Policy and practice
	5.6 Employer standards
	5.7 Carer Leads
	6.0 How services for carers are currently funded
	7.0 The offer for carers in North Wales
	The partners’ offer to carers in North Wales has been developed and co- produced by the following groups:
	Partners want to achieve the following personal well-being outcomes for all carers in North Wales:
	Partners will commit to:
	What partners will do as employers

	8.0 Standards of service
	9.0 Success measures
	10.0 Conclusion
	Appendices:

	Isolation of caring role and stress experienced by carers
	The value carers place on the support of third sector organisations and local authorities
	Carers’ need for information
	The impact of the person cared for’s well-being on the carer’s well- being
	Carers’ need for breaks
	The need to be employed, or to return to employment
	Rural issues

	Conclusion

	Carers’ strategy: mapping carers journeys report
	What the journey mapping tells us
	About the carer:
	About local authority and health services:
	About our workforce:

	To what extent are the carers’ experiences different to the process?
	Who in the process can support carers?
	What do we need to do to change and improve?

	Carers’ strategy: resource mapping
	What the mapping can’t tell us
	Findings
	Appendix i: Resources for carers questionnaire
	Appendix ii: Overview of carers’ services in North Wales
	North Wales Carers Strategic Group Action Plan – June 2018
	North Wales Carers Operational Group Action Plan – April 2018
	North Wales Young Carers Operational Group: Action Plan January 2018
	Guiding Principles of the North Wales Young Carer Action Plan.
	North Wales Carers Reference Group (CRG). Action Plan January 2018-January 2019





	8 2018/19 BUDGET
	Item 8 - Appendix 1 - Budget Summary
	Item 8 - Appendix 2 Bids Summary Table
	Item 8 - Appendix 2a - Revenue Bids
	Item 8 - Appendix 2b - Settlement
	Item 8 - Appendix 2c - Capital Bids
	Item 8 - Appendix 3 - Savings
	Item 8 - Appendix 4 - Capital
	Item 8 - Appendix 5 - Dealing with the Schools Budget
	Item 8 - Appendix 6 - Council Tax
	Item 8 - Appendix 7 - Balances
	Item 8 - Appendix 8 - Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Item 8 - Appendix 9 - Equality Impact Assessment
	item 8 - Appendix 10 - Wellbeing of Future Generations
	Item 8 - Appendix 11 - Consultation Results
	Item 8 - Appendix 12 - Alternative Decisions
	Item 8 - Appendix 13 - Robustness of Estimates

	9 ASSET PLAN 2019-29
	Item 9 - Asset Strategy 2019-29


